OFFICIAL NOTICE OF BOND SALE
and
PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT

State of Utah,
State Building Ownership Authority

$18,725,000* Lease Revenue Bonds
(State Facilities Master Lease Program), Series 2018

payable from lease payments to be made, subject to annual

appropriation, by the
State of Utah

pursuant to a State Facilities Master Lease Agreement,
as amended and supplemented

Electronic bids will be received up to 9:30:00 A.M., M.S.T.,
via the PARITY® electronic bid submission system, on
Wednesday, February 21, 2018.

* Preliminary; subject to change.
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OFFICIAL NOTICE OF BOND SALE
(Bond Sale to be Conducted Electronically)

STATE OF UTAH
STATE BUILDING OWNERSHIP AUTHORITY

$18,725,000* LEASE REVENUE BONDS
(STATE FACILITIES MASTER LEASE PROGRAM), SERIES 2018

Bids will be received electronically (as described under “PROCEDURES REGARDING ELECTRONIC
BIDDING” below) by the State of Utah (the ““State™), State Building Ownership Authority (the “Authority’”)
on the PARITY® electronic bid submission system (“PARITY®””) up to 9:30:00 a.m., Mountain Standard
Time, on Wednesday, February 21, 2018, for the purchase of $18,725,000* State of Utah, State Building
Ownership Authority Lease Revenue Bonds (State Facilities Master Lease Program), Series 2018 (the
2018 Bonds™), to be issued pursuant to an Indenture of Trust, Assignment of State Facilities Master Lease
Agreement and Security Agreement dated as of September 1, 1994, as supplemented and amended (as so
supplemented and amended, the “Indenture’”), between the Authority and the Trustee (described herein),
and to be payable from, and secured by, Base Rentals to be paid by the State, acting through its Department
of Administrative Services, Division of Facilities Construction and Management (the ““Lessee”), pursuant
to an annually renewable State Facilities Master Lease Agreement, dated as of September 1, 1994, as
supplemented and amended (as so supplemented and amended, the “Master Lease™), between the Authority
(as lessor) and the Lessee, as more fully described under “Security” herein. The bids will be publicly
reviewed and considered in public session held by the Authority on Wednesday, February 21, 2018, at
4:00 p.m., Mountain Standard Time, at the State Capitol Building, in Salt Lake City, Utah.

The 2018 Bonds are being issued pursuant to the provisions of the State Building Ownership
Authority Act, Part 3, Chapter 1, Title 63B of the Utah Code Annotated 1953 as amended (the “Utah
Code”) and other applicable State laws (the ““Act™) and the resolution of the Authority, adopted on
November 21, 2017, and a resolution of the Authority to be adopted Wednesday, February 21, 2018, which
provide for the issuance of the 2018 Bonds; and other applicable provisions of law.

The 2018 Bonds are more fully described in the Authority’s Preliminary Official Statement with
respect to the 2018 Bonds dated February 9, 2018 (the ““Preliminary Official Statement™).

(The remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank.)

*  Preliminary; subject to change. See caption “ADJUSTMENT OF PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF THE 2018 BoNDs” in this Official Notice
of Bond Sale.



DESCRIPTION OF 2018 BONDS: The 2018 Bonds will be dated their date of deliveryl and will
mature serially on May 15 of each of the years (except as otherwise described under the caption “Term
Bonds and Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption at Bidder’s Option” herein) and in the amounts as follows:

PRINCIPAL PRINCIPAL
YEAR AMOUNT* YEAR AMOUNT*
2020 $605,000 2030 $ 955,000
2021 640,000 2031 990,000
2022 665,000 2032 1,015,000
2023 700,000 2033 1,050,000
2024 735,000 2034 1,090,000
2025 775,000 2035 1,125,000
2026 815,000 2036 1,160,000
2027 850,000 2037 1,200,000
2028 905,000 2038 1,240,000
2029 920,000 2039 1,290,000

TOTAL PRINCIPAL AMOUNT: $18,725,000*

The 2018 Bonds will be issued in registered form and, when issued, will be registered in the name
of The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, or its nominee. The Depository Trust Company
will act as securities depository for the 2018 Bonds. Purchases of beneficial interests in the 2018 Bonds
will be made in book—entry form in the denomination of $5,000 or any whole multiple thereof.

ADJUSTMENT OF PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF THE 2018 BONDS: The Authority reserves the right,
following determination of the best bid(s), to reduce or increase the principal amount of each maturity of
the 2018 Bonds by the amount necessary to properly size the issue so that proceeds available to the
Authority will be approximately $19,700,000.00. The dollar amount of the price bid (i.e., par plus any
premium bid) by the successful bidder may be changed as described below, but the interest rates specified
by the successful bidder for all maturities will not change. A successful bidder may not withdraw its bid as
a result of any changes made within these limits and the Authority will consider the bid as having been
made for the adjusted amount of the 2018 Bonds. The dollar amount of the price bid will be changed so
that the percentage net compensation to the successful bidder (i.e., the percentage resulting from dividing
(i) the aggregate difference between the offering price of the 2018 Bonds to the public and the price to be
paid to the Authority (excluding accrued interest, if any), by (ii) the principal amount of the 2018 Bonds)
does not increase or decrease from what it would have been if no adjustment was made to the principal
amounts shown in this Official Notice of Bond Sale. The Authority expects to advise the successful bidder
as soon as possible, but expects no later than 11:00 a.m., Mountain Standard Time, on the date of sale, of
the changes to the principal amount of the 2018 Bonds maturing on one or more of the above—designated
maturity dates for the 2018 Bonds. Any such adjustment will be in an amount of $5,000 or a whole multiple
thereof.

To facilitate any adjustment in the principal amounts, each successful bidder(s) is required to
indicate by facsimile transmission to Zions Public Finance, Inc., the Municipal Advisor to the Authority
(the “Municipal Advisor™) at fax number 801.844.4484 within one-half hour of the time of bid opening,
the amount of any original issue discount or premium on each maturity of the 2018 Bonds and the amount
received from the sale of the 2018 Bonds to the public that will be retained by the successful bidder(s) as
its compensation.

1 The anticipated date of delivery of the 2018 Bonds is Wednesday, March 7, 2018.
*  Preliminary; subject to change.



TERM BONDS AND MANDATORY SINKING FUND REDEMPTION AT BIDDER’S OPTION: The
2018 Bonds scheduled to mature on one or more of the above-designated maturity dates may be
rescheduled, at bidder’s option, to mature as term bonds on one or more dates within that period, in which
event the 2018 Bonds will mature and be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption in such amounts
and on such dates as will correspond to the above—designated maturity dates and principal amounts (as
adjusted as described above) maturing on those dates.

PURCHASE PRICE: The purchase price to be bid for the 2018 Bonds shall not be less than the
principal amount of the 2018 Bonds ($18,725,000%).

POSSIBLE REJECTION OF ALL BIDS FOR 2018 BONDS: As described below under “Sale
Reservations,” the Authority reserves the right to reject any and all bids and to resell the 2018 Bonds.

INTEREST RATE: Bidders must specify the rate of interest with respect to each maturity of the
respective 2018 Bonds. Bidders will be permitted to bid different rates of interest for each separate maturity
of the 2018 Bonds, but:

(@)  the highest interest rate bid for any of the 2018 Bonds shall not exceed five percent
(5.00%) per annum;

(b)  each interest rate specified in any bid with respect to the 2018 Bonds must be in a
multiple of one—eighth or one—twentieth of one percent (1/8th or 1/20th of 1%) per annum;

(c) all 2018 Bonds of the same maturity must bear the same rate of interest;

(d) interest shall be computed from the dated date of the 2018 Bonds to its stated
maturity date at the interest rates specified in the bid for each maturity of the 2018 Bonds;

(e)  the purchase price must be paid in Federal Reserve Bank funds and no bid will be
accepted that contemplates the cancellation of any interest or the waiver of interest or other
concession by the bidder as a substitute for Federal Reserve Bank funds;

() any premium must be paid in the funds specified for the payment of the
2018 Bonds as part of the purchase price;

(g) there shall be no supplemental interest coupons;
(n)  azero percent (0%) interest rate may not be used; and
(i)  interestshall be computed on the basis of a 360—day year of twelve 30—-day months.

Interest will be payable semiannually on May 15 and November 15 of each year, commencing
November 15, 2018.

RATINGS: The Authority will, at its own expense, pay fees of Moody’s Investors Service and
Standard & Poor’s Global Ratings for rating the 2018 Bonds. Any additional ratings shall be at the option
and expense of the bidder(s).

TRUSTEE, BOND REGISTRAR AND PAYING AGENT; PLACE OF PAYMENT: Wells Fargo Bank,
N.A., Denver, Colorado, will be the trustee (the “Trustee”), paying agent and bond registrar for the

*  Preliminary; subject to change.



2018 Bonds. The Authority may remove any Trustee, paying agent or bond registrar, and any successor
thereto, and appoint a successor or successors thereto. Principal of and premium, if any, on the 2018 Bonds
will be payable when due to the registered owner of each 2018 Bond upon presentation and surrender
thereof at the principal corporate trust office of the paying agent at maturity or upon redemption prior to
maturity. Payment of interest on each 2018 Bond will be made to the person who, as of the record date, is
the registered owner of the 2018 Bond and shall be made by check or draft mailed to the person who, as of
the record date, is the registered owner of the 2018 Bond, at the address of such registered owner as it
appears on the registration books of the Authority kept by the bond registrar.

REDEMPTION PROVISIONS: Optional Redemption of the 2018 Bonds. The 2018 Bonds maturing
on or before May 15, 2027, are not subject to redemption prior to maturity, except as otherwise described
under this caption “Redemption Provisions.” The 2018 Bonds maturing on or after May 15, 2028, are
subject to redemption (i) in whole on any business day on or after November 15, 2027, in the event that the
Lessee exercises its option pursuant to the Master Lease to purchase all the Leased Property thereunder or
(if) in part on November 15, 2027, or on any date thereafter from such maturities or portions thereof
designated by the Lessee in the event that the Lessee prepays additional Base Rentals pursuant to the Master
Lease or purchases a portion of the Leased Property representing separate Facilities pursuant to the Master
Lease, all as provided in the Indenture. If called for redemption as described in this paragraph, the
2018 Bonds to be redeemed, in whole or in part, shall be redeemed at a redemption price, expressed as a
percentage of the principal amount of the 2018 Bonds to be redeemed, equal to 100% of the principal
amount thereof plus accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption.

Extraordinary Optional Redemption in the Event of Damage, Destruction or Condemnation. The
2018 Bonds shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity in whole or in part from time to time, from
such maturities or portions thereof designated by the Lessee, on such date or dates as the Trustee shall
determine as provided in the Indenture, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount to be
redeemed, together with accrued interest thereon to the redemption date, but without premium, in the event
that (i) any of the Facilities are damaged or destroyed, in whole or in part, or the Leased Property or any
portion thereof is taken in a condemnation or other proceeding, or certain events occur with respect to the
title to the Leased Property or construction defects in any of the Facilities as described in the Master Lease,
(if) the Net Proceeds of any insurance policy, performance bond or condemnation award, or the Net
Proceeds received as a consequence of defaults under any Project Contract (excluding liquidated damages),
plus all amounts required to be paid as deductibles thereunder, made available by reason of one or more
such occurrences, and any other legally available moneys, shall be insufficient to pay in full the cost of
rebuilding, replacing or repairing the Leased Property and (iii) the Lessee elects, pursuant to the Master
Lease, to waive its obligation to rebuild, repair or replace the affected portion of the Leased Property by
depositing such Net Proceeds into the Redemption Fund under the Indenture for application to the
redemption of the then outstanding 2018 Bonds in accordance with the Master Lease and the Indenture and
provides written notice of such election to the Trustee and the Authority. If the 2018 Bonds are called for
extraordinary optional redemption, the 2018 Bonds to be redeemed will be redeemed on such date or dates
as the Trustee may determine to be in the best interests of the Owners of the 2018 Bonds.

SECURITY: The principal of, and premium (if any) and interest on, the 2018 Bonds are payable
from, and secured by, annually renewable Base Rentals to be paid by the Lessee pursuant to the Master
Lease, subject to annual appropriation by the Utah Legislature of amounts sufficient to pay such Base
Rentals and certain other amounts payable under the Master Lease. The 2018 Bonds are also payable from
certain funds and accounts held under the Indenture.

The obligation of the Lessee to pay Base Rentals and other amounts under the Master Lease
is annually renewable as provided therein. Neither the obligation of the Lessee to make such
payments nor the 2018 Bonds will constitute a debt of the Authority, the Lessee or any political
subdivision of the State. Neither the issuance of the 2018 Bonds nor the execution and delivery of the



Master Lease directly or contingently obligate the Lessee or any political subdivision of the State to
appropriate any money to pay Rentals under the Master Lease or to pay any Rentals beyond those
appropriated for the then current fiscal year of the State. The 2018 Bonds do not constitute an
indebtedness within the meaning of any State constitutional or statutory debt limitation or
restriction.

AWARD: Award or rejection of bids will be made at the Wednesday, February 21, 2018 meeting of
the Authority referred to above. The 2018 Bonds will be awarded to the responsible bidder offering to pay
the lowest effective interest cost to the Authority for the 2018 Bonds, computed from the date of the
2018 Bonds to maturity and taking into consideration the premium, if any, in the purchase price of the
2018 Bonds. The effective interest rate to the Authority shall be the interest rate per annum (based upon a
360—day year) determined on a per annum true interest cost (““TIC””) based on the discounting of the
scheduled semiannual debt service payments of the Authority on the 2018 Bonds (based on such rate or
rates of interest so bid) to the dated date of the 2018 Bonds, compounded semiannually, and to the bid price,
excluding accrued interest to the date of delivery.

PROCEDURES REGARDING ELECTRONIC BIDDING: Bids will be received by means of the
PARITY® electronic bid submission system in accordance with the following procedure:

A prospective bidder for the 2018 Bonds who intends to use PARITY® must communicate its bid
electronically on or before 9:30:00 a.m., Mountain Standard Time, on Wednesday, February 21, 2018. No
bid will be received after the times for receiving bids specified above. To the extent any instructions or
directions set forth in PARITY® conflict with this Official Notice of Bond Sale, the terms of this Official
Notice of Bond Sale shall control. For further information about PARITY®, potential bidders may contact
the Municipal Advisor or i-Deal LLC at 1359 Broadway, New York, New York 10018, telephone
212.849.5021.

For purposes of PARITY®, the time as maintained by PARITY® shall constitute the official time.

Each qualified prospective bidder shall be solely responsible to make necessary arrangements
to access PARITY® for purposes of submitting its bid in a timely manner and in compliance with the
requirements of this Official Notice of Bond Sale. Neither the Municipal Advisor, the Authority nor
i-Deal LLC shall have any duty or obligation to provide or assure such access to any qualified
prospective bidder, and neither the Municipal Advisor, the Authority nor i-Deal LLC shall be
responsible for proper operation of, or have any liability for any delays or interruptions of, or any
damages caused by, PARITY®. The Authority is using PARITY® as a communication mechanism,
and not as the Authority’s agent, to conduct the electronic bidding for the 2018 Bonds.

NOTIFICATION: The Authority will notify the apparent successful bidder, as soon as possible after
the Authority’s receipt of bids for the 2018 Bonds, that such bidder’s bid appears to be the lowest and best
bid received for such 2018 Bonds which conforms to the requirements of this Official Notice of Bond Sale,
subject to verification and to official action to be taken at the Authority’s meeting as described in the next
succeeding paragraph.

The award of the 2018 Bonds to the respective successful bidder(s) will be considered at the
Authority meeting to be held beginning at 4:00 p.m., Mountain Standard Time, on Wednesday,
February 21, 2018.

FORM OF BID: Each bidder is required to transmit electronically via PARITY® an unconditional
bid specifying the lowest rate or rates of interest and confirm the purchase price, which shall be not less
than the principal amount of the 2018 Bonds ($18,725,000%), at which the bidder will purchase the
2018 Bonds. Each bid must be for all the 2018 Bonds herein offered for sale.



For information purposes only, bidders are requested to state in their bids the effective interest rate
for the 2018 Bonds represented on a TIC basis, as described under “Award” above, represented by the rate
or rates of interest and the bid price specified in their respective bids.

No bids will be accepted in written form, by facsimile transmission or in any other medium or on
any system other than by means of PARITY®; provided, however, that in the event a prospective bidder
cannot access PARITY® through no fault of its own, it may so notify the Municipal Advisor by telephone
at 801.844.7373. Thereafter, it may submit its bid by telephone to the Municipal Advisor by telephone at
801.844.7373, who shall transcribe such bid into written form, or by facsimile transmission to the office of
the Municipal Advisor at 801.844.4484, in either case before 9:30:00 a.m., Mountain Standard Time, on
Wednesday, February 21, 2018. For purposes of bids submitted telephonically to the office of the Municipal
Advisor (as described above) or by facsimile transmission, the time as maintained by PARITY® shall
constitute the official time. Each bid submitted as provided in the preceding sentence must specify the
interest rate or rates for the 2018 Bonds and the total purchase price of all of the 2018 Bonds. The Municipal
Advisor will seal transcribed telephonic bids and facsimile transmission bids for submission. Neither the
Authority nor the Municipal Advisor assumes any responsibility or liability for the failure of any such
transcribed telephonic bid or facsimile transmission (whether such failure arises from equipment failure,
unavailability of phone lines or otherwise). No bid will be received after the time for receiving such bids
specified above.

If requested by the Municipal Advisor, the apparent successful bidder will provide written
confirmation of its bid (by facsimile transmission) to the Municipal Advisor prior to 2:00 p.m., Mountain
Standard Time, on Wednesday, February 21, 2018.

IssUE PRICE: The winning bidder shall assist the Authority in establishing the issue price of the
2018 Bonds and shall execute and deliver to the Authority at Closing an “issue price” or similar certificate
setting forth the reasonably expected initial offering price to the public or the sales price or prices of the
2018 Bonds, together with the supporting pricing wires or equivalent communications, substantially in the
form attached hereto as Annex 1 with such modifications as may be appropriate or necessary, in the
reasonable judgment of the winning bidder, the Authority and Bond Counsel. All actions to be taken by the
Authority under this Official Notice of Bond Sale to establish the issue price of the 2018 Bonds may be
taken on behalf of the Authority by the Municipal Advisor and any notice or report to be provided to the
Authority may be provided to the Municipal Advisor.

The Authority intends that the provisions of Treasury Regulation Section 1.148-1(f)(3)(i) (defining
“competitive sale” for purposes of establishing the issue price of the 2018 Bonds) will apply to the initial
sale of the 2018 Bonds (the ““competitive sale requirements”) because:

(@ the Authority shall disseminate this Official Notice of Bond Sale to potential
underwriters in a manner that is reasonably designed to reach potential underwriters;

(b)  all bidders shall have an equal opportunity to bid,;

(c) the Authority may receive bids from at least three underwriters of municipal bonds
who have established industry reputations for underwriting new issuances of municipal bonds; and

(d)  the Authority anticipates awarding the sale of the 2018 Bonds to the bidder who
submits a firm offer to purchase the 2018 Bonds at the highest price (or lowest interest cost), as set
forth in this Official Notice of Bond Sale.



Any bid submitted pursuant to this Official Notice of Bond Sale shall be considered a firm offer
for the purchase of the 2018 Bonds, as specified in the bid.

In the event that the competitive sale requirements are not satisfied, the Authority shall so advise
the winning bidder. The Authority shall then treat the first price at which 10% of a maturity of the
2018 Bonds (the “10% test™) is sold to the public as the issue price of that maturity, applied on a maturity—
by—maturity basis. The winning bidder shall advise the Authority if any maturity of the 2018 Bonds satisfies
the 10% test as of the date and time of the award of the 2018 Bonds. The Authority will not require bidders
to comply with the “hold-the—offering—price rule” and therefore does not intend to use the initial offering
price to the public as of the sale date of any maturity of the 2018 Bonds as the issue price of that maturity.
Bids will not be subject to cancellation in the event that the competitive sale requirements are not satisfied.
Bidders should prepare their bids on the assumption that all of the maturities of the 2018 Bonds will be
subject to the 10% test in order to establish the issue price of the 2018 Bonds.

In the event the competitive sale requirements are not satisfied, then until the 10% test has been
satisfied as to each maturity of the 2018 Bonds, the winning bidder agrees to promptly report to the
Authority the prices at which the unsold 2018 Bonds of that maturity have been sold to the public. That
reporting obligation shall continue, whether or not the Closing Date has occurred, until the 10% test has
been satisfied as to the 2018 Bonds of that maturity or until all 2018 Bonds of that maturity have been sold
to the public.

By submitting a bid, each bidder confirms that: (a) any agreement among underwriters, any selling
group agreement and each retail distribution agreement (to which the bidder is a party) relating to the initial
sale of the 2018 Bonds to the public, together with the related pricing wires, contains or will contain
language obligating each underwriter, each dealer who is a member of the selling group, and each broker—
dealer that is a party to such retail distribution agreement, as applicable, to report the prices at which it sells
to the public the unsold 2018 Bonds of each maturity allotted to it until it is notified by the winning bidder
that either the 10% test has been satisfied as to the 2018 Bonds of that maturity or all 2018 Bonds of that
maturity have been sold to the public, if and for so long as directed by the winning bidder and as set forth
in the related pricing wires, and (b) any agreement among underwriters relating to the initial sale of the
2018 Bonds to the public, together with the related pricing wires, contains or will contain language
obligating each underwriter that is a party to a retail distribution agreement to be employed in connection
with the initial sale of the 2018 Bonds to the public to require each broker—dealer that is a party to such
retail distribution agreement to report the prices at which it sells to the public the unsold 2018 Bonds of
each maturity allotted to it until it is notified by the winning bidder or such underwriter that either the 10%
test has been satisfied as to the 2018 Bonds of that maturity or all 2018 Bonds of that maturity have been
sold to the public, if and for so long as directed by the winning bidder or such underwriter and as set forth
in the related pricing wires.

Sales of any 2018 Bonds to any person that is a related party to an underwriter shall not constitute
sales to the public for purposes of this Official Notice of Bond Sale. Further, for purposes of this Official
Notice of Bond Sale:

(@  ““public’ means any person other than an underwriter or a related party,

(b)  ““‘underwriter’ means (i) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract with
the Authority (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to participate in the
initial sale of the 2018 Bonds to the public and (ii) any person that agrees pursuant to a written
contract directly or indirectly with a person described in clause (i) to participate in the initial sale
of the 2018 Bonds to the public (including a member of a selling group or a party to a retail
distribution agreement participating in the initial sale of the 2018 Bonds to the public),



(c)  apurchaser of any of the 2018 Bonds is a “related party’” to an underwriter if the
underwriter and the purchaser are subject, directly or indirectly, to (i) at least 50% common
ownership of the voting power or the total value of their stock, if both entities are corporations
(including direct ownership by one corporation of another), (ii) more than 50% common ownership
of their capital interests or profits interests, if both entities are partnerships (including direct
ownership by one partnership of another), or (iii) more than 50% common ownership of the value
of the outstanding stock of the corporation or the capital interests or profit interests of the
partnership, as applicable, if one entity is a corporation and the other entity is a partnership
(including direct ownership of the applicable stock or interests by one entity of the other), and

(iv)  “sale date’ means the date that the 2018 Bonds are awarded by the Authority to
the winning bidder.

Any questions regarding the certificate should be directed to Chapman and Cutler LLP, Bond
Counsel, 215 South State Street, Suite 800, Salt Lake City, Utah 84111, 801.536.1426, fax: 801.533.9595,
bjerke@chapman.com.

GooD FAITH DEPOSIT: A good faith deposit (the “Deposit”) in the amount of $200,000 is required
only from the successful bidder. The Deposit shall be payable to the order of the Authority in the form of a
wire transfer in federal funds as instructed by the Municipal Advisor no later than 2:00 p.m., Mountain
Standard Time, on Wednesday, February 21, 2018. As an alternative to wiring funds, a bidder may deliver
a cashier’s or certified check, payable to the order of the Authority, with its bid. If a check is used, it must
precede each bid. Such check shall be promptly returned to its respective bidder whose bid is not accepted.

The Authority shall, as security for the faithful performance by the successful bidder of its
obligation to take up and pay for the 2018 Bonds when tendered, cash the Deposit check, if applicable, of
the successful bidder and hold the proceeds of the Deposit of the successful bidder or invest the same (at
the Authority’s risk) in obligations that mature at or before the delivery of the 2018 Bonds as described
under the caption “Delivery and Payment” below, until disposed of as follows: (a) at such delivery of the
2018 Bonds and upon compliance with the successful bidder’s obligation to take up and pay for such
2018 Bonds, the full amount of the Deposit held by the Authority, without adjustment for interest, shall be
applied toward the purchase price of such 2018 Bonds at that time and the full amount of any interest
earnings thereon shall be retained by the Authority; and (b) if the successful bidder fails to take up and pay
for the 2018 Bonds, when tendered, the full amount of the Deposit plus any interest earnings thereon will
be forfeited to the Authority as liquidated damages.

SALE RESERVATIONS: The Authority reserves the right: (a) to waive any irregularity or informality
in any bid or in the electronic bidding process; (b) to reject any and all bids for the 2018 Bonds; and (c) to
resell the 2018 Bonds as provided by law.

PROMPT AWARD: The Authority will take action awarding the 2018 Bonds or rejecting all bids
not later than 10 hours after the expiration of the time herein prescribed for the receipt of bids, unless such
award is waived by the successful bidder.

DELIVERY AND PAYMENT: Delivery of the 2018 Bonds will be made to the successful bidder(s)
in book—entry form, on or about Wednesday, March 7, 2018. Closing documentation will be delivered in
Salt Lake City, Utah. At least seven days’ prior notice of the time of delivery will be given to the successful
bidder. Payment for the 2018 Bonds must be made in Federal Reserve Bank funds or other funds
immediately available to the Authority in Salt Lake City, Utah, on the date of delivery. Any expense
incurred in providing immediate funds, whether by transfer of Federal Reserve Bank funds or otherwise,
shall be borne by the successful bidder.
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CUSIP NUMBERS: It is anticipated that CUSIP identification numbers will be printed on the
2018 Bonds, but neither the failure to print such numbers on any 2018 Bond nor any error with respect
thereto shall constitute cause for a failure or refusal by the successful bidder thereof to accept delivery of
and pay for the 2018 Bonds in accordance with the terms of its bid. All expenses in relation to the providing
of CUSIP numbers for the 2018 Bonds shall be paid for by the Authority.

TAX-EXEMPT STATUS: In the opinion of Chapman and Cutler LLP, Bond Counsel, subject to the
Authority’s and the State’s compliance with certain covenants, under present law, interest on the
2018 Bonds is excludable from the gross income of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes and
is not included as an item of tax preference in computing the federal alternative minimum tax for individuals
and corporations under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, but is taken into account, in
computing an adjustment used in determining the federal alternative minimum tax for certain corporations.
Failure to comply with certain of such Authority and State covenants could cause interest on the 2018 Bonds
to be includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes retroactively to the date of issuance of the
2018 Bonds. Ownership of the 2018 Bonds may result in other federal tax consequences to certain
taxpayers, and Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any such collateral consequences arising with
respect to the 2018 Bonds.

It is further the opinion of Bond Counsel that under the existing laws of the State of Utah, as
presently enacted and construed, interest on the 2018 Bonds is exempt from taxes imposed by the Utah
Individual Income Tax Act. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion with respect to any other taxes imposed
by the State of Utah or any political subdivision thereof. Ownership of the 2018 Bonds may result in other
state and local tax consequences to certain taxpayers; Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any
such collateral consequences arising with respect to the 2018 Bonds. Prospective purchasers of the
2018 Bonds should consult their tax advisors regarding the applicability of any such state and local taxes.

LEGAL OPINION AND CLOSING CERTIFICATES: The approving opinion of Chapman and Cutler
LLP, Bond Counsel to the Authority, as to the legality of the 2018 Bonds will be furnished without charge
to the successful bidder. Closing certificates will also be furnished, dated as of the date of delivery of and
payment for the 2018 Bonds, including a statement that there is no litigation pending or, to the knowledge
of the signer thereof, threatened affecting the validity of the 2018 Bonds.

OFFICIAL STATEMENT: The Authority has employed Zions Public Finance, Inc., in Salt Lake City,
Utah, as Municipal Advisor, to prepare the Preliminary Official Statement describing the 2018 Bonds,
copies of which will be furnished by the Authority or by the Municipal Advisor upon request. Upon award
of the 2018 Bonds, the Authority will complete the final Official Statement and will, within seven business
days after acceptance of bid and in sufficient time to accompany any confirmation that requests payment
from any customer of the successful bidder, deliver to the successful bidder for the 2018 Bonds a final copy
of the Official Statement in electronic format. The Authority will cooperate with the successful bidder
during the underwriting period as shall be reasonable and necessary to assist the successful bidder to comply
with the requirements of Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15¢2-12 to deliver the Preliminary
Official Statement and final Official Statement to customers and potential customers.

DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE AND DISCLOSURE LETTER: The Authority will deliver to the
successful bidder a certificate of a member of the Authority, dated the date of the delivery of the
2018 Bonds, stating that, as of the date thereof, to the best of the signer’s knowledge and after reasonable
investigation: (a) the descriptions and statements contained in the Preliminary Official Statement circulated
with respect to the 2018 Bonds were at the time of the acceptance of the bid true and correct in all material
respects and did not at the time of the acceptance of the bid contain any untrue statement of a material fact
or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under
which they were made, not misleading; and (b) the descriptions and statements contained in the final
Official Statement are at the time of the delivery of the 2018 Bonds true and correct in all material respects



and do not at the time of the delivery of the 2018 Bonds contain any untrue statement of a material fact or
omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements therein, in light of the circumstances under
which they were made, not misleading; provided, should the final Official Statement be supplemented or
amended subsequent to the date thereof, the foregoing confirmation as to the final Official Statement shall
relate to the final Official Statement as so supplemented or amended.

The Authority has retained Gilmore & Bell, P.C., to act as disclosure counsel to the Authority with
respect to the 2018 Bonds and, as such disclosure counsel, such firm will review the contents of the final
Official Statement. Gilmore & Bell, P.C., will deliver a letter to the successful bidder with respect to the
final Official Statement which will state, in effect, that while the firm has not verified and is not passing
upon, and does not assume responsibility for, the accuracy, completeness or fairness of the statements
contained in the final Official Statement, based upon participation in conferences and in reliance thereon
with various representatives of the Authority, representatives of the Lessee, representatives of the office of
the Utah Attorney General, representatives of the Municipal Advisor for the Authority and Bond Counsel
at which the contents of the final Official Statement were discussed and reviewed, without independent
verification, no facts came to the attention of the attorneys of such firm rendering legal services in
connection with such retention which lead such attorneys to believe that the final Official Statement (apart
from (i) CUSIP numbers, (ii) the information relating to The Depository Trust Company and its book—entry
only system, (iii) the financial statements or other financial, operating, economic, demographic, statistical,
numerical or accounting data contained or incorporated therein, and (iv) the information describing the
opinion of Bond Counsel under the headings “Legal Matters—Federal Income Tax Matters”, “—State of
Utah Income Tax”, “—No Further Opinion” and “—Changes in Federal and State Tax Laws” and the form
of opinion of Bond Counsel in Appendix E, as to all of which such firm does not express any conclusion or
belief) as of its date contained, or as of the date of the delivery of the 2018 Bonds contains, any untrue
statement of a material fact or omitted or omits to state a material fact required to be stated therein or
necessary in order to make the statements made therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they
were made, not misleading.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING: The Authority and the Lessee covenant and agree to
enter into a written agreement or contract constituting an undertaking (the “Undertaking’) to provide
ongoing disclosure about the Authority and the Lessee for the benefit of the beneficial owners of the
2018 Bonds on or before the date of delivery of the 2018 Bonds, as required by Section (b)(5) of Rule 15¢c2-
12 (the “Rule”) adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934. The Authority and the Lessee expect to deliver an Undertaking as described in the Preliminary
Official Statement and as will be set forth in the final Official Statement. The successful bidder’s obligation
to purchase the respective 2018 Bonds shall be conditioned upon the Authority and the Lessee delivering
the Undertaking on or before the date of delivery of the 2018 Bonds. Except as otherwise described in the
Preliminary Official Statement, the Authority and the Lessee are in compliance in all material respects with
each and every undertaking previously entered into by it pursuant to the Rule.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: For copies of this Official Notice of Bond Sale, the Preliminary
Official Statement and information regarding the electronic bidding procedures and other related
information, contact the Municipal Advisor, Zions Bank Public Finance, One South Main Street, 18th Floor,
Salt Lake City, Utah 84133, 801.844.7376, fax: 801.844.4484, jon.bronson@zionsbancorp.com or
eric.pehrson@zionsbhancorp.com. The Preliminary Official Statement (including the Official Notice of
Bond Sale) is also available at idealprospectus.com, munihub.com and munios.com.
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Dated: February 9, 2018

STATE OF UTAH, STATE BUILDING OWNERSHIP
AUTHORITY

By /s/ David C. Damschen

Secretary
State Building Ownership Authority
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ANNEX 1

CERTIFICATE OF PURCHASER

[To BE DATED THE CLOSING DATE]

The undersigned, on behalf of (the “Purchaser’), hereby certifies as set forth below
with respect to the sale and issuance of the $ aggregate principal amount of Lease Revenue
Bonds (State Facilities Master Lease Program), Series 2018 (the ““2018 Bonds™) of the State Building
Ownership Authority of the State of Utah (the “Authority’).

l. Defined Terms

1. *“Maturity” means 2018 Bonds with the same credit and payment terms. 2018 Bonds with
different maturity dates are treated as separate Maturities.

2. “Public” means any person (including an individual, trust, estate, partnership, association,
company, or corporation) other than an Underwriter or a Related Party to an Underwriter.

3. Avpersonisa “Related Party” to an Underwriter if the Underwriter and the person are subject,
directly or indirectly, to (i) at least 50% common ownership of the voting power or the total value of their
stock, if both entities are corporations (including direct ownership by one corporation of another), (ii) more
than 50% common ownership of their capital interests or profits interests, if both entities are partnerships
(including direct ownership by one partnership of another), or (iii) more than 50% common ownership of
the value of the outstanding stock of the corporation or the capital interests or profit interests of the
partnership, as applicable, if one entity is a corporation and the other entity is a partnership (including direct
ownership of the applicable stock or interests by one entity of the other).

4. “Sale Date” means the first day on which there is a binding contract in writing for the sale of
a Maturity of the 2018 Bonds. The Sale Date of the 2018 Bonds is February 21, 2018.

5. *“Underwriter” means (i) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract with the
Authority (or with the Purchaser to form an underwriting syndicate) to participate in the initial sale of the
2018 Bonds to the Public, and (ii) any person that agrees pursuant to a written contract directly or indirectly
with a person described in clause (i) of this paragraph to participate in the initial sale of the 2018 Bonds to
the Public (including a member of a selling group or a party to a retail distribution agreement participating
in the initial sale of the 2018 Bonds to the Public).

1. General
1.  Onthe Sale Date the Purchaser purchased the 2018 Bonds from the Authority by submitting
electronically an “Official Bid Form” responsive to an “Official Notice of Bond Sale” and having its bid
accepted by the Authority. The Purchaser has not modified the terms of the purchase since the Sale Date.
1. Price
[1. [To be used if at least 3 bids are received] Reasonably Expected Initial Offering Price.
(@  As of the Sale Date, the reasonably expected initial offering prices of the

2018 Bonds to the Public by the Purchaser are the prices listed in Schedule A (the “Expected
Offering Prices™). The Expected Offering Prices are the prices for the Maturities of the 2018 Bonds
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used by the Purchaser in formulating its bid to purchase the 2018 Bonds. Attached as Schedule B
is a true and correct copy of the bid provided by the Purchaser to purchase the 2018 Bonds.

(b)  The Purchaser was not given an exclusive opportunity to review other bids prior
to submitting its bid.

(c)  The bid submitted by the Purchaser constituted a firm offer to purchase the
2018 Bonds.]

[1. [To be used if there are not at least 3 bids received] As of the date of this certificate, for each
of the Maturities of the 2018 Bonds, the first price at which at least 10% of each of such
Maturities of the 2018 Bonds was sold to the Public is the respective price listed in Schedule A.

2. With respect to each of the Maturities of the 2018 Bonds:

(@  As of the date of this certificate, the Purchaser has not sold at least 10% of the
2018 Bonds of these Maturities at any price.

(b)  Asof the date of this certificate, the Purchaser reasonably expects that the first sale
to the Public of an amount of 2018 Bonds of each of these Maturities equal to 10% or more of each
of these Maturities will be at or below the expected sale price listed on the attached Schedule A (the
“Expected First Sale Price™).]

The representations set forth in this certificate are limited to factual matters only. Nothing in this
certificate represents the Purchaser’s interpretation of any laws, including specifically Sections 103 and 148
of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the Treasury Regulations thereunder. The
undersigned understands that the foregoing information will be relied upon by the Authority with respect
to certain of the representations set forth in its documents and with respect to compliance with the federal
income tax rules affecting the 2018 Bonds, and by Chapman and Cutler LLP in connection with rendering
its opinion that the interest on the 2018 Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax
purposes, the preparation of Internal Revenue Service Form 8038-G, and other federal income tax advice
it may give to the Authority from time to time relating to the 2018 Bonds.

Dates as of the day and year first above written.

By:

Name:
Its:
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SCHEDULE A

TO CERTIFICATE OF PURCHASER

Re: $ , State of Utah, State Building Ownership Authority,

Lease Revenue Bonds (State Facilities Master Lease Program), Series 2018

The 2018 Bonds are dated , 2018, and are due on May 15 of the years, in the amounts,
bearing interest at the rates, and first sold and offered to the Public as described in the attached Certificate

of Purchaser at the prices, in percentages and dollars, as follows:

FIRST SALE TOTAL DOLLAR
PRICE EXPECTED PRICE BASED ON
OF AT OFFERING LOWER OF FIRST
PRINCIPAL INTEREST LEAST 10% PRICE SALE PRICE OR
YEAR AMOUNT ($) RATE (%) (% OF PAR) (% OF PAR) OFFER PRICE ($)
$ % % % $
Total $_ $
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PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT

State of Utah,
State Building Ownership Authority

$18,725,000* Lease Revenue Bonds
(State Facilities Master Lease Program), Series 2018

payable from lease payments to be made, subject to annual appropriation, by the

State of Utah

pursuant to a State Facilities Master Lease Agreement,
as amended and supplemented

On Wednesday, February 21, 2018 up to 9:30:00 A.M., M.S.T., electronic bids will be received by
means of the PARITY® electronic bid submission system. See the “OFFICIAL NOTICE OF BOND
SALE—Procedures Regarding Electronic Bidding.”

The 2018 Bonds will be awarded to the successful bidder(s) and issued pursuant to a resolution of the
Authority which will be presented for adoption at 4:00 p.M., M.S.T. on Wednesday, February 21, 2018.

The Secretary of the Authority has deemed this PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT final
as of the date hereof for purposes of paragraph (b)(1) of Rule 15¢2-12 of the Securities and Exchange
Commission, subject to completion with certain information to be established at the time of sale of the
2018 Bonds, as permitted by the Rule.

For copies of the OFFICIAL NOTICE OF BOND SALE, the PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATE-
MENT, and other related information with respect to the 2018 Bonds, contact the Municipal Advisor:

ZIONS
Fl

Zions Bank Building
One S Main St 18" FI
Salt Lake City UT 84133-1109
801.844.7373 | f 801.844.4484
eric.pehrson@zionsbancorp.com

PUBLIC FINANCE, INC.

This PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT is dated February 9, 2018 and the information con-
tained herein speaks only as of that date.

* Preliminary; subject to change.


mailto:eric.pehrson@zionsbancorp.com
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This PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT and the information contained herein are subject to completion, amendment or other change without any notice. Under no circumstances shall

this PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy, nor shall there be any sale of these securities in any jurisdiction in which such of-

fer. solicitation or sale would be unlawful prior to reaistration or aualification under the securities laws of anv such iurisdiction.

PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED FEBRUARY 9, 2018

New lIssue Ratings: Moody’s “Aal”; S&P “AA+”
See “MISCELLANEOUS—Bond Ratings” herein.

Subject to compliance by the Authority and the State with certain covenants, in the opinion of Chapman and Cutler LLP, Bond Counsel, under present law, in-
terest on the 2018 Bonds is excludable from gross income of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes and is not included as an item of tax preference in
computing the federal alternative minimum tax for individuals and corporations, but such interest is taken into account in computing an adjustment used in de-
termining the federal alternative minimum tax for certain corporations. In the opinion of Bond Counsel, under the existing laws of the State, as presently enacted
and construed, interest on the 2018 Bonds is exempt from taxes imposed by the Utah Individual Income Tax Act. See “TAX MATTERS” herein for a more com-
plete discussion.

State of Utah,
State Building Ownership Authority

$18,725,000* Lease Revenue Bonds (State Facilities Master Lease Program), Series 2018

payable from lease payments to be made, subject to annual appropriation, by the

State of Utah

pursuant to a State Facilities Master Lease Agreement, as amended and supplemented

The $18,725,000*, Lease Revenue Bonds (State Facilities Master Lease Program), Series 2018, are issued by the State Building Ownership Authority, a body
corporate and politic of the State of Utah, as fully—registered bonds and will be initially issued in book—entry form through The Depository Trust Company, New
York, New York, which will act as securities depository for the 2018 Bonds.

Principal of and interest on the 2018 Bonds (interest payable May 15 and November 15 of each year, commencing November 15, 2018) are payable by Wells
Fargo Bank, N.A., Corporate Trust Services, Denver, Colorado, as Paying Agent, to the registered owners thereof, initially DTC. See “THE 2018 BONDS—
Book-Entry System” herein.

The 2018 Bonds are subject to optional redemption, and may be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption at the option of the successful bidders, and ex-
traordinary optional redemption (in the event of damage to, or destruction, seizure or condemnation of the Facilities) prior to maturity. See “THE FACILITIES”
and “THE 2018 BONDS—Redemption Provisions For The 2018 Bonds” and “—Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption At Bidder’s Option” herein.

The 2018 Bonds are being issued for financing the acquisition and construction of: a parking structure for the Fourth District Provo Courthouse; liquor stores in
the cities of Syracuse, Farmington, and Herriman, Utah and for related improvements; and paying the costs associated with the issuance of the 2018 Bonds. The
2018 Bonds and certain other Bonds, as described herein, previously issued by the Authority are parts of an ongoing master lease and building program whereby
all Bonds issued thereunder are equally and ratably secured and cross—collateralized by the several facilities constructed through this program.

Pursuant to the Lease, the State has agreed to pay annual Base Rentals which are sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the 2018 Bonds and the
Prior Parity Bonds, coming due in each year, but only if and to the extent that the Utah State Legislature appropriates funds sufficient to pay such Base Rent-
als plus such Additional Rentals, as are necessary to operate and maintain the Facilities. The Lease specifically provides that nothing therein shall be con-
strued to require the State to appropriate moneys to pay the Base Rentals or Additional Rentals and the State is not obligated to pay such Rentals except to the
extent appropriated. Neither the obligation of the State to pay such Rentals nor the obligation of the Authority to pay the principal of and interest on the
2018 Bonds will constitute or give rise to a debt, general obligation or liability of, or a charge against the general credit or taxing power of, the State or any of
its political subdivisions. The issuance of the 2018 Bonds does not directly or contingently obligate the State to pay any Rentals beyond those appropriated for
the State’s then current fiscal year. The Authority has no taxing power.

Dated: Date of Delivery? Due: May 15, as shown on inside front cover

See the inside front cover for the maturity schedule of the 2018 Bonds.

The 2018 Bonds will be awarded pursuant to competitive bidding received by means of the PARITY® electronic bid submission sys-

tem on Wednesday, February 21, 2018, as set forth in the OFFICIAL NOTICE OF BOND SALE (dated February 9, 2018).

Zions Public Finance, Inc., Salt Lake City, Utah, is acting as Municipal Advisor.

This cover page contains certain information for quick reference only. It is not a summary of this issue. Investors must read the entire OFFICIAL
STATEMENT to obtain information essential to the making of an informed investment decision.

This OFFICIAL STATEMENT is dated February __, 2018, and the information contained herein speaks only as of that date.

* Preliminary; subject to change.
1 The anticipated date of delivery is Wednesday, March 7, 2018.



$18,725,000*

Lease Revenue Bonds,
(State Facilities Master Lease Program), Series 2018

Dated: Date of Delivery! Due: May 15, as shown below
Due CuUsSIP® Principal Interest Yield/
May 15* 917547 Amount* Rate Price
2020...... $ 605,000
2021...... 640,000
2022...... 665,000
2023...... 700,000
2024...... 735,000
2025...... 775,000
2026...... 815,000
2027....... 850,000
2028...... 905,000
2029...... 920,000
2030...... 955,000
2031...... 990,000
2032...... 1,015,000
2033...... 1,050,000
2034...... 1,090,000
2035...... 1,125,000
2036...... 1,160,000
2037...... 1,200,000
2038...... 1,240,000
2039...... 1,290,000

* Preliminary; subject to change.

1 The anticipated date of delivery is Wednesday, March 7, 2018.

® CUSIP is a registered trademark of the American Bankers Association. CUSIP Global Services is managed on
behalf of the American Bankers Association by S&P Capital 1Q.
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This OFFICIAL STATEMENT does not constitute an offer to sell, or the solicitation of an offer to buy,
nor shall there be any sale of, the 2018 Bonds, by any person in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for
such person to make such offer, solicitation or sale. No dealer, broker, salesman or other person has been au-
thorized to give any information or to make any representations other than those contained herein, and if given
or made, such other information or representations must not be relied upon as having been authorized by either
the State; the Authority; Zions Public Finance, Inc., Salt Lake City, Utah (as Municipal Advisor); Wells Fargo
Bank, Corporate Trust Division, Denver, Colorado (as Trustee, Registrar and Paying Agent); or any other enti-
ty. All information contained herein has been obtained from the Authority, the State, The Depository Trust
Company, and from other sources which are believed to be reliable. The information and expressions of opin-
ion herein are subject to change without notice and neither the delivery of this OFFICIAL STATEMENT nor
the issuance, sale, delivery or exchange of the 2018 Bonds, shall under any circumstance create any implica-
tion that there has been no change in the affairs of the Authority or the State since the date hereof.

The 2018 Bonds have not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or any state secu-
rities laws in reliance upon exemptions contained in such act and laws. Any registration or qualification of the
2018 Bonds in accordance with applicable provisions of the securities laws of the states in which the
2018 Bonds have been registered or qualified and the exemption from registration or qualification in other
states cannot be regarded as a recommendation thereof. Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor
any state securities commission has passed upon the accuracy or adequacy of this OFFICIAL STATEMENT.
Any representation to the contrary is unlawful.

The yields/prices at which the 2018 Bonds are offered to the public may vary from the initial reoffering
yields/prices on the inside cover page of this OFFICIAL STATEMENT. In addition, the successful bid-
der(s), may allow concessions or discounts from the initial offering prices of the 2018 Bonds to dealers and
others. In connection with the offering of the 2018 Bonds, the successful bidder(s) may engage in transac-
tions that stabilize, maintain, or otherwise affect the price of the 2018 Bonds. Such transactions may in-
clude overallotments in connection with the purchase of 2018 Bonds, the purchase of 2018 Bonds to stabi-
lize their market price and the purchase of 2018 Bonds to cover the successful bidders(s)’ short positions.
Such transactions, if commenced, may be discontinued at any time.

Forward-Looking Statements. Certain statements included or incorporated by reference in this OFFICIAL
STATEMENT constitute “forward—looking statements” within the meaning of the United States Private Secu-
rities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended. Such statements are generally identifiable by the ter-
minology used, such as “plan,” “project,” “forecast,” “expect,” “estimate,” “budget” or other similar words.
The achievement of certain results or other expectations contained in such forward—looking statements in-
volve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which may cause actual results, perfor-
mance or achievements described to be materially different from any future results, performance or
achievements expressed or implied by such forward—looking statements. Neither the Authority nor the State
plans to issue any updates or revisions to those forward-looking statements if or when such expectations
change, or events, conditions or circumstances on which such statements are based, occur. See “FINAN-
CIAL INFORMATION REGARDING THE STATE OF UTAH—"Fiscal Year 2018—Budget” herein.

The CUSIP® (the Committee on Uniform Securities Identification Procedures) identification numbers are
provided on the inside cover page of this OFFICIAL STATEMENT and are being provided solely for the con-
venience of bondholders, and the State does not make any representation with respect to such numbers or un-
dertake any responsibility for their accuracy. The CUSIP® numbers are subject to change after the issuance of
the 2018 Bonds because of subsequent actions including, but not limited to, a refunding in whole or in part of
the 2018 Bonds.

The information available at web sites referenced in this OFFICIAL STATEMENT has not been re-
viewed for accuracy and completeness. Such information has not been provided in connection with the of-
fering of the 2018 Bonds and is not a part of this OFFICIAL STATEMENT.
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT RELATED TO

State of Utah, State Building Ownership Authority

$18,725,000* Lease Revenue Bonds
(State Facilities Master Lease Program), Series 2018

payable from lease payments to be made, subject to annual appropriation, by the
State of Utah

pursuant to a State Facilities Master Lease Agreement,
as amended and supplemented

INTRODUCTION

This OFFICIAL STATEMENT, including the cover page, introduction and appendices, provides in-
formation about the issuance and sale by the State of Utah, State Building Ownership Authority (the “Au-
thority”), a body politic and corporate of the State of Utah (the “State”), of its $18,725,000%, Lease Reve-
nue Bonds (State Facilities Master Lease Program), Series 2018 (the “2018 Bonds” or the “2018 Bond”).

This introduction is only a brief description of the 2018 Bonds and the security and source of payment
for the 2018 Bonds and is qualified by more complete and detailed information contained in the entire
OFFICIAL STATEMENT, including the cover page and appendices hereto, and the documents summa-
rized or described herein. Accordingly, the OFFICIAL STATEMENT should be read in its entirety. The
offering of the 2018 Bonds to potential investors is made only by means of the entire OFFICIAL
STATEMENT.

When used herein, the terms “Fiscal Year[s] 20YY,” and “Fiscal Year[s] End[ed][ing]
June 30, 20Y'Y” refer to the year ended or ending on June 30 of the year indicated and beginning on Ju-
ly 1 of the preceding year and the terms “Calendar Year[s] 20YY” or “Calendar Year[s] End[ed][ing] De-
cember 31, 20Y'Y” refer to the year beginning on January 1 and ending on December 31 of the year indi-
cated. Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein have the same meaning as given to them in
the Lease and the Indenture as hereinafter defined. See “APPENDIX D—BASIC DOCUMENTATION-
DEFINITIONS OF CERTAIN TERMS.”

Public Sale/Electronic Bid

The 2018 Bonds will be awarded pursuant to competitive bidding received by means of the PARITY®
electronic bid submission system on Wednesday, February 21, 2018 as set forth in the OFFICIAL NO-
TICE OF BOND SALE (dated February 9, 2018).

See the “OFFICIAL NOTICE OF BOND SALE” herein.

* Preliminary; subject to change.



The State Of Utah

On January 4, 1896, the State became the 45" state of the United States of America (the “U.S.”).
Ranking 13" among the states in total area, the State contains approximately 84,900 square miles. It rang-
es in elevation from a low of 2,200 feet above sea level in the south, to a high of 13,500 feet above sea
level in the northern mountains. The State is in an arid region (precipitation ranks as the second lowest in
the nation, behind Nevada). Home to deserts, plateaus, the Great Basin and the Rocky Mountains, the
State is known for its scenic beauty and the diversity of its outdoor recreation areas. The State was the
host of the 2002 Winter Olympic Games and continues to be a major tourist destination, with world class
skiing and five national parks.

The State’s 2017 population estimate by the U.S. Census Bureau was 3,101,833 people (ranked as the
31% most populous state).

The State’s economy is knowledge—based, entrepreneurial, and information technology—driven and
encompasses a variety of industries, including but not limited to: agriculture, construction, energy, miner-
als, tourism, technology, communications, healthcare, financial services, higher education, defense, trans-
portation and government services.

The State maintains a web site at http://www.utah.gov (the State Treasurer’s web site is at
http://www.treasurer.utah.gov). In addition the Treasurer’s office has provided additional information for
investors at http://treasurer.utah.gov/investor-information/. The State’s Division of Facilities Construction
and Management (“DFCM”) maintains a Web site at http://www.dfcm.utah.gov.

For additional information regarding the State see “APPENDIX C—DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECO-
NOMIC INFORMATION REGARDING THE STATE OF UTAH.”

The Authority

The Authority was established by and operates pursuant to the State Building Ownership Authority
Act, Title 63B, Chapter 1, Part 3 (the “Building Ownership Act”), Utah Code Annotated 1953, as amend-
ed (the “Utah Code”). The Authority was created in 1979 for acquiring, constructing, or improving one or
more projects on behalf of the State and certain state bodies pursuant to the Building Ownership Act. See
“STATE BUILDING OWNERSHIP AUTHORITY” below.

Authorization For And Purpose Of The 2018 Bonds; Prior Parity Bonds

The 2018 Bonds are being issued pursuant to: (i) the Building Ownership Act and other applicable
State laws (collectively, the “Act”); (ii) resolutions adopted by the Authority on November 21, 2017 (the
“Parameters Resolution™) and on [February 21, 2018] (the “Final Bond Resolution” and, together with the
Parameters Resolution, the “Resolutions™) which provide for the authorization, issuance, sale and delivery
of the 2018 Bonds; and (iii) an Indenture of Trust, Assignment of State Facilities Master Lease Agree-
ment and Security Agreement, dated as of September 1, 1994, as heretofore amended and supplemented
(collectively, the “Indenture™), between the Authority and Wells Fargo Bank, N.A., Corporate Trust Ser-
vices, Denver, Colorado (“Wells Fargo Bank™), as trustee (the “Trustee™) and as further supplemented by
the Twenty—Third Supplemental Indenture of Trust dated as of March 1, 2018, by and between the Au-
thority and the Trustee.

The 2018 Bonds are being issued for financing the acquisition and construction of: a parking structure
for the Fourth District Provo Courthouse; liquor stores in the cities of Syracuse, Farmington, and Her-
riman, Utah and for related improvements; and paying the costs associated with the issuance of the
2018 Bonds. See “THE 2018 BONDS—Estimated Sources And Uses Of Funds” and “THE FACILI-
TIES” below.
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The Authority has previously issued 29 series of Bonds (defined below) under the Indenture, 12 of
which are currently outstanding (collectively, the “Prior Parity Bonds™), to finance and refinance the cost
of various projects, which projects include a variety of real and personal property (collectively, the “Facil-
ities” or “Leased Property”) pursuant to the Act. The 2018 Bonds are, subject to the release of certain por-
tions of the Facilities in accordance with the Indenture and the Lease, cross—collateralized in that the Au-
thority has granted to the Trustee, for the benefit of the Owners of all Bonds, a mortgage and security in-
terest in all the Authority’s right, title and interest in all Facilities. See “THE FACILITIES—Cross—
Collateralization” and “—Release Of Portions Of Facilities” below.

As of Wednesday, March 7, 2018 (the anticipated delivery date of the 2018 Bonds), the outstanding
aggregate principal amount of the Prior Parity Bonds is $318,510,000 (exclusive of the 2018 Bonds).

The 2018 Bonds will be issued on a parity basis, and will be equally and ratably secured under the In-
denture with (i) the outstanding Prior Parity Bonds, and (ii) any Additional Bonds which may be issued
from time to time pursuant to the Indenture. The 2018 Bonds, the Prior Parity Bonds, and any Additional
Bonds issued pursuant to the Indenture are sometimes collectively referred to herein as the “Bonds.” See
“SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS—Additional Bonds; Refunding
Bonds” below and “APPENDIX D—BASIC DOCUMENTATION-THE INDENTURE-Additional
Bonds.”

The Authority has leased all Facilities to the State, acting through DFCM, a division of the State’s
Department of Administrative Services, pursuant to a State Facilities Master Lease Agreement, dated as
of September 1, 1994, as amended and supplemented and as further supplemented by the Twenty—Third
State Facilities Master Lease Agreement dated as of March 1, 2018 (collectively, the “Lease™).

Security For The 2018 Bonds; Cross Collateralization

The 2018 Bonds are limited obligations of the Authority, payable solely from the revenues and other
amounts received pursuant to the Lease and other funds or amounts held by the Trustee pursuant to the
Indenture as security for the 2018 Bonds. See “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE
BONDS” below.

The State has agreed to make payments pursuant to the Lease in stated amounts which are sufficient
to pay the principal of and interest on the 2018 Bonds when due (the “Base Rentals™), but only if and to
the extent that the Utah State Legislature (the “Legislature™) has appropriated funds sufficient to pay the
Base Rentals coming due during each succeeding Renewal Term (as described herein) of the Lease plus
such additional amounts as are necessary to operate and maintain the Facilities during such period (the
“Additional Rentals” and collectively, with the Base Rentals, the “Rentals™). The Lease specifically pro-
vides that nothing therein shall be construed to require the Legislature to appropriate any money to pay
any Rentals thereunder and that neither the State nor any political subdivision thereof is obligated to pay
such Rentals except to the extent of funds appropriated for that purpose. Neither the obligation of the
State to pay Rentals nor the obligation of the Authority to pay the principal of and interest on the
2018 Bonds will constitute or give rise to a debt, a general obligation or liability of, or a charge against
the general credit or taxing power of, the State or any of its political subdivisions. The issuance of the
2018 Bonds does not directly or contingently obligate the State to pay any Rentals beyond those appro-
priated for the State’s then current fiscal year. The Authority has no taxing power. See “RISK FAC-
TORS” and “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS” below.

Pursuant to the Indenture, the Authority has mortgaged, pledged and assigned to the Trustee, among
other things, it’s right, title and interest in and to all Facilities (except any Excepted Property) and its right
to receive the Base Rentals as lessor under the Lease, as security for the payment of the principal of, pre-
mium, if any, and interest on the 2018 Bonds (collectively, the “Mortgages”). The mortgages and security
interests created by the Mortgages secure all Bonds issued and outstanding under the Indenture on a parity
basis (see “THE FACILITIES—Cross—Collateralization” below) subject to the release of any of the Facil-



ities upon the terms and conditions described under “THE FACILITIES—Release Of Portions Of Facili-
ties” below.

Redemption Provisions

The 2018 Bonds are subject to optional redemption, and may be subject to mandatory sinking fund
redemption at the option of the successful bidders, and extraordinary optional redemption (in the event of
damage to, or destruction, seizure or condemnation of the Facilities) prior to maturity. See “THE FACIL-
ITIES” and “THE 2018 BONDS—Redemption Provisions For The 2018 Bonds” below.

Tax Matters Regarding The 2018 Bonds

Subject to compliance by the Authority and the State with certain covenants, in the opinion of Chap-
man and Cutler LLP, Bond Counsel, under present law, interest on the 2018 Bonds is excludable from
gross income of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes and is not included as an item of tax
preference in computing the federal alternative minimum tax for individuals and corporations, but such
interest is taken into account in computing an adjustment used in determining the federal alternative min-
imum tax for certain corporations. In the opinion of Bond Counsel, under the existing laws of the State of
Utah, as presently enacted and construed, interest on the 2018 Bonds is exempt from taxes imposed by the
Utah Individual Income Tax Act.

See “TAX MATTERS” below for a more complete discussion.
Professional Services

As of the date of this OFFICIAL STATEMENT, the following have served the State in the capacity
indicated in connection with the issuance of the 2018 Bonds:

Independent Auditors
Office of the State Auditor
Utah State Capitol Complex
East Office Bldg Ste E310

Salt Lake City UT 84114-2310

801.538.1025 | f 801.538.1383
jdougall @utah.gov

Trustee, Registrar and Paying Agent

Wells Fargo Bank NA
Corporate Trust Services
MAC C7300-107

1740 Broadway

Denver CO 80274
303.863.4884 | f 303.863.5645
ethel.m.vick@wellsfargo.com

Municipal Advisor
Zions Public Finance Inc
Zions Bank Building
One S Main St 18" FI
Salt Lake City UT 84133-1109
801.844.7373 | £ 801.844.4484
jon.bronson@zionsbancorp.com

Bond Counsel

Chapman and Cutler LLP

215 S State St Ste 800

Salt Lake City UT 84111-2339
801.533.0066 | f 801.533.9595
bjerke@chapman.com

Disclosure Counsel

Gilmore & Bell PC

15 W S Temple Ste 1450

Salt Lake City UT 84101
801.364.5080 | f 801.364.5032
bwade@gilmorebell.com
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Conditions On Delivery, Anticipated Date, Manner, And Place Of Delivery For The 2018 Bonds

The 2018 Bonds are offered, subject to prior sale, when, as and if issued and received by the success-
ful bidder(s), subject to the approval of legality by Chapman and Cutler LLP, Bond Counsel to the Au-
thority and the State, and certain other conditions. Certain legal matters will be passed on for the State by
its Attorney General. Certain legal matters regarding this OFFICIAL STATEMENT will be passed on for
the Authority and the State by Gilmore & Bell P.C. It is expected that the 2018 Bonds, in book—entry
form, will be available for delivery in Salt Lake City, Utah, for deposit with DTC or its agent on Wednes-
day, March 7, 2018.

Risks Inherent In The Ownership Of The 2018 Bonds

The purchase of the 2018 Bonds involves certain investment risks which are discussed throughout
this OFFICIAL STATEMENT. Accordingly, each prospective purchaser of the 2018 Bonds should make
an independent evaluation of all information presented in this OFFICIAL STATEMENT to make an in-
formed investment decision. Certain investment risks are described under “RISK FACTORS” below.

Continuing Disclosure Undertaking

The State will enter a continuing disclosure undertaking for the benefit of the Owners of the
2018 Bonds. For a detailed discussion of this disclosure undertaking, previous undertakings and timing of
submissions see “CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING” below and “APPENDIX F—
PROPOSED FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING.”

Basic Documentation

This OFFICIAL STATEMENT speaks only as of its date, and the information contained herein is
subject to change. Brief descriptions of the Authority, the State, the 2018 Bonds, the Indenture and the
Lease are included in this OFFICIAL STATEMENT. Such descriptions do not purport to be comprehen-
sive or definitive. All references herein to the Indenture and the Lease are qualified in their entirety by
reference to such documents, and references herein to the 2018 Bonds are qualified in their entirety by
reference to the forms thereof included in the Indenture, the Lease and the information with respect there-
to included in the documents, copies of which are available for inspection at the principal office of the
Trustee on or after the delivery of the 2018 Bonds. Descriptions of the Indenture, the Lease and the
2018 Bonds are qualified by reference to bankruptcy laws affecting the remedies for the enforcement of
the rights and security provided therein and the effect of the exercise of the police power by any entity
having jurisdiction. See “APPENDIX D—BASIC DOCUMENTATION.” The “basic documentation”
which includes the Resolutions, the closing documents for the 2018 Bonds, the Indenture, the Lease and
other documentation, authorizing the issuance of the 2018 Bonds and establishing the rights and responsi-
bilities of the Authority, the State and other parties to the transaction, may be obtained from the “contact
persons” as indicated below.

Contact Persons
As of the date of this OFFICIAL STATEMENT, additional requests for information may be directed

to Zions Public Finance, Inc., Salt Lake City, Utah, the Municipal Advisor to the Authority (the “Munici-
pal Advisor”):



Jon Bronson, Senior Vice President, Director of Public Finance, jon.bronson@zionsbhancorp.com
Johnathan Ward, Vice President, johnathan.ward@zionsbancorp.com
Eric John Pehrson, Senior Vice President, eric.pehrson@zionsbancorp.com
Zions Public Finance Inc

Zions Bank Building
One S Main St 18" FI

Salt Lake City UT 84133-1109

801.844.7373 | £ 801.844.4484

As of the date of this OFFICIAL STATEMENT, the chief contact person for the Authority and the
State concerning the 2018 Bonds is:

David Damschen, Utah State Treasurer, ddamschen@utah.gov
Board Member and Secretary of the Authority
Utah State Treasurer’s Office
Utah State Capitol Complex
350 N State St Ste C180 (PO Box 142315)
Salt Lake City UT 84114-2315
801.538.1042 | f 801.538.1465

As of the date of this OFFICIAL STATEMENT, the chief contact persons for DFCM concerning the
2018 Bonds is:

Lee Fairbourn, Real Estate and Debt Manager, Ifairbourn@utah.gov
Thomas Shaw, Commercial Real Estate Specialist, tashaw@utah.gov
Division of Facilities Construction and Management
450 N State Office 4110
Salt Lake City UT 84114
801.538.3799 | f 801.538.3267

RISK FACTORS

The purchase of the 2018 Bonds involves certain investment risks which are discussed throughout
this OFFICIAL STATEMENT. Accordingly, each prospective purchaser of the 2018 Bonds should make
an independent evaluation of all information presented in this OFFICIAL STATEMENT to make an in-
formed investment decision. Certain of these risks are described below. The enumerated risks described
below are not all-inclusive but are intended to highlight certain of these risks for the convenience of the
reader.

Limited Obligations

The 2018 Bonds are payable from amounts due under the Lease on a parity basis with all other Bonds
that may be outstanding under the Indenture. The State’s obligation under the Lease does not constitute a
general obligation or other indebtedness of the State, the Authority or any agency or political subdivision
of the State within the meaning of any constitutional or statutory debt limitation. The Authority has no
taxing power.

The Initial Term of the Lease expired on June 30,1995, and the current term expires on
June 30, 2018. The State has the option to extend the term of the Lease for consecutive one-year renewal
terms, which it has done since 1995 and through June 30, 2018. Unless sooner terminated, this annual
renewal option will continue through June 30, 2038 with a final renewal term commencing July 1, 2038,
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and ending May 16, 2039 (each renewal term, and all existing renewals are referred to herein as the “Re-
newal Terms”).

There is no assurance that the State, in its sole discretion, will exercise its option to extend the term of
the Lease for any future Renewal Term. Accordingly, the likelihood that the State will extend the term of
the Lease for any Renewal Term and that there will be sufficient funds to pay the principal of, premium,
if any, and interest on the 2018 Bonds as the same become due depends upon many factors, including, but
not limited to:

(a) the economic and demographic conditions within the State,
(b) the ability of the State to generate sufficient tax or other revenues in any year,

(c) the willingness of the Legislature in any future year to appropriate moneys to pay the Rentals,
which decision of the Legislature could be affected by many factors, including the continuing need of
the State for the Facilities, and

(d) the value of the Facilities if relet or sold in a foreclosure or other liquidation proceeding insti-
tuted by the Trustee in the event of the termination or expiration of the Lease if the Legislature does
not appropriate sufficient funds to extend the term of the Lease as provided therein.

General Economic Conditions

The State relies on tax revenues and fees as the primary source of funds to operate state government
and to pay its obligations. Regional and national economic conditions, such as weather—related economic
effects, business cycles, unemployment, and consumer confidence, are outside of the control of the Au-
thority and the State, and can have material adverse effects on the State’s revenues, and its ability to pay
Base Rentals on the Facilities. See “FINANCIAL INFORMATION REGARDING THE STATE OF
UTAH—State Revenues And Collections” and “—Discussion And Analysis Of Financial Statements For
Fiscal Year 2017” below.

No Reserve Fund For The 2018 Bonds Or Any Other Bonds

No debt service reserve fund has been established to secure any of the Bonds issued under the In-
denture, including the 2018 Bonds.

Expiration Or Termination Of The Lease

If the Legislature does not renew the term of the Lease in any year by appropriating sufficient funds
to pay Rentals due thereunder for the succeeding fiscal year, the State’s obligation to pay Rentals under
the Lease will terminate on the June 30 occurring at the end of the then—current Renewal Term. Upon
(a) the expiration of any Renewal Term of the Lease during which an Event of Nonappropriation occurs
or (b) an Event of Default under the Lease and an election by the Trustee to terminate the possessory in-
terest of the State under the Lease, the State’s right of possession of the Facilities under the Lease will
expire or be terminated, as appropriate.

A Bondowner should not anticipate that it will be possible to foreclose on the Leased Property and
liquidate, relet or sell the Leased Property (subject to the Site Leases) after the occurrence of an Event of
Nonappropriation or an Event of Default for an amount equal to the aggregate principal amount of the
Bonds then Outstanding plus accrued interest thereon.

Certain of the Facilities financed under the Indenture will be or are now under construction. If the
possessory interest of the State under the Lease were to be terminated by reason of an Event of Nonap-
propriation or an Event of Default under the Indenture or otherwise pursuant to the Building Ownership



Act or the Lease prior to the acquisition and construction of these Facilities, the payment of principal of,
premium, if any, and interest on the 2018 Bonds would depend, in part, on the ability of the Trustee to
complete any unfinished construction, foreclose on the Facilities, and liquidate, relet or sell one or more
partially constructed Facilities. See “APPENDIX D—BASIC DOCUMENTATION-THE INDEN-
TURE-Events Of Default And Remedies.”

Possible Difficulties In Selling Or Re-letting The Facilities

If the State’s right of possession of the Facilities under the Lease expires or is terminated for any of
the reasons described in the Indenture, the obligation of the State to pay Rentals under the Lease will con-
tinue through the then—current Renewal Term, but not thereafter, and the 2018 Bonds will be payable
from, among other sources, such moneys as may be available by way of recovery from the State of the
Rentals which are due through the then—current Renewal Term. As set forth in the Building Ownership
Act, the Indenture and the Lease, if the State fails to pay any Rentals due to the Authority under the terms
of the Lease, the State shall immediately surrender, and vacate the Facilities, and the rental or lease obli-
gation under the Lease shall then cease. Should the Lease expire at the end of a Renewal Term without
any extension for the next succeeding Renewal Term, or if an event occurs pursuant to which the Trustee
terminates the State’s right of possession of the Facilities under the Lease, the Trustee may repossess,
complete construction, and relet or sell the affected Facilities as provided in the Indenture.

No assurance can be given that the Trustee could relet or sell the Facilities for the amount necessary
to pay the principal of and the interest due on the 2018 Bonds. The Facilities constitute facilities to be
used in the operation of certain divisions of State government and institutions of higher education and
may not be readily usable by other types of tenants. See “THE FACILITIES” below. The net proceeds of
any reletting or sale of the Facilities, together with certain other moneys then held by the Trustee under
the Indenture, if any, are required to be used to pay the Bonds to the extent of such moneys. No assurance
can be given as to the amount of funds available from any such source for the payment of the aggregate
principal amount of the 2018 Bonds then outstanding plus accrued interest thereon. Furthermore, no as-
surance can be given that any amount realized upon any liquidation of the Facilities will be available to
provide for the payment of the 2018 Bonds on a timely basis.

Delays In Exercising Remedies; Limitations On Enforceability

The enforceability of the Lease and the Indenture is subject to applicable bankruptcy laws, equitable
principles affecting the enforcement of creditors’ rights generally and liens securing such rights, the po-
lice powers of the State, the exercise of judicial authority by State or federal courts and the exercise by the
United States of America of the powers delegated to it by the federal constitution. Because of the unique
uses to which the Facilities may be suited and the delays inherent in obtaining foreclosure upon real prop-
erty and judicial remedies, no assurance can be given that these remedies could be accomplished rapidly.
Any delays in or failure on the part of the Trustee to obtain possession of or to foreclose the lien on the
Facilities, if necessary, will likely result in delays in any payment of principal of or interest on the
2018 Bonds.

Possible Shortfall In Costs Of Acquisition And Construction Of The Facilities

The design, acquisition, construction and equipping of certain of the Facilities being financed with the
Prior Parity Bonds has been commenced and is expected to be completed at various times within the next
several years. In the interim, the Authority has capitalized interest on the Prior Parity Bonds, to the ex-
pected completion date of the Facilities financed with the proceeds of such bonds. Regardless of the suffi-
ciency of the capitalized interest, however, once the capitalized interest has been fully applied, the State is
required to commence lease payments pursuant to the Lease to the extent, in the amounts and at the times
necessary to pay debt service on the Bonds. See “THE FACILITIES—The Facilities As Security For The
2018 Bonds” and “—The Facilities Financed With The Bonds” below.



The Authority and the State believe, but there can be no assurance, that the proceeds of sale of the
2018 Bonds and the Prior Parity Bonds, together with certain investment earnings thereon and other
sources of construction funds described in “THE FACILITIES—The Facilities Financed With The
Bonds” below, will be sufficient to complete the acquisition, construction and equipping of the Facilities
which are yet to be completed. In the event such proceeds are insufficient, the Authority is authorized,
pursuant to the Lease, to complete the acquisition, construction and equipping of those certain Facilities
from legally available funds, but only in connection with the issuance of Additional Bonds issued pursu-
ant to the Indenture or from moneys otherwise legally available for that purpose. The Indenture provides
that Additional Bonds may be issued for completing the Facilities or making additions or improvements
to the Facilities or acquiring or constructing Additional Facilities, subject to satisfaction of certain condi-
tions provided in the Indenture. There can be no assurance that such Additional Bonds will be permitted
under applicable law or that the Legislature will agree to the issuance of Additional Bonds at that time. If
issued, Additional Bonds will be secured under the Indenture on a parity with the Bonds previously is-
sued, including the 2018 Bonds and the Prior Parity Bonds. See “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF
PAYMENT FOR THE Bonds—Additional Bonds; Refunding Bonds” below and “APPENDIX D—
BASIC DOCUMENTATION-THE INDENTURE-Additional Bonds.”

Destruction Of The Facilities

The Lease requires the Facilities to be insured by policies of insurance (including casualty and prop-
erty damage insurance) as described in “APPENDIX D—BASIC DOCUMENTATION-THE LEASE-
Insurance Provisions.” In the event of damage to or destruction of all or any part of the Facilities, the
State is nevertheless required to continue to make payments under the Lease during the period for which
the Legislature has appropriated moneys to do so. In such event, the State will decide whether the pro-
ceeds from available insurance (and any other legally available source) are sufficient to repair and rebuild
such Facilities or whether to apply the available proceeds to redemption or payment of the applicable Se-
ries of Bonds. If the net proceeds from insurance or certain other sources are insufficient to repair or re-
place such Facilities, the State may terminate its obligations under the Lease with respect to such Facili-
ties and cause such proceeds to be distributed for the redemption of the applicable Series of Bonds in
whole or in part as provided in the Indenture. See “THE 2018 BONDS—Redemption Provisions For The
2018 Bonds—Extraordinary Optional Redemption in the Event of Damage, Destruction or Condemnation”
below. There can be no assurance as to the adequacy of a timely payment under property damage insur-
ance in effect at that time. Furthermore, there can be no assurance that such insurance proceeds will be
sufficient to redeem the applicable Series of Bonds in whole or that the Trustee will be able to realize any
additional funds from such Facilities at that time. See “APPENDIX D—BASIC DOCUMENTATION-
THE LEASE-Damage Or Destruction; Condemnation.”

Depreciation And Lack Of Residual Value

Certain components of the Facilities may depreciate during the time that the 2018 Bonds are outstand-
ing. In addition, various components of the Facilities may be difficult or impossible to remove from their
points of service or use. Consequently, following an Event of Nonappropriation, an Event of Default un-
der the Lease or the termination of the Lease for any reason, it is possible that any revenues realized by
the Trustee from a reletting or sale, as appropriate, of the Authority’s interest in the Facilities may be in-
sufficient to pay all outstanding Bonds in full.

Tax—Exempt Status Of The 2018 Bonds; Continuing Compliance With Certain Covenants

Failure by the Authority or the State and other applicable departments and divisions of the State with
respect to any of the 2018 Bonds to comply with certain covenants relating to the Indenture, the Lease
and the 2018 Bonds, on a continuing basis, so long as any of the 2018 Bonds are outstanding under the
Indenture and thereafter as required by such document provisions and applicable law, could result in in-
terest on the 2018 Bonds becoming includible in federal gross income of the owners thereof, retroactive
to the date of their original issuance. See “TAX MATTERS” below. The Indenture and the 2018 Bonds



do not provide for payment of any additional interest or penalty or redemption if interest on the
2018 Bonds becomes includible in federal gross income.

Other Factors Regarding The Facilities

The ownership or operation of the Facilities creates a potential for environmental liability on the part
of both the owner or operator of the Facilities as well as any party secured by mortgages, deeds of trust or
other encumbrances, such as the Mortgages. If hazardous substances are discovered at the Facilities’ sites
or discovered to be emanating from the Facilities’ sites, the State and the Authority may be held strictly
liable for all costs and liabilities relating to the disposing of or dealing with such hazardous substances.
This liability could be for an amount far more than the value of the Facilities. The existence of such haz-
ardous substances could hinder the Trustee in exercising certain of its remedies or rights under the Lease
and the Indenture upon the occurrence of an Event of Default thereunder.

The Authority has agreed and represented in the Lease that it has carried on, and will carry on, the
business and operations at the Facilities in a manner that complies in all respects, and will remain in com-
pliance with all applicable federal, state, regional, county or local laws, statutes, rules, regulations or or-
dinances concerning public health, safety or the environment.

Changes In State Government

The State has agreed in the Lease to include in its annual budget request all moneys that are necessary
to fulfill the State’s obligations under the Lease for each successive Renewal Term and seek an appropria-
tion of such funds in a timely fashion to allow the State to pay its obligations under the Lease when due.
The decision to renew or not to renew the term of the Lease is to be made solely by the Legislature at the
time it considers for adoption the final budget relating to each Renewal Term and not by any official of
the State, acting in his or her individual capacity.

The obligation of the State to make payments under the Lease is subject to annual appropriation by
the Legislature, which consists of the Utah Senate (the “Senate”) and the Utah House of Representatives
(the “House™), based upon a budget initially presented to the Legislature by the Governor, and an appro-
priation bill signed by the Governor. The members of the Legislature and the Governor are elected offi-
cials. Members of the Senate and the Governor serve four—year terms while members of the House serve
two-year terms. As of the date of this OFFICIAL STATEMENT, the Governor and his administration
support the construction and continued operation of the Facilities. However, the individuals elected to
serve as Governor and as members of the Legislature will almost certainly change during the period when
the 2018 Bonds are outstanding. There can be no assurance that a future Legislature or a future Governor
will not take a policy position against the continued appropriation of payments under the Lease for the
Facilities.

SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS
The Lease And The Indenture
The 2018 Bonds are payable from amounts due under the Lease, as may be appropriated by the Legis-
lature, and certain other moneys as provided in the Indenture. The initial term of the Lease commenced as
of September 1, 1994, and expired on June 30, 1995 (the “Initial Term”). The State has exercised its op-
tion to extend the term of the Lease in each subsequent year.
In its 2017 Legislative General Session the Legislature appropriated funds sufficient to pay Base

Rentals and Additional Rentals due under the Lease during Fiscal Year 2018 (which commenced on Ju-
ly 1, 2017 and will end on June 30, 2018), which has extended the term of the Lease.
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Extension of the term of the Lease beyond such date is subject to the further exercise by the State, in
its sole discretion, to renew the Lease for consecutive additional one-year Renewal Terms commencing
July 1 of each of the years 2018 through 2038, and a final Renewal Term commencing July 1, 2038, and
ending May 16, 2039, unless terminated earlier or extended by the issuance of Additional Bonds. For cir-
cumstances under which the Lease may be terminated, see “APPENDIX D—BASIC DOCUMENTA-
TION-THE LEASE-Term Of The Lease.”

The Authority, as lessor under the Lease and pursuant to the Indenture, will assign to the Trustee its
rights to receive Base Rentals under the Lease for the benefit of the Owners of the 2018 Bonds. In addi-
tion, the Authority has granted or will grant a mortgage and security interest in all its right, title and inter-
est in and to the Facilities. See “APPENDIX D—BASIC DOCUMENTATION-THE INDENTURE.”

Pursuant to the provisions of the Lease, the State may, in its sole discretion, purchase all or a portion
of the Facilities by payment of the applicable Option Price as defined in the Lease. Neither DFCM, the
State, nor the Legislature may be compelled to exercise the purchase option provided in the Lease. See
“APPENDIX D—BASIC DOCUMENTATION-THE LEASE-Lessee’s Options To Purchase The
Leased Property.”

The continuation of the term of the Lease and the obligation of the State to pay Base Rentals after
June 30, 2018, are subject to the appropriation by the Legislature of sufficient funds to extend the term of
the Lease for each succeeding Renewal Term. Neither the Lease nor the 2018 Bonds constitute a general
obligation or indebtedness of the State or any political subdivision thereof, or the Authority, within the
meaning of any constitutional or statutory debt limitation. Neither the State nor any agency, department or
division of the State has pledged its credit to the payment of the Lease or the 2018 Bonds, and neither the
State nor the Authority is directly or contingently obligated to apply money from, or to levy or pledge,
any form of taxation to the payment of the Lease or the 2018 Bonds. The Authority does not have any
taxing power.

So long as the Lease does not expire by its terms, in the event the Legislature appropriates sufficient
funds to extend the term of the Lease for each successive Renewal Term, the State is required by the pro-
visions of the Lease to pay semiannually to the Trustee specified Base Rentals for the Facilities which are
sufficient, in both time and amount, to pay, when due, the principal of and interest on the 2018 Bonds.

The State has covenanted in the Lease to cause to be included in its annual tentative budget submitted
to the Governor of the State (the “Governor”) a request for appropriation, in accordance with applicable
law, of an amount necessary (after considering any moneys then legally available for such purpose) to pay
the Base Rentals and any reasonably anticipated Additional Rentals under the Lease for the Facilities dur-
ing the next succeeding Renewal Term. See “APPENDIX D—BASIC DOCUMENTATION-THE
LEASE-Rentals Payable—Covenant to Request Appropriations.”

If the amounts otherwise legally available to be paid by the State to the Authority under the Lease are
insufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the 2018 Bonds as and when due, the Governor may
request the Legislature to appropriate additional funds for the payment of amounts due. The Legislature
may, but is not required to, make such an appropriation. The State covenants to request that the Governor
include in the budget submitted to the Legislature a request or requests for appropriation as and when
necessary to assure full and timely payments on the 2018 Bonds; provided, however, that nothing in the
Lease shall be construed as requiring the Governor to make such a request or the Legislature to appropri-
ate such amounts.

In the event that the Legislature does not budget and appropriate sufficient funds prior to June 1 next
preceding the beginning of any Renewal Term for the payment of (i) the Base Rentals becoming due dur-
ing such Renewal Term, and (ii) reasonably estimated Additional Rentals payable during such Renewal
Term with respect to the Lease, then an Event of Nonappropriation shall be deemed to have occurred pur-
suant to the Lease, and the State shall not be obligated to make payment of the Base Rentals or Additional
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Rentals provided for in the Lease beyond the last day of the Renewal Term during which such Event of
Nonappropriation occurs, except for the State’s obligation to pay Rentals that are payable prior to the
termination of the Lease; provided, however, that the State shall continue to be liable for the amounts
payable pursuant to the Lease during such time when the State continues to use, occupy and operate the
Leased Property. Once the State has elected to continue a Lease for a new Renewal Term by the Legisla-
ture budgeting and appropriating sufficient moneys to pay Base Rentals and Additional Rentals as pro-
vided in the Lease, the State shall, as of the first day of such Renewal Term, be obligated to pay such
Base Rentals and Additional Rentals during such Renewal Term. Pursuant to the provisions of the Build-
ing Ownership Act, the Indenture, and the Lease, if the State fails to pay any Rentals due to the Authority
under the terms of the Lease, the State shall immediately surrender and vacate the Facilities. The Trustee
shall, upon the occurrence of an Event of Nonappropriation, have all rights and remedies to take posses-
sion of the Facilities, as trustee for the benefit of the Owners of the Bonds, as provided in the Lease and
the Indenture and shall be further entitled to all moneys then on hand and being held in all funds created
under the Indenture (except the Rebate Fund), less any moneys then due and owing to the Trustee for ser-
vices performed as trustee thereunder. However, due to the nature of the Facilities, it is unlikely that reve-
nues from such remedies and sources would be sufficient to pay in full all then outstanding Bonds if
payment were then due by acceleration or otherwise. Should such a shortfall occur, the then outstanding
Bonds would be paid on a pro rata basis as provided in the Indenture. See “RISK FACTORS” above.

Insurance On The Facilities

The Facilities are required to be insured by the State to the extent described in “APPENDIX D—
BASIC DOCUMENTATION-THE LEASE-Insurance Provisions.” All Net Proceeds of performance
bonds, proceeds (including any moneys derived from any self-insurance program) from policies of insur-
ance (except the policy of public liability and property damage insurance) required by the Lease or con-
demnation awards which are received by the Trustee will be deposited into a separate trust fund under the
Indenture. Such Net Proceeds will be used either to repair, restore, modify or improve the applicable Fa-
cilities or to redeem or defease the related Bonds, as more fully described in “APPENDIX D—BASIC
DOCUMENTATION-THE LEASE-Damage Or Destruction; Condemnation.” See “RISK FACTORS”
above and “FINANCIAL INFORMATION REGARDING THE STATE OF UTAH—RIisk Management
And Insurance” below.

No Reserve Fund For The 2018 Bonds.
The Authority will not create or fund a debt service reserve fund for the 2018 Bonds.
Additional Bonds; Refunding Bonds

Additional Bonds may be issued pursuant to the Indenture on a parity with the 2018 Bonds and the
Prior Parity Bonds upon the terms and conditions of the Indenture for the purpose of providing funds to
pay one or more of the following: (i) the costs of completing the acquisition and construction of any of
the Facilities financed under the Indenture; (ii) the costs of making such additions, improvements, exten-
sions, alterations, relocations, enlargements, expansions, modifications or changes (hereinafter in this par-
agraph collectively called the “improvements”) in, on or to the Facilities as the State may deem necessary
or desirable and as will not impair the exclusion from gross income for federal income tax purposes of
interest on the Bonds or reduce the fair rental value of the Facilities, including any repairing, restoring,
modifying, improving or replacing pursuant to the Lease to the extent that such costs exceed the insurance
or condemnation proceeds out of which such costs are to be paid pursuant to the Lease; (iii) the costs of
Acquiring or Constructing any Additional Facilities for the use and benefit of the State and any State
Bodies, but only to the extent that (A) the inclusion of such Additional Facilities as part of the Leased
Property will not, in the opinion of Bond Counsel, adversely affect the excludability from gross income
for federal income tax purposes of interest on the Bonds then outstanding and (B) the Lease is amended to
include such Additional Facilities thereunder; (iv) the refunding of a Series of Bonds; (v) the costs of the
issuance and sale of the Additional Bonds; (vi) interest during the estimated period of Acquisition and
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Construction of such Additional Facilities and for a period of up to 12 months thereafter; and (vii) any
combination of such purposes. Any such Additional Facilities shall become a part of the Leased Property
and shall be included under the Lease to the same extent as if originally included thereunder. All Addi-
tional Bonds will be secured by the lien of the Indenture and will rank pari passu with Prior Parity Bonds
issued, the 2018 Bonds and all Additional Bonds that may be issued under the Indenture.

The Authority may issue Additional Bonds to finance or refinance Additional Facilities or portions
thereof pursuant to the Indenture without subjecting such Additional Facilities or portions thereof to any
additional Mortgages or supplements to existing Mortgages and without providing title insurance thereon
if certain conditions are met under the Indenture. See “APPENDIX D—BASIC DOCUMENTATION—
THE INDENTURE-Additional Bonds.”

NO DEFAULTED AUTHORITY BONDS OR FAILURES BY STATE TO RENEW LEASE

As of the date of this OFFICIAL STATEMENT and since the creation of the Indenture and Lease (as
of September 1, 1994), the Authority has never failed to pay when due the principal of and interest on its
bonded indebtedness and other payment obligations related thereto. As of the date of this OFFICIAL
STATEMENT and since September 1, 1994, the State has never failed to renew, or defaulted on any
payments due under, any annually renewable lease with the Authority.

THE 2018 BONDS
General

The 2018 Bonds will be dated the date of delivery? thereof (the “Dated Date™) and will mature on
May 15 in the years and in the amounts as set forth on the inside cover page of this OFFICIAL STATE-
MENT.

Interest on the 2018 Bonds is payable semiannually on each May 15 and November 15 and will be
computed based on a 360-day year of 12, 30—day months. Wells Fargo Bank, is the initial Registrar (the
“Registrar”), Paying Agent (the “Paying Agent”) and Trustee with respect to the 2018 Bonds.

The 2018 Bonds will be issued as fully—registered bonds, initially in book—entry form, in the denomi-
nation of $5,000 or any whole multiple thereof, not exceeding the amount of each maturity.

The 2018 Bonds are being issued within the statutory debt limits imposed on the Authority. See
“STATE BUILDING OWNERSHIP AUTHORITY—Legal Borrowing Debt Capacity” below.

Registration, Denominations, Manner Of Payment

The 2018 Bonds are issuable only as fully-registered bonds and, when issued, will be registered in
the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York
(“DTC”). DTC will act as securities depository of the 2018 Bonds. Purchases of 2018 Bonds will be made
in book—entry form, in the principal amount of $5,000 or any whole multiple thereof not exceeding the
amount of each maturity, through brokers and dealers who are, or who act through, Direct Participants.
Beneficial Owners of the 2018 Bonds will not be entitled to receive physical delivery of bond certificates
so long as DTC or a successor securities depository acts as the securities depository with respect to the
2018 Bonds. “Direct Participants,” “Indirect Participants” and “Beneficial Owners” are defined in “AP-
PENDIX G—BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM.”

1 The anticipated date of delivery is Wednesday, March 7, 2018.
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Principal of and interest on the 2018 Bonds (interest payable May 15 and November 15 of each year,
commencing November 15, 2018) are payable by the Paying Agent to the Owners of the 2018 Bonds. So
long as Cede & Co. is the sole registered owner, as nominee of DTC, it is required in turn to remit such
principal and interest to its Direct Participants, for subsequent disbursements to the Beneficial Owners of
the 2018 Bonds, as described under “APPENDIX G—BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM.”

So long as DTC or its nominee is the sole registered owner of the 2018 Bonds, none of the Authority,
the State, the successful bidder(s), nor the Trustee will have any responsibility or obligation to any Direct
or Indirect Participants of DTC, or the Persons for whom they act as nominees, with respect to payments
to or provision of notice for the Direct Participants, Indirect Participants or the Beneficial Owners of the
2018 Bonds. Under these same circumstances, references herein and in the Indenture to the “Bondown-
ers” or “Registered Owners” of the 2018 Bonds shall mean Cede & Co. as nominee for DTC and shall not
mean the Beneficial Owners of the 2018 Bonds.

Regular Record Date; Transfer Or Exchange Of The 2018 Bonds

Regular Record Date shall mean the first day of the month in which such Bond Interest Payment Date
occurs. No transfer or exchange of any 2018 Bonds shall be required to be made (i) during a period be-
ginning on the Regular Record Date or the Special Record Date, as the case may be, immediately preced-
ing any Bond Interest Payment Date and ending on such Bond Interest Payment Date or special interest
payment date, (ii) during a period beginning at the opening of business 15 days before the date of the
mailing of a notice of redemption of the 2018 Bonds selected for redemption and ending at the close of
business on the day of such mailing, and (iii) for any 2018 Bond so selected for redemption, in whole or
in part, except the unredeemed portion of such 2018 Bond being redeemed in part.

Estimated Sources And Uses Of Funds
The proceeds from the sale of the 2018 Bonds are estimated to be applied as set forth below:

Sources of Funds:

Par amount of the 2018 BONUS...........cccurveeiririeeiisiseie e $
Original issue premium on the 2018 BONGS..........ccceoveviineninincreeeiee
TOAL .. $
Uses of Funds:
Deposit to 2018 Construction Account (Parking).........cccccevveveivvevesineiieinens $

Deposit to 2018 Construction Account (DABC) .......cccocvviviiininciciciens
Deposit to 2018 Capitalized Interest Account (Parking)

(through November 15, 2018) ........cccveiiiiiiiciiieeie e
Deposit to 2018 Capitalized Interest Account (DABC)

(through May 15, 2019 and November 15, 2019) .........ccccevvverieivinnnnns
Underwriter(s)” discount on the 2018 BONAS...........ccccceveveveieeieie e,
COSES OF ISSUANCE (L) +rvverveiveeeeiieciee e ste ettt e st saesre s sreanes
Original issue discount on the 2018 BONGS..........ccccoveierieiieiieiininesenenees

TOUAL ettt ettt ettt e et ettt $

(1) Includes legal fees, Municipal Advisor fees, rating agency fees, Trustee fees, Registrar and Paying Agent
fees, rounding amounts and other miscellaneous costs of issuance.

(Source: Municipal Advisor.)
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Redemption Provisions For The 2018 Bonds

2018 Bonds Optional Redemption. The 2018 Bonds maturing on or before May 15, 2027, are not sub-
ject to redemption prior to maturity, except as otherwise described under this caption “Redemption Provi-
sions For The 2018 Bonds.” The 2018 Bonds maturing on or after May 15, 2028, are subject to redemp-
tion (i) in whole on any business day on or after November 15, 2027, in the event that the Lessee exercis-
es its option pursuant to the Master Lease to purchase all the Leased Property thereunder or (ii) in part on
November 15, 2027, or on any date thereafter from such maturities or portions thereof designated by the
Lessee in the event that the Lessee prepays additional Base Rentals pursuant to the Master Lease or pur-
chases a portion of the Leased Property representing separate Facilities pursuant to the Master Lease, all
as provided in the Indenture. If called for redemption as described in this paragraph, the 2018 Bonds to be
redeemed, in whole or in part, shall be redeemed at a redemption price, expressed as a percentage of the
principal amount of the 2018 Bonds to be redeemed, equal to 100% of the principal amount thereof plus
accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption.

Extraordinary Optional Redemption in the Event of Damage, Destruction or Condemnation. The
2018 Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity in whole or in part from time to time, from such
maturities or portions thereof designated by the State in its notice described below, on such date or dates
as the Trustee shall determine as hereinafter described, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the princi-
pal amount to be redeemed, together with accrued interest thereon to the redemption date (to the extent
that funds are available for such purpose as described herein), but without premium, in the event that
(i) any of the Facilities are damaged or destroyed, in whole or in part, or the Leased Property or any por-
tion thereof is taken in a condemnation or other proceeding, or certain events occur with respect to the
title to such Leased Property or construction defects in any of the Facilities as described in the Lease,
(ii) the Net Proceeds of any insurance policy, performance bond or condemnation award, or the Net Pro-
ceeds received as a consequence of defaults under any Project Contract (excluding liquidated damages),
plus all amounts required to be paid as deductibles thereunder, made available by reason of one or more
such occurrences, and any other legally available moneys, shall be insufficient to pay in full the cost of
rebuilding, replacing or repairing Leased Property and (iii) the Lessee elects, pursuant to the Lease, to
waive its obligation to rebuild, repair or replace the affected portion of such Leased Property by deposit-
ing such Net Proceeds into the Redemption Fund for application to the redemption of then—Outstanding
Bonds in accordance with the Lease and the Indenture and provides written notice of such election to the
Trustee and the Authority. If 2018 Bonds are called for extraordinary optional redemption, the
2018 Bonds to be redeemed will be redeemed on such date or dates as the Trustee may determine to be in
the best interests of the Owners of the 2018 Bonds.

On the redemption date or dates determined as provided in the preceding paragraph, the Trustee shall
transfer all moneys into the Redemption Fund in accordance with the provisions of the Indenture to be
used by the Trustee to redeem the 2018 Bonds on such redemption date or dates to the extent necessary
after giving effect to all moneys transferred to the Redemption Fund. The Trustee shall credit automatical-
ly against the State’s obligation under the Lease an amount equal to the amount in the Redemption Fund.

Notice of Redemption. Notice of the call for any redemption, identifying and stating, among other
things, the 2018 Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed, the redemption date and price, and that the
interest on such Bonds will cease to accrue from and after the redemption date, shall be given by the Trus-
tee, upon being satisfactorily indemnified as to expenses, by mail at least 30 but not more than 60 days
prior to the date fixed for redemption to the registered Owner of each 2018 Bond to be redeemed in whole
or in part at the address shown on the registration books; provided, however, that failure to give such no-
tice by mailing, or any defect therein with respect to any 2018 Bond, shall not affect the validity of any
proceedings for the redemption of any other 2018 Bond or portion thereof with respect to which no such
failure has occurred. Any notice mailed as provided above shall be conclusively presumed to have been
duly given, whether the registered Owner receives the notice.
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In addition to the foregoing notice, certain further notice of any redemption of 2018 Bonds shall be
given by the Trustee as provided in the Indenture. Any defect in such further notice or failure to give all
or any portion of such further notice shall not in any manner defeat the effectiveness of a call for redemp-
tion.

On or prior to the date fixed for any redemption of 2018 Bonds, the moneys required for such re-
demption shall be deposited with the Trustee by the State in accordance with the Lease. The principal of
the 2018 Bonds called for redemption shall cease to bear interest after the specified redemption date, pro-
vided that sufficient funds for redemption are on deposit with the Trustee at that time.

If at the time of mailing of any notice of redemption there shall not have been deposited with the
Trustee moneys sufficient to redeem all the 2018 Bonds called for redemption, which moneys are or will
be available for redemption of 2018 Bonds, such notice shall state that such redemption is subject to the
deposit of the redemption moneys with the Trustee not later than the opening of business on the redemp-
tion date and that such notice shall be of no effect unless such moneys are so deposited.

Redemption Payments. All moneys to be used for redemption of 2018 Bonds (other than mandatory
sinking fund redemptions, if any) shall be deposited in the Redemption Fund established under the Inden-
ture. Said moneys shall be set aside in the Redemption Fund solely for redeeming the principal of the
2018 Bonds in advance of their scheduled maturity date, except as may otherwise be required by any Tax
Certificate, and shall be applied on or after the Bond Payment Date or other date designated for redemp-
tion to the payment of the principal of, and premium, if any, and interest on, the 2018 Bonds to be re-
deemed, upon presentation and surrender of such 2018 Bonds.

Partial Redemption of 2018 Bonds. In the case of a partial redemption of 2018 Bonds when
2018 Bonds of denominations greater than $5,000 are then outstanding, then for all purposes in connec-
tion with such partial redemption, each $5,000 of face value shall be treated as though it were a separate
2018 Bond of the denomination of $5,000. If it is determined that one or more, but not all, of the $5,000
units of face value represented by any 2018 Bond is to be called for redemption, then upon notice of in-
tention to redeem such $5,000 unit or units (given by the Trustee), the Owner of such 2018 Bond shall
forthwith surrender such 2018 Bond to the Trustee (a) for payment of the redemption price (including the
premium, if any, and interest to the date fixed for redemption) of the $5,000 unit or units of face value
called for redemption and (b) for exchange, without charge to the Owner thereof, for a new 2018 Bond or
2018 Bonds of the same Series, designation, maturity and interest rate and in any of the authorized de-
nominations, at the option of the Owner thereof, of the aggregate principal amount of the unpaid balance
of the principal amount of the 2018 Bond to be so redeemed. If the Owner of any such 2018 Bond of a
denomination greater than $5,000 shall fail to present such 2018 Bond to the Trustee for redemption and
exchange as aforesaid, the principal amount of such 2018 Bond to be redeemed shall, nevertheless, be-
come due and payable on the redemption date to the extent of the $5,000 unit or units of face value called
for redemption (and to that extent only); interest shall cease to accrue on the portion of the principal
amount of such 2018 Bond to be redeemed represented by such $5,000 unit or units of face value on and
after the redemption date and (funds sufficient for the payment of the redemption price having been de-
posited with the Trustee and being available for the redemption of said unit or units on the redemption
date) such 2018 Bond shall not be entitled to the benefit or security of the Indenture to the extent of the
portion of its principal amount (and accrued interest thereon after the redemption date) represented by
such $5,000 unit or units of face value nor shall new 2018 Bonds be thereafter issued corresponding to
said unit or units. 2018 Bonds shall be redeemed only in the principal amount of $5,000 each or any
whole multiple thereof.

With respect to any partial redemption of 2018 Bonds of less than all of a particular maturity of

2018 Bonds, the particular 2018 Bonds to be redeemed shall be selected by the Trustee by lot in such
manner as the Trustee shall determine to be fair and equitable.
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Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption At Bidder’s Option

The 2018 Bonds may be subject to mandatory sinking fund redemption at the option of the successful
bidder(s). See “OFFICIAL NOTICE OF BOND SALE—Term Bonds and Mandatory Sinking Fund Re-
demption at Bidder’s Option.”

Book-Entry System

DTC will act as securities depository for the 2018 Bonds. The 2018 Bonds will be issued as fully—
registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s partnership nominee) or such other
name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One fully—registered 2018 Bond cer-
tificate will be issued for each maturity of the 2018 Bonds, each in the aggregate principal amount of such
maturity, and will be deposited with DTC or a “fast agent” of DTC. See “APPENDIX G—BOOK-
ENTRY SYSTEM” for a more detailed discussion of the book—entry system and DTC.

Debt Service On The 2018 Bonds

Debt Service based on Base Rental Payment Schedule. The Lease requires semi—annual Base Rental
payments to be made by the State to the Authority (on May 1 and November 1 of each year), which Base
Rentals have been assigned to the Trustee pursuant to the Indenture. 2018 Bond principal and/or interest
payments are then paid by the Trustee on May 15 and November 15. The following table shows sched-
uled debt service on the 2018 Bonds based on Base Rental payments dates.

Due Date (Base The 2018 Bonds
Rental Payment) Principal* Interest Period Total Fiscal Total
November 1, 2018 ............ $ 0.00 $ $
May 1, 2019.......cccevvneen. 0.00
November 1, 2019 ............ 0.00
May 1, 2020.......ccccccvrvennnn. 605,000.00
November 1, 2020 ............ 0.00
May 1, 2021.....c.cccccvvrvrnnns 640,000.00
November 1, 2021 ............ 0.00
May 1, 2022........ccccvvvennnne 665,000.00
November 1, 2022 ............ 0.00
May 1, 2023.....c.ccccvervennns 700,000.00
November 1, 2023 ............ 0.00
May 1, 2024........cccccvvenene 735,000.00
November 1, 2024 ............ 0.00
May 1, 2025.......cccovvrirnnne 775,000.00
November 1, 2025 ............ 0.00
May 1, 2026........cccceevennens 815,000.00
November 1, 2026 ............ 0.00
May 1, 2027 .......ccccevevuenens 850,000.00
November 1, 2027 ............ 0.00
May 1, 2028........c.ccccevenene 905,000.00
November 1, 2028 ............ 0.00
May 1, 2029.......cccccvvrernnns 920,000.00
November 1, 2029 ............ 0.00
May 1, 2030.....c.cccevvvrrernnns 955,000.00
November 1, 2030 ............ 0.00
May 1, 2031.......cccvcvrnee. 990,000.00
November 1, 2031 ............ 0.00
May 1, 2032.......ccceevrveneen. 1,015,000.00

* Preliminary; subject to change.
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Debt Service On The 2018 Bonds—continued

Due Date (Base

The 2018 Bonds

Rental Payment) Principal* Interest Period Total Fiscal Total
November 1, 2032 ............ 0.00
May 1, 2033.....cccccevervrnnns 1,050,000.00
November 1, 2033 ............ 0.00
May 1, 2034.......cccevruennen. 1,090,000.00
November 1, 2034 ............ 0.00
May 1, 2035.......cccevrvennen. 1,125,000.00
November 1, 2035 ............ 0.00
May 1, 2036........ccccervennne 1,160,000.00
November 1, 2036 ............ 0.00
May 1, 2037.....ccccceveirenns 1,200,000.00
November 1, 2037 ............ 0.00
May 1, 2038........cccccevvenens 1,240,000.00
November 1, 2038 ............ 0.00
May 1, 2039.....c.ccccevvrerrnne ~1,290,000.00
TotalS....ccovevveeercrnne, $18,725,000.00 $ $

(1) Includes legal fees, Municipal Advisor fees, rating agency fees, Trustee fees, Registrar and Paying Agent fees,
rounding amounts and other miscellaneous costs of issuance.

(Source: Municipal Advisor.)

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING

The State will enter into a continuing disclosure undertaking (the “Disclosure Undertaking”) for the
benefit of the Beneficial Owners of the 2018 Bonds to send certain information annually and to provide
notice of certain events to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (“MSRB”) through its Electronic
Municipal Market Access system (“EMMA”) pursuant to the requirements of paragraph (b)(5) of
Rule 15¢2-12 (the “Rule”) adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission under the Securities Ex-
change Act of 1934, as amended. No person, other than the State, has undertaken, or is otherwise ex-
pected, to provide continuing disclosure with respect to the 2018 Bonds. The information to be provided
on an annual basis, the events which will be noticed on an occurrence basis and other terms of the Disclo-
sure Undertaking, including termination, amendment and remedies, are set forth in “APPENDIX F—
PROPOSED FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE UNDERTAKING.”

Based on prior disclosure undertakings, the State submits its comprehensive annual financial report
(the “CAFR”) (Fiscal Year Ending June 30) and other operating and financial information on or before
January 15 (on or before 199 days from the end of the Fiscal Year) of each year. The State will submit the
Fiscal Year 2018 CAFR and other operating and financial information for the 2018 Bonds on or before
January 15, 2019, and annually thereafter on or before each January 15.

A failure by the State to comply with the Disclosure Undertaking will not constitute a default under
the Indenture or the Lease, and Beneficial Owners of the 2018 Bonds are limited to the remedies provided
in the Disclosure Undertaking. See “APPENDIX F—PROPOSED FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLO-
SURE UNDERTAKING-Consequences of Failure of the State to Provide Information.” A failure by the
State to comply with the Disclosure Undertaking must be reported in accordance with the Rule and must
be considered by any broker, dealer or municipal securities dealer before recommending the purchase or
sale of the 2018 Bonds in the secondary market. Any such failure may adversely affect the marketability
of the 2018 Bonds.

* Preliminary; subject to change.
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State’s Failure To Provide Material Event Notice And Operating Information

Failure to File Material Event Notice—Bond Call. In 2012 the State refunded its outstanding General
Obligation Bonds, Series 2004B, dated July 1, 2004, CUSIP®917542 (the “2004B GO Bonds”) and the
related escrow agreement (the “2012 Escrow Agreement”) was filed on EMMA. The 2012 Escrow
Agreement indicated that the 2004B GO Bonds would be redeemed on July 1, 2014, however, the actual
notice of redemption was not filed on EMMA. The 2004B GO Bonds were called and retired on Ju-
ly 1, 2014 (the State did not file a material event notice on EMMA because the 2004B GO Bonds are re-
tired).

Failure to Provide Operating Information.

(i) The State failed to provide certain operating information related to the State’s Recapitalization
Revenue Bonds, Series 2010A, Series 2010B and Series 2010C, CUSIP® 917535, dated Febru-
ary 23, 2010, for the filing periods on or before January 15, 2011 through January 15, 2017. The
State submitted the required information to EMMA on June 12, 2017.

(i) The State failed to provide certain tables of appropriation revenues and capital expenditures au-
thorizations related to the State’s general obligation bond (CUSIP® 917542, Series 2013, dated
July 30, 2013) for the filing periods due on or before January 15, 2014 through Janu-
ary 15, 2017. Also, the State failed to provide certain tables of appropriation revenues, budget
revenue collections and capital expenditures authorizations related to the State’s general obliga-
tion bond (CUSIP® 917542, Series 2015, dated April 29, 2015) and the Authority’s lease reve-
nue bonds (CUSIP® 917547, Series 2016, dated April 5,2016 and Series 2015, dated
April 29, 2015) for the filing periods due on or before January 15, 2016 and January 15, 2017.
The State and the Authority submitted the required information to EMMA on June 9, 2017.

(iii) Additionally, the State also failed to provide a table on capital expenditures authorizations relat-
ed to: (a) all bond issues of the currently outstanding general obligation bonds of the State and
(b) all bond issues of the currently outstanding lease revenue bonds of the Authority (excluding
those bond issues identified in paragraph (ii) above) for the filing periods due on or before Janu-
ary 15, 1999 through January 15, 2017. The State and the Authority submitted the required in-
formation to EMMA on June 9, 2017.

The State has reviewed its continuing disclosure practices and has implemented new guidelines for
future continuing disclosure filings.

STATE BUILDING OWNERSHIP AUTHORITY
Establishment And Statutory Powers

The Authority was created in 1979 as a body politic and corporate of the State. The Authority is em-
powered, among other things, to issue its bonds (with the prior approval of the Legislature) to finance the
acquisition and construction of facilities to be leased to State agencies and their affiliated entities from
rentals paid out of budget appropriations or other available funds for the lessee agencies, which in the ag-
gregate will be sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on such bonds as they become due and to
maintain, operate and insure the facilities. The necessary prior approval of the Legislature for the issuance
of such bonds is given by specific acts, which acts are generally passed upon during a General Session of
the Legislature.
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The Authority is also empowered, among other things, to: (i) contract with others for needed services;
and (ii) cause to be executed mortgages, trust deeds, indentures, pledge agreements, assignments, security
agreements, and financing statements encumbering property acquired, or constructed by the Authority.

The Authority is comprised of three members: the Governor or designee, the State Treasurer and the
Chair of the State Building Board. The Building Ownership Act directs DFCM to construct and maintain
any facilities acquired or constructed for the Authority.

State Building Board

The State Building Board consists of seven voting members who are appointed by the Governor. In
addition, the director of the Governor’s Office of Management and Budget of the State is a non-voting
member of the board. The board acts as a policy—making board for DFCM. The board’s current statutory
responsibilities include the preparation and maintenance of a five—year building plan for submission to the
Governor and the Legislature, the establishment of design and construction standards for State facilities,
the establishment of procurement rules for the design and construction and leasing of State facilities, and
the establishment of policies and procedures regarding the functions of DFCM.

Division Of Facilities Construction And Management

DFCM is responsible for the design and construction of the facilities used by all state agencies and in-
stitutions. DFCM contracts with private architectural, engineering, and construction firms for the design
and construction of such facilities. DFCM reviews plans prior to bidding and supervises the design and
construction processes. DFCM acts as staff to the State Building Board in the analysis of facility needs
and the prioritization of capital projects.

DFCM is responsible for the leasing of all facilities for State agencies with some exceptions. Infor-
mation regarding leases is submitted annually to the Legislature for its review and approval. Other re-
sponsibilities of DFCM include the management and maintenance of many State facilities, the allocation
of space among State agencies, and the ownership of much of the State’s real property.

The State’s Limited Lease Rental Obligation

The Building Ownership Act provides that, except as otherwise provided therein, bonds issued by the
Authority pursuant thereto will be payable solely out of rentals or lease payments received by the Au-
thority for the facilities constructed or acquired thereunder, and that, if the amounts otherwise legally
available to be paid by the State to the Authority under the Lease are insufficient to pay the principal of
and interest on the bonds as and when due, the Governor may request the Legislature to appropriate addi-
tional funds for the payment of amounts due. The Legislature may, but is not required to, make such an
appropriation. Bonds issued pursuant to authorizing legislation of this type are sometimes referred to
herein as “State Lease Revenue Bonds.”

Debt Issuance

Current Lease Revenue Obligation Bonds Outstanding. The 2018 Bonds will be the 30" series of
Bonds to be issued pursuant to the State Facilities Master Lease Program. Under the State Facilities Mas-
ter Lease Program, no debt service reserve fund is created for any Bonds issued pursuant to the Indenture
and the Lease. In this program, all Bonds are issued on a parity basis and are cross—collateralized by the
facilities subject to the lien of the Indenture and the Mortgages.

The 2018 Bonds and all other Bonds issued under the State Facilities Master Lease Program are
not classified as State Moral Obligation Bonds as defined in “DEBT STRUCTURE OF THE STATE
OF UTAH—State Moral Obligation Bonds” below. However, the 2018 Bonds are State Lease Revenue
Bonds.
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As of March 7, 2018, the Authority will have the following State Lease Revenue Bonds outstanding

under the State Facilities Master Lease Program:
Original Current
Principal Final Principal
Series (1) Purpose Amount Maturity Date Outstanding_
2018 (@) ...ccevvvee DABC/parking $ 18,725,000 May 15, 2039* $ 18,725,000*
2017 (2).ccvennen. Refunding/crossover 25,910,000 May 15, 2024 25,910,000
2016 ..o Justice/DABC 98,150,000 May 15, 2038 98,150,000
2015 ..o Refunding 30,015,000 May 15, 2030 28,860,000
2012B (3)........... Refunding/acquisition 11,700,000 May 15, 2022 4,175,000
2012A................ Refunding 15,610,000 May 15, 2027 14,620,000
2011 ... Various purposes 5,250,000 May 15, 2031 3,175,000
2010 ...cocviiee. Refunding 36,735,000 May 15, 2024 22,405,000
2009E (4) (5)..... Huntsman Hospital (BABSs) 89,470,000 May 15, 2030 89,470,000
2009C (4) .......... DABC Warehouse (BABs) 16,715,000 May 15, 2029 16,715,000
2009B................ DABC Warehouse 8,445,000 May 15, 2019 2,425,000
2009A (6).......... DABC Facilities 25,505,000 May 15, 2019 (9) 2,200,000
1998C (7) (8)..... Refunding 105,100,000 May 15, 2019 10,405,000
Total principal amount of outstanding State Lease Revenue Bonds (10) ........cccccceevcveviveennnen, $337,235,000*
(@) For purposes of this OFFICIAL STATEMENT the 2018 Bonds will be considered issued and outstanding.

1)

(2)
(3)
(4)
®)

(6)

(M
®)

(9)
(10)

*

All bonds rated “Aal” by Moody’s Investor’s Service (“Moody’s”) and “AA+” by S&P Global Ratings
(“S&P™) (unless otherwise indicated), as of the date of this OFFICIAL STATEMENT. No municipal bond rat-
ings have been requested from Fitch.

Issued as a direct purchase. Rated “Aal” by Moody’s (no rating requested from S&P or Fitch).

The 2012B Lease Revenue Bonds are issued as federally taxable bonds.

Issued as federally taxable, originally 35% issuer subsidy, “Build America Bonds” or “BABS”.

Portions of this bond will be refunded from moneys received from a 2017 Lease Revenue Escrow Account
(created from bond proceeds from the 2017 Lease Revenue Bonds) on the Crossover Date of May 15, 20109.
Portions of this bond issue have been refunded by the 2015 Lease Revenue Bonds.

These bonds are insured by Assured Guaranty Municipal Corp.

Portions of this bond issue (principal amounts maturing in 2018 and 2019 in the total amount of $7,440,000)
have been legally defeased by separate irrevocable escrow accounts, which accounts were funded from availa-
ble cash on hand.

Final maturity date after the refunding effected by the 2015 Lease Revenue Bonds.

For accounting purposes, the total unamortized bond premium is $12,613,686* (as of March 7, 2018 and in-
cluding the 2018 Bonds), which together with current debt outstanding of $337,235,000%, results in total out-
standing net direct debt of $349,848,686™.

Preliminary; subject to change.

(Source: Municipal Advisor.)

Authorized State Lease Revenue Bonds And Future Lease Revenue Bonds Issuance

Notwithstanding the legal debt issuing capacity of the Authority discussed in this section under “Stat-
utory Legal Borrowing Debt Capacity” below, the Authority may only issue State Lease Revenue Bonds
for facilities authorized by the Legislature.

After the issuance of the 2018 Bonds, the Authority has no remaining authorized or unissued lease
revenue bonds. The Legislature may authorize additional lease revenue bonds in future Fiscal Years but

such

amounts and issuance dates are not known as of the date of this OFFICIAL STATEMENT. The Au-

thority does not anticipate the issuance of additional lease revenue bonds within Fiscal Year 2018, but

may

issue additional bonds at any time in the future.
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Statutory Legal Borrowing Debt Capacity

The Authority may not issue any bonds or other obligations under the Building Ownership Act in an
amount which would exceed the difference between (i) the total outstanding indebtedness of the State
(exclusive of certain State highway bonds specified under the Building Ownership Act) and (ii) 1.5% of
the fair market value of the taxable property of the State (the “Statutory Lease Revenue Debt Limit”).
Under this formula, the Authority’s debt capacity is reduced as non-excluded State general obligation
bonds are issued. As of March 7, 2018, (the anticipated delivery date of the 2018 Bonds), the Statutory
Lease Revenue Debt Limit and additional debt incurring capacity of the Authority are calculated as fol-
lows:

Fair market value of ad valorem taxable property (1)........ccccvvererereiiinieiiieneseeeenns $335,540,187,517
Fees in lieu of ad valorem taxable property (2) ......cccccevveieveieeiece e _12,176,096,150
Total fair market value of taxable property (1)......ccocoveiereniinieie e $347,716,283,667
Statutory Lease Revenue Debt Limit (1.5%0) ....c.oooveiiiiiieiiiece e $5,215,744,255
Currently outstanding general obligation debt (net) (3).....cccccvvoeiiriiiiiiiiee e (2,506,193,270)
Authority’s outstanding lease revenue bonds (Net) (4) ....coovevevevveieiiiieece e (349,848,686)*
Long—term contract labilitieS (5) ......ccoovviieiieee e (92,010,084)
Statutorily exempt State general obligation highway debt (net) (4) .......ccccoovveriieieinnn 2,285,495,799
Estimated Statutory Lease Revenue Debt Limit capacity of the Authority ........................ $4,553,188,014

(1) Based on Calendar Year 2016 (Fiscal Year 2017) taxable values. See “FINANCIAL INFORMATION RE-
GARDING THE STATE OF UTAH—Property Tax Matters—Taxable Value Compared with Fair Market Value
of All Taxable Property in the State” above.

(2) Based on Calendar Year 2016 (Fiscal Year 2017) “age based” values. For purposes of calculating debt incurring
capacity only, the value of all motor vehicles and state—assessed commercial vehicles (which value is deter-
mined by dividing the uniform fee revenue by 1.5%) is added to the fair market value of the taxable property in
the State.

(3) Includes unamortized original issue bond premium that was treated as principal for purposes of calculating the
applicable Constitutional Debt Limit; the Statutory Appropriations General Obligation Debt Limit (as defined
herein); and the Statutory 2017 General Obligation Highway Limitation Debt Limit (as defined herein).

(4) Includes unamortized original issue bond premium that was treated as principal for purposes of calculating the
Constitutional Debt Limit and the Statutory Appropriations General Obligation Debt Limit.

(5) In the opinion of the State Auditor, the State has other long—-term contract liabilities of unused vacation leave
for employees of $92,010,084 which financial obligations may be considered as general obligation debt of the
State. Although no final legal determination has been made, for purposes of this OFFICIAL STATEMENT, this
amount will be applied against the Authority’s Statutory Lease Revenue Debt Limit.

*  Preliminary; subject to change.

(Source: Municipal Advisor.)

Statutory Legal Debt Limit Estimate Using Calendar Year 2017 (Fiscal Year 2018) Estimated Taxa-
ble Valuation. Based on estimated ad valorem property tax reports from the State Tax Commission, the
Calendar Year 2017 (Fiscal Year 2018) estimated fair market value of ad valorem taxable property and
valuation for fees in lieu property is approximately $375.7 billion, leaving the Authority (after the issu-
ance of the 2018 Bonds) to legally issue an additional approximately $4.97 billion of lease revenue bonds.
(Source: Municipal Advisor.)
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Debt Service Schedule of Outstanding Lease Revenue Bonds (State Building Ownership Authority) By Fiscal Year (1)

Fiscal Series 2018 (a) Series 2017 Series 2016 Series 2015 Series 2012B Series 2012A Series 2011
Year Ending $18,725,000 $25,910,000 2017 Escrow $98,150,000 $30,015,000 $11,700,000 $15,610,000 $5,250,000
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Account (x) Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2017.......... $ 0 $ 0 3 0 $ 0 - $ 0 $ 3,815,174 $ 350,000 $ 1,363,800 $2,380,000 $ 124,200 $ 990,000 $ 516,975 $ 385,000 $ 105,706
0 0 0 493,010 $  (493,010) 150,000 3,433,656 1,095,000 1,353,300 1,305,000 76,600 1,005,000 502,125 395,000 97,044
0 859,974 0 1,295,500 (1,295,500) 3,300,000 3,429,156 705,000 1,309,500 985,000 50,500 1,445,000 487,050 405,000 87,169
605,000 723,342 4,805,000 1,295,500 - 3,475,000 3,264,156 1,910,000 1,281,300 1,005,000 35,725 1,490,000 443,700 415,000 75,019
640,000 693,094 5,120,000 1,055,250 3,625,000 3,090,406 2,020,000 1,185,800 665,000 18,138 1,555,000 384,100 430,000 64,644
665,000 661,094 5,460,000 799,250 - 3,800,000 2,909,156 2,115,000 1,084,800 215,000 4,838 1,630,000 306,350 440,000 52,819
700,000 627,844 5,085,000 526,250 - 4,025,000 2,719,156 2,220,000 979,050 - - 1,710,000 224,850 455,000 39,619
735,000 592,844 5,440,000 272,000 - 4,200,000 2,517,906 2,875,000 868,050 - - 1,230,000 173,550 70,000 (3) 25,400
775,000 556,094 - - - 4,400,000 2,307,906 3,005,000 724,300 - - 2,850,000 136,650 70,000 (3) 22,600
815,000 517,344 - - - 4,650,000 2,087,906 3,150,000 574,050 - - 1,135,000 51,150 75,000 (3) 19,800
850,000 476,594 - - - 4,750,000 1,983,281 3,325,000 416,550 - - 570,000 17,100 80,000 (3) 16,800
905,000 434,094 - - - 4,850,000 1,864,531 2,855,000 250,300 - - - - 80,000 (3) 13,600
920,000 404,681 - - - 5,000,000 1,731,156 1,775,000 107,550 - - - - 85,000 (3) 10,400
955,000 374,781 - - - 5,150,000 1,581,156 1,810,000 54,300 - - - - 85,000 (3) 7,000
990,000 343,744 - - - 5,300,000 1,426,656 - - - - - - 90,000 (3) 3,600
1,015,000 311,569 - - - 5,450,000 1,267,656 - - - - - - - -
1,050,000 278,581 - - - 5,625,000 1,104,156 - - - - - - - -
1,090,000 244,456 - - - 5,775,000 935,406 - - - - - - - -
1,125,000 207,669 - - - 5,950,000 762,156 - - - - - - - -
1,160,000 169,700 - - - 6,150,000 583,656 - - - - - - - -
1,200,000 130,550 - - - 6,325,000 399,156 - - - - - - - -
1,240,000 88,550 - - 6,200,000 201,500 - - - - - - - -
1,290,000 45,150
$ 18,725,000 $ 8741748 $ 25910,000 $ 5,736,760 $(1,788,510) $98,150,000 $43,415,049 $29,210,000 $11,552,650 $6,555,000 $ 310,000 $15,610,000 $3,243,600 $3,560,000 $ 641,219
Fiscal Series 2010 Series 2009E Series 2009D (5) Series 2009C Series 2009B Series 2009A Series 2007A (5) Series 1998C
Year Ending $36,735,000 $89,470,000 $12,125,000 $16,715,000 $8,445,000 $25,505,000 $15,380,000 $105,100,000
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest (2) Principal Interest Principal Interest (2) Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal (9) Interest
2017. $ 3,175,000 $ 1,279,000 $ 0 $ 4,992,885 $ 3,795,000 $ 189,750 $ 0 $ 929,780 $ 1,125,000 $ 177,500 $1,025,000 $ 161,250 $ 695,000 $ 31275 $ 9,130,000 (10) $1,074,425
2018. 3,330,000 1,120,250 4,010, 000 4,992,885 - - 0 929,780 1,185,000 121,250 1,075,000 110,000 0 0(8) 8,295,000 (10) 572,275
3,510,000 953,750 4,807,463 - - 0 929,780 1,240,000 62,000 1,125,000 56,250 0 0 (8) 2,110,000 (10) 116,050
2,995,000 778,250 5,295, ooo (y) 4807463 - - 1,305,000 (6) 929,780 - - 0 0 (8) 0 0 (8) - -
3,145,000 628,500 5,555,000 (y) 4,539,853 - - 1,370,000 (6) 860,693 - - 0 0 (8) 0 0 (8) - -
3,275,000 471,250 5,830,000 (y) 4,248,549 - - 1,445,000 (6) 788,165 - - 0 0 (8) 0 0 (8) - -
3,445,000 307,500 5,395,000 (y) 3,936,994 - - 1,520,000 (6) 711,667 - - 0 0 (8) 0 0 (8) - -
2,705,000 135,250 5695000 (y) 3,643,290 - - 1,605,000 (6) 631,198 - - 0 0 (8) 0 0 (8) - -
6,015,000 (4) 3,327,559 - - 1,685,000 (7) 546,230 - - 0 0 (8) 0 0 (8) - -
- - 8,635,000 (4) 2,980,614 - - 1,785,000 (7) 449,039 - - 0 0 (8) 0 0 (8) - -
- - 9,145,000 (4) 2,482,547 - - 1,890,000 (7) 346,080 - - 0 0 (8) 0 0 (8) - -
- - 10,665,000 (4) 1,955,064 - - 1,995,000 (7) 237,065 - - 0 0 (8) 0 0 (8) - -
- - 11,285,000 (4) 1,339,906 - - 2,115,000 (7) 121,993 - - 0 0 (8) - - - -
- - 11,945,000 ( ) 688,988 - - - - - - 0 0 (8) - - -
Totals.. $ 25,580,000 $ 5673750 $ 89,470,000 $ 48,744,059 $ 3,795,000 $ 189,750 $ 16,715,000 $ 8411,250 $ 3,550,000 $ 360,750 $3,225,000 $ 327,500 $ 695,000 $ 31275 $ 19,535,000 $1,762,750
(a) Preliminary; subject to change. These bonds anticipated to be sold on February 21, 2018. (6) Mandatory sinking fund payments from a $7,245,000, 5.294%, term bond due May 15, 2024.
(1) These tables reflect the Authority’s debt service schedule for its lease revenue bonds for the Fiscal Year shown. (7) Mandatory sinking fund payments from a $9,470,000, 5.768%, term bond due May 15, 2029.
This information is based on payments (cash basis) falling due in that particular Fiscal Year. (8) Certain principal maturities and interest have been refunded by the 2015 Bonds.
(2) Issued as federally taxable “Build America Bonds” Does not reflect an originally 35% federal interest rate subsidy. (9) Remaining principal after portions of certain principal amounts maturing May 15, 2016 through May 15, 2019 have been
The Authority anticipates that because of the federal sequestration, the subsidy paid by the federal government on these legally defeased by separate irrevocable escrow accounts.
bonds will be reduced by approximately $136,800 for the federal fiscal year ending September 30, 2018. (10) Remaining mandatory sinking fund payments from a $28,765,000, 5.50%, term bond due May 15, 2019.
(3) Mandatory sinking fund payments from a $635,000, 4.00%, term bond due May 15, 2031. (x) Escrowed moneys for the payment of interest on the 2017 Lease Revenue Bonds (from moneys held in a 2017 Escrow Account).
(4)  Mandatory sinking fund payments from a $57,690,000, 5.768%, term bond due May 15, 2030. (y) Principal will be redeemed on the Crossover Date (May 15, 2019) from moneys to be received from the 2017 Escrow Account and interest will
(5) This bond issue has been included in this table because final principal and interest payment occurred in Fiscal Year 201 cease to accrue
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Debt Service Schedule of Outstanding Lease Revenue Bonds (State Building Ownership Authority) By

Fiscal Year (1)-continued

Total State Facilities

Fiscal Master Lease Program
Year Ending Total Total Total Debt
June 30 Principal Interest (1) Service

207 e e e et e $ 23,050,000 $ 14,761,720 $ 37,811,720
2008ttt e e et e 21,845,000 13,309,165 35,154,165
2000 et et et e e ah e n et e e een e 14,825,000 13,148,642 27,973,642
2020 1 et et e et e et e 23,300,000 13,634,234 36,934,234
202 et et et e et et n et e e een e 24,125,000 12,520,478 36,645,478
2022 e e et e 24,875,000 11,326,271 36,201,271
b0 TP TPRPTRRTN 24,555,000 10,072,930 34,627,930
2024 e e et e 24,555,000 8,859,488 33,414,488
202D ettt e e e et e et et e a e e e e an s 18,800,000 7,621,339 26,421,339
2028, . et et e e e e e e e et e 20,245,000 6,679,903 26,924,903
2027 e et et e et e n et e e aa e 20,610,000 5,738,952 26,348,952
2028 e e e e e e et e 21,350,000 4,754,653 26,104,653
20020 . et et e e et e e et et et e e e en e 21,180,000 3,715,687 24,895,687
2080 1 ettt e e e e et et et e et e e 19,945,000 2,706,225 22,651,225
b0 TP TPRP TR 6,380,000 1,774,000 8,154,000
203 et e e e e e e et e 6,465,000 1,579,225 8,044,225
b0 F PPN 6,675,000 1,382,738 8,057,738
203 e e e et e 6,865,000 1,179,863 8,044,863
b0 YT P TR 7,075,000 969,825 8,044,825
2088 . . et ettt e et e et e et e et e e 7,310,000 753,356 8,063,356
0 PRSPPI 7,525,000 529,706 8,054,706
2088 ettt et e e e e et e et e 7,440,000 290,050 7,730,050
20830 ettt et e et e et et et ee e an et et nae e een e 1,290,000 45,150 1,335,150
TORAIS . . ettt et e e e e e e et e $ 360,285,000 $ 137,353,600 $ 497,638,600

(1) Does not reflect an originally 35% federal interest subsidy payments on several “Build America Bonds” lease revenue bond issues.
Includes moneys received from the 2017 Escrow Account for payment on the 2017 Bonds (through May 15, 2019).

(Source: Municipal Advisor.)
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THE FACILITIES
The Facilities As Security For The 2018 Bonds

The 2018 Bonds are equally and ratably secured by the lien of the Indenture and the Lease, subject to
the terms, conditions, limitations and exceptions set forth therein. Upon the occurrence of an Event of
Default under the Indenture or the occurrence of an Event of Nonappropriation under the Lease, the State
shall be required to surrender and vacate the Facilities, the Trustee shall have all rights and remedies to
take possession of the Facilities as trustee for the benefit of the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds, and the
Trustee may exercise various remedies against or with respect to the Facilities under the Indenture and the
Lease for the proportionate benefit of the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds, subject to the limitation on
remedies and acceleration during acquisition and construction of any of the Facilities. See in this section
“Cross—Collateralization” below. See also “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE
BONDS—The Lease and the Indenture” above. Under the Lease, an Event of Nonappropriation will oc-
cur if the Legislature fails or refuses to specifically appropriate moneys sufficient to pay the Rentals with
respect to all or any portion of the Facilities coming due in any fiscal year under the Lease.

Certain of the Facilities are part of larger projects, additional funding for which has come from
sources other than Bonds issued under the Indenture (“Non-Bond Financed Projects”). Facilities do not
include any Non-Bond Financed Project portions except to the extent, if any, covered by the appropriate
Site Leases where necessary to provide requisite structural support for the respective Facilities.

The Facilities Financed With The Bonds

Set forth below is a brief description of certain major Facilities financed or refinanced through the
proceeds of the 2018 Bonds and the Prior Parity Bonds. The Facilities consist of approximately
65 separate facilities, located in various counties within the State, that are used by various departments of
State government and State Bodies including the Department of Alcoholic Beverage Control, the Univer-
sity of Utah’s Health Sciences Center, various District and Juvenile Courts, the Department of Correc-
tions, the Department of Community and Culture, the Department of Human Services, the Department of
Natural Resources and its Division of Parks and Recreation, the State Office of Education, the Depart-
ment of Environmental Quality, the Department of Transportation and others. The most significant of
these facilities include or will include:

(1) The expansion of the Huntsman Cancer Hospital (which is part of the University of Utah’s Health Scienc-
es Center) in 2009. The Authority issued approximately $90 million of bonds for construction of a new
$102 million, 156,000 square foot expansion to the existing Huntsman Cancer Hospital in Salt Lake City,
Utah. Approximately $12 million was contributed to the project by private contributions.

(2) The Huntsman Cancer Hospital was expanded in 2001, with a $105 million, 272,000 square—foot building.
This expansion was financed with approximately $100.2 million ($30.3 million of variable rate Bonds and
approximately $69.9 million fixed rate Bonds) issued by the Authority and various public and private con-
tributions.

(3) The Provo District Court complex expansion is an eight-story structure with approximately 200,000
square feet of new space located in the City of Provo, Utah. The Authority issued approximately
$87 million of Bonds to finance this facility in 2016. This project is expected to be completed by
May 2019 (which facility is scheduled to be release in May 2018).

(4) The State Courts complex, a five—story structure with approximately 417,000 square feet of space located
in Salt Lake City, Utah. The Authority issued approximately $60.7 million of Bonds to finance this facili-

ty.

(5) DABC warehouse expansion, located in Salt Lake County, Utah. The Authority issued approximately
$23.7 million of Bonds to finance this facility.
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(6) The West Jordan Courts complex project in Salt Lake County, Utah. The Authority issued approximately
$13.9 million of Bonds to finance this facility.

(7) A building of approximately 137,000 square feet in Salt Lake County, Utah used by the Department of
Heritage and Arts (“DHA”) as a State Library building. The Authority issued approximately $13.1 million
of Bonds to finance this facility.

(8) The Davis County Courts complex project in Davis County, Utah. The Authority issued approximately
$10.5 million of Bonds to finance this facility.

The following table provides further summary information regarding the Facilities:

Scheduled Date of
Release from Lien

Facility Construction Status _ (May 16) ()
Huntsman Cancer Hospital (2009 expansion) . Completed—-2012 2030
Huntsman Cancer Hospital .............cccceoeieeee. Completed—2004 2019
Provo District Courts CompleX.........c.ccevenenne. Estimated completion—-May 2019 2038
State Courts COmMPIEX .......cceevvvvivieieiierieniene Completed—-1998 2018
DABC Warehouse ........cccoovvveivneeieseeienieeees Completed—2011 2029
West Jordan Courts CompleX ........cccceveveriennne Completed—-2005 2025
DHA LiDrary ......ccccoovoviiieneieiesccesesieneas Completed-1999 2019
Davis County COUrtS........cccoovervreerieieeienieeees Completed—1999 2019
All other facilities .........ccocoveviiieiirieceeee Completed or under construction 2018-2039

(1) See “Release Of Portions Of Facilities—Scheduled Release of Facilities” below.
Cross—Collateralization

Subject to the following section “Release Of Portions Of Facilities,” pursuant to the Indenture and the
Lease, all Bonds issued under the Indenture are cross—collateralized in that the Authority has granted to
the Trustee, for the benefit of the Owners of all Bonds, a mortgage and security interest in all the Authori-
ty’s right, title and interest in all Facilities. The occurrence of an Event of Default under the Indenture or
an Event of Nonappropriation under the Lease will entitle the Trustee to take possession of the Facilities
and to exercise its rights and remedies to the extent provided in the Indenture against the Facilities in such
manner and order as the Trustee determines to be in the best interests of the Owners of the Bonds then
outstanding. However, the security interest in some of the Facilities may be released prior to the payment
of all 2018 Bonds as described below under “Release of Portions of Facilities.”

Release Of Portions Of Facilities

Under the terms and conditions provided in the Indenture and the Lease, portions of the Facilities may
be released from the liens of the Indenture and the Mortgages and the terms of the Lease as follows:

Release of Portions of Facilities” Sites. So long as no Event of Default or Event of Nonappropriation
has occurred under the Lease and is then continuing, the State and the Authority may make, from time to
time, without the consent of the Trustee or the Owners of the Bonds, such modifications, alterations,
amendments or additions to, or deletions from, the sites on which any of the Facilities are located as the
State and the Authority mutually agree to be necessary and desirable to facilitate the use and development
by the State, its successors, permitted sublessees and assigns, of such sites; provided, however, that the
portions of each such respective site remaining subject to the Lease and the Indenture after any such mod-
ification, alteration, amendment to, or deletion from, such site shall (i) be capable of being operated as a
separate and independent functional unit without additional cost to the occupant, (ii) be a single legal par-
cel of land or a combination of contiguous legal parcels, (iii) include the Facilities located on each such
respective site financed with the proceeds of sale of the Bonds or the replacement of such Facilities,
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(iv) have adequate access to and from public streets and easements for the maintenance of all utilities and
(v) not be in violation of any applicable law, rule, regulation, ordinance, covenant or restriction relating
thereto. The State and the Authority covenant in the Lease not to agree to any modification, alteration,
amendment or addition to or deletion from the sites on which any of the Facilities are located that would
reduce the fair rental value of the Facilities remaining subject to the Lease (such value to be determined in
each instance with reference to the value to the State based upon its use of the Facilities under the Lease
and not with reference to such value as may be applicable for a different use or by a different user of the
Facilities) below the Rentals payable under the Lease or adversely affect the exclusion from gross income
for federal income tax purposes of interest on the Bonds or otherwise adversely affect the purposes for
which the Authority acquired the Facilities and for which the State is leasing the Facilities pursuant to the
Lease.

Release of Portions of Facilities Upon Exercise of Purchase Option. The Authority’s interest in any
portion of the Facilities representing separate Facilities shall be transferred to the State and title thereto
shall thereupon vest in the State upon the exercise by the State of its option to purchase such separate Fa-
cilities upon the terms and conditions provided in the Lease.

Release of Portions of Facilities Upon Discharge of Related Series of Bonds. At such time as all
Bonds of one or more Series issued to finance or refinance any separately identifiable portion of the Facil-
ities are deemed to be paid under the Indenture, such Bonds shall no longer be secured by or entitled to
the benefits of the Indenture or the Mortgages, except for the purposes of registration and exchange of
Bonds and from moneys or Government Obligations deposited with or for the benefit of the Trustee there-
fore, and the Trustee shall release the liens and security interests granted by the Indenture and the Mort-
gages with respect to such portions of the Facilities.

Release of Portions of Facilities. So long as no Event of Nonappropriation or Event of Default has
occurred and is then continuing under the Lease or the Indenture, the State shall be entitled to designate to
the Authority and the Trustee components of certain Facilities to be released from the security interests
and lien granted to the Trustee by the Indenture and the related Mortgage, but only to the extent that the
value of the Facilities remaining subject to such security interests and lien immediately after such pro-
posed release is not less than the then unpaid principal balance of the portion of the Base Rentals relating
to the remaining components of such Facilities.

Scheduled Release of Facilities. So long as no Event of Default has occurred and is then continuing
under the Indenture or the Mortgage relating to a Facility to be released and assuming the State has not
previously exercised its option to purchase such Facilities, the security interest and liens granted to the
Trustee by the Indenture and such Mortgage are scheduled to be released on certain dates specified in the
Lease and the Indenture.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Lease, no portion of the Facilities shall be released,
unless, in each instance, the State delivers to the Trustee, the Authority and each of the Appropriate Rat-
ing Agencies written notice of the proposed release at least 10 days in advance of such release together
with a certificate executed by an authorized Lessee representative to the effect that the release of the por-
tion of the Facilities identified in the applicable notice required by the Lease will not reduce the fair rental
value of the Facilities remaining subject to the Lease (such value to be determined in each instance with
reference to the value to the State based upon its use of the Facilities under the Lease and not with refer-
ence to such value as may be applicable for a different use or by a different user of the Facilities) below
the Rentals payable under the Lease from and after such release. See “The Facilities Financed With The
Bonds” above.

Maintenance Of The Facilities
The State has covenanted in the Lease, at its own expense, to maintain, manage and operate the Facil-

ities in good order, condition and repair, ordinary wear and tear excepted. The State will provide or cause
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to be provided all power, gas, telephone, light, heating and water and all other public utility services. See
“APPENDIX D—BASIC DOCUMENTATION-THE LEASE-Maintenance And Operation.”

STATE OF UTAH GOVERNMENTAL ORGANIZATION

The following description of State government emphasizes those functions of government related to
finance, administration and planning of State government, and is not intended as a detailed description of
all functions of the State’s government.

Constitutional Departments

The Constitution of the State (the “State Constitution”) divides the powers of government among: the
legislative department, the executive department and the judicial department.

Legislative Department. The legislative department is composed of the Senate and the House, which
constitute the Legislature. The Legislature exercises the legislative power of the State and meets in regu-
lar session annually beginning in January. Among other things, the Legislature imposes taxes to provide
revenues and makes appropriations to carry out all the activities of State government.

Executive Department. The elected constitutional officers of the executive department are the Gover-
nor, Lieutenant Governor, State Auditor, State Treasurer (the “State Treasurer”), and Attorney General.
The Governor is the chief executive officer of the State.

Judicial Department. The State Constitution vests the judicial power of the State “in a supreme court,
in a trial court of general jurisdiction known as the district court, and in such other courts as the Legisla-
ture by statute may establish.” Under such authority, the Legislature has established the Court of Appeals,
juvenile courts and justice courts.

Certain Other Administrative Bodies

Utah State Tax Commission. The Utah State Tax Commission (the “State Tax Commission™) is re-
sponsible for, among other things; administering and enforcing the tax laws of the State, formulating State
tax policy, assessing certain properties, and collecting various State taxes.

Department of Administrative Services. The Department of Administrative Services coordinates the
agencies that provide administrative support to State government and is presently composed of various
divisions including, but not limited to, the Division of Finance and DFCM.

Division of Finance. Among other things, the Division of Finance maintains financial accounts for
State agencies, maintains a central accounting system, approves accounting systems of State agencies,
approves proposed expenditures for the purchase of supplies and services requested by the majority of
State agencies, and issues financial reports of the State.

Governor’s Office of Management and Budget. The Governor’s Office of Management and Budget
prepares the Governor’s budget recommendations, monitors state agency expenditures, forecasts and
monitors revenues and coordinates state planning activities.

State Bonding Commission. The Lieutenant Governor (as designee of the Governor), the State Treas-
urer, and a third person appointed by the Governor constitute the Commission. The Commission, follow-
ing authorization by the Legislature, is responsible for the issuance of the State’s general obligation and
revenue bonds.

28



DEBT STRUCTURE OF THE STATE OF UTAH
General Obligation Bonds Of The State

Outstanding General Obligation Bonds. General obligation bonds of the State are issued pursuant to
resolutions of the State Bonding Commission and pursuant to the legislative authorizing acts to provide
funds to pay a portion of the costs of the State’s capital facilities and highway construction or reconstruc-
tion projects and to pay costs and expenses incident to the issuance of bonds. As of March 7, 2018, the
State has $2,396,875,000 of outstanding general obligation bonds that mature through Fiscal Year 2032.

Authorized General Obligation Bonds And Future General Obligation Bonds Issuance.

The State has $1,128,232,536 aggregate principal amount of additional authorized and unissued gen-
eral obligation bonds, the proceeds of which bonds, when issued, will be used by DFCM and the Utah
Department of Transportation (“UDOT”) for various projects. The authorizations consist of:
(i) $714,565,427 for highway projects all of which is exempt from the Statutory Appropriations General
Obligation Debt Limit calculations but are subject to the Statutory 2017 General Obligation Highway
Limitation Debt Limit (from the 2017 Legislative Session, as defined herein); (ii) $350,015,161 for prison
projects (from the 2015 and 2017 Legislative Sessions); and (iii) $63,651,948 (all of which is exempt
from Statutory Appropriations General Obligation Debt Limit calculations) for highway projects
($62,486,720 from the 2009 Legislative Session and $1,165,228 from the 2007 Legislative Session).

As of the date of this OFFICIAL STATEMENT, the State may issue additional general obligation
bonds depending on the needs of the State as follows: (i) in January/February 2019 of $500 million
(%225 million for prison projects and $275 million for highway projects); (ii) in January/February 2020 of
$375 million ($125 million for prison projects and $250 million for highway projects) and (iv) in Janu-
ary/February 2021 of $263 million for highway projects.

The Legislature may also authorize the issuance of additional general obligation building and high-
way bonds in future Fiscal Years, but such amounts and issuance dates are not known as of the date of
this OFFICIAL STATEMENT.

Additional Information. For financial information regarding constitutional and statutory legal borrow-
ing authority, outstanding general obligation indebtedness, debt service schedule of outstanding general
obligation bonds by Fiscal Year, historical constitutional and statutory debt limit of the State, and debt
ratios of the State see “APPENDIX B—ADDITIONAL DEBT AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION
REGARDING THE STATE OF UTAH.”

Revenue Bonds And Notes

Other State Related Entities’ Revenue Debt. Various State related entities have outstanding bonds and
notes payable solely from certain specified revenues. None of these bonds or note issues are general obli-
gations of the State and, therefore, such bonds or notes are not applied against the general obligation bor-
rowing capacity of the State.

State of Utah Recapitalization Revenue Bonds. The State Bonding Commission is authorized, with
prior approval of the Legislature, to issue “recapitalization” revenue bonds of the State to provide funds
for certain of the State’s revolving loan funds. Such State revenue bonds are secured principally by the
payments on certain bonds, notes and other obligations owned by the State through such funds and by
debt service reserve funds, and constitute “State Moral Obligation Bonds.”

Excluding the Authority, most of the State’s revenue bonds and notes are issued by the State Board of
Regents (for student loans and various capital projects).
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See “State Moral Obligation Bonds” below.
Lease Obligations

The State leases office buildings and office and computer equipment. Although the lease terms vary,
most leases are subject to annual appropriations from the Legislature to continue the lease obligations. If a
legislative appropriation is reasonably assured, long—term leases are considered noncancellable for finan-
cial reporting purposes.

Operating Leases. Operating leases contain various renewal obligations as well as some purchase op-
tions. However, due to the nature of the leases, the related assets are not classified as capital leases. Any
escalation clauses, sublease rentals and contingent rents are considered immaterial to the future minimum
lease payments and current rental expenditures. Operating lease payments are recorded as expenditures or
expenses of the related funds when paid or incurred.

Operating lease expenditures for Fiscal Year 2017 were $29.694 million for primary government and
$32.13 million for discrete component units. The total future minimum lease payments for the State’s op-
erating leases for primary government totaled $77.69 million (with annual payments scheduled through
Fiscal Year 2057). The total future minimum lease payments for the State’s operating leases for discrete
component units totaled approximately $196.389 million (with annual payments scheduled through Fiscal
Year 2052).

Capital Leases. Leases that in substance are purchases are reported as capital lease obligations in the
government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund statements in the State’s CAFR.

Primary government’s total capital lease payments including principal and interest for Fiscal
Year 2017 were approximately $2.707 million. The present value of the minimum lease payments of the
State’s capital leases for primary government totals approximately $21.616 million (with annual pay-
ments scheduled through Fiscal Year 2037). The present value of the future minimum lease payments of
capital leases for the State’s discrete component units (which mostly are capital leases with certain col-
leges and universities) as of Fiscal Year 2017 totaled approximately $190.057 million (with annual pay-
ments scheduled through Fiscal Year 2032).

For detailed information on operating and capital leases see “APPENDIX A—COMPREHENSIVE
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT OF THE STATE OF UTAH FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017—Notes to the
Financial Statements, Note 9. Lease Commitments” (CAFR page 102).

State Guaranty Of General Obligation School Bonds

Under the Utah School Bond Guaranty Act, Title 53A, Chapter 28 of the Utah Code (the “Guaranty
Act”) which took effect on January 1, 1997, the full faith and credit, and unlimited taxing power of the
State is pledged to guaranty full and timely payment of the principal of, and interest on general obligation
bonds (“Guaranteed Bonds”) issued by eligible boards of education of State school districts (“Eligible
School Boards”). The Guaranty Act is intended to reduce borrowing costs for Eligible School Boards by
providing credit enhancement for Guaranteed Bonds.

In the event an Eligible School Board was unable to make the scheduled debt service payments on its
Guaranteed Bonds; the State would be required to make such payments in a timely manner. For this pur-
pose, the State may use any of its available moneys, seek a short-term loan from the State School Fund or
issue its short-term general obligation notes. The Eligible School Board remains liable to the State for
any such payments on Guaranteed Bonds. The State may seek reimbursement for such payments (plus
interest and penalties) by intercepting State financial aid intended for the Eligible School Board. The
Guaranty Act also contains provisions to compel the Eligible School Board to levy a tax sufficient to re-
imburse the State for such payments.
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The State Superintendent of Schools (the “State Superintendent”) is responsible for monitoring the fi-
nancial condition of each local school board in the State and reporting, at least annually, his or her con-
clusions to the Governor, the Legislature and the State Treasurer. The State Superintendent must report
immediately to the Governor and the State Treasurer any circumstances suggesting that a local school
board will be unable to pay when due its debt service obligations (a “Report”) and recommend a course of
remedial action. As of the date of this OFFICIAL STATEMENT (and since the inception in Janu-
ary 1997 of the Guaranteed Bonds program), the State has not been requested to make payments on
any Guaranteed Bonds and has not received a Report from the State Superintendent.

As of March 7, 2018, the State has $3.291 billion principal amount outstanding of Guaranteed Bonds.
Currently, the Guaranteed Bond program’s annual principal and interest payments are scheduled through
Fiscal Year 2037 (for Fiscal Year 2018 the program’s current annual principal and interest payments total
approximately $369.9 million (including any federal interest subsidy payments on Build America Bonds))
(Source: Municipal Advisor). The State cannot predict the number of bonds that may be guaranteed in
this year or in future years; no limitation is currently imposed by the Guaranty Act.

For additional information see “APPENDIX A—COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL RE-
PORT OF THE STATE OF UTAH FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017—Notes to the Financial Statements,
Note 15. Litigation, Contingencies, and Commitments—B. Contingencies” (CAFR page 116).

State Moral Obligation Bonds

Bonds issued by the State Board of Regents, recapitalization revenue bonds issued by the State Bond-
ing Commission and certain qualifying bonds of the Utah Charter School Finance Authority may be se-
cured by a pledge pursuant to which a designated official will certify to the Governor on or before De-
cember 1 of each year the amount, if any, necessary to restore a capital reserve or debt service reserve
fund to its required amount. In the case of revenue bonds issued to finance a capital project for an institu-
tion of higher education, if so pledged, the chairman of the State Board of Regents will certify to the
Governor on or before December 1 of each year any projected shortfall in the revenues necessary to make
debt service payments in the forthcoming calendar year. Upon receipt of such a certification, the Gover-
nor may, but is not required to, then request from the Legislature an appropriation of the amount so certi-
fied. In the case of revenue bonds issued to finance a capital project for a qualifying charter school, if so
pledged, an officer of the Utah Charter School Finance Authority will certify to the Governor on or before
December 1 of each year the amount, if any, required to restore the amount on deposit in the debt service
reserve fund of such qualifying charter school to the debt service reserve fund requirement. Upon receipt
of such a certification, the Governor shall then request from the Legislature an appropriation of the
amount so certified. In all cases, the Legislature is under no legal obligation to make any appropriation
requested by the Governor. Bonds issued with such pledge are referred to herein as ““State Moral Obliga-
tion Bonds.”

The following State Moral Obligation Bonds are outstanding:

State Board of Regents. The State Board of Regents has approximately $1.643 billion principal
amount outstanding (as of November 30, 2017) of student loan revenue bonds of which approximate-
ly $691 million are State Moral Obligation Bonds and $3,395,000 principal amount outstanding (as of
March 7, 2018) of other revenue bonds (for office space) which are State Moral Obligation Bonds.

In addition, the State Board of Regents (through its colleges and universities) has outstanding ap-
proximately $1.154 billion of revenue bonds issued to finance capital projects at the State’s institu-
tions of higher education of which approximately $1.133 billion are State Moral Obligation Bonds
(Source: Municipal Advisor). For additional information see “APPENDIX A—COMPREHENSIVE
ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT OF THE STATE OF UTAH FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017—Notes
to the Financial Statements, Note 10. Long-Term Liabilities—C. Revenue Bonds” (CAFR page 106)
and “—Note 21. Subsequent Events” (CAFR page 129).
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State of Utah Recapitalization Revenue Bonds. As of March7, 2018, the State has
$31.225 million principal amount outstanding of recapitalization water revenue bonds that mature
through Fiscal Year 2023 that are State Moral Obligation Bonds. For additional information see “AP-
PENDIX A—COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT OF THE STATE OF UTAH
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017—Notes to the Financial Statements, Note 10. Long-Term Liabilities—C.
Revenue Bonds—Business—type Activities” (CAFR page 106).

State of Utah Recapitalization Revenue Bonds. As of March7, 2018, the State has
$31.225 million principal amount outstanding of recapitalization water revenue bonds that mature
through Fiscal Year 2023 that are State Moral Obligation Bonds. For additional information see “AP-
PENDIX A—COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT OF THE STATE OF UTAH
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017—Notes to the Financial Statements, Note 10. Long-Term Liabilities—C.
Revenue Bonds—Business—type Activities” (CAFR page 106).

Utah Charter School Finance Authority. Statutory authority for the Utah Charter School Finance
Authority to issue bonds which qualify as State Moral Obligation Bonds was adopted in 2012. As of
March 7, 2018, the Utah Charter School Finance Authority will have $292.995 million principal
amount outstanding of State Moral Obligation Bonds. Currently, the Utah Charter School Finance
Authority’s annual principal and interest bond payments are scheduled through Fiscal Year 2049 (for
Fiscal Year 2018 the program’s current annual principal and interest payments total approximate-
ly $18.2 million). The State cannot predict the number of bonds that may be enhanced in this Fiscal
Year or in future Fiscal Years.

The Utah Charter School Finance Authority is limited under State law as to the total number of
bonds it can issue as State Moral Obligation Bonds. As of January 1, 2018, the Utah Charter School
Finance Authority may not issue State Moral Obligation Bonds if total outstanding principal exceeds
approximately $484.92 million. Based on the principal amount of outstanding bonds, as of the date of
this OFFICIAL STATEMENT, the Utah Charter School Finance Authority has available approxi-
mately $191.9 million of bonds that could be issued as State Moral Obligation Bonds. (Source: Mu-
nicipal Advisor). For additional information see “APPENDIX A—COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL
FINANCIAL REPORT OF THE STATE OF UTAH FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017—Notes to the Fi-
nancial Statements, Note 10. Long-Term Liabilities—D. Conduit Debt Obligations” (CAFR page 110)
and “—Note 16. Litigation, Contingencies, and Commitments—B. Contingencies—The Charter School
Credit Enhancement Program” (CAFR page 117).

As of the date of this OFFICIAL STATEMENT, the Governor has not received any default certifi-

cation with respect to the State Moral Obligation Bonds from any of these agencies.

Additional information. Also see “APPENDIX B—ADDITIONAL DEBT AND FINANICAL IN-

FORMATION REGARDING THE STATE OF UTAH-Revenue Bonds And Notes.”

No Defaulted State Bonds

The State has never failed to pay when due the principal of and interest on its bonded indebtedness

and other payment obligations related thereto.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION REGARDING THE STATE OF UTAH

Budgetary Procedures

Budgetary Procedures Act. The Budgetary Procedures Act, Title 63J, Chapter 1, Utah Code (the

“Budget Act”) establishes the process whereby the Governor’s budget is prepared and prescribes the in-
formation to be included.
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The Governor is required to submit a budget to the Legislature each year, including a plan of pro-
posed changes to appropriations and estimated revenue for the next fiscal year.

The total appropriations requested for expenditures authorized by the budget must not exceed the es-
timated revenue from taxes, fees and all other sources for the next fiscal year.

The Budget Act applies to all moneys appropriated by the Legislature. No appropriation or any sur-
plus of any appropriation may be diverted from the department, agency, institution or division for which it
was appropriated. Appropriated moneys generally may not be transferred from one item of appropriation
to any other item of appropriation without legislative approval.

Unexpended Balances. Except for certain funds detailed in the Budget Act or funds that may be ex-
empted by the annual appropriations act, the Director of the Division of Finance must, at the end of each
fiscal year, close out all balances to the proper fund or account.

Budgetary Controls. The Director of the Division of Finance is required to exercise accounting con-
trol over all State departments, institutions and agencies other than the Legislature and legislative com-
mittees. The Director of the Division of Finance must require the head of each department to submit, not
later than May 15, a budget (work program) for the next fiscal year that does not exceed legislative ap-
propriations or other estimated funding.

State Funds And Accounting

The Division of Finance maintains its accounting records in accordance with State law and in accord-
ance with generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”).

Funds are accounted for and reported in the following categories: governmental funds; proprietary
funds; and fiduciary funds. Governmental funds include the General Fund, special revenue funds, capital
projects funds, debt service funds, and permanent funds. Proprietary funds include enterprise and internal
service funds. Fiduciary funds include pension trust funds, investment trust funds, private purpose trust
funds, and agency funds.

Fund reporting in the financial statements for governmental funds focuses on major funds as defined
by GAAP and promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board. The State reports the fol-
lowing major governmental funds: the General Fund, the Education Fund, the Transportation Fund and
the Transportation Investment Fund.

The State’s nonmajor governmental funds include other special revenue funds, capital projects funds,
and debt service funds. The nonmajor special revenue funds account for specific revenue sources that are
legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes. Examples include tobacco settlement moneys, en-
vironmental activities, crime victim reparations and rural development programs.

For further information on State funds and accounting, including a description of each of the major
governmental funds, see “APPENDIX A—COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT OF
THE STATE OF UTAH FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017—Notes to the Financial Statements—Note 1. Sum-
mary of Significant Accounting Policies” (CAFR page 59).

State Tax System
The State’s tax revenues are derived primarily from sales and use taxes, individual income taxes, mo-
tor fuel taxes, corporate franchise (business income) taxes, and numerous smaller sources, including ex-

cise taxes on insurance premiums, beer, cigarettes and tobacco, severance taxes, and numerous court and
business regulation fees. These fees and taxes are regulated by the Legislature.
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In addition to the State’s tax system, counties, cities and towns have authority to levy and collect sales
and use taxes and property taxes. School districts, some special service areas, and some local districts
have the authority to levy and collect property taxes.

Individual Income Taxes. The State is one of 43 states that impose an individual income tax. The
State’s current single rate income tax system was fully implemented in the Calendar Year 2008. Under
the system, all taxpayers’ income is subject to a single rate of 5% of federal adjusted gross income. A tax
credit based on federal deductions and federal personal exemptions is available, but phases out depending
upon the taxpayer’s income and filing status.

For additional information regarding certain Fiscal Years income tax revenues see “APPENDIX A—
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT OF THE STATE OF UTAH FOR FISCAL
YEAR 2017-Statistical Section—Schedule B-1, Revenue Base” (CAFR page 210); “~Schedule B-3, Rev-
enue Payers—Personal Income Tax” (CAFR page 213) and “~Schedule B4, Personal Income Tax Rates”
(CAFR page 214).

Corporate Income Tax. A multi-state company’s tax liability is determined by apportionment of fed-
eral taxable income by its payroll, property and sales values in the State compared to elsewhere. There are
various types of apportionment that corporations are either legally bound to, or may choose, depending on
industry type. Currently, the State imposes a tax on corporate net taxable income apportioned to the State
at a rate of 5%, subject to exceptions and credits with a minimum tax of $100.

Sales and Use Tax. In general, State sales taxes are imposed based on retail sales or use of tangible
personal property, admissions, meals, utility services, general services on tangible personal property, ho-
tel and motel accommaodations, and certain other items. Use tax also applies to goods shipped to the State
for use, storage, or other consumption, goods purchased outside of the State for use, storage, or other con-
sumption in the State, and services subject to tax but performed outside the State for use, storage, or other
consumption in the State. The State sales and use tax (“sales tax™) rate on unprepared food items is
1.75%, residential fuels rate is 2% and the general sales tax rate is 4.70%.

The State requires its largest sales taxpayers (with annual liabilities of more than $50,000) to pay
monthly. All others remit the sales tax collected on a quarterly or annual basis. Monthly sales taxpayers
receive a 1.3% discount on State and local sales taxes collected. This requirement has served to reduce the
volatility of the State’s cash flows, with over 90% of sales and use taxes now remitted monthly.

For additional information regarding sales tax information for Calendar Years 2007 through 2016 see
“APPENDIX A—COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT OF THE STATE OF UTAH
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017-Statistical Section—Schedule B-2, Revenue Payers by Industry—Taxable
Sales, Services and Use Tax Purchases” (CAFR page 212) and “APPENDIX C—DEMOGRAPHIC AND
ECONOMIC INFORMATION REGARDING THE STATE OF UTAH-Taxable Sales” (page C-9).

Additional Taxes and Fees. The State collects several additional significant taxes and fees, including,
but not limited to: an unemployment compensation tax (which is used to finance benefits paid to unem-
ployed workers); a workers’ compensation insurance premium tax (which is used to pay workers’ com-
pensation benefits); and various highway users’ taxes (which are used for highway and road related pur-
poses). Other taxes and fees collected by the State include excise taxes on insurance premiums, severance
taxes, a cigarette and tobacco tax, an environmental surcharge, a waste tire fee, and fish and game license
fees. Other State revenue sources include profits from state liquor stores, license fees and other fees col-
lected by colleges, universities and State departments.

For additional information regarding tax collection results and forecasts for Fiscal Years 2017 and
2018 tax collections, see “State Revenues And Collections” below.
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Property Tax Matters

The following information with respect to certain property tax matters is included in this OFFICIAL
STATEMENT to provide background information. As described herein, the 2018 Bonds are not secured
by any pledge of property tax revenues and do not constitute a debt or indebtedness of the State or the
Authority.

Ad Valorem Levy. Though authorized to do so under Part 9 of the Property Tax Act (defined below),
the State does not presently levy ad valorem property taxes and has not done so since 1974. However, if
the State does not have sufficient moneys available to pay principal of and interest on its general obliga-
tion bonds from sources other than ad valorem taxes, the ad valorem property taxes would no longer be
abated and the State Tax Commission would be required to collect ad valorem property taxes on all taxa-
ble property in the State to cover the shortfall.

To the extent not abated, the ad valorem property tax must be assessed within the time frame required
by law. The State Tax Commission must assess all centrally—assessed property (“centrally—assessed prop-
erty”) by May 1 of each year. County assessors must assess all other taxable property (“locally—assessed
property”) before May 22 of each year. The State Tax Commission apportions the value of centrally—
assessed property to various taxing entities within each county and reports such values to county auditors
before June 8.

On or before July 22 of each year, the county auditors must mail to all owners of real estate shown on
their assessment rolls notice of, among other things, the value of the property, itemized tax information
for all taxing entities and the date their respective county boards of equalization will meet to hear com-
plaints. Taxpayers owning property assessed by a county assessor may file an application within statutori-
ly defined time limits based on the nature of the contest with the appropriate county board of equalization
for contesting the assessed valuation of their property. The county board of equalization must render a
decision on each appeal in the time frame prescribed by the Property Tax Act. Under certain circumstanc-
es, the county board of equalization must hold a hearing regarding the application, at which the taxpayer
has the burden of proving that the property sustained a decrease in fair market value. Decisions of the
county board of equalization may be appealed to the State Tax Commission, which must decide all ap-
peals relating to real property by March 1 of the following year. Owners of centrally—assessed property or
any county with a showing of reasonable cause, may, on or before the later of June 1 or a day within 30
days of the date the notice of assessment is mailed by the State Tax Commission, apply to the State Tax
Commission for a hearing to appeal the assessment of centrally—assessed property. The State Tax Com-
mission must render a written decision within 120 days after the hearing is completed and all post—
hearing briefs are submitted. The county auditor makes a record of all changes, corrections and orders,
and delivers before November 1 the corrected assessment rolls to the county treasurers. By November 1,
each county treasurer furnishes each taxpayer a notice containing the kind and value of the property as-
sessed to the taxpayer, the street address of the property, where applicable, the amount of the tax levied
on the property, and the date and year the property is subject to a detailed review.

Taxes are due November 30 (or if November 30 is a Saturday, Sunday or holiday, the next business
day). Each county treasurer is responsible for collecting all taxes levied on real property within that coun-
ty. There are no prior claims to such taxes. As taxes are collected, each county treasurer must pay to the
State, if applicable, and each taxing entity within the county its proportionate share of the taxes, on or be-
fore the tenth day of each month. Delinquent taxes are subject to a penalty of 2.5% of the amount of the
taxes or $10 whichever is greater. Unless the delinquent taxes and penalty are paid before January 31 of
the following year, the amount of delinquent taxes and penalty bears interest at the federal funds rate tar-
get established by the Federal Open Market Committee plus 6%, from the January 1 following the delin-
guency date until paid (provided that said interest may not be less than 7% or more than 10%). If delin-
guent taxes have not been paid by March 15 following the lapse of four years from the delinquency date,
the affected county advertises and sells the property at a final tax sale held in May or June of the fifth year
after assessment.
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Property Tax Act. The State Constitution and Title 59, Chapter 2, Utah Code (the “Property Tax Act”)
provide that all taxable property is assessed and taxed at a uniform and equal rate based on 100% of its
“fair market value” as of January 1 of each year, unless otherwise authorized by the Constitution and pro-
vided by law. Section 3(2)(a)(iv) of Article XIII of the State Constitution provides that the Legislature
may exempt from property tax up to 45% of the “fair market value” of residential property. The Legisla-
ture has enacted legislation that reduces the “fair market value” of primary residential property by 45%.
No more than one acre of land per residential unit may qualify for the residential exemption. The residen-
tial exemption is limited to one acre of land per residential unit or to one primary residence per house-
hold, except that an owner of multiple residential properties may exempt his or her primary residence and
each residential property that is the primary residence of a tenant.

The following table reflects the effect of the current 45% reduction from fair market value for assess-
ment of ad valorem property tax. The table on the following page also shows the Centrally—Assessed
Property compared with the Locally—Assessed Property.

Taxable Value Compared with Fair Market Value of All Taxable Property in the State

% Change % Change
Tax Year/ Taxable Over Fair Market Over
Fiscal Year Value (2) Prior Year Value (3) Prior Year
2017/2018 (1)..cveveneeee $259,376,000,000 8.3% $363,500,000,000 8.3%
2016/2017 ....covenvenne. 239,422,200,513 7.1 335,540,187,517 7.7
2015/2016 .....ccovevenee 223,557,499,607 6.2 311,651,315,372 6.6
2014/2015 ......ccovevee. 210,415,507,970 7.3 292,490,917,013 7.8
2013/2014 .......cvene. 196,058,968,791 3.0 271,337,328,737 3.6
2012/2013 ......cocven 190,273,603,344 0.0 261,933,703,652 (0.6)
2011/2012 ....cvevein 190,265,130,481 (1.9) 263,595,478,779 (2.2)

(1) Preliminary; subject to change. (Source: Municipal Advisor.)

(2) Includes all state—wide redevelopment agencies’ valuations. Does not include Uniform Fees (as defined be-
low) or semi—conductor manufacturing equipment.

(3) Estimated fair market values were calculated by dividing the taxable value of primary residential property by
55%, which eliminates the 45% exemption on primary residential property granted under the Property Tax Act.
See “Property Tax Matters™ above.

(Source: Property Tax Division, State Tax Commission.)

Uniform Fees. An annual statewide uniform fee is levied on certain tangible personal property in lieu
of the ad valorem tax. Subject to certain exemptions, the current uniform fee on motor vehicles that weigh
12,001 pounds or more, recreational vehicles and all other tangible personal property required to be regis-
tered with the State is equal up to 1.5% of the market value. Motor vehicles weighing 12,000 pounds or
less are subject to an “age based” fee that is due each time the vehicle is registered. Such fees range from
$5 to $150. Various other fees are levied against other types of tangible personal property. The revenues
collected from the various uniform fees are distributed by the county of each taxing entity in which the
property is located, in the same proportion in which revenue collected from ad valorem real property tax
is distributed.

(The remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank.)
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Set by State Tax Commission

(Centrally Assessed)

Natural resources................
Utilities......ooooveveniininnns
Total centrally assessed.....

Set by County Assessor

(Locally Assessed)

Real property:
Primary residential...............

Commercial................

Otherreal..........coovvvinnnne.
Total real property...........

Personal property:

Total personal property.........
Total locally assessed.......

Total taxable value..........

Historical Summaries Of Taxable Values Of Property

Calendar Year

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Fiscal Year 2017 Fiscal Year 2016 Fiscal Year 2015 Fiscal Year 2014 Fiscal Year 2013 Fiscal Year 2012
Taxable % of Taxable % of Taxable % of Taxable % of Taxable % of Taxable % of
Value Total Value Total Value Total Value Total Value Total Value Total
$ 9,365,343,330 3.9 % $ 10,943,564,686 49 % $ 11,342,807,060 54 % $ 9,530,894,709 49 % $ 11,214,463,533 59 % $ 10,349,540,590 5.4 %
15,277,880,918 6.4 15,075,139,522 6.7 13,667,974,990 6.5 13,477,218,994 6.9 12,936,543,091 6.8 12,143,461,674 6.4
24,643,224,248 10.3 26,018,704,208 11.6 25,010,782,050 11.9 23,008,113,703 11.7 24,151,006,624 12.7 22,493,002,264 11.8
117,477,539,671 49.1 107,670,219,268 48.2 100,314,388,830 47.7 92,006,884,378 46.9 87,584,567,043 46.0 89,446,387,259 47.0
52,695,031,380 22.0 48,143,727,484 21.5 45,291,255,407 215 42,975,313,373 21.9 41,574,146,644 21.8 41,718,828,161 21.9
29,720,281,011 12.4 28,043,655,987 12.5 26,429,412,387 12.6 25,318,610,223 12.9 25,045,391,537 13.2 25,072,242,041 13.2
199,892,852,062 83.5 183,857,602,739 82.2 172,035,056,624 81.8 160,300,807,974 81.8 154,204,105,224 81.0 156,237,457,461 82.1
14,886,124,203 6.2 13,681,192,660 6.1 13,369,669,296 6.4 12,750,047,114 6.5 11,918,491,496 6.3 11,534,670,756 6.1
214,778,976,265 89.7 197,538,795,399 88.4 185,404,725,920 88.1 173,050,855,088 88.3 166,122,596,720 87.3 167,772,128,217 88.2
$239,422,200,513 100.0 % $223,557,499,607 100.0 % $210,415,507,970 100.0 % $196,058,968,791  100.0 % $190,273,603,344  100.0 % $190,265,130,481  100.0 %

(Source: Property Tax Division, State Tax Commission (rounding errors may be present in percentage calculations).)

37



Budget Reserve Accounts

The State maintains various budget reserve accounts, including a General Fund Budget Reserve Ac-
count, an Education Fund Budget Reserve Account, a Medicaid Growth Reduction and Budget Stabiliza-
tion Account, and natural disaster reserve accounts.

State law requires that 25% of any year—end General Fund revenue surplus be deposited into the Gen-
eral Fund Budget Reserve Account, not to exceed 9% of the General Fund appropriations for the Fiscal
Year. Similarly, 25% of any year—end Education Fund revenue surplus is deposited into the Education
Fund Budget Reserve Account, not to exceed 11% of the Education Fund appropriations for the Fiscal
Year. Unless such reserve funds are drawn upon for their respective purposes, annual mandatory year—end
surplus transfers are limited to the lesser of 25% of the applicable surplus or the amount necessary to
reach the statutory limit of 9% for the General Fund and 11% for the Education Fund. Subject to the au-
tomatic transfer limits specified above, an additional 25% of a year—end revenue surplus may be allocated
if funds have been drawn upon and not repaid.

The State has also established a Medicaid Growth Reduction and Budget Stabilization Account. If at
the end of a fiscal year, there is a General Fund revenue surplus and Medicaid growth remains below
specified levels, State law requires that a portion of any General Fund revenue surplus be transferred from
the General Fund to the Medicaid Growth Reduction and Budget Stabilization Account. This transfer is
before, and consequently reduces, the annual mandatory year—end surplus transfer to the General Fund
Budget Reserve Account. See “FINANCIAL INFORMATION REGARDING THE STATE OF UTAH—
Federal Funding—Medicaid Funding in the State” below.

In addition, the State maintains budget reserves for natural disasters through the Wildland Fire Sup-
pression and Disaster Recovery accounts.

As of the close of Fiscal Year 2017, and after mandatory year—end surplus transfers, the balance in
the General Fund Budget Reserve Account was $146 million; the balance in the Education Fund Budget
Reserve Account was $362 million; the balance in the Medicaid Growth Reduction and Budget Stabiliza-
tion Account was $44 million, and the combined balance in the Wildland Fire Suppression and Disaster
Recovery accounts was $18 million.

In addition to these budget reserves, at the close of Fiscal Year 2017, a $15 million General
Fund/Education Fund balance remained unappropriated and $400 million of ongoing revenues were allo-
cated for pay—as—you—go capital expenditures.

State Revenues And Collections

The State receives revenues from three principal sources: taxes, including sales and use, individual
income, corporate, motor and special fuel, and other miscellaneous taxes; federal grants—in—aid; and mis-
cellaneous charges and receipts, including licenses, permits and fees, profits from State liquor stores, the
State’s share of federal mineral royalties, and other miscellaneous revenues.

Fiscal Year 2017 Revenue Collections. Fiscal Year 2017 ended with combined General Fund and Ed-
ucation Fund (collectively, the “GF/EF”) revenue collections coming in at $6.32 billion, about
$51 million above the Fiscal Year 2017 forecast of $6.27 billion. Additional adjustments, including budg-
et savings, brought the total year—end GF/EF surplus to $62.2 million before budget reserve account de-
posits. Of this year—end surplus amount, $32.3 million came from General Fund and $29.9 million came
from Education Fund collections. After a $12.3 million transfer to the Education Budget Reserve Ac-
count; a $18.5 million transfer from the General Fund to the Medicaid Growth Stabilization account; a
$2.1 million transfer to the General Fund Budget Reserve, and a $2.1 million transfer to the Wildland Fire
Suppression account; about $27.2 million in GF/EF revenue remained available from Fiscal Year 2017
for appropriation during the 2018 Legislative Session.
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Fiscal Year 2018 and 2019 Projections. The Governor released the most recent GF/EF consensus
revenue forecast in December 2017. Fiscal Year 2018 GF/EF unrestricted revenue is forecast to total
$6.70 billion ($378 million above Fiscal Year 2017 actual collections) and to further increase in Fiscal
Year 2019 to $7.02 billion (an increase of $319 million over the revised Fiscal Year 2018 projections and
$697 million over Fiscal Year 2017 actual collections). These estimates come primarily from projected
strong growth in individual income tax collections ($3.61 billion in Fiscal Year 2017; projected
$3.85 billion in Fiscal Year 2018; and projected $4.06 billion in Fiscal Year 2019), and moderate growth
in corporate income tax collections ($328 million in Fiscal Year 2017; projected $335 million in Fiscal
Year 2018; and projected $344 million in Fiscal Year 2019), as well as growth in the portion of sales and
use tax deposited to the General Fund ($1.86 billion in Fiscal Year 2017; projected $1.96 billion in Fiscal
Year 2018; and projected $2.04 billion in Fiscal Year 2019).

These revenue estimates are impacted by the effect of legislative policy changes made in recent years
that increase earmarks of certain sales tax revenues, primarily for capital development projects for trans-
portation and water. This earmarking restrains the growth of unrestricted revenue in the General Fund.
Total sales tax earmarks grew from $189 million in Fiscal Year 2011 to $585 million in Fiscal Year 2017
and are projected to increase to $629 million in Fiscal Year 2018 and $654 million in Fiscal Year 2019.

These consensus estimates were made prior to the enactment of federal tax reform in December 2017.
Because the State’s individual income tax and corporate tax bases are directly tied to federal tax provi-
sions, the enacted federal tax law changes will impact the State’s revenues. It is anticipated that revised
estimates released in February 2018 may reflect the impacts of federal tax law changes on State revenues.

State Economy. The State’s economy remains healthy, with about 57,000 additional residents added
between 2016 and 2017, bringing the State’s population to an estimated 3,101,833 persons. This is an an-
nual growth rate of roughly 1.9%, with about 40% of that growth attributable to net in—-migration. The
State’s economy has also experienced broad—based economic growth in major industrial sectors in 2017.
Significant gains were seen in industries such as construction (5.4% growth rate), leisure and hospitality
(5.1% growth), and professional and business services (up 4.2%). The mix of fastest growing industries
exemplifies the State’s robust economic conditions, with incomes increasing, housing in high—-demand,
and a blossoming tech sector. These sectors have contributed to the State’s current job growth rate of
2.9%, and low unemployment rate of 3.2%. Steady economic growth is projected to continue over the
next two years with positive economic indicators that generally outpace the nation. An internal factor that
may pose a risk to the rate of economic growth is the availability of a supply of highly educated and
skilled workforce sufficient to meet employers’ demand for labor. Potential negative external factors in-
clude federal trade policy changes, changes in monetary policy, and geopolitical instability.

Legislation Impacting Tax Collections. In the 2017 Legislative Session, the Legislature passed vari-
ous bills with impact to State revenues. Senate Bill 276, “Transportation Funding Modifications”, adjusts
the calculation of fuel tax rates and phases out transportation earmarks, which may increase revenue by
$4.2 million in Fiscal Year 2019, $9.5 million in Fiscal Year 2020, and return $5.1 million to the General
Fund in Fiscal Year 2020. Senate Bill 132, “Tax Provision Amendments” allows vehicle manufacturers to
be sales—factor—weighted taxpayers for corporate tax apportionment purposes and offers a tax exemption,
which may forgo potential sales tax revenue of $10 million and potential corporate income tax revenue of
$1 million beginning in Fiscal Year 2020.

In addition, for the 2018 Legislative Session the Governor has recommended changes to the State’s
revenue structure by re—emphasizing user fees, particularly for infrastructure, and by broadening tax ba-
ses, particularly for sales and use tax, to allow for rate reductions.

Fiscal Year 2019 Governor’s Budget Recommendations. While not enacted, the Governor’s total rec-
ommended budget for Fiscal Year 2019 is $16.7 billion, including State, federal, and certain local
sources. The recommended budget financed by State—collected funds (i.e., excluding federal funds, local
property tax for schools, and higher education tuition) totals about $10.6 billion. The recommended budg-
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et for the General Fund and the Education Fund (the state’s two largest funds) totals approximately
$7.1 billion. Major categories of General Fund and Education Fund expenditures include public education
(about $3.5 billion), higher education (about $1.3 billion), Medicaid and other social services (about
$1 billion), and corrections, public safety, and justice (about $700 million). In addition, transportation
expenditures from State—collected funds total about $1.5 billion (including debt service payments for
transportation projects). These expenditures are funded through various transportation funds outside the
General Fund.

(The remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank.)
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Fiscal Year Revenue Collections

% % % % % %

Nominal Revenue ($ in Millions) Change Change Change Change Change Change
Revenue Source 2019 () 2018 (f) 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2018-19  2017-18 2016-17 2015-16 2014-15 2013-14
Sales and USe taX.......vvvreeiiniii et eee e $ 20373 $ 1909 ¢$ 18568 $ 1,7785 $ 17150 $ 1,656.8 $ 1,615.9 3.9 5.6 44 3.7 35 25
Earmarked sales and use tax.............ccoeeeveenes 654.2 628.6 585.4 543.1 495.8 451.6 422.1 41 7.4 7.8 9.5 9.8 7.0
Total sales and use taX................eeeeeee, 2,691.5 2,589.5 2,442.2 2,321.6 2,210.8 2,108.4 2,038.0 3.9 6.0 5.2 5.0 4.9 35
Cable/satellite eXCiSe taX.......cveeriuineeeiiieeanen, 31.9 314 313 28.6 28.4 26.0 26.9 16 0.3 9.4 0.7 9.2 (3.3)
Liquor Profits........covvuiiiniin e 1244 117.3 106.3 104.0 95.4 87.8 81.4 6.0 10.3 2.2 9.0 8.7 7.9
INSUrance Premiums.........eeeevenieiee e e 131.7 126.8 122.0 111.7 92.4 91.2 89.6 3.9 3.9 9.2 20.9 13 18
Beer, cigarette and tobacCo............cocoveveiviinane. 113.8 114.9 116.3 118.3 115.9 113.1 120.9 0.9 1.2) .7 2.1 25 (6.5)
Oil and gas Severance taX.............ccceeeeeeeeeeunnns. 20.1 15.3 9.3 20.8 69.7 89.2 53.2 31.3 64.5 (55.3) (70.2) (21.9) 67.7
Metal SeVerance taX..........co.oveevererieeereeenvnnennnn. 9.5 8.0 6.8 7.0 16.3 15.9 16.9 18.8 17.6 (2.9 (57.1) 25 (5.9
Investment iNCOME.........coviiiiniiiiie e 175 16.1 14.3 7.9 6.6 5.0 6.0 8.8 12.6 81.0 19.7 32.0 (16.7)
General Fund (other)..........cooviiiiiiiii e, 85.4 84.0 83.8 69.8 90.9 81.8 80.4 1.7 0.2 20.1 (23.2) 111 1.7
Property and energy credit.............cccooeeeiininnnne. (5.7) (5.7) (5.6) (6.0) (5.4) (6.0) (6.3) 0.0 1.8 6.7) 111 (10.0) (4.8)
Total General Fund.............c..coevviineenn. 2,566.0 2,469.0 2,341.3 2,240.6 2,225.2 2,160.8 2,084.9 3.9 55 45 0.7 3.0 3.6
Total General Fund and earmarks............. 3,220.2 3,097.6 2,926.7 2,7183.7 2,721.0 2,612.4 2,507.0 4.0 5.8 5.1 2.3 4.2 4.2
Individual INCOMEe taX.........ccvveiveiiiiiiiiiiineennes, 4,061.5 3,850.1 3,609.5 3,370.3 3,157.7 2,889.7 2,852.0 5.5 6.7 7.1 6.7 9.3 1.3
Withholding..........ooooiiii e, 3,408.2 3,185.2 2,976.8 2,769.1 2,569.5 2,404.8 2,313.7 7.0 7.0 7.5 7.8 6.8 3.9
Final payments...........ccocveieviiineiniiiiiiiineeee, 1,189.6 1,166.1 1,101.1 1,037.8 991.1 882.2 922.0 2.0 5.9 6.1 4.7 12.3 4.3)
REFUNDS......cv et (536.3) (501.2) (468.4) (436.6) (402.9) (397.3) (383.7) 7.0 7.0 7.3 8.4 1.4 35
COrPOrate taXES. ... vvevereeeeee e eeeaee e 344.4 335.0 3284 3383 373.9 313.6 338.2 2.8 2.0 (2.9) (9.5) 19.2 (7.3)
Mineral production withholding........................ 17.1 16.5 15.1 15.6 27.1 32.4 26.1 39 9.2 (3.1) (42.4) (16.4) 24.1
Education Fund (other).............coooiiiiiiinnne 29.6 28.8 27.1 25.4 21.5 23.2 27.8 25 6.5 6.6 18.1 (7.3) (16.5)
Total Education Fund......................c.e. 4,452.6 4,230.4 3,980.1 3,749.6 3,580.2 3,258.9 3,244.1 5.3 6.3 6.1 4.7 9.9 0.5
Total General Fund and Education Fund..... 7,018.5 6,699.4 6,321.4 5,990.2 5,805.4 5,419.7 5,329.0 4.8 6.0 5.5 3.2 7.1 1.7

Total General Fund and Education Fund.....
and earmarks...........c..coveuiiiiiiiniineenn, 7,672.7 7,328.0 6,906.8 6,533.3 6,301.2 5,871.3 5,751.1 4.7 6.1 5.7 3.7 7.3 21
Motor fuel taX..........ooviiii i, 361.6 354.7 348.8 305.2 261.7 256.8 256.9 2.0 1.7 14.3 16.6 19 (0.0)
Special fuel taX..........ceiiiiiiiiii 141.3 138.6 134.9 1155 100.1 101.7 101.4 1.9 2.7 16.8 154 (1.6) 0.3
OFher ... 90.9 89.1 89.8 89.7 85.1 82.0 81.1 2.1 (0.8) 0.1 5.4 3.8 11
Total Transportation Fund...................... 593.8 582.4 573.5 510.4 446.9 440.5 439.4 2.0 15 12.4 14.2 15 0.3
Mineral lease payments............ccoeevieiiiinenennnns 82.4 77.8 75.3 71.4 141.7 167.6 136.9 5.9 3.3 5.4 (49.6) (15.5) 224
TOtAlS. .. vve e e 7,694.7 7,359.6 6,970.2 6,572.0 6,394.0 6,027.8 5,905.3 4.6 5.6 6.1 2.8 6.1 21
Totals and earmarks.............ccooeevviiieenen, $ 83489 $ 7,982 $ 75556 $ 71151 $ 68898 $ 64794 $ 63274 45 5.7 6.2 3.3 6.3 24

(f) forcast.

(Sources: Governor’s Office of Management and Budget)
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Revenues received in the governmental fund types (excluding the Trust Lands permanent fund) are as
follows:

Fiscal Year ($ in Thousands)

% % % % %

2017 @ 2016 @ 2015 @ 2014 @ 2013 @

TaXES ..covvevvvreiririnns $ 7,214,700 58% $ 6,816,720 58% $ 6,539,886 57% $ 6,151,366 56% $ 6,003,810 55%
Federal contracts

and grants ......... 3,828,714 31 3,573,699 31 3,478,563 31 3,463,045 32 3,489,515 32
All other misc.

revenues............ 1,362,005 11 21335536 11 1,417,953 12 1,367,281 12 1,328,275 13

Total all funds... $12,405,419 100% $11,725,955 100% $11,436,402 100% $10,981,695 100% $10,821,600 100%

(1) Percentage of total Governmental Fund revenue.
(Source: Division of Finance and the Fiscal Year 2017 CAFR.)

Most government services of the State are paid through one of its major governmental funds. In Fis-
cal Year 2017, the State’s major governmental funds were the General Fund, Education Fund, Transpor-
tation Fund, and Transportation Investment Fund.

Revenue Summary. For Fiscal Year 2017, General Fund revenues from all sources totaled approxi-
mately $5.95 billion. Of this amount, 48.8% came from federal contracts and grants; 31.4% came from
sales taxes; 8.7% came from charges for services and licenses, permits and fees; 5.6% came from federal
mineral leases, investment income and miscellaneous and other revenues; and 5.5% came from other tax
sources.

In the Education Fund for Fiscal Year 2017, revenues from all sources totaled approximately
$4.53 billion. Of this amount, 80.4% came from individual income taxes; 10.4% came from federal con-
tracts and grants; 7.2% came from corporate franchise taxes; 2.0% came from charges for services, li-
censes, permits and fees, miscellaneous and other revenues and investment income.

In the Transportation Fund for Fiscal Year 2017, revenues from all sources totaled approximately
$1.09 billion. Of this amount, 44.4% came from motor and special fuel taxes; 37.3% came from federal
contracts and grants; 12.2% came from charges for services and licenses, permits, and fees; 6.1% came
from other miscellaneous taxes and fees, sales and use taxes and investment income.

In the Transportation Investment Fund for Fiscal Year 2017, revenues from all sources totaled ap-
proximately $617 million. Of this amount 85.9% came from sales tax revenue and 14.1% came from mo-
tor vehicle registration fees.

All Governmental Fund Types; General Fund. The following tables, which have been prepared by the
State’s Division of Finance, are based on audited financial information and have not been otherwise inde-
pendently audited. These financial summaries are not presented in a form that can be easily recognized or
extracted from the State’s CAFR.

All Governmental Fund Types is defined as and includes the General Fund; Special Revenue—

Education Fund and Transportation Fund; Capital Projects—Transportation Investment Fund; Nonma-
jor Governmental Funds; and excludes the Permanent—Trust Lands Fund.
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Revenues by Source—All Governmental Fund Types (1)

Fiscal Year ($ in Thousands)

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Taxes:
Individual income tax............. $ 3,646,112 $ 3,393,087 $ 3,211,476 $ 2,916,015 $ 2,865,195
Sales and use taX........c..coveenee. 2,403,347 2,302,886 2,204,389 2,121,249 2,057,581
Motor and special fuel tax ...... 484,677 425,343 371,412 359,176 351,197
Other taxes (2) .....ccoovvvrvreenenn. 354,863 355,229 386,066 432,178 400,111
Corporate taXx ......cccceevvrvrerene 325,701 340,175 366,543 322,748 329,726
Total taxes ........cceeeevvvevenenne. 7,214,700 6,816,720 6,539,886 6,151,366 6,003,810
Other revenues:
Federal contracts and grants ... 3,828,714 3,573,699 3,478,563 3,463,045 3,489,515
Charges for services................ 620,960 598,304 619,395 607,286 602,884
Miscellaneous and other (2).... 394,168 388,295 384,968 327,880 305,267
Licenses, permits and fees....... 203,829 199,748 194,648 188,653 185,976
Federal mineral lease.............. 73,787 69,245 138,635 158,193 138,122
Investment income................. 49,988 68,680 67,687 78,061 63,322
Intergovernmental................... 19,273 11,264 12,620 7,211 32,704
Total other revenues............ 5,190,719 4,909,235 4,896,516 4,830,329 4,817,790
Total revenues...........cccveeveveenane. $12,405,419 $11,725,955 $11,436,402 $10,981,695 $10,821,600

(1) Includes all governmental fund types except Trust Lands.
(2) Liquor sales allocated to the school lunch program was reclassified from Other Taxes to Miscellaneous and
Other revenue beginning in Fiscal Year 2015.

(Sources: Division of Finance and the Fiscal Year 2017 CAFR.)

Expenditures by Function—All Governmental Fund Types (1)
Fiscal Year ($ in Thousands)

Function 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Public education..........c.ccccevvvrvrvrrnnnne, $ 3,732,813 $ 3,556,897 $ 3,340,290 $ 3,202,007 $ 3,097,161
Health and environmental quality........ 2,733,374 2,622,797 2,517,513 2,434,410 2,254,252
Higher education (2) ........cccccecvvvrennne. 979,030 915,432 875,610 781,998 735,438
Transportation..........ccceeveevevenvenennens 975,662 835,111 903,700 902,788 951,277
Human/juvenile justice services........... 804,283 766,186 723,663 692,277 669,091
Employment and family services......... 754,530 708,184 730,972 703,441 776,262
Capital outlay .......cccooevevceirieieee, 668,768 523,937 499,705 380,930 524,582
Debt SEIVICE ...uvovvviiieiiececte e 447,645 467,381 455,733 479,760 463,740
General government..........cccccecevvvennn. 395,505 412,204 386,059 374,134 360,759
COITECtiONS ..o 305,438 290,217 272,053 266,246 251,118
Public safety.......cccocevviviiiiineieic 253,976 263,417 266,586 271,716 255,727
Natural reSOUICES .......ccevveveeveriereereenn, 225,387 196,188 190,378 184,465 178,330
COUMS . 152,262 146,510 137,901 132,886 129,693
Business, labor and agriculture............. 107,800 111,186 101,331 105,915 99,828
Higher education (State Adm.) ............ 73,641 79,567 56,935 48,920 51,901
Heritage and ArtS.......cccocvevvevevveriennnn, 29,335 27,826 24,041 24,231 27,344

Total expenditures ...........ccoceevrvenenne. $12,639,449 $11,923,040 $11,482,470 $10,986,124 $10,826,503

(1) Includes all governmental fund types except Trust Lands.
(2) Includes colleges and universities.

(Sources: Division of Finance and the Fiscal Year 2017 CAFR.)

43



Summary of Changes in Fund Balance

All Governmental Fund Types (1)

Fiscal Year ($ in Thousands)

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

REVENUES ... $12,405,419 $11,725,955 $11,436,402 $10,981,695 $10,821,600

% change over previous year..... 5.8% 2.5% 4.1% 1.5% 3.2%
EXpenditures .........ccoceveveveiennnnnns (12,639,449) (11,923,040) (11,482,470) (10,986,124) (10,826,503)

% change over previous year-..... 6.0% 3.8% 4.5% 1.5% (2.8)%
Net other financing sources

(USES) (2) c.vveereieieirine e 197,781 230,093 113,117 294,868 131,148
Adjustments to fund balances (3).. 28,106 1,940 - 36,551 -
Special item (4):

Comp. Health Ins. Pool transfer - - 16,288 - -
Net change in fund balance........... $ (8143) $ 34948 $ 83337 $ 326990 $_ 126,245

(1) Includes all governmental fund types except Trust Lands.

(2) Includes sale of capital assets, bond proceeds, net of any refunding issues, plus financing provided from capital
leasing and net fund transfers. In addition, beginning balances are not reflected in this table.

(3) Adjustments to beginning fund balances are the result of the following: (i) in Fiscal Year 2017 prior year tax
accrual were adjusted resulting in an increased in the Education Fund balance of $14.440 million and the
Wildland Fire Suppression Fund was reclassified from a fiduciary fund to a nonmajor governmental fund result-
ing in a $13.666 million increase in fund balance; (ii) in Fiscal Year 2016 the Annual Leave Trust Fund was
created and required $1.026 million in activity previously reporting in governmental funds to accounted for in
this fund and the Water Commissioner Fund was reclassified resulting in an increase of $914,000 to fund bal-
ance; and (iii) in Fiscal Year 2014 prior period adjustments were made to increase beginning balance in the
General Fund by $30.682 million, the Transportation Fund by $951,000 and the Transportation Investment
Fund by $4,918,000.

(4) The Federal Health Insurance Pool Fund discontinued operations since enrollees in this temporary insurance
program transitioned into the qualified health plans offered through the Utah Federal Facilitated Marketplace.

(Sources: Division of Finance and the Fiscal Year 2017 CAFR.)

(The remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank.)
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Fund Balances—All Governmental Fund Types (1)

As of June 30 ($ in Thousands)

Fund 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
General........ccooveev i $ 831,155 $ 858,154 $ 908,002 $ 866,135 $ 845,446
Special Revenue:

Education.........ccoeeeveevieiinecnenn, 881,222 848,157 1,002,163 905,135 832,770
Transportation............ccccceeveeveene. 355,969 272,760 211,512 248,803 229,139
State endowment..............ccueeee. 196,172 171,369 169,067 159,509 137,250
Miscellaneous special revenue .. 37,116 22,959 23,070 21,664 21,425
Rural development..................... 29,749 36,372 35,982 37,510 36,381
Environmental reclamation........ 16,764 17,893 19,191 20,698 22,909
Consumer education .................. 4,223 4,082 4,178 4511 4,783
Crime victim reparation............. 3,578 2,953 2,735 2,379 3,038
Universal telephone.................... 3,299 3,092 5,309 4,593 2,869
State capitol ...........cceevveeieeneane. 852 742 1,135 2,254 1,897
Capital Projects:
Transportation investment......... 433,973 482,463 569,590 631,417 459,490
General government................... 282,824 328,136 156,401 121,390 100,784
State Building Ownership.......... 52,507 85,281 1,497 1,501 1,551
Debt Service:
General government................... 7,810 7,854 7,672 7,293 6,685
State Building Ownership.......... 8,080 11,169 984 359 1,744
Total..coooveceeeceecce $3,145,293 $3,153,436 $3,118,488 $3,035,151 $2,708,161

(1) Includes all governmental fund types except Trust Lands. Fund balances as reported above have not been restat-

ed for any prior year adjustments.

(Sources: Division of Finance and the Fiscal Year 2017 CAFR.)

(The remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank.)
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General Fund—Revenues, Expenditures and Fund Balances

Fiscal Year ($ in Thousands)

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Revenues:
Federal contracts and grants... $2,904,697 $2,753,249 $2,656,092 $2,630,161 $2,532,330
Sales and use taX........c.coevenee. 1,868,946 1,788,507 1,729,509 1,661,913 1,619,537
Charges for services............... 487,630 469,412 452,712 438,279 434,967
Other taxes ......ccccovervevrenienens 327,007 328,321 357,272 368,292 338,478
Miscellaneous and other......... 243,262 244,653 257,729 240,080 214,126
Federal mineral lease ............. 73,787 69,245 138,635 158,193 138,122
Licenses, permits and fees...... 27,663 27,610 27,147 26,832 27,153
Investment income................. 17,397 8,347 7,596 8,165 6,569
Total revenues .........c..o...... $5,950,389 $5,689,344 $5,626,692 $5,5631,915 $5,311,282
% change over previous year ..... 4.6% 1.1% 1.7% 4.2% (0.1)%
Expenditures.........ccoceevevriennnnnn, $6,654,337 $6,409,600 $6,160,589 $5,915,943 $5,671,148
% change over previous year ..... 3.8% 4.0% 4.1% 4.3% 2.5%
Fund Balance: (1)
Committed.......ccccvvevievreniennnn, $559,791 $546,782 $496,758 $507,380 $496,795
ASSIgNEd......covveieeieieesie 194,174 132,126 252,369 197,842 193,770
Nonspendable:
Long-term portion of inter-
fund loan......ccoeevveninee 18,927 26,747 26,996 38,832 44,360
Prepaid items..........c.ccoenee. 14,475 106,745 96,939 73,033 67,790
INVeNtories.......ccoceevvereeenn, 687 434 662 926 800
Restricted ........cccooverveeriennnen, 33,516 38,124 34,278 40,898 41,931
Unassigned........ccooeeeeeeneenenn _ 9,585 _ 7,196 - 1,224 -
Total fund balances............. $831,155 $858,154 $908,002 $866,135 $845,446
% change over previous year ..... (3.1)% (5.5)% 4.8% 2.4% 14.7%

(1) The fund balance is derived from revenues, expenditures, transfers and other financing sources which are not
presented in this table and from the fund balance from the prior Fiscal Year.

(Sources: Division of Finance and the Fiscal Year 2017 CAFR.)
Fiscal Year 2017-Budget And Related Appropriations

Statewide Summary. As of the March 2016 enacted budget, the State’s Fiscal Year 2017 appropriated
operating and capital budget was $15.1 billion from all sources. Updates brought the total to $15.4 billion,
and supplementals from legislative action brought all operating and capital budgets to $15.6 billion. The
Executive Appropriations Committee adopted consensus ongoing Fiscal Year 2017 GF/EF revenue esti-
mates of $6.3 billion, which was adjusted to $6.4 billion from legislative changes including prior year
reserves, program savings, and fund transfers.

During the 2016 Legislative Session, the Legislature had at its disposal $400 million in new ongoing
GF/EF revenue growth, $150 million in one-time GF/EF sources, and around $88 million in other GF/EF
sources. The Legislature approved $17.3 billion in appropriations from all sources for all purposes in Fis-
cal Year 2017, which includes some double counting of funds.

Coming into the 2016 Legislative Session, the State had a structural budget balance of about
$752,000. After certain legislative changes, capital development, and paying down ongoing commit-
ments, the 2016 General and Special Legislative sessions left the State with a roughly $12.8 million struc-
tural surplus. The Legislature authorized no new general obligation debt in Fiscal Year 2016, and the
State paid down principal of $331.3 million on outstanding general obligation bonds in Fiscal Year 2016,
and it will pay down principal of $324.9 million in Fiscal Year 2017.
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State of Utah
All Appropriations—Fiscal Year 2017 to Fiscal Year 2019

($ in Thousands)

Fiscal Year
Fiscal Year 2017 Fiscal Year 2018 2019
Revised Initial Revised Governor's
Authorized Actual Authorized Recommended Recommended
Sources of Finance
General Fund..........c..coooeviiiiei i, $ 2,409,069 $ 2,409,069 $ 2,472,203 $ 2,496,585 $ 2,575,646
Education Fund..............ccoiiiiiiiiineen 3,979,115 3,979,115 4,180,213 4,214,935 4,465,344
Uniform School Fund............................. 23,000 23,000 31,000 31,000 27,500
Transportation Fund......................ooeee el 525,519 598,599 557,159 624,856 632,429
General Fund Restricted.......................... 457,416 483,357 388,119 406,220 336,727
Education Special Revenue...................... 123,401 127,686 148,290 148,290 150,453
Transportation Special Revenue................. 51,784 60,311 53,796 62,769 63,833
Federal Funds.............cccooveviiiine e, 4,342,610 3,817,864 4,296,916 4,336,360 4,380,041
Dedicated CreditS............coeveeeivinienennnn.. 1,901,022 1,949,992 2,043,032 1,927,516 1,933,166
Federal Mineral Lease...............ccccoeevenn. 66,748 48,104 75,018 48,966 76,745
Restricted Revenue.............cccovvvviecinnnns 20,742 463 11,856 - -
Special Revenue...........c.cooeevviviieieeiinenn . 60,680 60,680 117,809 116,596 121,795
Agency FUNdS.......ove i 1,000 1,000 - - -
Private Purpose Trust Funds..................... 3,837 3,837 4,512 4,512 4,599
Other Trust and Agency Funds.................. 452,753 458,689 449,808 455,600 455,600
Capital Project Funds................ccceeeeeene. 745,871 745,859 863,608 946,941 877,203
Internal Service Funds................cooeivaie - - 7758 350 10
Enterprise Funds.............coooeviiiiin e, 174,420 207,070 179,513 180,375 192,056
Transfers......oooovieiei e, 1,084,208 980,763 608,160 886,644 707,574
Other Financing SOUrCes...............covuveeen, 1,397,412 1,350,358 1,580,204 1,526,631 1,691,855
Pass-through...........ccooeeiiiii 9,685 2,378 6,465 10,957 10,976
Beginning Balance..................cccciee 3,246,193 3,663,016 3,212,882 3,601,310 3,017,167
Closing Balance.............ccoeeveviiiineieninnnn. (3,080,167) (3,584,153) (2,691,366) (3,002,922) (2,566,876)
Lapsing Balance............ccovviviiiiiiinnnn . (6,517) (354,926) 383 (16,483) (2,286)
Total... oo $17,989,799 $17,031,205 $18,584,405 $ 19,008,008 $ 19,151,557
Appropriation Categories

Operating & Capital Budgets (1)................ $15,648,162 $15,005,880 $16,174,782 $ 16,618,672 $ 16,704,392
Enterprise/Loan Funds.................ccoennnee. 338,231 267,880 341,470 271,362 271,128
Internal Service Funds.............ccoevvnenne.. 289,690 281,455 314,991 297,412 300,014
Transfers to Rest. Funds/Accts................... 150,846 149,532 131,035 176,629 134,658
Transfers to Unrestricted Funds................. 23,255 23,105 19,210 19,146 15,246
Fiduciary Funds.............coooviiiiinienen, 227,365 228,169 240,069 238,075 238,301
Capital Project Funds.............ccccoieveenne. 1,312,250 1,075,184 1,362,848 1,386,712 1,487,818
Total... oo $17,989,799 $17,031,205 $18,584,405 $ 19,008,008 $ 19,151,557

(1) Includes appropriations to expendable funds and accounts.

Note: This schedule shows all appropriations in all acts of the Legislature and therfore includes inter—account transfers, internal payments loan
funds, and other actions that must be eliminated to arrive at a budget total.

(Sources: Budget of the State of Utah and Related Appropriations: 2017-2018, Office of the Legislative Fiscal Analyst. 2017 Special Session
appropriations enacted after the report was published have also been added. Governor Gary R. Herbert Budget Recommendations Fiscal Year
2019 - Fiscal Year 2018 Supplementals, December 2017.)

47



Fiscal Year 2018—Budget

Statewide Summary. As of the December 2017 budget estimates, the State’s Fiscal Year 2018 operat-
ing and capital budget is $16.5 billion from all sources, which is a 5.8% increase over revised Fiscal
Year 2017 estimates of $15.6 billion and includes $4.9 million appropriated during the September 2017
Special Session. In December 2017, the Governor recommended a revised Fiscal Year 2018 operating and
capital budget of $16.6 billion dollars, which includes the allocation of $59 million of new one-time
GF/EF revenue identified during the November 2017 consensus revenue process. The remaining increases
are from variable funding sources such as balances, transfers, and non—-GF/EF revenue collections.

The currently enacted Fiscal Year 2018 budget is based upon February 2017 revenue estimates that
estimated nearly $6.6 billion in discretionary GF/EF revenue in Fiscal Year 2018. To that revenue the
Legislature added $57.5 million in resources reserved from the prior year, balancing the State’s Fiscal
Year 2018 GF/EF budget at $6.7 billion.

Based on February 2017 consensus estimates, the Legislature had $372 million in new ongoing reve-
nue growth (after adjusting for $3 million in economic development incentives) and $13 million in addi-
tional one-time collections. The Legislature also appropriated an additional $113 million from various
other sources, including program savings and reductions, fund balances, and various restricted account
reserves (no impact on budget reserve accounts).

Overall, the enacted Fiscal Year 2018 GF/EF budget increased from $6.4 billion to $6.7 billion—up
over 4% from the Fiscal Year 2017 base. Of the new available funds, more than $334 million (67%) in
new money was provided for public and higher education, including an increase in the value of the
Weighted Pupil Unit, enrollment growth, capital improvements, salary and health care increases, perfor-
mance-based funding, and public education teaching supplies. The Governor has recommended
$59 million in revisions to the Fiscal Year 2018 GF/EF budget.

Revenue Estimates. On March 3, 2017, the Legislature’s Executive Appropriations Committee adopt-
ed consensus ongoing Fiscal Year 2018 GF/EF revenue estimates of $6.6 billion, which is 5.8% more
than the revised Fiscal Year 2017 estimate of $6.3 billion. Changes due to legislation passed in the
2017 Legislative Session decrease the Fiscal Year 2018 estimate by around $3.7 million and increased
Fiscal Year 2017 by about $2.4 million.

During the 2017 General Legislative Session, the Legislature identified other one-time sources that
were added to revenue growth. From non-lapsing program balances and fund balances, the Legislature
returned to the GF/EF more than $27 million in Fiscal Year 2017. Changes to the base budget freed up
$80 million that the Legislature added to revenue growth across both years. In total, the Legislature had at
their disposal $6 billion in Fiscal Year 2018 and $6.4 billion in Fiscal Year 2017.

In December 2017, the Governor released and Legislature’s Executive Appropriations Committee
adopted revised Fiscal Year 2018 revenue estimates and the initial Fiscal Year 2019 revenue estimates.
These estimates yielded about $102 million in new one-time funds and $382 million in new available
ongoing unrestricted GF/EF revenues, after automatic deposits into various budget reserve accounts and
adjusting for a small technical structural imbalance. The Governor and Legislature may choose to allocate
the $102 million in new one-time funds in either Fiscal Year 2018 or Fiscal Year 2019.

Appropriations. Altogether, the Legislature made $18.6 billion in appropriations from all sources for
all purposes in Fiscal Year 2018, which includes some double—counting as funds move between accounts.
Adjusting for account deposits, loan and other enterprise funds, internal service funds, fiduciary funds,
and capital projects appropriations, the operating and capital budget for Fiscal Year 2018 was estimated at
enactment at $16.2 billion. The Legislature appropriated about $6.7 billion from the GF/EF in Fiscal
Year 2018, an increase of 4.2% over the revised Fiscal Year 2017 budget.
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The Governor’s revised Fiscal Year 2018 recommended budget from all sources totals about
$19 billion. The revised recommended operating and capital budget totals $16.6 billion, including the al-
location of $59 million of new one-time GF/EF revenue identified during the November 2017 consensus
revenue process. The remaining increases are from variable funding sources such as balances, transfers,
and revenue collections.

Structural Balance. The Legislature closed the 2017 General Session with a technical GF/EF struc-
tural imbalance of about $6 million, with most of the imbalance associated with revenue bills taking ef-
fect in later budget years. More than half of the structural imbalance was offset by pre—paying
$3.4 million in future GF/EF employee health care costs under H.C.R. 13, Concurrent Resolution for Pub-
lic Employees’ Benefit and Insurance Program.

Over $15 million in Fiscal Year 2018 GF/EF revenue remained unappropriated. In addition, over
$400 million of ongoing revenue is appropriated for capital expenditures other than debt service. The rev-
enue estimates released in December 2017 account for elimination of the Fiscal Year 2018 technical
structural imbalance.

Medicaid Funding in the State. See “Federal Funding—Medicaid Funding in the State” below.

Financial Summaries

Generally. The following table summarizes the State’s revenues and expenditures for the past three
Fiscal Years.

Revenues and Expenditures for Fiscal Years 2017, 2016 and 2015 ($ in Thousands)

Analysis of Operations—General Fund, Major Special Revenue Funds and Major Capital Projects Fund

Fiscal Year 2017 Fiscal Year 2016 Fiscal Year 2015
% Change % Change % Change
From From From

Amounts _ Prior Year _Amounts Prior Year _Amounts Prior Year

Revenues (1):
Individual and corporate income

AXES. vt $ 3,971,813 6% $ 3,733,262 4% $ 3,578,019 10%
Federal contracts and grants............... 3,782,231 7 3,533,991 3 3,439,835 0
Sales and USe taX ........coceeeveereeiereenn. 2,398,746 4 2,298,134 4 2,199,844 4
Other revenues ..........ccoeeevereencnienens 1,209,163 0) 1,221,046 (5) 1,290,233 5
Motor/special fuel taxes.......c..ccccvenene 484,677 14 425,343 15 371,412 3
Other taXes .....coevvevverevernre s 344,753 1) 344,954 (8) 372,978 (11)

Total ..o $12,191,383 6% $11,556,730 3% $11,252,321 4%

EXPENTitUreS ......cccovevvvriereeenccee $11,751,484 6%  $11,140,282 4%  $10,722,546 4%

(1) Includes revenues and expenditures for the General Fund, the Major Special Revenue Funds (Education Fund
and Transportation Fund) and the Major Capital Projects Fund (Transportation Investment Fund).

(Source: Division of Finance and the Fiscal Year 2017 CAFR.)

Other Summaries. The following summaries were extracted from the State’s audited financial state-
ments for Fiscal Years 2013 through 2017. The summaries have not been audited. The financial infor-
mation presented in the summaries is presented on a fund statement basis and not on a government—wide
statement basis.

Five—year historical summaries have been prepared for the Combined Balance Sheet—All Govern-
mental Fund Types Only; Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance—General
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Fund; and Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance—Major Special Revenue
Funds and Major Capital Projects Fund.

The five—year summary of Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance—
Major Special Revenue Funds and Major Capital Projects Fund has been included to show the State’s
sources of revenue for and expenditures on public education and transportation.

For additional 10-year financial history of various State funds see “APPENDIX A—
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT OF THE STATE OF UTAH FOR FISCAL
YEAR 2017-Statistical Section” at the indicated pages as set forth below.

(i) Schedule A-1, Net Position by Component (CAFR page 200);

(i) Schedule A-2, Changes in Net Position (CAFR page 202).

(iii) Schedule A-3, Fund Balances—Governmental Funds (CAFR page 206); and

(iv) Schedule A—4, Changes in Fund Balances—-Governmental Funds (CAFR page 208).

(The remainder of this page has been intentionally left blank)
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State of Utah

Combined Balance Sheet—All Governmental Fund Types Only (1)

As of June 30 ($ in Thousands)

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents....................... $1,441,638 $1,438,297 $1,497,920 $1,411,644 $1,376,735
INVEStMEeNtS.......covvei e 1,238,387 1,324,789 1,235,804 1,215,649 944,035
Receivables:
Accrued taxes, net..........cooveveiveeennnen. 1,242,324 1,183,200 1,124,075 969,870 979,456
AccouNnts, Net.......coovii e 714,720 524,997 524,122 611,057 649,422
Capital lease payments, net................... 90,660 94,665 98,480 102,110 103,620
Accrued interest........oocovviiiiiiiiiennne., 7,295 390 74 62 54
Notes/mortgages, Net..........ccovevvevenennnn. 5,065 7,849 8,810 9,870 11,896
Due from other funds.....................oels 56,847 46,556 35,656 36,847 33,738
Due from component units....................... 45,667 79,318 76,248 36,489 59,465
Interfund loans receivable........................ 44,872 54,258 48,729 61,195 59,235
INVENTONIES. ..oeveee e 14,592 14,424 14,267 14,944 12,780
Prepaid items.......coveviiiii e, 14,475 106,745 96,939 73,033 67,790
Total assets......ovvveiiieiiiiieiiians $4,916,542 $4,875,488 $4,761,124 $4,542,770 $4,298,226
Liabilities, deferred inflows of resources and
fund balances:
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities... $ 991,239 $ 932,211 $ 878,928 $ 821,825 $ 937,720
Unearned revenue (2).......cocovvvvvenennnnn. 73,170 84,862 82,221 77,690 595,536
Due to other funds.............ccoovvevvinnnn, 61,918 56,360 57,390 64,026 56,182
Due to component Units.............c..cvvees 58 662 300 40 627
Total liabilities............................ 1,126,385 1,074,095 1,018,839 963,581 1,590,065
Deferred inflows of resources (2):
Unavailable revenue........................ .. 644,864 647,957 623,797 544,038 -
Fund balance:
Restricted.......covvvieiii i 1,342,101 1,213,565 1,225,396 1,201,479 1,136,685
Committed........cooeveviie i, 1,246,374 1,305,312 1,339,327 1,373,166 1,189,190
ASSIGNEd.....o o 499,239 479,447 415,563 326,473 257,356
Nonspendable:
Long-term portion of Interfund Loans... 18,927 26,747 26,996 38,832 44,360
INVENLONIES. .. v 14,592 14,424 14,267 14,944 12,780
Prepaid items........ccovviiie v, 14,475 106,745 96,939 73,033 67,790
Unassigned. ........o.oeve i 9,585 7,196 — 7,224 —
Total fund balances...................... 3,145,293 3,153,436 3,118,488 3,035,151 2,708,161
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balances......... $4,916,542 $4,875488  $4,761,124  $4,542,770  $4,298,226

(1) Includes all governmental fund types except Trust Lands.

(2) Beginning Fiscal Year 2014, certain assets and liabilities have been reclassified as Deferred Outflows or Inflows of Resources
per implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets
and Liabilities.

(Source: Division of Finance. Except as otherwise noted, this summary of financial information has been taken from the State’s
audited financial statements for the indicated years. This summary itself has not been audited.)
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State of Utah

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Fund Type—General Fund

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 ($ in Thousands)

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Revenues:
Taxes:
Salesand use taX............ccovevveeeeinenenennnn.... $ 1,868,946 $ 1,788,507 $ 1,729,509 $ 1,661,913 $ 1,619,537
Other taXesS......vov e eeeee e e 327,007 328,321 357,272 368,292 338,478
Total taxeS....v e 2,195,953 2,116,828 2,086,781 2,030,205 1,958,015
Other revenues:
Federal contracts and grants..............c..c..oe.e. 2,904,697 2,753,249 2,656,092 2,630,161 2,532,330
Charges for services.........covevieiieiiinnennen, 487,630 469,412 452,712 438,279 434,967
Miscellaneous and other........................... .. 243,262 244,653 257,729 240,080 214,126
Federal mineral lease............ccooevviiiiiinnn.. 73,787 69,245 138,635 158,193 138,122
Licenses, permits and fees..............ceevve e, 27,663 27,610 27,147 26,832 27,153
INVeStMENt INCOME......cceviieiiiiee e 17,397 8,347 7,596 8,165 6,569
Total revenues.........ccvveviiiiiie i 5,950,389 5,689,344 5,626,692 5,531,915 5,311,282
Expenditures:
Current:
Health and environmental quality.................. 2,727,556 2,617,746 2,512,722 2,428,911 2,248,205
Higher education—colleges and universities...... 934,784 885,482 854,181 768,602 715,904
Human services and juvenile justice services.... 798,133 759,766 717,979 687,646 665,861
Employment and family services................... 740,583 700,610 718,477 693,186 775,393
General government...........cccoeviieiiievennnnnnn, 367,825 380,670 350,278 340,503 326,209
COrTeCHiONS. .. .ccve et e e e 301,430 285,831 269,379 263,195 248,528
Public safety.......cccoevvviiiiiiiiii e, 223,610 237,631 241,189 252,226 221,534
Natural reSoUrceS.........covvevveiiiieeieieeenns 216,676 194,397 188,051 180,963 177,704
COUMS. ..ttt e e e e e 147,429 143,405 137,901 132,886 129,693
Business, labor, and agriculture.................... 93,867 96,725 89,562 94,681 88,691
Higher education-state administration............ 73,641 79,567 56,935 48,920 51,901
Heritage and arts...........coevvveeiiiiniviniiinenenns 28,803 27,770 23,935 24,224 21,525
Total expenditures..........cccovveveviieiennnnnn. 6,654,337 6,409,600 6,160,589 5,915,943 5,671,148
Excess revenues over (under) expenditures............... (703,948) (720,256) (533,897) (384,028) (359,866)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in.......ooovi i 938,598 990,793 798,333 665,976 664,735
Transfers Out..........ccooovieiiiiii i (261,765) (326,140) (238,880) (291,941) (196,765)
Sale of capital assetS..........coovveviiiiii i, 116 2,283 23 — 37
Total other financing sources (uses)............ 676,949 666,936 559,476 374,035 468,007
Special item:
Comprehensive health insurance pool transfer...... - - 16,288 - -
Net change in fund balances...............cocovvvivnenin, (26,999) (53,320) 41,867 (9,993) 108,141
Beginning fund balances...............cc.cooi i 858,154 908,002 866,135 845,446 737,305
Adjustments to beginning fund balances (1)......... - 3,472 - 30,682 -
Beginning fund balances as adjusted....................... 858,154 911,474 866,135 876,128 737,305
Ending fund balances................ccovvviiiinii . $ 831,155 $ 858,154 $ 908,002 $ 866,135 $ 845,446

(1) During Fiscal Year 2016, the Legislature passed legislation which adjusted the beginning fund balance in the General Fund by $3.472
million. During Fiscal Year 2014, in evaluating and refining the process used for measuring and recording revenues and receivables for
various tax types, a prior period adjustment was made to increase beginning fund balance in the General Fund by $30.682 million.

(Source: Division of Finance. This summary of financial information has been taken from the State’s audited financial statements for the
indicated years. This summary itself has not been audited.)
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State of Utah

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Fund Type—Major Special Revenue and Major Capital Projects Funds (1)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30 ($ in Thousands)

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
Revenues:
Taxes:
Individual income taX............oeeveiiiiieens $ 3,646,112 $ 3,393,087 $ 3,211,476 $ 2,916,015 $ 2,865,195
Sales and use taX (2)......ocevvuvnereeinnieennns 529,800 509,627 470,335 454,954 433,962
Motor and special fuels taX...................... 484,677 425,343 371,412 359,176 351,197
COrporate taXx.........ouvvvvuieeiriinnenenennnnen 325,701 340,175 366,543 322,748 329,726
Other taXxes (3) ... cvvvuveieeeeie e aeen, 17,746 16,633 15,706 51,054 49,247
Total taXeS....ccvvuve e 5,004,036 4,684,865 4,435,472 4,103,947 4,029,327
Other revenues:
Federal contracts and grants..................... 877,534 780,742 783,743 800,605 911,631
Licenses, permits and fees....................... 176,167 172,138 167,501 161,821 158,823
Miscellaneous and other................c...c..... 74,636 76,196 59,386 61,152 63,871
Charges for Services...........coovveieeieninanns 54,749 55,935 91,231 93,439 92,035
Liquor sales allocated for school lunch (3).... 42,723 40,640 37,624 - -
Investment iNCOMe........c.covvvviiiiiiiiiinenes. 11,149 56,870 50,672 46,419 41,953
Total other revenues..................c.coeeee. 1,236,958 1,182,521 1,190,157 1,163,436 1,268,313
Total revenues..........c.vvvveieeiiieeeans 6,240,994 5,867,386 5,625,629 5,267,383 5,297,640
Expenditures:
Current:
Public education..............cccoeviii i, 3,730,948 3,555,001 3,339,724 3,201,314 3,096,625
Transportation.........ooeveviiiie i e, 971,547 833,944 902,329 902,110 950,708
Capital outlay...........coooviiiiiii 394,652 341,737 319,904 257,759 349,658
Total expenditures.............coooeeeeeennnnn.. 5,097,147 4,730,682 4,561,957 4,361,183 4,396,991
Excess revenues over (under) expenditures......... 1,143,847 1,136,704 1,063,672 906,200 900,649
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in.......ooooeveeiiii i 159,006 160,637 158,607 177,699 148,183
Sale of capital assets..........coovevieiiiiieieeennnn. 24,570 5,104 2,485 1,994 10,245
General obligation bonds issued................... - - - 226,175 -
Premium on bonds issued..............cccevvnnen.n. - - - 23,825 -
Transfers OUt.........oovvvviiiie i e (1,274,079) (1,479,884) (1,226,854) (1,077,806) (1,013,605)
Total other financing sources (uses)......... (1,090,503) (1,314,143) (1,065,762) (648,113) (855,177)
Net changes in fund balances..................ooevi, 53,344 (177,439) (2,090) 258,087 45,472
Beginning fund balances.....................oL 1,603,380 1,783,265 1,785,355 1,521,399 1,475,927
Adjustments to beginning fund balances (4)..... 14,440 (2,446) — 5,869 —
Beginning fund balances as adjusted................. 1,617,820 1,780,819 1,785,355 1,527,268 1,475,927
Ending fund balances................cooociiiii s $ 1,671,164 $ 1,603,380 $ 1,783,265 $ 1,785,355 $ 1,521,399

(1) The major special revenue funds include the Education Fund (which includes all the activity of the Uniform School Fund—previously a
major special revenue fund-to be reported within the Education Fund) and Transportation Fund. The major capital project fund is the
Transportation Investment Fund.

(2) In Fiscal Year 2013, an amount equal to 30% of the growth in future sales and use tax collections (approximately $74 million) is
annually being transferred from the General Fund into the Transportation Investment Fund as directed by the 2011 Legislature.

(3) Liquor sales allocated for school lunch was reclassified from “Other Taxes” to “Liquor sales” beginning in Fiscal Year 2015.

(4) During Fiscal Year 2017 prior year tax accrual were adjusted resulting in an increased in the Education Fund balance of $14.440
million. During Fiscal Year 2016, a prior period adjustment was made to the Education Fund by $506,000 and the Transportation Fund
by ($2.952 million). During Fiscal Year 2014, in evaluating and refining the process used for measuring and recording revenues and
receivables for various tax types, a prior period adjustment was made to increase beginning fund balance in the Transportation Fund by
$951,000 and the Transportation Investment Fund by $4.918 million.

(Source: Division of Finance. Except as otherwise noted, this summary of financial information has been taken from the State’s audited
financial statements for the indicated years. This summary itself has not been audited.)
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Discussion And Analysis Of Financial Statements For Fiscal Year 2017

The State prepared a narrative discussion, overview, and analysis of the financial activities of the
State for Fiscal Year 2017. For the complete discussion see “APPENDIX A—COMPREHENSIVE AN-
NUAL FINANCIAL REPORT OF THE STATE OF UTAH FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017-Management’s
Discussion and Analysis” (CAFR page 18).

Capital Expenditure Authorizations

The following table presents historical data on capital expenditures in the year authorized from all
sources, excluding bond proceeds and other available funds. Included in these figures are capital outlay
expenses and authorizations for the construction of new buildings and the improvement of existing build-
ings. These figures also include expenditures for the construction of buildings for higher education, water
development or storage projects, flood control projects, the construction or improvement of roads and
related transportation projects, State and some local recreation projects and local projects in energy—
impacted areas funded with community impact moneys. These figures exclude debt service.

Capital Expenditure Authorizations (In Millions)

Fiscal Year
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
$1,581.3 $1,432.3 $1,216.5 $1,066.2 $1,117.4

(Source: Governor’s Office of Management and Budget.)
Investment Of Funds

Investment of Operating Funds; The State Money Management Act. The State Money Management
Act, Title 51, Chapter 7, Utah Code (the “MM Act”) governs the investment of all public funds held by
public treasurers in the State.

The State is currently complying with all provisions of the MM Act for all State operating funds.

The Utah Public Treasurers’ Investment Fund. A significant portion of State funds are invested in the
Utah Public Treasurers Investment Fund (“PTIF”). The PTIF is a local government investment fund es-
tablished in 1981 and managed by the State Treasurer. The PTIF invests to ensure safety of principal, li-
quidity and a competitive rate of return. All moneys transferred to the PTIF are promptly invested in secu-
rities authorized by the MM Act. Safekeeping and audit controls for all investments owned by the PTIF
must comply with the MM Act.

See “APPENDIX A—COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT OF THE STATE OF
UTAH FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017-Notes to the Financial Statements—Note 3. Deposits and Investments”
(CAFR page 67) and “~Note 4. Investment Pool” (CAFR page 95).

State Employee Workforce; Public Retirement System

State Employee Workforce. The State is among the largest employers in the State employing 20,375
people (full-time equivalents) in Fiscal Year 2017. For a 10-year history of the State’s employment
numbers see “APPENDIX A—COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT OF THE STATE
OF UTAH FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017-Statistical Section—Schedule E-1 Full-time Equivalent State Em-
ployees by Function” (CAFR page 230).

Public Retirement System. All full-time employees of the State are members of the Utah State Re-
tirement System (“URS”) and the State participates in various contribution systems and pension plans
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provided by URS. URS has separate accounting systems and prepares a separate financial report covering
all retirement systems and deferred compensation plans it administers. URS’s CAFR for Calendar
Year 2016 is reported in the 2017 CAFR as a pension trust fund for URS within the fiduciary funds. See
“APPENDIX A—COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT OF THE STATE OF UTAH
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017-Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements” (CAFR pages 50 and 51). Copies of
URS’s CAFR for Calendar Year 2016 may be found at https://www.urs.org/publications/members.

For Fiscal Year 2017, the State reported the following liability and related transactions equal to its
proportionate share of the collective net pension liability of URS (measured as of December 31, 2016):
$268,000 in net pension assets, $436.832 million in deferred outflows of resources, $1.058 billion in net
pension liability and $132.829 million in deferred inflows of resources for the primary government. For
Fiscal Year 2017, the State contributed approximately $231.133 million to URS, which was 100% of its
contractually and statutorily required contributions.

As of December 31, 2016, the URS pension plans’ fiduciary net position as a percent of the total pen-
sion liability is 86%. For a detailed discussion regarding retirement benefits and contributions and infor-
mation regarding the Fiduciary Net Position, the Total Pension Liability, and the Net Pension Liability or
Asset of the URS systems providing benefits to employees of the State see “APPENDIX A—
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT OF THE STATE OF UTAH FOR FISCAL
YEAR 2017-Notes to the Financial Statements—Note 18. Pension Plans” (CAFR page 118).

Other Postemployment Benefits

The State administers the State Employee Other Postemployment Benefit Plan (“State Employee
OPEB Plan™) through the State Post—Retirement Benefits Trust Fund. A separate Elected Official Other
Postemployment Benefit Plan (“Elected Official OPEB Plan™) is provided for governors and legislators,
and is administered through the Elected Official Post—Retirement Benefits Trust Fund. Both trust funds
are irrevocable and legally protected from creditors. Both plans are single-employer defined benefit
healthcare plans and are closed plans available to only employees and elected officials that meet certain
eligibility criteria.

The State early implemented GASB Statement 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postem-
ployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. This statement establishes standards for measuring and recogniz-
ing certain transactions for Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) Plans; specifically, this statement re-
quires the State to record the State’s net OPEB liability in the State’s CAFR. For Fiscal Year 2017, the
State reported a collective $4.737 million in deferred inflows of resources and $112.456 million in net
OPEB liability for both the State Employee OPEB Plan and the Elected Official OPEB Plan. For the State
Employee OPEB Plan and the Elected Official OPEB Plan the fiduciary net position as a percentage of
the total OPEB liability was 70.03% and 76.77%, respectively.

The State Legislature is contributing amounts to each OPEB trust fund that, at a minimum, is suffi-
cient to fully fund the Actuarially Determined Contribution (“ADC”), an actuarially determined amount.
For Fiscal Year 2017, the State contributed $33.361 million to the State Employee OPEB Plan and
$1.388 million to the Elected Official OPEB Plan, which were $4.261 million and $147,000 more than
the ADC, respectively.

For additional detailed discussion of the State’s postemployment benefits see “APPENDIX A—
COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT OF THE STATE OF UTAH FOR FISCAL
YEAR 2017—Notes to the Financial Statements—Note 18. Other Postemployment Benefits”
(CAFR page 124).

55


https://www.urs.org/Publications/Members

Risk Management And Insurance

The State is a member of a risk pool where the State self-insures portions of certain property and lia-
bility claims and purchases commercial insurance for claims above the self—insured retention amounts.
This is done through the Administrative Services Risk Management Fund. The fund is maintained via
premiums charged to its members—State agencies, institutions of higher education, Utah school districts
and charter schools.

The State is self-insured for liability claims up to $2 million and beyond the excess insurance policy
limit of $10 million. The State is self-insured for individual property and casualty claims up to $1 million
and up to $3.5 million in aggregate claims and beyond the excess insurance policy limit of $1 billion per
occurrence. The Risk Management Fund has not had a liability loss that exceeded the State’s self-insured
claim limit of $1 million for Fiscal Years 2015 through 2017.

As of June 30, 2017, the Administrative Services Risk Management Fund contained approximately
$53.6 million in reserve available to pay for claims incurred. For the financial statements of the risk man-
agement fund see “APPENDIX A—COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT OF THE
STATE OF UTAH FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017—Supplementary Information—Internal Service Funds—
Risk Management” (CAFR pages 172 and 173).

Also see, “APPENDIX A—COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT OF THE
STATE OF UTAH FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017—Notes to the Financial Statements—Note 16. Litigation,
Contingencies and Commitments” (CAFR page 116) and “—Note 20. Risk Management And Insurance”
(CAFR page 128).

Federal Funding

Medicaid Funding in the State. In recent months, various federal healthcare reform proposals have
circulated through state and national political arenas to replace or modify the Affordable Care Act
(“ACA”) enacted in 2010 which could affect the amount of federal funding states receive for Medicaid.
The State has been actively engaged with other state and federal partners to inform the discussion and
advocate for healthcare funding reform (more state flexibility, for example); however, general uncertainty
around what changes may ultimately be legislated or executively adopted remain. In any case, the State’s
Medicaid program is positioned to respond to additional healthcare reforms at the federal level.

On the State level, in 2017 the State secured a federal Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services
waiver approval to issue of benefits as contemplated by House Bill 437 of the Legislature’s 2016 General
Session, which will extend Medicaid coverage to 4,000-6,000 extremely low-income adults without de-
pendent children. This waiver was implemented on November 1, 2017 and will be funded at the tradition-
al federal Medicaid match rate, along with revenues from a newly—imposed hospital assessment. New
State funds for this program (roughly $17 million) were budgeted upon passage of the authorizing State
legislation in 2016.

The State’s Medicaid participation rate is among the lowest in the nation, with average Fiscal
Year 2017 enrollment approximating 333,000, or 10.7% of the State’s total population (an estimated
3,101,800 as of July 2017). The State has only expanded Medicaid to a fraction of the newly eligible pop-
ulation under ACA, as previously noted, and did so at the traditional federal match rate. As such, the State
would not be directly affected by changes to federal funding for the expansion demographic. The State
receives a higher than average Federal Medical Assistance Percentage at roughly 70%; however, the State
also has one of the lowest rates of spending per full-benefit Medicaid enrollee and has a history of State
funding innovations such as imposing hospital assessments and moving to capitation payments for Medi-
caid provider networks.
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While the State does not currently anticipate a material adverse impact from potential changes to the
ACA, there can be no assurance that any current health care laws and regulations will remain in their cur-
rent form or that any potential changes to the laws and regulations governing health care funding would
not have a material adverse financial impact on the State.

Federal Funding in the State Budget. Approximately 78% percent of federal funds included in the
State’s Fiscal Year 2018 budget are funding to the following programs: Medicaid ($1.853 billion); educa-
tion, including special education, school lunch, and Title I for disadvantaged students ($520 million);
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance ($310 million); transportation ($365 million); Temporary Assistance
for Needy Families ($105 million); National Guard ($67 million), Office of Rehabilitation ($64 million);
and Women Infants and Children ($45 million). Not only do federal dollars fund a large portion of the
State’s major social service programs, federal dollars also play a key role in funding programs that pro-
vide care for elderly veterans, clean drinking water, and air pollution prevention.

Although the State receives a large portion of its funding for social service programs from federal
funds as discussed above, a recent Pew Charitable Trust report on federal spending ranked the State as
ninth lowest in total federal spending relative to gross domestic product (“GDP”) when all federal spend-
ing is accounted for. When measured on a per—capita basis, the State has the lowest total per capita feder-
al spending. This is, in part, because the State’s population is the youngest in the nation and consequently
the State receives a much smaller portion of federal dollars than other states for programs such as Social
Security and Medicare, two of the largest federal entitlement programs targeted to the elderly. As of 2014,
the State is one of 20 states that receive less than 30% of total state revenue from federal funds. While no
comparison is yet available with other states, the State’s percentage of federal funds appropriated through
the state budget is approximately 27% in Fiscal Year 2018 and is below the State’s 10-year average of
28%.

While the State does not anticipate any material adverse impact from changes in federal funding, fed-
eral budget cuts proposed by the current administration could negatively impact the amount of federal
funding the State receives in future years. There can be no assurance that current levels of federal funding
to the State will be maintained or that any potential federal budget cuts and potential decreases in flow
through of funds to states would not have a material adverse financial impact on the State. The State can-
not predict now what, if any, effect such decreases in federal spending would have on the State’s budget.

Federal Sequestration. Pursuant to the Budget Control Act of 2011 (the “BCA™), cuts to federal pro-
grams necessary to reduce federal spending to levels specified in the BCA (known as “sequestration”)
were ordered in federal fiscal years ending September 30, 2013 through 2021, and were subsequently ex-
tended through September 30, 2024. These reductions include cuts to the subsidy payments to be made to
issuers of Build America Bonds (“BABs”) and various other federal expenditures.

The State anticipates that any future reductions of subsidy payments with respect to the State’s and
the Authority’s $1,251,150,000 of outstanding BABs (the State’s $1,113,740,000 of general obligation
bonds and $31,225,000 of water revenue bonds; and the Authority’s $106,185,000 of lease revenue
bonds) or reductions in other federal grants because of sequestration would have no material impact on
their operations or financial position. The State cannot predict whether Congress will act to avoid or ex-
tend sequestration in the future.

LEGAL MATTERS
General

The approving opinion of Chapman and Cutler LLP, Bond Counsel to the Authority and the State,
concerning the validity of the 2018 Bonds, in substantially the form set out in “APPENDIX E—
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PROPOSED FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL” to this OFFICIAL STATEMENT, will be
provided at the time of delivery of the 2018 Bonds.

Bond Counsel has reviewed those portions of the OFFICIAL STATEMENT captioned: “THE
2018 BONDS (except the portions under the captions “—General,” “—Estimated Sources And Uses Of
Funds,” and “—Book-Entry System”) and “TAX MATTERS—Federal Income Tax Matters Of
2018 Bonds,” and “—State Tax Exemption For The 2018 Bonds” and “APPENDIX D—BASIC DOCU-
MENTATION” to the OFFICIAL STATEMENT. Bond Counsel also prepared and has reviewed “AP-
PENDIX E—PROPOSED FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL” to the OFFICIAL STATE-
MENT, which sets forth the anticipated form of Bond Counsel’s opinion on the 2018 Bonds. Bond Coun-
sel has not assumed responsibility for the remaining material in the OFFICIAL STATEMENT and has
not verified independently the information set out therein. In addition, Bond Counsel has not assumed
responsibility for any agreement, representations, offering circulars, or other material of any kind not
mentioned in this paragraph, relating to the offering of the 2018 Bonds for sale.

Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the State by the Office of the Attorney General of the
State. Certain legal matters regarding this OFFICIAL STATEMENT will be passed on for the Authority
and the State by Gilmore & Bell P.C.

Absence Of Litigation Concerning The 2018 Bonds

There is no litigation pending or threatened against the 2018 Bonds questioning or in any matter relat-
ing to or affecting the validity of the 2018 Bonds.

On the date of the execution and delivery of the 2018 Bonds, certificates will be delivered by the Au-
thority to the effect that to the knowledge of the Authority, there is no action, suit, proceeding or litigation
pending or threatened against the Authority, which in any way materially questions or affects the validity
or enforceability of the 2018 Bonds or any proceedings or transactions relating to their authorization, exe-
cution, authentication, marketing, sale or delivery or which materially adversely affects the existence or
powers of the Authority.

A non-litigation opinion issued by the State’s Attorney General, dated the date of closing, will be
provided stating, among other things, that there is not now pending, or to his knowledge threatened, any
action, suit, proceeding, inquiry, or any other litigation or investigation, at law or in equity, before or by
any court, public board or body, challenging the creation, organization or existence of the State, the Au-
thority or DFCM, or the titles of its respective officers to their respective offices, or the ability of the
State, the Authority or DFCM, or its respective officers to authenticate, execute or deliver the 2018 Bonds
or such other documents as may be required in connection with the issuance and sale of the 2018 Bonds,
or to comply therewith or perform its respective obligations thereunder, or seeking to restrain or enjoin
the issuance, sale or delivery of the 2018 Bonds, or directly or indirectly contesting or affecting the pro-
ceedings or the authority by which the 2018 Bonds are issued, the legality of the purposes for which the
2018 Bonds are issued, or the validity of the 2018 Bonds or the issuance and sale thereof.

Miscellaneous Legal Matters

The State, its officers, agencies, and departments, are parties to numerous routine legal proceedings,
many of which normally occur in governmental operations.

See “APPENDIX A—COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT OF THE STATE OF

UTAH FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017—Notes to the Financial Statements—Note 16. Litigation, Contingen-
cies, and Commitments” (CAFR page 116).
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Attorney General’s Opinion Of Effect Of Legal Proceedings On State’s Ability To Make Timely
Payments On 2018 Bonds

Based on discussions with representatives of the Authority and the State’s executive and legislative
departments, the Attorney General is of the opinion that the miscellaneous legal proceedings against the
State or the Authority, individually or in the aggregate, are not likely to have a material adverse impact on
the Authority’s ability to make its payments of the principal of and interest on the 2018 Bonds as those
payments come due or the State’s ability to make its payment of Rentals as those payments come due.

TAX MATTERS
Federal Income Tax Matters Of 2018 Bonds

Federal tax law contains a number of requirements and restrictions which apply to the 2018 Bonds,
including investment restrictions, periodic payments of arbitrage profits to the United States, requirements
regarding the proper use of bond proceeds and the facilities financed therewith, and certain other matters.
The Authority and the State has covenanted to comply with all requirements that must be satisfied in or-
der for the interest on the 2018 Bonds to be excludable from gross income for federal income tax purpos-
es. Failure to comply with certain of such covenants could cause interest on the 2018 Bonds to become
includible in gross income for federal income tax purposes retroactively to the date of issuance of the
2018 Bonds.

Subject to the Authority’s and the State’s compliance with the above-referenced covenants, under
present law, in the opinion of Bond Counsel, interest on the 2018 Bonds is excludable from the gross in-
come of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes and is not included as an item of tax prefer-
ence in computing the federal alternative minimum tax for individuals and corporations, but interest on
the 2018 Bonds is taken into account, however, in computing an adjustment used in determining the fed-
eral alternative minimum tax for certain corporations.

In rendering its opinion, Bond Counsel will rely upon certifications of the State with respect to certain
material facts within the Authority and the State’s knowledge. Bond Counsel’s opinion represents its legal
judgment based upon its review of the law and the facts that it deems relevant to render such opinion and
is not a guarantee of a result.

The Code includes provisions for an alternative minimum tax (“AMT”) for corporations in addition to
the regular corporate tax in certain cases. The AMT, if any, depends upon the corporation’s alternative
minimum taxable income (“AMTI”), which is the corporation’s taxable income with certain adjustments.
One of the adjustment items used in computing the AMTI of a corporation (with certain exceptions) is an
amount equal to 75% of the excess of such corporation’s *“adjusted current earnings” over an amount
equal to its AMTI (before such adjustment item and the alternative tax net operating loss deduction). “Ad-
justed current earnings” would include certain tax—exempt interest, including interest on the 2018 Bonds.

Ownership of the 2018 Bonds may result in collateral federal income tax consequences to certain tax-
payers, including, without limitation, corporations subject to the branch profits tax, financial institutions,
certain insurance companies, certain S corporations, individual recipients of Social Security or Railroad
Retirement benefits and taxpayers who may be deemed to have incurred (or continued) indebtedness to
purchase or carry tax—exempt obligations. Prospective purchasers of the 2018 Bonds should consult their
tax advisors as to applicability of any such collateral consequences.

The issue price (the “Issue Price™) for each maturity of the 2018 Bonds is the price at which a sub-
stantial amount of such maturity of the 2018 Bonds is first sold to the public. The Issue Price of a maturi-
ty of the 2018 Bonds may be different from the price set forth, or the price corresponding to the yield set
forth, on the inside cover page hereof.
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Owners of 2018 Bonds who dispose of 2018 Bonds prior to the stated maturity (whether by sale, re-
demption or otherwise), purchase 2018 Bonds in the initial public offering, but at a price different from
the Issue Price or purchase 2018 Bonds subsequent to the initial public offering should consult their own
tax advisors.

If a 2018 Bond is purchased at any time for a price that is less than the 2018 Bond’s stated redemp-
tion price at maturity, the purchaser will be treated as having purchased a 2018 Bond with market dis-
count subject to the market discount rules of the Code (unless a statutory de minimis rule applies). Ac-
crued market discount is treated as taxable ordinary income and is recognized when a 2018 Bond is dis-
posed of (to the extent such accrued discount does not exceed gain realized) or, at the purchaser’s elec-
tion, as it accrues. The applicability of the market discount rules may adversely affect the liquidity or sec-
ondary market price of such 2018 Bond. Purchasers should consult their own tax advisors regarding the
potential implications of market discount with respect to the 2018 Bonds.

An investor may purchase a 2018 Bond at a price in excess of its stated principal amount. Such excess
is characterized for federal income tax purposes as “bond premium” and must be amortized by an investor
on a constant yield basis over the remaining term of the 2018 Bond in a manner that takes into account
potential call dates and call prices. An investor cannot deduct amortized bond premium relating to a tax—
exempt bond. The amortized bond premium is treated as a reduction in the tax—exempt interest received.
As bond premium is amortized, it reduces the investor’s basis in the 2018 Bond. Investors who purchase a
2018 Bond at a premium should consult their own tax advisors regarding the amortization of bond premi-
um and its effect on the 2018 Bond’s basis for purposes of computing gain or loss in connection with the
sale, exchange, redemption or early retirement of the 2018 Bond.

There are or may be pending in the Congress of the United States legislative proposals, including
some that carry retroactive effective dates, that, if enacted, could alter or amend the federal tax matters
referred to above or affect the market value of the 2018 Bonds. It cannot be predicted whether or in what
form any such proposal might be enacted or whether, if enacted, it would apply to bonds issued prior to
enactment. Prospective purchasers of the 2018 Bonds should consult their own tax advisors regarding any
pending or proposed federal tax legislation. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any pending or
proposed federal tax legislation.

The Internal Revenue Service (the “Service”) has an ongoing program of auditing tax—exempt obliga-
tions to determine whether, in the view of the Service, interest on such tax—exempt obligations is includi-
ble in the gross income of the owners thereof for federal income tax purposes. It cannot be predicted
whether or not the Service will commence an audit of the 2018 Bonds. If an audit is commenced, under
current procedures the Service may treat the Authority and the State as a taxpayer and the Bondholders
may have no right to participate in such procedure. The commencement of an audit could adversely affect
the market value and liquidity of the 2018 Bonds until the audit is concluded, regardless of the ultimate
outcome.

Payments of interest on, and proceeds of the sale, redemption or maturity of, tax—-exempt obligations,
including the 2018 Bonds, are in certain cases required to be reported to the Service. Additionally, backup
withholding may apply to any such payments to any 2018 Bond owner who fails to provide an accurate
Form W-9 Request for Taxpayer Identification Number and Certification, or a substantially identical
form, or to any 2018 Bond owner who is notified by the Service of a failure to report any interest or divi-
dends required to be shown on federal income tax returns. The reporting and backup withholding re-
guirements do not affect the excludability of such interest from gross income for federal tax purposes.

State Tax Exemption For The 2018 Bonds
In the opinion of Bond Counsel, under the existing laws of the State, as presently enacted and con-

strued, interest on the 2018 Bonds is exempt from taxes imposed by the Utah Individual Income Tax Act.
Bond Counsel expresses no opinion with respect to any other taxes imposed by the Authority and the
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State or any political subdivision thereof. Ownership of the 2018 Bonds may result in other state and local
tax consequences to certain taxpayers. Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any such collateral
consequences arising with respect to the 2018 Bonds. Prospective purchasers of the 2018 Bonds should
consult their tax advisors regarding the applicability of any such state and local taxes.

MISCELLANEOUS
Bond Ratings

Moody’s and S&P have rated the 2018 Bonds “Aal”, and “AA+", respectively, as of the date of this
OFFICIAL STATEMENT.

Any explanation of the significance of these outstanding ratings may only be obtained from the rating
service furnishing the same. The above ratings are not recommendations to buy, sell or hold the
2018 Bonds. There is no assurance that such ratings will be maintained for any period or that the ratings
may not be lowered or withdrawn entirely by the rating agencies if, in their judgment, circumstances so
warrant. Any such downward change or withdrawal of such rating may have an adverse effect on the
market price of the 2018 Bonds. The Authority and the State have not applied to Fitch for a rating on the
2018 Bonds.

Trustee

The obligations and duties of the Trustee are described in the Indenture and the Trustee has undertak-
en only those obligations and duties that are expressly set out in the Indenture. The Trustee has not inde-
pendently passed upon the validity of the 2018 Bonds, the security therefore, the adequacy of the provi-
sions for payment thereof or the exclusion from gross income for federal tax purposes of the interest on
the 2018 Bonds. The Trustee may resign or be removed or replaced as provided in the Indenture. Such
Trustee is empowered to take various actions set forth in the Indenture.

Municipal Advisor

The State has entered into an agreement with the Municipal Advisor where the Municipal Advisor
provides financial recommendations and guidance to the State with respect to preparation for sale of the
2018 Bonds, timing of sale, tax—exempt and taxable bond market conditions, costs of issuance and other
factors relating to the sale of the 2018 Bonds. The Municipal Advisor has read, participated in the drafting
of and provided the information in certain provisions of this OFFICIAL STATEMENT. The Municipal
Advisor has not otherwise audited, authenticated or verified the information set forth in the OFFICIAL
STATEMENT, or any other related information available to the State, with respect to accuracy and com-
pleteness of disclosure of such information, and no guaranty, warranty or other representation is made by
the Municipal Advisor respecting accuracy and completeness of the OFFICIAL STATEMENT or any
other matters related to the OFFICIAL STATEMENT. Municipal Advisor fees are contingent upon the
sale and delivery of the 2018 Bonds.

Independent Auditor

The financial statements of the State as of June 30, 2017, and for the fiscal year then ended, are in-
cluded as “APPENDIX A—COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT OF THE STATE
OF UTAH FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017” to this OFFICIAL STATEMENT and have been audited by the
office of the State Auditor, as indicated in its report thereon (CAFR page 14). The State has neither re-
guested nor has been obligated to obtain the consent of the State Auditor to include its report in this OF-
FICIAL STATEMENT and therefore the State Auditor has not performed any procedures with respect to
such financial statements after the date of its report.
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Additional Information

The foregoing description of the 2018 Bonds does not purport to be complete and is expressly made
subject to the exact provisions of the complete documents, copies of which are available for inspection at
the offices of the Municipal Advisor during the offering of the 2018 Bonds, and subsequently, at the of-
fice of the Trustee in Denver, Colorado.

Any statements in this OFFICIAL STATEMENT involving matters of opinion, whether or not ex-
pressly so stated, are intended as such and not as representations of fact.

The Appendices attached hereto are an integral part of this OFFICIAL STATEMENT and should be
read in conjunction with the foregoing material.

This PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT is in a form deemed final for purposes of paragraph
(b)(1) of Rule 15¢c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission.

This OFFICIAL STATEMENT and its distribution and use have been duly authorized by the State.

State of Utah, State Building Ownership Authority
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APPENDIX A

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT OF THE STATE OF UTAH
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017

The CAFR of the State for Fiscal Year 2017 is contained herein. Copies of current and prior financial
reports are available on various Web sites and upon request from the contact person as indicated under
“INTRODUCTION—Contact Persons” above.

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (“GFOA”) have
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the State for its CAFR for
the 32" consecutive year, beginning with Fiscal Year 1985 through Fiscal Year 2016.

The State has submitted its Fiscal Year 2017 CAFR to GFOA to determine its eligibility for a Certifi-
cate of Achievement. The State believes that its Fiscal Year 2017 CAFR continues to meet the Certificate
of Achievement program requirements.

To be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a governmental unit must publish an easily readable and
efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report whose contents conform to program stand-
ards. Such reports must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal re-
quirements and be submitted within six months after the State’s Fiscal Year end. A Certificate of
Achievement is valid for a period of one year only.
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To the Citizens, Governor,
and Members of the Legislature
of the State of Utah:

It is our pleasure to present the 2017 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the State of Utah in accordance with Section
63A-3-204 of the Utah Code. Responsibility for the accuracy of the data and the completeness and fairness of the presentation,
including all disclosures, rests with the State’'s management. To the best of our knowledge and belief, the enclosed data accurately
presents the State’s financial position and results of operations in al material respects in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP). Webelievethat all disclosures necessary to enablethereader to gain an understanding of the State's
financial activities are included.

Internal Control — The State's systems of internal control over assets recorded in the accounting system have been designed to
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance of safeguarding assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and to
ensure the reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that
the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived and that the evaluation of costs and benefits requires
estimates and judgments by management.

Independent Auditors — In compliance with state statute, an annual financia audit of the “ State Reporting Entity” is completed
each year by the Office of the State Auditor in conjunction with other independent audit firms. Their audits were conducted in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial
audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. The Utah State
Auditor’s report and the opinion on the fair presentation of the Basic Financial Statements are included in the Financial Section
of this report.

Single Audit — Federal regulations al so require the State to undergo an annual “ Single Audit” in conformancewith theTitle2 U.S.
Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for
Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Information related to the Single Audit, including the schedule of expenditures of federal
awards, audit findings and recommendations, summary of prior audit findings, and the Utah State Auditor’s report, isissued in a
separate report.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) — Thediscussion and analysisprovides an overview and analysis of the State's
Basic Financia Statements. This letter of transmittal is intended to complement the MD& A and should be read in conjunction
with it.

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

Structure —Asshown in the Organizational Chart, state government isdivided into three separate branches: legidlative, executive,
andjudicial. Thedutiesof each branch areoutlinedinthe Constitution of Utah, which can beamended only by voteof theL egislature
and amajority vote of the State’s citizens, and in the Utah Code, which can be amended by the L egislature or by citizen initiatives.
State government provides various servicesto over 3,109,000 citizens. Servicesinclude building and maintaining roads; providing
public safety, health, and environmental protection services to protect the general welfare of the State’s citizens; helping adults,
children, and families through difficult times such as abuse, divorce, illness, death, and unemployment; fostering an attractive
business climateto encourage economic growth; and protecting publiclandsand natural resourcesfor conservation and recreational
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activities. The State also provides significant financial support to its higher education institutions, local governments, and school
districts to help those entities meet the specific needs of their constituents.

The State Reporting Entity — The State Reporting Entity includes the primary government and its component units. The primary
government of the State of Utah includes all funds, agencies, boards, and commissions that make up itslegal entity. In addition to
these primary government activities, thisreport includesinformation rel ated to component unitsfor which the primary government
isfinancially accountable. Although such information is provided in thisreport, the MD& A and Basic Financia Statements focus
on the primary government and its activities. Separately issued financial statements are available from the significant discretely
presented component units and should be read to obtain abetter understanding of their financial conditions. Additional information
on al discretely presented component units can be found in Note 1. A. to the financial statements.

Budgetary Process and Control — The Constitution of Utah requires that budgeted expenditures not exceed estimated revenues
and other sources of funding, including beginning fund balances. Annually, the Governor is required to submit a balanced budget
for the governmental funds with an annual appropriated budget (General, Education, Transportation, Transportation Investment,
and Debt Service Funds), by function (e.g., health), and activity (e.g., medical assistance) to the Legislature. The Legidlature
authorizes expenditures by lineitem in the annual Appropriations Acts. Lineitemisthelegal level of budgetary control. The Acts
also identify the sources of funding for budgeted expenditures. In the event actual revenues are insufficient to cover budgeted
expenditures, the Governor must order budget reductions or call a special session of the Legislature to address budget issues.
Adjustments to the budget may also be made throughout the year for changes in departmental or fund revenues so that line items
and funds will not end the fiscal year in a deficit position. For additional information on the budgetary process and control, see
the Required Supplementary Information and related notes.

INFORMATION USEFUL IN ASSESSING A GOVERNMENT’S ECONOMIC CONDITION

Local Economy — The Utah economy continues to out-
perform national averages. Utah's economy is expected to
grow moderately through 2018 on the strength of steady job
and wage growth.

Utah’sunemployment rate averaged 3.4 percent in 2016, and
is expected to increase dlightly to an average of 3.5 percent
in2017, and decreaseto 3.3 percentin 2018. 1n 2016, personal
income increased by 5.2 percent and nonagricultural wages
increased by 5.8 percent. In 2017, persona income is
expected to increase by 6.3 percent and nonagricultural
wages are expected to increase by 9.0 percent. Taxable retail
sales increased by 5.4 percent in 2016 and are expected to
increase by 7.8 percent in 2017.

Total construction value was $8.2 hillion in 2016, a 15.5

percent increase from the prior year, dueto anincreasein the

value of additions, alterations, and repairs and also

nonresidential  construction. This marked the sixth

consecutive year in which total construction value has

increased. In 2017, total construction value is expected to

increase to $8.6 hillion, a 4.9 percent increase. Residential

construction was $4.1 billion in 2016, a2.5 percent increase

from the prior year as housing continued to play arolein the

economic expansion. Residential permit valueisexpectedto

increase to $4.6 hillion in 2017, a 12.2 percent increase.
Source: State of Utah Revenue AssumptionsWorking Group, Moody’s Economy.com,
and IHS Global Insight.

In 2017, Utah's population is estimated at 3,109,000, which is an increase of 1.9 percent over the prior year. Utah had positive net

migration of approximately 25,600 peoplein 2016 and is expected to grow by 22,700 in 2017. Utah has had positive net migration

for the past 27 years and this trend is expected to continue in the coming years.

Industries — Utah's job market continues to expand as it rebounds from the national recession that began in late 2007. Utah's
nonagricultural employment is expected to increase by 3 percent in 2017 and by 2.8 percent in 2018, which is dightly below the
Utah average yearly rate of 3.1 percent (1950 through June 2017). All industrial sectors added jobs to Utah's employment base,
with the exception of information services, which contracted by 1,900 jobs, and natural resources and mining, which contracted
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by 700 jobs. Professional and business added 10,300 new jobs, with professional, scientific, and technical services contributing
most of the gains. Trade, transportation, and utilities added 6,500 new jobs, with most of the increase in retail trade. Education
and health services added 6,100 new jobs, with the largest increase in health services and socia assistance. Construction added
5,900 new jobs, primarily in specialty trade contractors. Theresultsfor August 2016 to August 2017 are presented in the following
table.

Jobs by Industry of Utah’s Labor Force
(expressed in thousands)

Components of

Number of Jobs Labor Force
August (p) August (r) Numerical Percentage August (p)
2017 2016 Change Change 2017

Trade, Transportation, and Utilities................ 279.80 273.30 6.50 2.38 % 19.00%
Professional and BUSINess............ccocceveereennnene 216.80 206.50 10.30 4.99 % 14.80%
Education and Health Services..........coeveuenene 193.60 187.50 6.10 325 % 13.20%
Government (Local/Federal)..........ccccevvenenee. 153.20 150.10 3.10 2.07 % 10.50%
Leisure and HOSpItality .....c.cceeeerereecneririceenne 146.00 143.10 2.90 2.03 % 10.00%
ManUFaCTUMNNG......cvovvereeerereeeeee e 129.60 126.50 3.10 2.45 % 8.80%
CONSLTUCHION....ovveveeresieeeeeesesie e seseeeas 101.00 95.10 5.90 6.20 % 6.90%
Financial ACtVItIES.......cccovevveneireceee 84.60 82.80 1.80 217 % 5.80%
Government (State/Higher Ed.) ........cccceeveneee. 74.40 73.00 1.40 1.92 % 5.10%
Other SENVICES. ..o 41.90 40.50 1.40 3.46 % 2.90%
INFOIMAELION ...ceeee e 36.20 38.10 (2.90) (4.99)% 2.50%
Natural Resources and Mining ..........c.cceeueuee. 8.00 8.70 (0.70) (8.05)% 0.50%

o = 1,465.10 1,425.20 39.90 100.00%

Source: Utah Department of Workforce Services and the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, August 2017.
(p) = preliminary (r) = revised

Outlook — The national economy is expected to continue to grow moderately in the last half of 2017 and into 2018. Asin prior
recoveries, the Utah economy continues to grow more rapidly than the nation. Demographic advantages, a diverse economy,
appealing business climate, and increasing labor force participation will continue to be advantages for the Utah economy. Despite
this positive outlook for both the national and Utah economies, downside risksremain. At the national level, risksinclude changes
to federal trade and fiscal policies, and geopolitical instability. At thelocal level, risk factorsinclude the supply of workers, overall
confidenceintheeconomicfuture, andair quality issues. Overall, Utahisexpected to grow moderately barring any major disruptions
to the national and global economies.

FINANCIAL PLANNING AND POLICIES

Debt Administration — As part of long-term financial
planning, the State has used a combination of bonding and
pay-as-you-go methods to meet its infrastructure needs. In
fiscal year 2007 the State bonded less and primarily funded
projects with the pay-as-you-go method using one-time and
ongoing money. In fiscal years 2008 through 2014, under
budget constraints coupled with a low interest rate
environment, the State el ected to increase its debt by issuing
bonds for highway and/or building projects that otherwise
would have been funded from current resources. During the
years debt was issued, the State continued to fund some
projects with cash. In fiscal years 2015 and 2016, the State
continued its prudent fiscal management by paying cash for
most building, highway, and other projects.

Infiscal year 2015, the State authorized $474.7 million in general obligation debt for the new prison project. There were no general
obligation bond issuances, authorizations or refundingsin fiscal year 2016. Infiscal year 2017, the State authorized $1.047 billion
in general obligation bonds for highway construction projects and authorized an additional $101 million for the prison project. As
of June 30, 2017, the State’ s general obligation debt per capitawas $719. The State has an aggressive policy of repaying itsgeneral



obligation debt within seven years for debt associated with capital facilities and fifteen years for highway construction projects.
More information about the State’s long-term debt is found in Note 10 to the Basic Financial Statements.

Revenue and Expenditure Forecasts — Economists and budget analysts from the Executive and Legidative branches of
government work with expertsfrom the private sector and academiato devel op the consensusrevenueforecast used for establishing
the State's annual budget. The final 2017 consensus revenue forecast projected an increase of 4.7 percent in fiscal year 2017 from
2016 actual revenue for combined General and Education Fund. For fiscal year 2018, 5.7 percent growth is projected. The long-
term average annual revenue growth rate, adjusted for inflation, was approximately 3.4 percent for fiscal periods 1971 through
2016. See the Budgetary Highlights — General Fund in the MD& A for a comparison of budgeted to actual results for fiscal year
2017.

Budget Stabilization — In accordance with Sections 63J-1-312 and 313 of the Utah Code, the State maintains the General Fund
Budget Reserve Account in the General Fund (the “Rainy Day Fund”) and an Education Fund Budget Reserve Account in the
Education Fund (the" Education Reserve”). Statelaw requires 25 percent of any revenue surplusin the General Fund to be deposited
in the Rainy Day Fund after any required Medicaid growth savings transfer is made (see Medicaid Sustainability section below)
and 25 percent of any revenue surplusin the Education Fund to be deposited in the Education Reserve, in each case up to astatutory
limit. State law limits the totals of the Rainy Day Fund and Education Reserve based on the amount of appropriations from the
General Fund and Education Fund, respectively, for the fiscal year in which the surplus occurred. For additional information on
the State's budget stabilization accounts see Note 12.B.

Medicaid Sustainability — The State implemented reformsin the Medicaid program in an effort to bring Medicaid growth more
inlinewith overall state revenue growth. Thereformsalign financial incentivesin the health care system by replacing the fee-for-
service model with one or more risk-based delivery models. When aGeneral Fund revenue surplus occurs, an amount representing
the Medicaid growth savings from the new risk-based delivery models will be deposited into the “ Medicaid Budget Stabilization
Account.” The account will then be used to meet the growing needsin the program in years when growth is expected to be at |east
8 percent. For additional information on the State’s budget stabilization accounts, see Note 12.B.

Public Education Growth — Projectionsindicate that an additional 10,100 new studentswill enroll infall 2017. Dueto the current
and future enrollment growth, and the demands it places on state funding, public education continues to be atop priority for the
Governor and the Legislature. The Office of the Legislative Fiscal Analyst developed a Public Education Distribution Model that
allows legidlators to see how proposed education policy changes will impact funding.

Federal Funding — In an effort to prepare for potential future reductionsin federal funding, Section 63J-1-219 of the Utah Code
requires most state agencies including public education and higher education institutions to report specific federal funding
information to the Legislature. Annually, these entities must report total federal receipts received the preceding fiscal year in
addition to providing contingency plansin the event federal receipts are reduced by either 5 percent or 25 percent.

The Legidature created the Federal Funds Commission to study and make recommendations on federal funding issues. The
Commission is tasked with considering the financial stability of the federal government, the risk that the State will experience a
reduction in the amount or value of federal funds, and methods to avoid or minimize the risk. Legislators also passed legislation
that requires economists and budget analysts from the Executive and Legidative branches of government to consider expected
changesin federal funding when preparing the annual revenue volatility report and, if appropriate, recommend changesto amounts
or limits of reservefunds. Legisation passed in the 2017 General Session (Senate Bill 209, Budgeting Revisions) requires, as part
of the annual review and analysis of revenue estimates, a comparison of estimated federal fund receipts to 15-year trends.

In addition, all federal funds for state agencies must go through the annual appropriations process. To gain tighter control over
federal grants that span several years, the Legislature also requires multiyear grants to go through an approval and summary
reguirements process, including approval in the annual Appropriations Acts.

Spending Limitation — The State has a statutory appropriations limit. The appropriations limit adjusts annually pursuant to a
statutory formula based on population and inflation. The definition of appropriations includes only appropriations from General
Fund and Education Fund sources (spending for public education and for transportation is exempt from the limitation). For the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the State was $592.433 million below the appropriations limitation.

Adequate Funding for Ongoing Programs — The Legidature has been working toward ensuring all programs have adequate
ongoing funding. Comingintothe 2017 General Session of theL egislature, beforeaccounting for growthin either costsor revenues,
Utah had a structural surplus of $12.8 million. This surplus was primarily associated with Senate Bill 80, Infrastructure Funding
Amendments, passed during the 2016 General Session. The hill eliminates, over time, two transportation earmarks. Legislators
closed the 2017 General Session with a General and Education Fund structural deficit of $6.1 million. The structural imbalance



is associated with revenue bills that take effect in future budget years—fiscal year 2019 and later. More than half of this deficit was
offset by pre-funding $3.4 million in future General and Education Fund employee healthcare costs.

Operating/Capital Expenditure Accountability — During the 2014 General Session, the Legislature passed laws and rules to
implement budget policy changes. These budget bills were, in part, aimed at smoothing revenue volatility by recognizing above
trend growth, managing the volatility with rainy day deposit mechanisms, and treating windfalls as one-time revenue. The
Legislature added in-depth budget reviews to the regular budget process. The legidation also required that the Office of the
Legislative Fiscal Analyst prepare, before each annual general session of the Legidature, a summary showing the current status
of the State's debt, long-term liabilities, contingent liabilities, General Fund borrowing, reserves, fund and nonlapsing balances,
and cash-funded capital investments, as compared to the prior nine fiscal years. In addition, the Legidative Fiscal Analyst also
implemented a“fiscal health dashboard” website where legislators and citizens can quickly and easily check Utah's fiscal health.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

During fiscal year 2017, the State of Utah continued to rank among the top states in private sector job growth and overall job
growth. Dueto continued economic expansion, the consensusrevenueforecast adopted during the 2017 General Session anticipates
that fiscal year 2018 will mark the eighth consecutive year of growth in unrestricted General Fund and Education Fund revenue
collections.

Approximately $385 million in new unrestricted revenue was available for appropriation during the 2017 General Session from
thefiscal year 2016 surplusand revenue growth forecast for fiscal years 2017 and 2018. Under the consensusforecast, $372 million
of thisrevenue was availabl e for ongoing appropriations and $13 million for one-time appropriations. In addition, the Legislature
re-directed $113 million from various sources, including program savings and reductions, fund balances, and various restricted
account reserves. Together, new revenue and funding reallocations provided $498 million for new appropriations in fiscal years
2017 and 2018. Highlightsof new appropriationsfor public and higher education, infrastructure, and other prioritiesaresummarized
below.

Public Education —During the 2017 General Session, the L egislatureincreased public education appropriationsby $235.2 million.
Thisrepresentsover 47 percent of new unrestricted appropriationsfrom the General Fund and Education Fund. Thelargestincreases
for public education included $115.5 million ongoing for a4 percent increase in the value of the Weighted Pupil Unit (WPU —the
primary funding mechanism for public education); $68 million ($64 million ongoing and $4 million one-time) for an anticipated
student enrollment increase of approximately 10,100 in fall 2017; and $10.5 million one-time for a new school for the deaf and
theblind. Altogether, the fiscal year 2018 state K-12 budget provides a 6.2 percent increasein the state portion of public education
funding, compared to fiscal year 2017.

Higher Education — State funding for higher education, including capital development projects, was increased by nearly $102
million during the 2017 General Session, which represents 21 percent of new unrestricted appropriations from the General Fund
and Education Fund. A total of $31.5 million was provided for new higher education facilities. Thisisin addition to $20 million
in ongoing capital development funding appropriated in the 2016 General Session. Other significant increases included $27.5
million ongoing for staff compensation and benefitsin fiscal year 2018; $8 million ongoing for the Board of Regents' Scholarship
program; $6.5 million one-time for performance-based funding; $3.5 million ongoing for enrollment growth; $4 million ongoing
for the USHE Engineering Initiative; $2 million ongoing for Strategic Workforce Investments; $3.1 million ongoing for Student
Athlete Graduation Improvement; $3 million ongoing for market demand programs and $2 million ($1 million ongoing and $1
million one-time) for equipment at Utah's technical colleges. Excluding capital development, the General Fund and Education
Fund appropriations for Higher Education increased by 5.4 percent in fiscal year 2018 compared to fiscal year 2017.

Social Services — During the 2017 General Session, the Legislature appropriated $60.4 million, including $36.0 million ongoing,
in new statefunding for social serviceprograms. Thelargest appropriationsincluded $17.4 million ongoing for Medicaid matching
funds for local mental health authorities and non-Medicaid behavioral health treatment for the justice reform population; $13.4
million, including $250 thousand ongoing, for homeless and affordable housing programs; $6.9 million, including $3.3 million
ongoing, for the Division of Services for People with Disabilities (DSPD) to meet additional needs for individuals receiving
disability servicesand salary increasesfor direct care staff who provide servicesto DSPD clients; $4 million ongoing for Medicaid
caseload increases; $3 million ongoing for Jail-Based Forensic Competency Restoration; $2.7 million ongoing for Baby Watch
Early Intervention Program casel oad increases; and $1.4 million ongoing for Medicaid dental coverage for disabled adults.

Public Safety —During the 2017 General Session, the Legislature appropriated $5.9 million ongoing to implement anew pay plan
for correctional officers and $860 thousand ongoing to increase the pay range for Utah Highway Patrol troopers. The Legislature
also appropriated $1.3 million, including $1.1 million ongoing, to implement the provisions of House Bill 200, Sexual Assault Kit
Processing Amendments. The bill requiresthat beginning July 1, 2018, all sexual assault kits must be submitted within 30 daysto
the State Crime Lab for testing. The Legislature also addressed comprehensive juvenile justice reform through HB 239, Juvenile
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Justice Amendments, which included provisionsto (1) expand effective pre-court interventions, focus pre-adjudication detention
on higher-risk youth, and devel op local detention alternatives statewide; (2) protect public safety by prioritizing the spacein secure
facilities and providing community supervision for those who pose the highest risk to public safety to hold youth offenders
accountable and reduce recidivism; and (3) support performance-based contracting for programs delivered to juveniles. The
Legislature appropriated $1.2 million, including $1 million ongoing, to support juvenile justice reform.

Capital Projects — The Legidlature appropriated an operating and capital budget of $182.1 million from all sourcesin fiscal year
2018for thecapital budget lineitems, whichisa29 percent decreasefrom fiscal year 2017. In additionto $51.5 million appropriated
for higher education capital projects, the Legislature also appropriated $119.1 million for capital improvements, $500 thousand
ongoing in pass-through for Olympic venue critical repairs and improvements, and $555 thousand for Snow College for aland
purchase. The Legidature increased ongoing funding for operations and maintenance costsin new and existing facilities by $1.8
million. As noted above in the Debt Administration section, an additional $101 millionin general obligation bondswere approved
for the state prison project.

Transportation — In addition to $584 million appropriated from the Transportation Investment Fund for new highway projects,
the Legislature approved the issuance of $1.047 billion in general obligation bonds over four years to accelerate transportation
projects throughout the state (discussed above in the Debt Administration section). To ensure the gastax keeps pace with inflation,
the Legislature passed Senate Bill 276, Transportation Funding Modifications, during the 2017 General Session. The bill indexes
the minimum gas tax rate to the rate of inflation, which may increase revenue from gas and diesel purchases by an estimated $4.2
millionin fiscal year 2019 and by $9.5 million in fiscal year 2020. The bill also phases out sales tax earmarks for transportation,
returning $5.1 million to the General Fund in fiscal year 2020.

Employee Compensation—Duringthe2017 General Session, $32.6 millionwasappropriated fromthe General Fund and Education
Fund for non-higher education state employee salary and benefit increases in fiscal year 2018. The Legislature approved the
equivalent of a2 percent salary increase for state employees. In addition to the compensation general increases, $9.9 million was
provided for health insurance cost increases.

State Employee Other Postemployment Benefit Plan — The actuarially determined contribution (ADC) for the State Employee
Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) plan was $29.1 million. The L egislature considered thisA DC when establishing the OPEB
budget for fiscal year 2018. The ADC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is actuarially projected to
fund the benefits over a period of ten years.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial
Reporting to the State of Utah for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. Thiswasthe
thirty-second consecutive year the State has achieved this prestigious award.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized
comprehensive annual financial report. Thisreport must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principlesand applicablelegal
requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement isvalid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current comprehensive annua financial
report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements, and we are submitting it to GFOA to determine
itseligibility for another certificate. We are committed to this effort, and we intend to maintain ahighly qualified and professional
staff to make this certification possible.

The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and dedicated service of the entire staff of the
Division of Finance, Department of Administrative Services. We a so express our gratitude to the budget and accounting officers
throughout state government and the Office of the State Auditor for their assistance.

Sincerely,

John C. Reidhead, CPA
Director of Finance
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OFFICE OF THE
STATE AUDITOR

Independent State Auditor’s Report

To Members of the Utah State Legislature
and

The Honorable Gary R. Herbert

Governor, State of Utah

Report on the Financial Statements

Wehaveaudited theaccompanying financial statementsof thegovernmental activities, thebusiness-typeactivities,
the aggregate discretely presented component units, each magor fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the State of Utah (State) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the
financia statements, which collectively comprise the State’s basic financia statements, as listed in the table of
contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility isto express opinionson thesefinancial statementsbased on our audit. Thefinancial statements

for the funds or entities noted bel ow were audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and

our opinions, insofar as they relate to the amounts included for these entities, are based solely on the reports of

the other auditors.

» School and Institutional Trust Funds Office which represents 96 percent of the assets, 96 percent of the fund
balances, and 79 percent of the revenues of the Permanent Trust Lands Fund.

» Student Assistance Programs which represent al of the assets, net position, and revenues of the Student
Assistance Programs major enterprise fund.

*  Public EmployeesHealth Program, University of Utah Hospitalsand Clinics, University of Utah’scomponent
units, and Utah State University Research Foundation which collectively represent 24 percent of the assets,
18 percent of the net position, and 42 percent of the revenues of the aggregate discretely presented component
units.

» Utah Retirement Systems and Utah Educational Savings Plan which represent 80 percent of the assets, 81
percent of the fund balance/net position, and 35 percent of the revenues/additions of the aggregate remaining
fund information.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financia audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

Utah State Capitol Complex, East Office Building, Suite E310 « Salt Lake City, Utah 84114-2310 « Tel: (801) 538-1025 « auditor.utah.gov



An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considersinternal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statementsin order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’sinternal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evauating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide abasis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to above
present fairly, inall material respects, therespectivefinancial position of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the State as of June 30, 2017, and the respective changes in financial position and, where
applicable, cash flowsthereof for theyear then ended in accordance with accounting principlesgenerally accepted
in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

For fiscal year 2017, the State implemented Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 74 —
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans and Statement 75— Accounting
and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (OPEB). Asaresult of these changes
in accounting principle, the State recorded reductionsin beginning net position of $146.9 millionfor governmental
activities, $2.2 million for business-type activities, and $1.4 million for discrete component units. The amounts
reported for ending net position reflect the required net OPEB liabilities and deferred inflows of resourcesrelated
to the State Employee and Elected Official OPEB Plans as of June 30, 2017. See Notes 2 and 19 for further
information. Our opinions are not modified with respect to these matters.

Also, dueto statutory and constitutional changes, the accounting and financial reporting for the Trust Lands Fund
(permanent fund) has been evaluated and changed to provide amore complete presentation of activity within the
permanent fund. All investment income, administrative costs and disbursementsto beneficiaries are now reported
within the permanent fund. Asaresult of thischange, for fiscal year 2017 an additional $56 million of investment
income, $14.1 million of administrativecosts, and $41.9 million of distributionsto beneficiarieshave beenreported
in the permanent fund. See Note 2 for further information. Our opinions are not modified with respect to these
matters.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Americarequire that the following information
— management’s discussion and analysis (pages 17-30) and the budgetary comparison schedules and information
about the State’s pension plans, other postemployment benefit plans, and infrastructure assets reported using the
modified approach (pages 132-146) —be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not apart of the basic financial statements, isrequired by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
who considers it to be an essentia part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriateoperational, economic, or historical context. Wehaveapplied certain limited proceduresto therequired
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express
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an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinionson thefinancial statementsthat collectively comprise
the State'sbasic financial statements. The supplementary information, such asthe combining and individual fund
financial statements and schedules, and the other information, such as the introductory and statistical sections,
are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not arequired part of the basic financial statements.

The combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules (pages 149-195) are the responsibility of
management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statementsand certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America by us and other auditors. In our opinion,
based on our audit, the procedures performed as described above, and the reports of the other auditors, the
combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in
relation to the basic financial statements asawhole.

The introductory and statistical sections (pages 1-11 and 197-237, respectively) have not been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required By Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have a so issued our report, dated December 1, 2017, on
our consideration of the State’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the State’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Bt the Sz Quditr
Office of the State Auditor
December 1, 2017
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State of Utah Management’s Discussion and Analysis Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

INTRODUCTION

The following is a discussion and analysis of the State of Utah's financial performance and condition, providing an overview of
the State'sactivitiesfor thefiscal year ended June 30, 2017. Pleaseread it in conjunctionwith thetransmittal | etter inthe Introductory
Section of this report and with the State's financial statements that follow this section.

HIGHLIGHTS

Government-wide

e Tota assets and deferred outflows of resources of the State exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $24.8
billion (reported asnet position). Of thisamount, $2.049 billion (unrestricted net position) may beusedto meet thegovernment’s
ongoing obligations while $22.751 billion is restricted for specific uses or invested in capital assets.

* The State's total net position increased by $1.191 billion or 5.04 percent over the prior year. Net position of governmental
activitiesincreased by $1.087 billion or 5.34 percent. Net position of business-type activities increased by $104.033 million
or 3.2 percent.

Fund Level

e The governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $5.649 billion, an increase of $213.232 million in
comparison with the prior year. Approximately 31.07 percent or $1.755 billion of the ending fund balance is considered
unrestricted (committed, assigned, or unassigned) and is available for spending either at the government’s discretion or upon
legidlative approval.

e The General Fund ended the fiscal year with a $9.585 million surplus. This surplus is after statutory transfers of $18.548
million to the Medicaid Budget Stabilization Account, $2.055 million to the General Fund Budget Reserve Account (Rainy
Day Fund), and $2.055 million to the Wildland Fire Suppression Fund.

e TheEducation Fund ended theyear with a$17.608 million surplusafter astatutory transfer of $12.337 millionto the Education
Budget Reserve Account.

»  TheState' sstabilizationaccounts, the General Fund Budget ReserveAccount (Rainy Day Fund), Medicaid Budget Stabilization
Account, and Education Budget Reserve Account, ended the fiscal year with balances of $145.668 million, $44.457 million,
and $361.802 million, respectively.

»  Salestax revenues in the governmental funds increased $100.461 million or 4.36 percent, compared to $98.497 million or
4.47 percent increase in the prior year. Total tax revenues increased $79.125 million or 3.74 percent in the General Fund and
$223.738 million or 5.96 percent in the Education Fund.

Long-term Debt

*  The State’slong-term bonded debt increased anet $176.310 million or 4.19 percent. General obligation bondsfor the primary
government decreased $349.791 million or 13.53 percent, whilerevenuebondsfor the primary government increased $526.101
million or 32.37 percent.

e Asaresult of early implementing GASB Statement 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits
Other Than Pensions (OPEB), the primary government recorded a $111.349 million net OPEB liability. The State has two
single-employer defined benefit OPEB plans. As of June 30, the State’'s two single-employer defined benefit OPEB plans are
over 70 percent funded.

e Asaddressed in Note 10, the primary government’s share of the net pension liability is $1.049 billion. Thisis an increase of
$38.576 million or 3.82 percent over the prior year. At December 31, 2016, the net pension liability for the Utah Retirement
Systems was $4.652 billion and the plan’sfiduciary net position as a percent of the total pension liability was 86 percent. See
Note 19 for additional information on the Pension Plans.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Thisreportincludesthe State’ sBasic Financia Statements, Required Supplementary Information, and Supplementary Information.

The Basic Financial Statements include three components: government-wide financial statements, fund financial statements, and
notes to the financial statements.

18



State of Utah Management’s Discussion and Analysis Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Government-wide Statements — Reporting the State as a Whole

The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities together comprise the government-wide financial statements. These
statements provide a broad overview of the State's finances as a whole with along-term focus and are prepared using the full-
accrual basis of accounting, similar to private-sector companies. Thismeans all revenues and expenses are recognized regardless
of when cash is received or spent, and all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources,
including capital assets and long-term debt, are reported at the entity level. The government-wide statements report the State’snet
position—thedifference between assetsand deferred outflowsof resources, comparedtoliabilitiesand deferredinflowsof resources—
and how it has changed from the prior year. Over time, increases and decreases in net position measure whether the State’s overall
financial condition is getting better or worse. In evaluating the State’s overall condition, however, additional non-financial factors
should be considered such as the State’s economic outlook, changesin its demographics, and the condition of its capital assetsand
infrastructure. The government-wide statements report three activities:

*  Governmental Activities — Most of the State’s basic services fall under this activity including education, transportation,
public safety, courts, corrections, health, and human services. Taxes and federal grants are the major funding sources for
these programs.

*  Business-type Activities — The State operates certain activities much like private-sector companies by charging fees to
customersto cover all or most of the costsof providing thegoodsand services. Student | oans, unempl oyment compensation,
water loan programs, and liquor sales are examples of business-type activities.

«  Component Units —A number of entitiesarelegally separate from the State, yet the State remainsfinancially accountable
for them. Colleges and Universities, Utah Communications Authority, and Utah State Fair Corporation are examples of
component units.

Fund Financial Statements — Reporting the State’s Most Significant Funds

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about individual major funds, not the State as a whole. A fund is a
group of related accounts that the State uses to keep track of specific resources that are segregated for a specific purpose. Some
funds are required by law to exist, while others are established internally to maintain control over a particular activity. All of the
State’'s funds are divided into three types, each of which uses a different accounting approach:

*  Governmental Funds —Most of the State’s basic services are accounted for in governmental funds and are essentially the
same functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide statements. Governmental funds use the
modified accrual basis of accounting, which measures the flow of current financial resources that can be converted to
cash and the balances | eft at yearend that are available for future spending. This short-term view of the State’s financial
position hel ps determine whether the State has sufficient resourcesto cover expendituresfor its basic servicesin the near
future.

»  Proprietary Funds — Proprietary fundsinclude enterprise funds and internal service funds and account for state activities
that are operated much like private-sector companies. Like the government-wide statements, proprietary fund statements
arepresented using thefull-accrual basisof accounting. Activitieswhose customersaremostly outside of stategovernment
(e.g., water loans to local governments) are accounted for in enterprise funds and are the same functions reported as
business-type activities. Thus, the enterprise fund financial statements reinforce the information reported for business-
type activitiesin the government-wide statements, but provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows.
Activities whose customers are mostly other state agencies (e.g., motor pool) are accounted for in internal service funds.
Theinternal service fund activities are consolidated with the governmental activitiesin the government-wide statements
because those services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type activities.

*  Fiduciary Funds — Fiduciary funds account for assets that, because of trust relationships, can be used only for trust
beneficiaries. The State is responsible for ensuring these assets are used for their intended purposes. Fiduciary funds use
full-accrual basis of accounting, but are not included in the government-wide statements because their assets are not
available to finance the State’s own programs.

Reconciliation between Government-wide and Fund Statements

The financial statements include reconciliation schedules that explain the differences between the amounts reported for
governmental activities on the government-wide statements (full accrual basis of accounting, long-term focus) with amounts
reported on the governmental fund statements (modified accrual basis of accounting, short-term focus). The following are some
of the major differences between the two statements:

»  Capital assetsandlong-termdebt areincluded onthegovernment-widestatements, but arenot reported on thegovernmental
fund statements.
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State of Utah Management’s Discussion and Analysis Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

«  Capita outlay expenses result in capital assets on the government-wide statements, but are reported as expenditures on
the governmental fund statements.

«  Bondproceedsresultinliabilitiesonthegovernment-wide statements, but are other financing sources on the governmental
fund statements.

« Certain tax revenues that are earned but not yet available are reported as revenue on the government-wide statements,
but are deferred inflows of resources (unavailable revenue) on the governmental fund statements.

Notes to the Financial Statements
The notes provide additional information and schedules that are essential to a complete understanding of thefinancial statements.
The notes apply to both the government-wide financial statements and the governmental fund financial statements.

Required Supplementary Information (RSI)

Following the Basic Financial Statements are budgetary comparison schedules for major funds with legally adopted budgets. In
addition, RSI includes up to ten years of information on the State’s pension plans, including schedules on the changes in the net
pension liability and employer contributions for all systems with up to ten years of information. RSI also includes schedules for
the State’ s defined benefit Other Postempl oyment Benefit Plans and condition assessment datarelated to infrastructure. RSI further
supports the information in the basic financial statements.

Supplementary Information

Supplementary Information includes combining statements for the State’s nonmajor governmental, nonmajor enterprise, internal
service funds, fiduciary funds, and nonmajor discretely presented component units. This section also includes schedules which
compare budgeted expenditures to actual results at the legal level of control, which is generaly the line item level of the
Appropriations Acts.

Statistical Section
This section provides up to ten years of financial, economic, and demographic information.

Adjustments to Beginning Net Position and Other Significant Changes
As described in Note 2 of the financial statements, beginning net position and other significant changes included:

»  $146.876 million decreasein governmental activities—implementation of GASB Statement 75, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions.

e $13.666 million increase in governmental activities— reclassification of afund asrequired by legislation.

e $14.440 million increase governmental activities—to enhance comparability, this discussion and analysis was revised to
reflect the change as if the change had been made in the prior year.

e Implementation of GASB Statement 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures — two tax abatement programs reduced the State’'s
tax revenues by $25.628 million. See Note 15.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE STATE ASAWHOLE

Net Position

The State's total net position increased by $1.191 hillion or 5.04 percent in fiscal year 2017. In comparison, net position in the
prior year increased by $888.913 million or 3.90 percent. The increasein total net position reflects an economy that continues to
improve and the active management of the State’s resources. The change in net position is comprised of the following:

»  Net Investment in Capital Assets — Total net investment in capital assets increased by $891.231 million or 5.75 percent.
The State’s investment in highways and buildings exceeded depreciation and the net additional debt that wasincurred to
finance capital-related projects.

» Restricted Net Position — Total restricted net position increased by $430.875 million or 7.27 percent over the prior year:
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Restricted Net Position of Governmental Activities increased by $385.651 million or 9.98 percent, as follows:
Nonexpendabl e public education increased $235.815 million or 10.40 percent primarily dueto an increasein investment
values as aresult of general market conditions. Net assets restricted for transportation increased by $130.074 million or
64.70 percent primarily due to an increase in unspent restricted revenues as aresult of anew 4.9 cent per gallon gastax
increase, and anincreasein gallons sold. Expendabl e public education net assetsincreased $24.085 million or 1.83 percent
dueto an increase in individual income tax revenues.

Restricted Net Position of Business-type Activities increased by $45.224 million or 2.19 percent. The increase was
primarily due to a $57.205 million increase in the Unemployment Compensation Fund as unemployment compensation
revenues exceeded related claims. Thisincrease was offset by a $9.557 million decrease in restricted net position within
loan programs as aresult of a$22.022 million decreasein the Student Assistance Programs caused by the payoff of aline
of credit. This decrease was offset by small increases across other loan programs.

Unrestricted Net Position — Total unrestricted net position in governmental activities decreased by $191.324 million or
18.92 percent due in part to the implementation of GASB Statement 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, which resulted in the State recording a $109.618 million liability. The
balance of the decrease in unrestricted net position was due to a decrease in the amount unspent and carried forwarded
in the General Fund and for transportation and capital projects. Unrestricted net position in business-type activities
increased by $59.753 million or 5.11 percent due in part to $31.003 million in dedicated sales tax revenues provided by
the State as additional capital for the Water Loan Programs. The balance of the increase was due to the payoff of loans
in the Student Assistance Programs, allowing the balance remaining to be classified as unrestricted.

State of Utah
Net Position as of June 30
(expressed in thousands)

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Primary Government
2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Current and Other ASSetS..........cccceeveeeeeiccveceeenne $ 7542509 $ 7,180926 $ 5280633 $ 5571153 $ 12,823,142 $ 12,752,079
Capital ASSELS........cccveeieeeereeeeee et 18,654,772 18,027,135 91,447 90,715 18,746,219 18,117,850
TOtal ASSELS ... $ 26,197,281 $ 25,208,061 $ 5372080 $ 5,661,868 $ 31,569,361 $ 30,869,929
Deferred Outflows of Resources................... $ 444746  $ 392,288 $ 12538 $ 11979 $ 457,284 $ 404,267
Current and Other Liabilities............c.cccevevernnne. $ 1190336 $ 1,041,096 $ 54,811 $ 56,342 $ 1245147 $ 1,097,438
Long-term Liabilities...........cccoevveeeceecreeeeeerenne 3,869,971 4,092,443 1,945,497 2,321,605 5,815,468 6,414,048
Total Liabilities..........cccvevveeeeeeeeeeeeeceerenns $ 5060307 $ 5133539 $ 2,000,308 $ 2,377,947 $ 7,060615 $ 7,511,486
Deferred Inflows of Resources..................... $ 141,323 $ 112915 $ 25179 $ 40,802 $ 166,502 $ 153,717
Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets....................... $ 16,370572 $ 15478397 $ 19440 $ 20,384 $ 16,390,012 $ 15,498,781
RESICLEA ...t 4,249,945 3,864,294 2,110,776 2,065,552 6,360,721 5,929,846
UNrestricted.........ooveeveveeeieeeceeese s 819,880 1,011,204 1,228,915 1,169,162 2,048,795 2,180,366
Total Net Position..........cccccoeveeverevcvererennen. $ 21,440,397 $ 20,353,895 $ 3,359,131 $ 3,255,098 $ 24,799,528 $ 23,608,993
Percent change in total
Net Position from prior year ..........cccocevevevevevennne. 5.34% 3.20% 5.04%

The largest component of the State’s net position, 66.09 percent, reflects investments in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings,
equipment, intangible assets, roads, and other infrastructure) less the outstanding debt issued to finance those assets. These types
of assets are not available for future spending, nor can they be readily liquidated to pay off their related liabilities. Resources

needed to repay capital-related debt must be provided from other sources.

Restricted net position comprises 25.65 percent of total net position and is subject to constitutional, legal, or external constraints
on use. Net position that is restricted by the Constitution of Utah includesindividual income and corporate income taxes that can
be used only for public and higher education costs and proceeds from fees, taxes, and other charges related to motor vehicles that

can be used only for transportation expenses.

The remaining balance of unrestricted net position may be used to meet the State’s ongoing obligations, though certain laws and
internally imposed commitments or assignments of resources further limit the purposes for which much of the overall net position

may be used.
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The following table and charts summarize the State's total revenues, expenses, and changesin net position for fiscal year 2017:

Revenues

General Revenues:

Other General Revenues..
Program Revenues:

Charges for SErViCes..........oovvmvenieeensenieeseieneenns
Operating Grants and Contributions........................
Capital Grantsand Contributions................cccceuennn.

Total REVENUES.........coeeeeeeecreereerececereeeeeeeees

Expenses
General Government
Human Services/Juvenile Justice Services,
Corrections.....

Public Safety ..
Courts

Natural Resources

Heritage and ArtS...........cccvvieveicicreeceeesee s
Business, Labor, and Agriculture................cccceueee.

Public Education

TranspOrtation.............coeueeevevrecreieerereseee e

Interest and Charges on Long-term Debt ..
Student Assistance Programs..
Unemployment Compensation
Water Loan Programs,

Community and Economic Loan Programs............
Liquor Retail Sales..........ccooeuviecreicicieeicresinns
Other Business-type ACtiVities.............cccovervevnnnnne

Total EXPENSES........ccevieeveriereiiecre e

Net Position — Beginning.............cceveereeereerserniensenns

Adjustment to Beginning Net position....................
Net Position — Beginning asAdjusted ................cc......
Net Position —Ending ...........cccooeecvevveceeveecreseeeeenne

Health and Environmental Quality................c..c......
Higher EJUCELION............cccovieeveiceereiceiecee e
Employment and Family Services..............ccccoueeeee.

State of Utah

Changes in Net Position
for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30
(expressed in thousands)

.............. $ 21,440,397

Governmental Business-type Total Primary Per-ggﬁlage
Activities Activities Government Change
2017 2016* 2017 2016* 2017 2016* 2016-2017

$ 7215793 $ 6870938 $ 57528 $ 29841 $ 7273321 $ 6,900,779 5.40 %

182,793 119,295 49,878 45,318 232,671 164,613 4134 %

.............. 1,234,753 1,113,067 755,106 767,487 1,989,859 1,880,554 5.81 %

.............. 3,994,614 3,632,735 39,053 46,118 4,033,667 3,678,853 9.64 %

.............. 132,708 87,942 — — 132,708 87,942 50.90 %

.............. 12,760,661 11,823,977 901,565 888,764 13,662,226 12,712,741 747 %

476,428 457,564 — — 476,428 457,564 412 %

818,058 765,027 — — 818,058 765,027 6.93 %

297,587 282,538 — — 297,587 282,538 533 %

266,032 245,598 — — 266,032 245,598 832 %

.............. 150,066 142,913 — — 150,066 142,913 5.01 %

.............. 2,719,553 2,600,928 — — 2,719,553 2,600,928 4.56 %

.............. 1,104,855 1,137,364 — — 1,104,855 1,137,364 (2.86)%

.............. 760,777 710,018 — — 760,777 710,018 7.15 %

.............. 225,176 198,190 — — 225,176 198,190 13.62 %

.............. 28,874 27,048 — — 28,874 27,048 6.75 %

.............. 106,523 112,809 — — 106,523 112,809 (5.57)%

.............. 3,748,684 3,554,337 — — 3,748,684 3,554,337 547 %

.............. 888,854 825,923 — — 888,854 825,923 7.62 %

84,820 93,598 — — 84,820 93,598 (9.38)%

— — 136,037 154,247 136,037 154,247 (11.81)%

— — 175,354 182,516 175,354 182,516 (3.92)%

— — 15,998 14,913 15,998 14,913 7.28 %

.............. — — 9,074 5,253 9,074 5,253 72.74 %

.............. — — 277,965 260,755 277,965 260,755 6.60 %

.............. — — 45,612 37,849 45,612 37,849 20.51 %

.............. 11,676,287 11,153,855 660,040 655,533 12,336,327 11,809,388 4.46 %
.............. 1,084,374 670,122 241,525 233,231 1,325,899 903,353
.............. 135,338 128,148 (135,338) (128,148) — —
.............. — — 37 — 37 —
.............. 1,219,712 798,270 106,224 105,083 1,325,936 903,353
.............. 20,353,895 19,555,625 3,255,098 3,150,015 23,608,993 22,705,640
.............. (133,210) — (2,191) — (135,401) —
.............. 20,220,685 19,555,625 3,252,907 3,150,015 23,473,592 22,705,640

$20,353895 $ 3,359,131 $3,255098 $ 24,799,528 $ 23,608,993 5.04 %

*The 2016 amounts presented here have not been restated for the implementation of GASB Statement 75. Compl ete information necessary to fully restate the

2016 amounts was not available. See Note 2.

(Charts on next page.)
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Changes in Net Position

This year the State received 53.24 percent of its revenues from state taxes and 30.50 percent of its revenues from grants and
contributions, primarily fromfederal sources. Inthe prior year, state taxes accounted for 54.28 percent and grantsand contributions
were 29.63 percent of total revenues. Charges for goods and services such as licenses, permits, liquor sales, park fees, and court
fees, combined with other miscellaneous collections, comprised 16.27 percent of total revenuesin fiscal year 2017, compared to
16.09 percent in fiscal year 2016.

Governmental Activities

The State’s total governmental revenues from all sources increased $936.684 million or 7.92 percent. Tax revenues increased
$344.855 million or 5.02 percent due to continued improvement in the economy. These increases are similar to the increase at the
fundlevel. However, dueto differencesin measurement focus and timing of collections, theincrease at the government-widelevel
should not be used to predict future increases at the fund statement or budget level. With the exception of Higher Education, as
discussed bel ow, other significant changesingovernmental activities revenuesand expensesmirror thechangesinthegovernmental
funds. For further discussion, see the section entitled “ Financial Analysis of the State’'s Governmental Funds.”

» Higher Education — Expenses decreased $32.509 million, as compared to the prior year, primarily due to a decrease in
the amount spent by the primary government for building projects completed and transferred to colleges and universities.
When these buildings are completed, ownership is transferred to the colleges and universities and reported as expenses
on the government-wide statements. However, there is no impact on the governmental fund statements.

Thefollowing table showsto what extent program revenues (chargesfor servicesand grants) covered program expenses. For fiscal
year 2017, programrevenuescovered $5.362 billion or 45.92 percent of $11.676 billionintotal program expenses. For theremaining
$6.314 billion or 54.08 percent of program expenses, the State relied on state taxes and other general revenues.

(Table on next page.)
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State of Utah
Net Cost of Governmental Activities
(expressed in thousands)

Less Net Program Revenues
Program Program Program as a Percentage of
Expenses Revenues (Expenses)/Revenues Program Expenses
2017 2017 2017 2016 2017 2016
General GOVENMENt .........coveeeeereeeeerereeeeeereeenns $ 476,428 $ 319,936 $ (156,492) $ (180,876) 67.15% 60.47%
Human Services/Juvenile Justice Services.......... 818,058 359,728 (458,330) (434,867) 43.97% 43.16%
COITECHIONS......ecviuieeeeirieie st 297,587 5177 (292,410) (278,370) 1.74% 1.48%
PUDIIC SAfEY ...ovoeeeeeeieie e 266,032 146,369 (119,663) (99,647) 55.02% 59.43%
COUMS...coeeieiiireesere et 150,066 53,799 (96,267) (88,427) 35.85% 38.13%
Health and Environmental Quality ...........ccccc..... 2,719,553 2,199,694 (519,859) (475,481) 80.88% 81.72%
Higher EUCAEION ......c.cuovveeeieiereceeiseseeieirenes 1,104,855 941 (1,103,914) (1,136,201) 0.09% 0.10%
Employment and Family Services 760,777 630,832 (129,945) (123,315) 82.92% 82.63%
Natural RESOUICES.........cueerereeererieieresie e 225,176 154,555 (70,621) (66,375) 68.64% 66.51%
Heritage and ArtS.......cceeueeenieieecieieeeeeie e 28,874 11,636 (17,238) (16,218) 40.30% 40.04%
Business, Labor, and Agriculture..... 106,523 103,615 (2,908) (3,862) 97.27% 96.58%
Public Education ...........cocovvevernenens 3,748,684 756,951 (2,991,733) (3,017,854) 20.19% 15.09%
Transportation.........coceeeereceeerereseeereneens 888,854 618,842 (270,012) (305,020) 69.62% 63.07%
Interest and Charges on Long-term Debt. 84,820 — (84,820) (93,598) 0.00% 0.00%
Total Governmental Activities ..........cccccuve.e. $ 11,676,287 $ 5362075 $ (6,314,212) $ (6,320,111) 45.92% 43.34%

Business-type Activities

Changes in the State's business-type activities mirror the changes noted in the State’s proprietary funds, except that the State's
proprietary fundsprovide detail summarized by program or fund, whilethe business-type activity ispresented overall. The changes
in the State’s proprietary funds are detailed in the section entitled “ Financial Analysis of the State’s Proprietary Funds.”

Overall, total revenues from the State’s business-type activities increased by $12.801 million or 1.44 percent from the prior year
as follows: Other general revenues increased by $32.247 million due to an increase in dedicated sales tax revenue within the
Community Impact Loan Fund and the Water Loan Programs. Thisincrease was offset by a $12.381 million decrease in charges
for services within the Student Assistance Programs and Water Loan Programs. The remaining decrease in total revenues was the
result of a $7.065 million decrease in operating grants within the Water Loan Programs and Community Impact Loan Fund.

Total expenses for the State’s business-type activities increased dlightly by $4.507 million or 0.69 percent as follows. Expenses
related toliquor retail salesincreased $17.210 million dueto higher salesvolume. Expensesrel ated to other business-typeactivities
increased $7.763 million dueto small increasesin various other business-typeactivities. Community and Economic Loan Programs
expenses increased $3.821 million due to an increase in loans provided for the State Small Business Credit Initiative Program.
These increases were offset by an $18.210 million decrease in expenses in the Student Assistance Programs and a $7.162 million
decrease in expenses in the Unemployment Compensation Fund.

All of the State's business-type activities operate primarily from program revenues, except for the Water Loan Programs and the
Agriculture Loan Fund that by law receive dedicated sal estax revenues and the Community Impact L oan Fund that receivesfederal
mineral lease revenues transferred from the General Fund to provide additional capital for loans. Accounting standards require
unemployment taxes that are collected from employers and deposited in the Unemployment Compensation Fund to be reported
aschargesfor servicesrather than taxes. Therefore, taxesin the business-type activities are comprised entirely of salestax revenues
in the water and agriculture loan programs.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE STATE’S GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Adjustments to Beginning Fund Balances

Asdescribed in Note 2 of thefinancia statements, beginning fund balances of governmental funds were adjusted as noted bel ow.
To enhance comparability, amounts presented in this discussion and analysiswere restated to reflect these changes asif the changes
had been made in the prior year, except as noted.

e $14.440 million increase in the Education Fund (major special revenue fund), dueto a prior period adjustment related to
tax accruals.

e $13.666 million increase in Miscellaneous Special Revenue (nonmajor specia revenue fund) — reclassification of the

Wildland Fire Suppression Fund from a fiduciary fund to a nonmajor special revenue fund, as required by legidation.
Due to the nature of the adjustment, only the the beginning fund balance is restated.

24



State of Utah Management’s Discussion and Analysis Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

e $4.387 million decrease in the Transportation Fund (major specia revenue fund) — required by legislation.

e $4.387 million increase in the Transportation Investment Fund (major capital projects fund) — required by legislation.

Fund Balances

At June 30, 2017, the State's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of $5.649 hillion. Of this amount,
$2.551 hillion or 45.17 percent is nonspendable, either due to itsform or legal constraints, and $1.342 billion or 23.76 percent is
restricted for specific programsby external constraints, constitutional provisions, or contractual obligations. Unspent bond proceeds,
revenuerestricted for public education, revenue that derives from the operation of motor vehicles on public highways, and mineral
lease revenues areincluded in restricted fund balance. An additional $1.246 billion or 22.06 percent of total fund balance has been
committed to specific purposes. Committed amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless approved by the Legislature. An
additional $499.239 million or 8.84 percent of total fund balance has been assigned to specific purposes, as expressed by legislative
intent. The remaining $9.585 million or 0.17 percent of fund balance is unassigned and available for future appropriations.

State of Utah
Governmental Fund Balances as of June 30, 2017
(expressed in thousands)

Transpor- Transportation Trust

General Education tation Investment Lands Nonmajor
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Total
Nonspendable. $ 34,089 $ — % 13905 $ — $ 2503353 $ — $ 2,551,347
Restricted ............... 33,516 881,222 338,480 1,984 — 86,899 1,342,101
Committed...........coceeeerireeieerenennne 559,791 — 584 431,989 — 254,010 1,246,374
ASSIgNEd.........cccovevieeeeereeeeeeeeine 194,174 — 3,000 — — 302,065 499,239
Unassigned.........cceveneeeeeereeenenenens 9,585 — — — — — 9,585
L | $ 831,155 $ 881,222 $ 355,969 $ 433973 $ 2503353 $ 642974 $ 5,648,646
Percent change from prior year...... W T 216%  3264% (10.86)% 10.40% W T 392%

General Fund

The Genera Fund’stotal fund balance decreased by $26.999 million or 3.15 percent in fiscal year 2017. The General Fund ended
the year with a $9.585 million surplus, or unassigned fund balance due to the lapsing of unspent budgeted dollars. In the prior
year, the General Fund ended the year with a $7.196 million surplus, or unassigned fund balance.

Specific changesin the General Fund balance include the following:

»  Nonspendable fund balance decreased by $99.837 million or 74.55 percent as follows: Prepaid items decreased $92.270
million due to a decrease in Accountable Care Organization payments and the timing of payments required in advance
within the Medicaid program. The long-term portion of loans receivabl e al so decreased $7.820 million dueto areduction
of loan balances within Internal Services Funds.

»  Restricted fund balance decreased by $4.608 million or 12.09 percent due to decreases in revenues set aside for specific
purposes due to constraints that are imposed externally or by law.

«  Committed fund balance increased overall by $13.009 million or 2.38 percent due to an increase in monies set aside for
specific purposes as follows: Agency carry-forward monies increased $20.128 million. Yearend statutory transfers
increased the M edicaid Budget Stabilization Account by $18.548 million and the General Fund Budget Reserve Account
by $2.055 million. These increases were offset by a$27.821 million decrease in monies set aside for committed purposes
as the balances were utilized or were no longer needed for those purposes. The General Fund Budget Reserve Account
ended the year with a balance of $145.668 million.

»  Assigned fund balanceincreased by $62.048 million or 46.96 percent. Theincreasewas primarily dueto a$99.838 million
decrease in prepaid items classified as nonspendable items, as noted above. Items classified as nonspendable reduce
assigned fund balance. Assigned fund balance al so increased $11.827 million primarily dueto an increasein tax accruas
assigned by law. These increases were offset by a$49.617 million decrease in the amount set aside for next year’s budget.

Total tax collections in the General Fund increased $79.125 million or 3.74 percent. Sales and use tax increased $80.439 million
or 4.50 percent. Overall, salestax revenuein all governmental fundsincreased $100.461 million or 4.36 percent due to moderate
growth in the Utah economy.
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Total General Fund non-tax revenues increased $181.920 million or 5.09 percent, explained as follows. Federa contracts and
grants increased $151.448 million or 5.50 percent primarily due to a $98.209 million increase in federal funding for Medicaid
programs and a $25.491 million increase in Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) funding. Federal contracts and
grantsin the General Fund also increased $30.605 million due to federal funds provided for the State Office of Rehabilitation as
oversight for the Office was transitioned from the State Board of Education to the Department of Workforce Services during fiscal
year 2017. Overall, total federal funding for the Officeincreased only $1.168 million when eval uating the changein federal funding
for both agencies. These increases in non-tax revenues were offset by small decreases in various other contracts and grants.
Additional details regarding the change in federal contracts and grants are provided below in terms of the corresponding changes
in expenditures. Charges for services increased $18.218 million or 3.88 percent driven by demand for government services.
Investment incomeincreased $9.050 million or 108.42 percent dueto higher interest rates. Federal mineral leaserevenueincreased
$4.542 million or 6.56 percent due to higher energy prices over the prior year.

Overadl, total General Fund expenditures increased by $244.737 million or 3.82 percent as the State responded to a growing
economy and an increase in the public’'s demand for some government services. Significant changes in expenditures occurred in
the following areas:

e Health and Environmental Quality — Total expenditures increased $109.810 million or 4.19 percent primarily due to
growth in the Medicaid and CHIP programs. These expenditures increased $101.103 million as aresult of: (1) caseload
growth; (2) authorized rateincreases, including managed health care; and (3) increases in payments to nursing homesfor
qualifying services. The remaining increase in expenditures was due to a$9.372 million increase within Disease Control
and Prevention for: (1) additional servicesin the Ryan White program, (2) growth in Drug Overdose Prevention program;
and (3) staffing and operating increases in the Office of the Medical Examiner to meet increasing casel oad growth.

»  Higher Education—Total expendituresincreased $43.376 million or 4.49 percent dueto anincreasein state appropriations.
The State provided $24.900 million for higher education employee compensation and benefit increases. Major new state-
funded system-wide initiatives included: (1) $5 million for performance-based funding; (2) $5 million for the market
demand programs; (3) $8.800 million for one-time for the Board of Regents’ Scholarship; and (4) $2.500 million for the
Utah College of Applied Technology campus program expansion.

»  Employment and Family Services — Total expenditures increased $39.973 million or 5.71 percent as oversight for the
Office of Rehahilitation was transitioned from the State Board of Education to the Department of Workforce Services
during fiscal year 2017. Overall, expenditures for the Office of Rehabilitation remained level.

e Human Services and Juvenile Justice Services — Total expendituresincreased $38.367 million or 5.05 percent, duein part
to a $26.667 million funding increase within Services for People with Disabilities. The increase was used to provide a
$16.658 million salary increase for direct care service workers and $10.009 million for Medicaid Home and Community
Based Waiver Services to fund the cost of increased utilization of services and to move people waiting for servicesinto
the program. Expenditures also increased $5.056 million for substance abuse and mental health treatment programs and
$3.128 million for child and family services.

»  Natural Resources — Total expendituresincreased $22.279 million or 11.46 percent dueto anincreasein funding provided
for fire suppression and prevention, watershed improvement projects, trail improvement projects and state parks
maintenance and improvements.

In addition to the significant changesin expenditures described above, theincreasein overall expendituresisalso dueto a$24.023
million increase as aresult of a2 percent salary increase for most state employees and increases in health insurance costs.

Budgetary Highlights — General Fund

The Legislature adopted theinitial fiscal year 2017 budget during the 2016 General Session (January to March 2016). Theoriginal
consensus revenue estimates in the General Fund budget at the start of fiscal year 2017, excluding department-specific revenue
sources such as federal grants and departmental collections, and miscellaneous transfers, were 3.60 percent higher than the final
fiscal year 2016 budget. Theincreasewas primarily dueto growth in the sales and use tax dueto the strong Utah economy. Budgeted
expenditures were 0.10 percent lower than the final fiscal year 2016 budget. The Governor and L egislature were able to balance
the original fiscal year 2017 budget with revenue growth and funding reallocations.

The fiscal year 2017 budget was again addressed during the 2017 General Session of the Legislature (January to March 2017).
General revenue estimates had increased $3.197 million from the original consensus estimates adopted during the 2016 Genera
Session due to projected increasesin insurance premium tax, liquor profits, and salestax, offset by decreasesin severance tax and
other various revenues. Revenue estimates and base budget resources allowed the L egislature to set aside $8.104 million for fiscal
year 2018 appropriations. Intheend, taxesand other general revenuesended theyear $11.350 million abovefinal budgeted amounts.
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Final budgets of department-specific revenue sources decreased from original budgets primarily due to a decrease in expected
federal contracts and grants. Actual department-specific revenues decreased from final budgets primarily due to adecreasein the
state mineral | ease revenue and miscellaneous other revenues. Final budgetsfor many of the departmental -specific revenue sources
and related expenditures such asfederal grants, departmental collections, and miscellaneous revenues, are generally revised based
on actual collections. The difference between final budgeted expenditures and actual expendituresis primarily due to nonlapsing
and unspent restricted funds that will be carried forward to the next year. However, $9.597 million of unspent budgeted dollars
were lapsed back to the General Fund by various agencies.

Education Fund

Restricted fund balancein the Education Fund increased overall by $18.625 million or 2.16 percent from the prior year asrevenues
and transfers in exceeded expenditures and transfers out. The amount unspent and carried forward for education increased by
$33.834 million. Tax accruals restricted by law for education increased by $16.629 million. These increases were offset by a
$50.722 million decrease in amounts set aside for fiscal year 2018 appropriations.

In addition to these changes, the Education Fund ended the year with a $17.608 million surplus, which primarily resulted from
$4.045 million revenue from property tax recapture and $12.337 million remaining in the fund after the $24.674 million revenue
surplus and transfer, explained as follows: In the event of a“revenue surplus’ in the Education Fund, state law requires that 25
percent of the surplus be transferred to the Education Budget Reserve Account, a budget stabilization account. State law requires
an additional 25 percent be transferred to repay prior year transfers out of the account, but limits these transfers to 11 percent of
Education Fund appropriations. Of the $24.674 million revenue surplus, $12.337 million was transferred to the Education Budget
Reserve Account. The Education Budget Reserve Account ended the year with a balance of $361.802 million.

Overadll, total revenue in the Education Fund increased by $174.112 million or 3.99 percent. Individual income tax increased by
$253.025 million or 7.46 percent primarily due to an economy that is growing steadily and sustainably. Corporate income tax
decreased by $28.914 million or 8.15 percent largely due to weaker corporate profits caused by the stronger dollar and diminished
revenue growth. Investment income decreased by $48.494 million as a result of investment income distributed from the Trust
Lands Fund to the Education Fund, which beginning in fiscal year 2017, is now reported as a transfer into the Education Fund
rather than investment income (see Note 2). Net other financing uses decreased $160.532 million or 17 percent dueto a $114.105
million decrease in the amount transferred out of the Education Fund for higher education purposes. The balance of the decrease
was primarily due to the transfer of investment income into the Education Fund, as noted.

Overall, expendituresincreased by $175.947 million or 4.95 percent in the Education Fund. The increase was due to a $181.797
million increase in the Minimum School Program to provide for student enrollment growth and to increase the weighted pupil unit
value, which is the primary funding mechanism for public education. Expenditures also increased by $30.186 million due to the
timing of distributions to local school districts accrued at yearend and by $4.756 million for additiona funding for the Initiative
Programs. Theseincreases were offset by a $45.334 million decrease in expenditures for the State Office of Rehabilitation, which
transitioned from the State Board of Education to the Department of Workforce Services during fiscal year 2017, as noted above.

Transportation Fund

Total fund balance in the Transportation Fund increased $87.596 million or 32.64 percent from the prior year. Restricted fund
balance increased by $131.669 million or 64.56 percent primarily due to an increase in the unspent balance of restricted revenues,
which wastheresult of an increase in motor and special fuelstax, as explained bel ow. Committed fund balance decreased $46.988
million or 98.77 percent due to adecrease in sales and use tax collections, also explained below. Assigned fund balance increased
by $3 million or 100 percent dueto anincreasein unspent general revenues appropriated to the Transportation Fund. Nonspendable
inventory decreased by $85 thousand or 0.61 percent.

Overal, transportation revenuesincreased by $118.977 million or 12.24 percent. Theincrease resulted from the following changes
in revenue as compared to the prior year:

»  Federal contracts and grantsincreased by $99.316 million or 32.35 percent as aresult of timing differences related to
highway construction projects.

e Motor and special fuelstax increased $59.334 million or 13.95 percent due in part to a new 4.9 cent per gallon gas tax
increase and also the result of higher fuel consumption.

e Saesand usetax revenues, statutorily designated for transportation projects, decreased $41.867 million or 99.91 percent

dueto legislation that shifted a1/16 percent sales and use tax earmark from the Transportation Fund to the Transportation
Investment Fund.
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Expenditureswithin the Transportation Fund increased by $137.603 million or 16.50 percent dueto an increasein state and federal
funding provided for highway construction projects. Net other financing uses decreased by $46.409 million or 59.50 percent due
to adecrease in the transfer of certain motor fuel tax revenue to the Transportation Investment Fund.

Authorized federal funding for highway construction remains relatively stable from year to year. However, the spending of state
and federal revenue reflects the timing of highway construction projects, which isimpacted by avariety of circumstances such as
environmental studies or existing weather conditions. In addition, the Department of Transportation has discretion on allocating
federal funds among projects, which impacts the amount of federal revenue reported in the Transportation Fund.

Transportation Investment Fund

Fund balance in the Transportation Investment Fund decreased by $52.877 million or 10.86 percent from the prior year. Restricted
fund balance decreased a slight $409 thousand or 17.09 percent due to achange in the fair value of investments. Committed fund
balance decreased by $52.468 million or 10.83 percent due to an increase in expenditures which utilized sales and use tax revenue
that was unspent in the prior year.

Overall, revenues increased $66.079 million or 12 percent. Sales and use tax revenues, statutorily reallocated from use in the
General Fund to usefor highway projects, increased $62.040 million or 13.26 percent. License, permits, and feesincreased $2.577
million or 3.21 percent as the result of an increase in motor vehicle registration fees. Expenditures increased by $52.915 million
or 15.48 percent fromthe prior year dueto increased spending on highway construction projects. Net other financing uses decreased
by $16.699 million or 5.73 percent primarily due to a net decrease in transfers out for bond payments.

Trust Lands Fund

The fund balance of the permanent Trust Lands Fund increased by $235.815 million or 10.40 percent from the prior year. The
increase was primarily due to a $215.653 million change in investment values because of general market conditions. The fund
balance also increased due to an increase in revenue of $14.710 million generated from land use and a $5.038 million increase
from gains on the sale of land.

The State recently passed legislation that changed the distribution policies for the beneficiaries of the Trust Lands Fund. As a
result, the reporting and accounting was evaluated and changed to provide a more complete presentation of activity within the
Trust Lands Fund; all investment earnings, administrative costs, and disbursements to beneficiaries are now reported within the
Fund. In prior years, only the nonspendable earnings and principal were reported in the Trust Lands Fund with all expendable
activity reported in other funds within the primary government. In fiscal year 2017, $56.032 million of investment earnings was
reported in the Fund and expended asfollows: $14.121 million in administrative costs, $2.908 million distribution to beneficiaries
outside the primary government, and $39.003 million distribution (transfer out) to the School Trust LAND Program within the
Education Fund.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE STATE’S PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Student Assistance Programs

The net position of the Student Assistance Programs increased slightly by $416 thousand or 0.11 percent from the prior year due
to changes in total assets, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources. Total assets decreased $385.665 million mainly due to a
decrease in student loans receivable. These programs received $438.797 million in principal payments on student loans during the
fiscal year. Total liabilities decreased overall by $370.180 million as the Program issued $872.250 million in student loan backed
notes, offset by $305.500 million in payments on principal on student loan revenue bonds and notes, and $922 million in payments
on principal on arelated line of credit. Deferred inflows decreased $16.316 million as a result of a decrease in the fair value of
interest rate swap agreements. Operating revenues decreased $15.051 million dueto a$17.946 million declineininterest on student
loansthat was offset by a$2.960 millionincreasein federal loans servicing revenue. Operating expensesdecreased $18.210 million
primarily due to a decrease in interest expense. Of total net position of $365.130 million, $298.749 million is restricted for use
within the programs by bond covenants or federal law.

Unemployment Compensation Fund

The State’s average unemployment rate for the fiscal year 2017 increased dightly from the prior year. Employer tax revenue
decreased $29.721 million or 12.38 percent due to an overall contribution rate decrease from the prior year. Expenses decreased
$7.162 million or 3.92 percent due to fewer claims paid. Overall, employer taxes and other revenues exceeded benefit payments
resulting in an increase of net position of $57.205 million or 5.52 percent. The entire net position of $1.093 billion is restricted
for use within the programs by state and federal law.

Water Loan Programs
The net position of the Water Loan Programs increased $32.360 million or 3.41 percent from the prior year. Additional capital for
loans was provided from $31.003 million in dedicated sales tax revenues, $14.831 million in investment income, and $8.074
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million in federal grants. These increases were offset by program grant expenses of $10.491 million, other operating expenses of
$3.955 million, and $6.296 million transferred out of the fund for watershed and other construction projects. Of total net position
of $981.920 million, $443.195 million is restricted for use within the Water Loan Programs by federal grant requirements and
$158.195 million is restricted pursuant to bond agreements within the programs.

Community Impact Loan Fund

The net position of the Community Impact Loan fund increased $7.676 million or 1.14 percent from the prior year, primarily due
to investment income of $9.184 million and sales tax revenues of $26 million, which were offset by $21.964 million transferred
out of the fund for community development programs and $5.957 million in operating expenses. There is no restriction on the
Fund's net position.

CAPITAL ASSET AND LONG-TERM DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

The State’s capital assets increased anet $628.369 million during the year. The change consisted of net increases in infrastructure
(i.e., stateroads and bridges) of $313.622 million; constructionin progress of $176.426 million; land and rel ated assets of $101.484
million; building and improvements of $35.660 million; and machinery and equipment of $5.863 million. Therewas anet decrease
in software of $4.686 million. Several buildings financed by the State are actually owned by the colleges and universities, which
are discrete component units of the State. Therefore, while the capital assets are on the component unit’sfinancial statements, any
outstanding debt issued by the State to finance construction of those assets is reported as a liability of the State's governmental
activities. Thisin turn reduces unrestricted net position. As of June 30, 2017, the State had $129.624 million of outstanding debt
related to capital assets of component units.

At June 30, 2017, the State had commitments in capital projects funds of $451.929 million for building projects and $301.284
million for highway construction and improvement projects. The State also had commitments of $290.077 million for road
construction and other contract commitments in the Transportation Fund. Funding for the commitments will come from existing
resources in these funds and from future appropriations and bond proceeds.

The State hasadopted an allowabl ealternativeto reporting depreciation for stateroadsand bridges(infrastructure assets) maintained
by the Utah Department of Transportation (UDOT). Under this alternative method, referred to asthe “ modified approach,” UDOT
must maintain an asset management system and demonstrate that the infrastructure is being preserved at or above established
condition levels. Infrastructure assets accounted for under the modified approach are not depreciated, and maintenance and
preservation costs are expensed.

The State’s established condition level for state roadsis to maintain a certain percentage of mileage at a“fair” or better condition.
The overall system has atarget of 80 percent rated as “fair” or better. The most recent biannual condition assessment completed
in 2015 indicated that 89.32 percent of roadswerein “fair” or better condition. These results reflect maintaining roads above target
percentages and are consistent with calendar year 2014, when 87.51 percent of roads were assessed as “fair” or better condition.

The State's established condition level for bridges isto maintain 50 percent with arating of “good” and no more than 10 percent
of bridgeswith a* poor” rating. The most recent condition assessment, completed in April 2017, indicated that 67.91 percent and
1.45 percent of bridgeswerein “good” and “poor” condition, respectively. These results reflect maintaining bridges at aconsistent
condition level as 2016 when 70.95 percent of the bridges were assessed as “good” or better, and 1.4 percent assessed were in
“poor” condition.

During fiscal year 2017, the State spent $407.191 million to maintain and preserve roads and bridges. Thisamount is59.07 percent
above the estimated amount of $255.992 million needed to maintain these assets at established condition levels.

More information about capital assetsisincluded in Note 8 and more detailed information on the State’s modified approach for
reportinginfrastructureispresentedinthe Required Supplementary | nformati on—Information About I nfrastructure A ssetsReported

Using the Modified Approach.

Long-term Debt

The Constitution of Utah alows the State to contract debts not exceeding 1.50 percent of the value of the total taxable property
of the State (i.e., congtitutional debt limit). The Legislature authorizes general obligation indebtedness within thislimit. The State
Appropriation and Tax Limitation Act (i.e., statutory debt limit) further limits the outstanding general obligation debt of the State
to not exceed 45 percent of the maximum allowable state budget appropriation limit. As of June 30, 2017, the genera obligation
indebtedness of the State was $2.981 hillion bel ow the constitutional debt limit and $1.550 billion below the statutory debt limit.

Revenue bonds of the State Building Ownership Authority are not backed by the general taxing authority of the State, but are
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payablefrom revenue provided through appropriations of the L egislature or other operating revenues. Revenue bonds of the Student
Assistance Programs and Water L oan Programs are not backed by the general taxing authority of the State, but are payable solely
from specific fees or loan repayments as pledged in the bond indentures.

State of Utah
Net Outstanding Bonded Debt as of June 30
(expressed in millions)

Governmental Business-type Total Primary Percentage
Activities Activities Government Change

2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2016 to 2017

General Obligation Bonds................... $ 2235 $ 2585 $ — 3 — 2235 $ 2,585 (13.54)%
Revenue Bonds:

State Building Ownership Auth. ...... 230 249 73 79 303 328 (7.62)%
Student Assistance Programs........... — — 1,812 1,255 1,812 1,255 44.38 %
Water Loan Programs....................... — — 37 42 37 a2 (11.90)%
Total Bonds Payable.................... $ 2,465 $ 2834 % 1,922 % 1,376 $ 4387 $ 4,210 4.20 %

Total general obligation bonds payable net of premiums and discounts decreased $349.791 million. Revenue bonds payable net
of premiums and discounts increased $526.101 million for an overall net increase of $176.310 million during the fiscal year. The
State did not issue general obligation bonds, nor revenue bonds for State Building Ownership Authority or Water Loan Programs
during the year. The Student Assistance Programs issued $872.250 million in student |oan backed notes to retire arelated line of
credit.

The State has other significant long-term debt, such as Pension related liabilities and Other postemployment Benefits (OPEB).
See Notes 18 and 19 for specific information on these liabilities.

The State’s active management of its resources has helped the State maintain its triple-A rating on general obligation bonds from
all three national rating agencies, and double-A rating on lease revenue bonds from two national rating agenciesfrom which ratings
were sought. These ratings are the best available and save millions of dollarsin interest costs each year because the State is able
to obtain very favorable interest rates on new debt. Note 10 contains more information about the State’s outstanding debt.

ECONOMIC OUTLOOK AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET

Original general revenue estimates of the General Fund for fiscal year 2018 are 4.16 percent higher than actual fiscal year 2017
revenues. Original estimatesof the Education Fundfor fiscal year 2018 are4.58 percent higher than actual fiscal year 2017 revenues.
The Legislature balanced the 2018 budget through projected revenue growth, prior year reserves, and funding reallocations.

Preliminary data for fiscal year 2018 show tax revenues to be in line with estimates. The overall unemployment rate is expected
to be 3.50 percent in 2017, adight increase from the average 2016 rate of 3.40 percent. Taxableretail salesare expected toincrease
7.80 percent in 2017 and increase 5.10 percent in 2018. Personal income is expected to increase 6.30 percent in 2017, and
4.90 percent in 2018. Because these indicators are measured on a calendar year basis, the impact on the State budget will not be
fully realized until well into fiscal year 2018. The Governor and Legislature will review the fiscal year 2018 budget again during
the upcoming 2018 General Session and take action as necessary to ensure a balanced budget.

CONTACTING THE STATE’S DIVISION OF FINANCE

Thisfinancial report isdesigned to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors, and creditors with ageneral overview of
the State’'sfinances and to demonstrate the State’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this report
or need additional financial information, please contact the Department of Administrative Services: Division of Finance, Financial
Reporting Section at 2110 State OfficeBuilding, Salt LakeCity, UT, 84114, phone(801) 538-3082 or by email at utahcafr@utah.gov.
You may also visit our website at finance.utah.gov.

The preceding discussion and analysisfocuses on the State’ s primary government operations. With the exception of afew nonmajor
component units, the State’'s component units each issue separate audited financial statements that include their respective
management’s discussion and analysis. Component unit statements may be obtained from their respective administrative offices
or from the Office of the State Auditor, Utah State Capitol Complex, East Office Building, Suite E310, Salt Lake City, UT 84114.
You may also visit their website at auditor.utah.gov.
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State of Utah

Statement of Net Position
(expressed in thousands)

June 30, 2017
Primary Government

Governmental Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units
ASSETS
Cash and Cash EQUIVAIENES........c.covceerceccseee e $ 1,536,991 $ 1,747,908 $ 3,284,899 $ 812,134
INVESIMENS ..o e 1,238,387 13,370 1,251,757 3,214,536
Taxes RECAIVADIE, NEL..........cvuriererieie et 1,242,324 3,304 1,245,628 —
Accounts and Interest Receivable, Net..........cccveericcicceceeees 836,382 152,110 988,492 593,673
Amounts Due From:
COMPONENE UNIES ...ttt 46,553 1 46,554 —
Primary GOVEIMIMENE........cccvueerireereererieesesteseesessesesessssesessssssessssssesessesens — — — 89
Prepaid IHEIMS ...t 20,358 422 20,780 37,342
INVENEOTIES. ...ttt 19,316 39,518 58,834 90,334
INtErNal BAlANCES..........coeiireeieiiiei ittt 23,060 (23,060) 0 —
Restricted Investments.. . 2,389,972 99,571 2,489,543 1,050,910
Restricted Receivables..........cccovvvvrnrerineene. — — — 84,903
Notes/L oans/M ortgages/Pledges Receivable, net. 7,153 3,128,919 3,136,072 92,945
Capital Lease Payments Receivable, net .......... 90,660 — 90,660 —
Pledged Loans Receivables.. — 118,502 118,502 —
OLhEI ASSELS ...ttt 91,353 68 91,421 62,234
Capital Assets:
Land and Other Non-depreciable ASSELS...........oovervricremrenieereeeeenns 1,956,344 24,727 1,981,071 714,368
Infrastructure.................. 14,101,999 — 14,101,999 464,128
CONSLrUCtioN IN PrOgreSS........covviiiiininiineiirei ettt 1,023,877 217 1,024,094 —
Buildings, Equipment, and Other Depreciable ASSELS.........ccccvveeererieene 3,049,452 117,542 3,166,994 8,189,908
LessAccumulated DepreCiation ..........ccvceeerneneereeneseeensesseereenes (1,476,900) (51,039) (1,527,939) (3,970,076)
Total Capital ASSELS........cvrerieerriireerreee s 18,654,772 91,447 18,746,219 5,398,328
TOtAl ASSELS......ovieiec s $ 26,197,281 $ 5,372,080 $ 31,569,361 $ 11,437,428
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Total Deferred Outflows Of RESOUICES .........veererreeeeererseeerireeenenens $ 444,746 $ 12538 $ 457284 $ 160,807
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liahilities..........ccoovveeriinveninicesenseenns $ 1,113,595 $ 50,419 $ 1,164,014 $ 437,682
Amounts Due to:
COMPONENE UNITS.....vcuiirieieiisieienisieeeseseseses s e sessssesesessssesessssssesenses 63 26 89 —
Primary GOVEIMIMENLE.........cccoueuiirireeririeeresieiee s sessesens — — — 46,554
SECUNTIES LENAING ...vviviieiicicrcrccrc e — — — 2,993
UNEAMNEA REVENUE.........cvvrieieiiseicieieciet sttt 76,678 4,319 80,997 150,729
DEPOSIES. ...evreaterer e — 47 47 172,205
Long-term Liabilities:
DUe WIthin ONE YA ......cccuiieiecce s 428,410 401,015 829,425 302,659
DUein More Than ONE YA .......c.cuvuireireriieeieerieieireseseie s sseeseseenenes 3,441,561 1,544,482 4,986,043 1,891,246
Total LiabilitieS.....c.cvvieeeiiccirceee s $ 5,060,307 $ 2,000,308  $ 7,060,615 $ 3,004,068
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Total Deferred INflows Of RESOUICES..........cvvevereveecreiieereieeereeceieees $ 141,323 $ 25179 $ 166,502 $ 54,960
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital ASSELS.........cccvierneerieneereneee e $ 16,370,572 $ 19440 $ 16,390,012 $ 4,105,127
Restricted for:
TrANSPOITBLION ....veieeeeeireete ettt 331,104 — 331,104 —
Public Education — Expendable............cccorieiinnieinreceeesseeeeeie 1,342,358 — 1,342,358 —
Public Education — Nonexpendable............cccviererrirreeneneseeeeeees 2,503,353 — 2,503,353 —
Higher Education — EXpendable ..........ccccuvrieieiveeinreersseesseseseseeens — — — 1,012,414
Higher Education — Nonexpendable.............ccoveiienneneneeeseeeseeees — — — 882,604
DEDE SEIVICE. ...ttt — 158,195 158,195 —
Unemployment Compensation and Insurance Programs.............ccccceeeeee 5,149 1,093,092 1,098,241 245,571
L O8N PrOgramS.......cccereeteieirieieisisiei st — 859,489 859,489 —
Other Purposes — Expendable.. 67,981 — 67,981 11,840
unrestricted........ccovveeernnenes 819,880 1,228,915 2,048,795 2,281,651
TOtal NEE POSITION ...t $ 21,440,397 $ 3,359,131 $ 24,799,528 $ 8,539,207

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of Utah

Statement of Activities
(expressed in thousands)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Program Revenues

Operating Capital Grants
Charges for Grants and and
Activities Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions
Primary Government:
Governmental:
General GOVEIMMENL ........ccciirireereieieereeieeereeeseseesesesssesesenes $ 476,428 $ 182,026 $ 137,142 % 768
Human Services and Juvenile Justice Services 818,058 12,674 347,054 —
(0= o: 0] 03T 297,587 4,824 353 —
PUDIIC SAfELY . ..veveeeeeieecereecereree e 266,032 59,581 86,788 —
(@00 14 £ PESSTS 150,066 51,645 2,154 —
Health and Environmental Quality 2,719,553 315,962 1,883,732 —
Higher Education ..........cccoevvevvieciiieeseeene, 1,104,855 — 941 —
Employment and Family Services 760,777 8,911 621,921 —
NaUral RESOUICES........covrueeeeeireeeeenesie e sesieseesessesesesesesseneneneas 225,176 101,933 52,622 —
Heritage and ArtS ..o 28,874 3,961 7,675 —
Business, Labor, and AgriCulture...........cocoeeereneieneneneninenns 106,523 94,305 9,310 —
PUBIIC EQUCALION .....cveieieeieirieieee e 3,748,684 191,968 564,983 —
TraNSPOTAtiON ......ccvvieiirieiee e 888,854 206,963 279,939 131,940
Interest and Other Charges on Long-term Debt...........ccccoveneeee 84,820 — — —
Total Governmental ACHIVITIES........ccovureerereerrereeesereeeene 11,676,287 1,234,753 3,994,614 132,708
Business-type:
Student AsSiStance Programs..........cccveeeeereeeneeneneneeeseseeeneas 136,037 108,057 26,623 —
Unemployment COmpeNSation..........cccevveeeereeereeeseresesieennens 175,354 210,907 1,378 —
Water Loan Programs........c.cceeeeeeeneeieenenneens 15,998 746 8,074 —
Community and Economic Loan Programs... 9,074 3,393 2,675 —
Liquor Retail Sales......c.coeeevveeeienirieeniennns 277,965 384,009 303 —
Other Business-type ACHIVITIES.......cccoirrereierereereeese e 45,612 47,994 — —
Total Business-type ACtiVIties.........coeeverrenecnienneeene 660,040 755,106 39,053 0
Total Primary GOVEMMENt .........cccorueueerreeeiresieeeeseseenenens $ 12336327 $ 1989859 $ 4,033,667 $ 132,708
Component Units:
Public Employees Health Program............cccccoeeueveeeecvereenenenas $ 623,162 $ 628476 $ 23705 $ —
University of UtaN.......cooeeerneienrceeseceseees e 4,404,100 3,754,146 652,443 74,577
Utah State UNiVErSItY ...c.coveeeerrieeenreecresiecesesieesesesie e 700,468 236,315 289,735 28,941
Nonmajor Colleges and UnivVersities..........coeoveeveeeieresesieennns 1,185,518 498,145 263,879 40,984
Nonmajor Component Units 84,169 25,579 891 15,317
Total Component Units..........ccccceevevenee. $ 6,997,417 $ 5,142,661 $ 1,230,653 $ 159,819
General Revenues:
Taxes:
SAES BNA USE TAX ..ttt
Individual Income Tax Imposed for Education ...........ccceveevevericiesvennne.
Corporate Tax Imposed for Education
Motor and Specia Fuel Taxes Imposed for Transportation.....................
(©191C G 17> = S PSR
B 01 R = - SRS
INVESIMENE INCOME ...ttt e
State Funding for Colleges and Universities
State Funding for Other Component UNitS..........coooeevnieinnneineseeenens
Gain on Sale of Capital ASSELS........ccvvieierreeer e
Miscellaneous..........cccceveerieereeieiiesiennens
Permanent Endowments Contributions.
Capital Contributions.........cc.cccceevvveeniennae.
Transfers—Internal ACHVITIES.......oeeirieinreceee e
Total General Revenues, Contributions and Transfers...........ocoveeeenrnnenees
Change in NEt POSITION .....c.cceiveiiiiieiesieisieieesiee et
Net POSItiON—BegiNNING ......cccoueiiiieiiieeseseee et enan
Adjustment to Beginning Net POSItION..........cocveeirneennneieneecsesnes
Net Position—Beginning as AQJUSLED ...........covvrrererinnreerseeese s
Net POSItTION—ENAING ..o

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of Utah

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Primary Government

Governmental  Business-type Component
Activities Activities Total Units

$ (156,492) $ — 3 (156,492) $ —
(458,330) — (458,330) —
(292,410) — (292,410) —
(119,663) — (119,663) —
(96,267) — (96,267) —
(519,859) — (519,859) —
(1,103,914) — (1,103,914) —
(129,945) — (129,945) —
(70,621) — (70,621) —
(17,238) — (17,238) —
(2,908) — (2,908) —
(2,991,733) — (2,991,733) —
(270,012) — (270,012) —
(84,820) — (84,820 —
(6,314,212) 0 (6,314,212) 0
— (1,357) (1,357) —

— 36,931 36,931 —

— (7,178) (7,178) —

— (3,006) (3,006) —

— 106,347 106,347 —

— 2,382 2,382 —

0 134,119 134,119 0
(6,314,212) 134,119 (6,180,093) 0
— — — 29,019

— — — 77,066
— — — (145,477)
— — — (382,510)
— — — (42,382)
0 0 0 (464,284)
2,402,809 57,528 2,460,337 —
3,646,721 — 3,646,721 —
327,266 — 327,266 —
483,922 — 483,922 —
355,075 — 355,075 —
7,215,793 57,528 7,273,321 0
22,058 49,349 71,407 19
— — — 965,889

— — — 35,760
54,012 529 54,541 —
106,723 — 106,723 192
— — — 37,801

— 37 37 —
135,338 (135,338) — —
7,533,924 (27,895) 7,506,029 1,039,661
1,219,712 106,224 1,325,936 575,377
20,339,455 3,255,098 23,594,553 7,938,090
(118,770) (2,191) (120,961) 25,740
20,220,685 3,252,907 23,473,592 7,963,830
$ 21440397 $ 3359131 $ 24799528 $ 8539207
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Genera Fund
Thisfund isthe principal operating fund of the State. It accounts for all financial resources not accounted for and
reported in another fund.

Education Fund

This fund accounts for all corporate and income taxes that support public and higher education in the State. This
fund is also used to account for specific revenues and expenditures that support the public elementary and secondary
schools.

Transportation Fund
This fund is maintained to account for revenues and expenditures associated with highway construction and
maintenance. Principal funding is provided from dedicated highway user taxes, fees, and federal funds.

Transportation Investment Fund

This capital projects fund is used to account for revenues and expenditures associated with the construction and
reconstruction of specific state and federal highways. Projects designated for the Transportation | nvestment
Capacity program are accounted for within this fund. Funding is provided from highway general obligation bonds,
federal funds, vehicle registration fees, sales and use taxes, and appropriations.

Trust Lands Fund

This permanent fund accounts for the investment earnings, land grants, and the sale of lands received from the
federal Enabling Act. The principal in the fund is perpetual with the earnings used primarily to support public
education.

Nonmajor Funds
Nonmajor governmental funds are presented by fund type within Supplementary I nformation — Combining Statements

and Individual Fund Statements and Schedul es.




State of Utah

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
(expressed in thousands)

June 30, 2017

Capital
Special Revenue Projects Permanent
. Nonmajor Total
. . Transportation Governmental  Governmental
General Education Transportation Investment Trust Lands Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents............cccocoeveeunee. $ 530687 $ 182820 $ 363418 $ — 8 22649 $ 364,713 % 1,464,287
INVESIMENES.......coovemieieeieceeeseieeeeiseienseneenens 58,120 392,125 60,113 387,599 2,389,972 340,430 3,628,359
Receivables:
ACCOUNLS, NEL........corereeceeeeseeeneeeeeeeeeeeenaens 464,671 133,536 96,824 — 107,251 19,689 821,971
Accrued INterest.........o.eeuvenieeeireerieeeieens 87 15 — — 207 7,193 7,502
Accrued Taxes, NEL............ocevereeeneeermeeeneenenens 264,180 880,019 49,095 49,030 — — 1,242,324
Notes/Mortgages, Net ..........ccooevrerreeerrnennnns 573 4,492 — — 2,088 — 7,153
Capital Lease Payments, net ... — — — — — 90,660 90,660
Due From Other Funds.... 47,017 4,436 240 — 1,914 5,154 58,761
Due From Component Units ... 126 — — — — 45,541 45,667
Prepaid [temS.........cccoeeeureeieieiseee e 14,475 — — — — — 14,475
INVENLOTIES.......oeeceeiseece et 687 — 13,905 — — — 14,592
Interfund Loans Receivable............ccocoeuveencnnees 44,872 — — — — — 44,872
Other ASSELS.........coeuureererierirete et eeesseeeens — — — — 91,087 — 91,087
Total ASSELS........ooovvvrrerssssinnirnsisssssnnneenense S 1425495 $ 1597443 $ 583595 $ 436629 $ 2615168 $ 873380 $ 7,531,710
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liahilities......... $ 413025 $ 248981 $ 213925 $ — $ 100561 $ 115308 $ 1,091,800
Due To Other Funds 32,659 583 6,447 672 12 21,557 61,930
Due To Component Units.... 50 8 — — 5 — 63
Unearned REVENUE.............c.oceeemreeeeenerenieninenens 63,955 256 6,078 — — 2,881 73,170
Total Liabilities..........ccoorrvernienrierneenenens 509,689 249,828 226,450 672 100,578 139,746 1,226,963
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unavailable Revenue..............ccccoeoevveeveeveerenninnns 84,651 466,393 1,176 1,984 11,237 90,660 656,101
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources........... 84,651 466,393 1,176 1,984 11,237 90,660 656,101
Fund Balances:
Nonspendable:
Long-term Portion of Interfund Loans
RecaiVable..........cooveeininicrcnieecns 18,927 - - —_ — — 18,927
Prepaid Items...........ccocoeeveveeeeveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeenne 14,475 — — — — — 14,475
INVENTONIES. ...t 687 - 13,905 — — — 14,592
Permanent Fund Principal ...............cocoveveinnen. — — — — 2,503,353 — 2,503,353
RESUCLE. ... 33,516 881,222 338,480 1,984 — 86,899 1,342,101
COMMITEED ...t 559,791 — 584 431,989 — 254,010 1,246,374
ASSIGNED ... 194,174 — 3,000 — — 302,065 499,239
UNESSIQNED ..o 9,585 — — — — — 9,585
Total Fund Balances............ccoocvverneenvenninns 831,155 881,222 355,969 433,973 2,503,353 642,974 5,648,646
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources,
and Fund Balances...........c..cocvevevnvenerenrensisninns $ 1425495 $ 1597443 $ 583,595 $ 436,629 $ 2615168 $ 873380 $ 7,531,710

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

38



State of Utah

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the Statement of Net Position
Governmental Funds
(expressed in thousands)

June 30, 2017

Total Fund Balances — Governmental FUNdS..............cooceeeiiicieeeiecieeeeeerenens $ 5,648,646
The total net position reported for governmental activities in the Statement
of Net Position is different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and
therefore are not reported in the governmental funds: (See Note 8)

Land and Related Non-depreciable ASSELS..........cceevceeecececveveeereeenen. $ 1,956,344

Infrastructure, Non-depreciable............oocevevveeieeeeieceeececeeeceene 14,101,999

CONSEIUCEION iN PrOgIESS.......ccuiiveiiieeieesiete sttt ene e 1,022,111

Buildings, Equipment, and Other Depreciable Assets.... 2,844,713

Accumulated DEPreCiation............ceeveeveeeereeeereereeee et saeeenens (1,363,169) 18,561,998
Deferred inflows of resources are not reported in the governmental funds:

Revenues are not available soon enough after yearend to pay for

the current period’ s expenditures $ 648,618

REGEd t0 PENSIONS......c.covieeeiiecicteceete sttt rens (120,289)

Related to Other Post Employment Benefits..........oocceeeveeiccennns (4,365) 523,964
Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain
activities, such asinsurance, technology services, and fleet operations to
individual governmental funds. The assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources of the internal service funds are
included in governmental activitiesin the Statement of Net Position.............. 30,356
Deferred outflows of resources are not reported in the governmental funds:

Amount on Refunding of Bonded Debt ............cccocveeeeveevieeeeeeine. $ 20,925

Related 10 PENSIONS......c.cciiiirieieieieieeieie e 394,633 415,558
Other assets not available in the current period and therefore are not
reported in the governmental funds:

NEL PENSION ASSEL ...t 259
Long-term liabilities and related accrued interest are not due and payable in
the current period and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds:
(See Note 10)

General Obligation and Revenue Bonds Payable $  (2,399,001)

Unamortized Bond Premiums...........ccccoeeeeeieeeeeieeeceeeseseeesseeenens (66,423)

Accrued Interest on Bonds Payable..............cccoooeeeeeveeeceiececcene (1,259)

Pollution Remediation Obligation ...........cccccoeiiieeeeeiececieceeecieene (5,891)

Settlement Obligation (319

Compensated Absences. (181,557)

Capital LEASES........ceieicteieeeteecte ettt st nan (21,616)

Net Other Postemployment Benefits Liability...........cccccceevviveueenne. (102,850)

Net Pension Liability .......cccccceeeeenieeceeee e (961,468) (3,740,384)
Total Net Position — Governmental ACtiVItieS...........coeeveeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 21,440,397

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of Utah

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
(expressed in thousands)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

i Capital
Special Revenue Projects Permanent
i Nonmajor Total
. . Transportation Governmental ~ Governmental
General Education Transportation Investment Trust Lands Funds Funds
REVENUES
Taxes:
Sales and Use Tax $ 1868946 $ — $ 39 % 529,761 $ — % 4601 $ 2403347
Individual Income Tax — 3,646,112 — — — — 3,646,112
Corporate Tax — 325,701 — — — — 325,701
Motor and Special Fuels Tax — — 484,677 — — — 484,677
Other Taxes 327,007 4,800 12,946 — — 10,110 354,863
Total TAXES....vvvieceerririeerreeieiseeie s 2,195,953 3,976,613 497,662 529,761 0 14,711 7,214,700
Other Revenues:
Federal Contracts and Grants 2,904,697 471,202 406,332 — — 46,484 3,828,715
Charges for Services/Royalties. 487,630 8,531 46,218 — 46,706 78,580 667,665
Licenses, Permits, and Fees.... 27,663 5,934 87,262 82,971 — — 203,830
Federal Minera Lease 73,787 — — — — — 73,787
Intergovernmenta..... — — — — — 19,273 19,273
Investment Income .. 17,397 4,789 2,395 3,965 216,787 21,442 266,775
Miscellaneous Other:
Liquor Sales Allocated for School Lunch.... — 42,723 — — — — 42,723
Miscellaneous and Other ...........c.ouvveerreerien 243,262 23,778 50,858 — — 33,546 351,444
Total REVENUES........cecveeeieirecieirieieens 5,950,389 4,533,570 1,090,727 616,697 263,493 214,036 12,668,912
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General GOVErNMENt ........ceevereeeuereereeeienns 367,825 — — — 14,121 27,680 409,626
Human Services and Juvenile Justice
SEIVICES .....ocvvreeiesee e 798,133 — — — — 6,150 804,283
Corrections... 301,430 — — — — 4,008 305,438
Public Safety .... 223,610 — — — — 30,366 253,976
Courts 147,429 — — — — 4,833 152,262
Hedlth and Environmental Qudlity............... 2,727,556 — — — — 5,818 2,733,374
Higher Education — State Administration .... 73,641 — — — — — 73,641
Higher Education — Colleges and
Universities 934,784 — — — 2,908 44,246 981,938
Employment and Family Services. 740,583 — — — — 13,947 754,530
Natural Resources 216,676 — — — — 8711 225,387
Heritage and Arts. 28,803 — — — — 532 29,335
Business, Labor, and Agriculture... 93,867 — — — — 13,933 107,800
Public Education .. — 3,730,948 — — — 1,865 3,732,813
Transportation — — 971,547 — — 4,115 975,662
Capital OULIAY .....ccerreeeeiriereeieeeee s — — — 394,652 — 274,116 668,768
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement. — — — — — 342,622 342,622
Interest and Other Charges. — — — — — 105,023 105,023
Total Expenditures...........cccocveeeenennns 6,654,337 3,730,948 971,547 394,652 17,029 887,965 12,656,478
Excess Revenues Over (Under)
EXPENGitureS.........crvverrrrersnnrenns (703,948) 802,622 119,180 222,045 246,464 (673,929) 12,434
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Sale of Capital Assets. 116 — 24,570 — 28,339 — 53,025
TransfersIn 938,598 54,290 44,495 60,221 15 694,455 1,792,074
Transfers QUL .......veevveiecieericeneceeceeienne (261,765) (838,287) (100,649) (335,143) (39,003) (83,120) (1,657,967)
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) ......... 676,949 (783,997) (31,584) (274,922) (10,649) 611,335 187,132
Net Change in Fund Balances............ (26,999) 18,625 87,596 (52,877) 235,815 (62,594) 199,566
Fund Balances — Beginning...........cccccveecvnenne 858,154 848,157 272,760 482,463 2,267,538 691,902 5,420,974
Adjustment to Beginning Fund Balances..... — 14,440 (4,387) 4,387 — 13,666 28,106
Fund Balances — Beginning AsAdjusted ........ 858,154 862,597 268,373 486,850 2,267,538 705,568 5,449,080
Fund Balances — Ending...........cccoveeerneniecrnene $ 831,155 $ 881,222 $ 355,969 $ 433973 $ 2,503,353 $ 642974 $ 5,648,646

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of Utah

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances to the Statement of Activities
Governmental Funds
(expressed in thousands)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017
Net Change in Fund Balances — Governmental Funds..............cccoceeveevvennnene. $ 199,566

The change in net position reported for governmental activitiesin the
Statement of Activitiesis different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the

Statement of Activitiesthe cost of those assetsis allocated over their

estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. The primary government

also constructs buildings for component units. When the buildings are

completed they are “transferred” to component units and are reported as

expenses in the Statement of Activities. Thisis the amount by which capital

outlays of $828,616 exceeded depreciation expense of $(104,651) and

buildings “transferred” to component units of $(49,276) in the current

PEriod. (SEENGLE ) ...ttt 674,689

In the Statement of Activities only the gain/loss on the sale of assetsis

reported, whereas in the governmental funds, the proceeds from the sales

increase financial resources. Thus the change in net position differs from

the change in governmental fund balance by the cost of the assets sold. ........ (49,039)

Net effect of revenues reported on the accrual basis in the Statement of

Activities that are reported as deferred inflows of resourcesin the

governmental funds, as they are unavailable and do not provide current

TINANCIEI FESOUICES.......c.cuuiieicicieieieieieeeie e 2,767

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain

activities, such as insurance, technology services, and fleet operationsto

individual governmental funds. The net revenue (expense) of the internal

service funds is reported with governmental activities. ...........cccovveeenrienenns 7,563

Bond proceeds and capital |eases provide current financial resources to
governmental funds by issuing debt which increases long-term liabilitiesin
the Statement of Net Position. Repayments of bond and capital lease
principal are expenditures in the governmental funds, but reduce liabilities
in the Statement of Net Position: (See Note 10)

Payment of Bond PrincCipal...........cocoveueueeeeeceeeeceeeeeeece e $ 342,622
Capital Lease Payments...........ccceeevvveveeiresiereesieee e 1,882 344,504

Expenditures are recognized in the governmental funds when paid or due
for: items not normally paid with available financial resources; and interest
on long-term debt unless certain conditions are met. However, the
Statement of Activitiesis presented on the accrual basis and expenses are
reported when incurred, regardless of when financial resources are available
or expenditures are paid or due. This adjustment combines the net changes
of the following balances:

Pollution Remediation QULIAYS............ccovoveeeveveveeeeereeeeeeeeeeereees e $ 510

Settlement ObligationS..........ccccveveeieeieeeeeceee e 46

Compensated Absences Expense 1,150

Accrued Interest on Bonds Payable............cccccoeeeeeciciicceccenee 195

Amortization of Bond PremiUumS..........ccceeeeieenineneenieneeneeeenes 26,404

Amortization of Deferred Amount on Refunding of Bonded Debt... (6,374)

Other Postemployment Benefits EXpense.........ccccoeveeeeveeecveeenene, 23,151

PENSION EXPENSE........cciiiieieieee ettt e (5,420) 39,662
Change in Net Position — Governmental ACtVItIES..........cccceeevvereeeieieciereenne $ 1219712

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.

41



This page intentionally |eft blank.

42



Student Assistance Programs

These programs are administered by the State Board of Regents and are comprised of the Utah Higher Education
Assistance Authority Student Loan Guarantee Program and the Student Loan Purchase Program. The purpose of
these programs is to guarantee the repayment of student loans made by participating lenders to eligible borrowers
and service outstanding student loans. Funds are acquired from the sale of bonds, lines of credit, and funding notes.

Unemployment Compensation Fund
This fund pays claims for unemployment to eligible recipients and is funded through employer contributions and
reimbursements, and federal grants.

Waeter Loan Programs

These programs provide loans to local governments, water districts, and other entities for the purpose of upgrading
water storage facilities and other related structures. Capital for this fund was provided from the General Fund and
from general obligation bonds that were repaid with general tax revenues. Additional funds have been generated by
issuing water loan recapitalization revenue bonds that are secured by pledged principal and interest payments of
specific revolving water resources |oan funds.

Community Impact Loan Fund

This fund provides loans to local governments to alleviate the social, economic, and public financial impacts
resulting from the development of the State’s natural resources. Working capital for thisfund is provided from
federal mineral lease funds transferred from the General Fund. This fund also administers loans and loan guarantees
from federal funds to small businesses under the Small Business Credit Initiative.

Nonmajor Funds
Nonmajor enterprise funds are presented within Supplementary Information — Combining Statements and Individual

Fund Statements and Schedul es.

Governmental Activities— Internal Service Funds

These funds are maintained to account for the operation of state agencies that provide goods or services to other
state agencies and other governmental units on a cost-reimbursement basis. These funds are presented in more detail
within Supplementary Information — Combining Statements and Individual Fund Statements and Schedules.




State of Utah

Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
(expressed in thousands)

June 30, 2017

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents.
Restricted Investment:
Receivables:
Accounts, net
Accrued Interest
Accrued Taxes, net.
Notes/L oans/Mortgages, net
Due From Other Funds
Due From Component Units.
Prepaid Item:
Inventories
Other Assets.
Total Current Assets.

Noncurrent Assets:
Accounts Receivables
Investment:
Prepaid Item:
Accrued Interest Receivable.
Notes/L oans/Mortgages Receivables, Net..............ccvvvieieicians
Pledged Loans Receivables
Other Assets.

Capital Assets:
Land
Infrastructure
Buildings and |mprovement:
Machinery and Equipment.
Intangible Assets-Software
Construction in Progres:
LessAccumulated Depreciation............ceeeeriereeeeercenes
Total Capital Assets
Total Noncurrent Assets.

Total Assets.

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Amount on Refundings of Bonded Debt
Deferred Outflows Relating to Pensions

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources.

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities............cooeuvucrreenenns
Deposits
Due To Other Fund:
Due To Component Units
Interfund Loans Payable.
Unearned Revenue.
Policy Claims and Uninsured Liabilities..........cocoereieeeeccnnes
Notes Payable
Revenue Bonds Payable

Total Current Liabilities.

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Unearned Revenue.
Accrued Liabilities
Interfund L oans Payable.
Policy Claims and Uninsured Liabilities..........ccoocovreerricninens
Notes Payable
Revenue Bonds Payable
Net Pension Liability
Net Other Postemployment Benefit Liability....

Total Noncurrent Liabilities.

Total Liabilities.

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Amount on Refundings of Bonded Debt......................
Fair Value of Interest Rate Swap Agreements
Deferred Inflows Relating to Pensions.
Deferred Inflows Relating to Other Postemployment Benefit
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets.
Restricted for:
Unemployment Compensation and I nsurance Programs........
Loan Program:
Debt Service
Unrestricted (Deficit)
Total Net Position

Governmental
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities
Student Unemployment Community Nonmajor
Assistance Compensation Water Loans Impact Loan Enterprise Internal
Programs Eund Programs Fund Eunds Total Service Funds
$ 128233 $ 1,037,445 $ 322,715 % 200,985 $ 58530 $ 1,747,908 $ 72,704
99,571 — — — — 99,571 —
8,841 67,465 1,898 — 11,333 89,537 6,298
42,136 — 5,149 4,698 1,802 53,785 —
— — 3,304 — — 3,304 —
363,588 — 46,320 27,226 10,543 447,677 —
— — 11,988 — 7,378 19,366 28,264
— — — — 1 1 886
392 — 20 — 10 422 2,940
— — — — 39,518 39,518 4,721
— — — — 66 66 —
642,761 1,104,910 3913 232,909 129,181 2,501,155 115,813
— 3,228 — — — 3,228 —
13,137 — — — 233 13,370 —
— — — — — — 2,943
— — 3,894 70 1,593 5,557 —
1,566,451 — 506,051 449,957 158,783 2,681,242 —
— — 118,502 — — 118,502 —
— — — — 2 2 7
— — — — 24,727 24,727 —
— — — — 430 430 130
13,003 — — — 82,484 95,487 5,455
2,889 — — — 14,955 17,844 189,632
1,174 — — — 2,607 3,781 9,522
— — — — 217 217 1,766
(7,381) — — — (43,658) (51,039 (113,731)
9,685 0 0 0 81,762 91,447 92,774
1,589,273 3,228 628,447 450,027 242,373 2,913,348 95,724
$ 2232034 $ 1108138 _$ 1019841 _$ 682936 _$ 371554 $ 5414503 _$ 211537

$ 30332 $ 2389 § 1172 $ — 3 16063 $ 49956 $ 19,798
— 6 — — 1 47 —

— 7,801 69 — 34,553 42,423 2,162

— — — — 26 26 —

— — — — — — 25,945

— — — — 4319 4319 2,074

— 4,810 — — — 4,810 23,817

— — — — — — 37

384567 — 5455 — 6,183 396,205 51

414,899 15,046 6,696 0 61,145 497,786 73,884

— — — — — — 1,434

463 — — — — 463 —

— — — — — — 18,927

— — — — — — 29,828

— — — — — — 268

1,427,722 — 31,225 — 66,336 1,525,283 %

1,812 — — — 15,656 17,468 69,980

— — — — 1731 1731 6768

1,429,997 0 31,225 0 83,723 1,544,945 127,299

$ 1844896 15046 _$ 37N S $ 144868 $ 2042731 $ 201,183
$ 9459 $ — 3 — 3 — % — 8 9459 $ —
13,137 — — — — 13,137 —

382 — — — 2134 25516 8,924

— — — — 67 67 262

$ 22978 $ 0 3 0 3 0o 3 2201 $ 25179 9186
$ 5397 $ — 3 — 8 — 3 14043 $ 19440 $ 92,609
— 1,093,092 — — — 1,093,092 5,149

298,749 — 443,195 — 117,545 859,489 —

— — 158,195 — — 158,195 —

60,984 — 380,530 682,936 104,465 1,228,915 (67,402)

$ 365130 $ 1093092 981920 _$ 682936 _$ 236053 $ 3350131 $ 30,356

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



State of Utah

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position

Proprietary Funds
(expressed in thousands)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Governmental
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Activities
Student Unemployment Community Nonmajor
Assistance Compensation Water Loans Impact Loan Enterprise Internal
Programs Fund Programs Fund Funds Total Service Funds

OPERATING REVENUES
Sales and Charges for Services/Premiums...........cc.cccoovvvereneee. $ 11471 $ 210446 $ 555 $ — % 426208 $ 648,680 $ 284,953
Fees and Assessments 764 461 191 — 6,123 7,539 —
Interest on Notes/M ortgages. 91,604 — — — 3,052 94,656 —
Federal Reinsurance and Allowances/Reimbursements............. 26,623 — — — — 26,623 —
Miscellaneous 4,218 — — 20 @ 4,231 397
Total Operating Revenues 134,680 210,907 746 20 435,376 781,729 285,350

OPERATING EXPENSES
Administration 5,231 — — 13 35,260 40,504 113,818
Purchases, Materials, and Servicesfor Resale........................... - - — — 251,722 251,722 70,288
Grants, — — 10,491 — 2,169 12,660 448
Rentals and L eases, — — 8 — 2,235 2,243 1477
Maintenance. — — — — 3,911 3911 21,578
Interest 30,833 — — — — 30,833 —
Depreciation/Amortization 797 — — — 3,580 4,377 19,144
Student Loan Servicing and Related Expenses.......................... 71,908 — — — — 71,908 —
Payment to Lenders for Guaranteed Claims................cc.cccoouee.... 26,551 — — — — 26,551 —
Benefit Claims and Unemployment Compensation................... — 175,354 —_ — — 175,354 20,929
Supplies and Other Miscellan@ous................c..ovveemrerrerernerinnenns 367 — 3,955 5,957 24,777 35,056 32,562
Total Operating Expenses 135,687 175,354 14,454 5,970 323,654 655,119 280,244
Operating Income (Loss) (1,007) 35,553 (13,708) (5,950) 111,722 126,610 5,106

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

Investment Income/Interest on Loans...............c.coooevvevveerernnnnns 1,773 22,647 14,831 9,184 914 49,349 741
Federal Contracts and Grants — 1,378 8,074 406 2,572 12,430 —
Disposal of Capital Assets — — — — 529 529 357
Tax Revenues, — — 31,003 26,000 525 57,528 —
Interest Expense, - - (1,544) — (3,027) (4,571) (22)
Refunds Paid to Federal GOVEMMENt................oooccevveesressnnne (100) — — — - (100) (401)
Other Revenues (Expenses) (250) — — — — (250) (218)
Total Nonoperating Revenues (EXPenses)..............c..ccce.eunee. 1,423 24,025 52,364 35,590 1,513 114,915 457
Income (L oss) before Capital Contributions and Transfers 416 59,578 38,656 29,640 113,235 241,525 5,563
Capital Contributions — — — — 37 37 769
Transfersin — — — — 3,047 3,047 1,286
Transfers Out — (2,373 (6,296) (21,964) (107,752) (138,385) (55)
Changein Net Position 416 57,205 32,360 7,676 8,567 106,224 7,563
Net Position — Beginning 364,714 1,035,887 949,560 675,260 229,677 3,255,098 31,362
Adjustment to Beginning Net POSItion...............ccoc.oeruvereiesinnns — - - — (2,191) (2,191) (8,569)
Net Position —Beginning as Adjusted.............ccoooverenmrenrrinreennes 364,714 1,035,887 949,560 675,260 227,486 3,252,907 22,793
Net Position — Ending $ 365130 $ 1,093092 $ 981,920 $ 682,936 $ 236,053 $ 3359131 $ 30,356

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of Utah

Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
(expressed in thousands)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Governmental
Business-type Activities — Enterprise Funds Activities
Student Unemployment Community Nonmajor
Assistance ~ Compensation Water Impact Loan  Enterprise Internal
Programs Fund Loan Fund Fund Funds Total Service Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from Customers/Loan Interest/Fees/Premiums...  $ 81,015 $ 216,689 $ 661 $ 20 $ 446660 $ 745045 $ 54,269
Receipts from Loan Maturities...............c.coceveeeevevrvenennnns 438,797 — — — 13,058 451,855 —
Receipts Federal Reinsurance and
Allowances/ReimburSements ..........ccovevevevvveeeverereenenns (21,808) (10) — — — (21,818) —
Receipts from State Customers . — —_ — — 31,949 31,949 332,063
Payments to Suppliers/Claims/Grants... (17,387) (175,318) (14,221) (5,442) (272,486) (484,854) (190,476)
Disbursements for Loans Receivable, (16,352) — — — (14,872) (31,224) —
Payments on Loan GUarantees...............cooew..omereeerereeeenns (25,722) — — — — (25,722) —
Payments for Employee Services and Benefits.................. (15,763) — — (13) (33,622) (49,398) (115,544)
Payments to State Suppliers and Grants..............c.cooveune — — — (515) (10,743) (11,258) (50,141)
Payments of Sales Tax and School Lunch Collections...... — — — — (47,052) (47,052) —
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities.... 422,780 41,361 (13,560) (5,950) 112,892 557,523 30,171
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Borrowings Under Interfund Loans..............ccccccvueeveeeennene — — — — 31,528 31,528 1,384
Repayments Under Interfund Loans.............ccccccveuveeeennene — — — — (28,749) (28,749) —
Receipts from Bonds, Notes, and Deposits.............cccceune. 864,233 6 — — — 864,239 —
Payments of Bonds, Notes, Deposits, and Refunds........... (1,227,465) (10) (5,349) — —  (1,232,824) (34)
Interest Paid on Bonds, Notes, and Financing Costs. (39,880) — (1,273) — — (41,153) (16)
Federal Contracts and Grants and Other Revenues... — 1,378 6,818 406 960 9,562 —
Restricted Sales Tax — —_ 30,841 26,000 525 57,366 —
Transfers In from Other FUNdS.............ccccovvevieneininienns — — — — 3,047 3,047 —
Transfers Out to Other FUNGS..............coooveneerieneiniininnns — (2,373) (6,296) (21,964) (107,752) (138,385) —
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Noncapital Financing ActiVities.............cccoevnieeene (403,112) (999) 24,741 4,442 (100,441) (475,369) 1,334
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Borrowings Under Interfund Loans.. . — — — — — — 22,349
Repayments Under Interfund Loans. — —_ —_ — —_ —_ (33,118)
Proceeds from Bond and Note Debt | ssuance. — — — — 303 303 —
Proceeds from Disposition of Capital ASSets..........cceueenee — — — — 610 610 3,366
Federal Grants and Other Revenues — — — — —_ — 70
Principal Paid on Debt and Contract Maturities — — — — (5,626) (5,626) (82)
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets................ (671) — — — (1,208) (1,879) (23,440)
Interest Paid on Bonds, Notes, and Capital Leases........... — — — — (3,303) (3,303 4
Transfers In from Other Funds.............coovvrvriereensennennes — — — — — — 1,286
Transfers Out to Other FUNGS................ccooovveeoemveeenrreeennes — — — — — — (55)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related
Financing Activities.... . (671) 0 0 0 (9,224) (9,895) (29,628)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from the Sale and Maturity of Investments........ 1,409,606 — — — 1 1,409,607 —
Receipts of Interest and Dividends...............c.ccccovevrvreennne 1,785 22,647 14,837 9,184 460 48,913 741
Receipts from Loan Maturities — — 46,475 35,332 3,634 85,441 —
Receipts of Interest from Loans — — — — 475 475 —
Payments to Purchase Investments (1,393,603) — — — —  (1,393,603) —
Disbursements for Loans Receivable, . — — (26,683) (31,065) (1,109) (58,857) —
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities..... 17,788 22,647 34,629 13,451 3,461 91,976 741
Net Cash Provided (Used) — All Activities.. 36,785 63,009 45,810 11,943 6,688 164,235 2,618
Cash and Cash Equivalents — Beginning.. 91,448 974,436 276,905 189,042 51,842 1,583,673 70,086
Cash and Cash Equivalents — Ending $ 128233 $ 1037445 $ 322715 $ 200985 $ 58530 $1747,908 $ 72,704
The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement. Continues
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State of Utah

Governmental
Business-type Activities — Enterprise Funds Activities
Student  Unemployment Community ~ Nonmajor
Assistance  Compensation Water Impact Loan  Enterprise Internal
Programs Fund Loan Fund Fund Funds Total Service Funds
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Operating INCOME (LOSS) .......c.oveveivrveieieeeeese e sesssans $ (1,007) $ 35553 $ (13,708) $ (5950) $ 111,722 $ 126610 $ 5,106
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net
Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Depreciation/Amortization EXPENSe...............cceeeeeerrernene. 797 — — — 3,580 4,377 19,144
Interest Expense for Noncapital and Capital Financing....... 32,596 — — — — 32,596 —
Pension and OPEB Expense Accruals (1,395) — — — (241) (1,636) (299)
Miscellaneous Gains, Losses, and Other Items... 4,566 — — — — 4,566 (619)
Net Changes in Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources,
Liabilities, and Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Accounts Receivable/Due From Other Funds..................... (4,435) 8,193 (85) — (3,902) (229) (1,270)
Notes/Accrued Interest Receivables............ccoeeeveeerecvnnnn. 392,509 — — — (1,945) 390,564 —
INVENEOTIES ..ot — — — — (506) (506) (96)
Prepaid Itemg/Deferred Charges.............ooovvvvveeeesssereeenennn. (20) — 26 — ™ 0 35
Accrued Liabilities’Due to Other Funds.. (831) (1,468) 207 — 3814 1,722 20
Unearned Revenue/Deposits, . —_ —_ — — 377 377 2,597
Policy Claims Liabilities........ — (917) — — — (917) 5,553
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities...... $ 422780 $ 41361 $ (13560) $ (5950) $ 112892 $ 557523 $ 30,171
SCHEDULE OF NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL,
AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of Investments................... $ — 8 — 8 43 $ (16) $ — 8 27 $ 9
Contributed Capital Assets Transferred In (Out) .................... — — — — 37 37 699
Total Noncash Investing, Capital, and Financing
ACHVITIES......cocvriiceics s $ 0 $ 0 $ 443 % (16) $ 37 % 64 $ 708

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds

These funds are used to account for the defined benefit pension plans and defined contribution plans administered
by the Utah Retirement Systems, and the Post-Retirement Benefits Trust Funds, defined benefit other
postemployment benefit plans (OPEB Plans), and other employee benefit plans administered by the State.

Investment Trust Fund
Thisfund is used to account for the investments related to external participants in the Utah State Public Treasurers
Investment Fund.

Private Purpose Trust Funds
These funds are used to report resources of all other trust arrangements under which principal and income benefit
individuals, private organizations, or other governments.

Agency Funds
Agency funds account for assets held by the State as an agent for other governmental units, other organizations, or
individuals.

Individual funds are presented by fund type within Supplementary Information — Combining Statements and
Individual Fund Statements and Schedul es.




State of Utah

Statement of Fiduciary Net Position

Fiduciary Funds
(expressed in thousands)

June 30, 2017

Pension and Private
Other Employee Investment Purpose
Benefit Trust Trust Trust Agency
Funds Fund Fund Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents...........cccceeeeiievicieseiesesee e $ 2,364,941 $ 1,192,193 $ 10,754 $ 197,580
Receivables:
ACCOUNES.....oeiiiiieiiee ettt ettt et e et e e eare e sbe e ebeeenee s 1,749 — 5,480 16,923
Contributions 54,284 — — —
INVESIMENTS ...t eearae e 537,792 — — —
ACCIUEH INLEIESE ...t — — 1 —
Accrued Assessments... — — 4,876 —
LOANS...cccviiinirieriiniene — — 1,000 —
Due From Other FUNS..........coovieeiieeieeteecteece e — — 624 114
Investments:
DEDE SECUIMTIES ....vecveceeeeeccee ettt sttt st sre st 6,378,146 7,985,498 3,186,965 3,151
Equity Investments.... 13,206,478 — 8,136,303 —
Absolute Return......... 4,508,784 — — —
Private Equity............ 3,290,800 — — —
RE8I ASSELS ...ttt ettt 4,437,415 — — —
Invested Securities Lending Collateral ..........cccoooeevveeenncneee 699,487 — — —
Total [NVESIMENLS......ceeeieecee e $ 32,521,110 $ 7985498 $ 11,323268 $ 3,151
OthEr ASSELS.......eciiieiireireireste ettt sresresre e — — 6,723 49,287
Capital Assets:
LaNG...ceitiieieeieieeee ettt ettt et enan 1,780 — 271 —
Buildings and Improvements............ccooeeeeeveeneneneeecsenenenens 17,976 — 10,715 —
Machinery and EQUIPMENt .........cooreirenneienereecseeeeea 6,806 — 2,546 —
Less Accumulated Depreciation...........covvveeveeveeeseneerenns (21,672) — (6,169) —
Total Capital ASSELS ......cccvieeciieece e 4,890 0 7,363 0
TOtAl ASSELS ...c.vceiieieiecieee et $ 35,484,766 $ 9177691 $ 11,360,089 $ 267,055
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Outflows Relating to Pensions............ccccceeennene. $ 0% 0% 568 $ 0
LIABILITIES
ACCOUNES Payable............ceoveeeceeeeceeeeceeeee et $ 720,557 $ — % 2931 $ —
Securities Lending Liability........cccverrieneinensieneresecneene 699,487 — — —
Due To Other FUNGS..........cccoeiiiiieesiccceseee e — — 614 —
Due To Individuals, Organizations, and Other Governments. — — — 267,055
Unearned REVENUE...........ccvevviieeie ettt — — 428 —
L eave/Postemployment Benefits..........cccovvenee. 24,354 — — —
Policy Claims Liabilities/Insurance Reserves. 4,999 — 208,250 —
Real Estate LiabilitieS.......ccovevveeveeeeeceerieeenene, 205,000 — — —
Net Pension Obligation..........cccevveevieiieseee e — — 992 —
Total LiabilitieS....ccveeeeeveeirecrecre e $ 1654397 $ 03 213215 $ 267,055
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflows Relating to Pensions............covevveveririninns $ 03 03 267 $ 0
NET POSITION
Restricted for:
PENSION BENEFITS. ...ttt et seeeeeeeeeeeeeees $ 28544316 $ — % —
Other Postemployment Benefits.........cocooveveinenccnecnene. 266,252 — —
Other Employee BEN€fits......ccovvvceieicecce e 15,711 — —
Defined Contribution ..........cccceeeivieeicenci e 5,004,090 — —
POOI PartiCipants.........coeiereirenineneeiseseee e — 9,177,691 —
Individuals, Organizations, and Other Governments........... — — 11,147,175
Total Nt POSITION......ccoeeeeeeeceeceeceecece e $ 33,830,369 $ 9177691 $ 11147175
Participant Account Balance:
Net Position Valuation Factor ...........ccccveeeeeeieeneveeseesesennens 1.00471926

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of Utah

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
(expressed in thousands)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Pension and Private
Other Employee Investment Purpose
Benefit Trust Trust Trust
Funds Fund Fund
ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Y=o $ 390,012 $ — $ 1,133,151
EMPIOYEL ..ot e e 1,140,404 — —
Court Fees and Fire Insurance Premiums. 12,039 — —
Total Contributions...........cccceeveivveeivereennns 1,542,455 0 1,133,151
P00l PartiCipant DEPOSITS .......cc.ciurereeiriereeeriee e s ee e see e — 10,549,361 —
Investment Income:
Net Increase (Decrease) in Fair Value of INVestments.........coceeevveeeeenenienenes 2,197,246 9,076 864,945
Interest, Dividends, and Other Investment Income 495,576 101,750 236,403
Total Income From Investment Activity .........cccc..... 2,692,822 110,826 1,101,348
Less Investment EXPENSES........cccvereereenenieniecneene (52,672) (426) —
Net Income from Investment ACEIVITY ......cocceevieevineieiecceree e 2,640,150 110,400 1,101,348
Income from Security Lending Activity 9,174 — —
Less Security Lending EXpenses.........coceveveeecreenee (1,192 — —
Net Income from Security Lending Activity 7,982 0 0
Net INVEStEMENE INCOME......c.eiiiiieieieiesese e 2,648,132 110,400 1,101,348
Transfers From Affiliated SyStEMS........cocoiveiiinciereee e 9,912 — —
Other Additions:
ESCREALS .....ccviiceecieee ettt — — 28,348
Royaltiesand Rents.........ccccceeevrveeenne — — 3,293
Fees, AsSesSMENtS, anNd REVENUES ..........coveeveeieeeeeeeee et eee et saeeere e e — — 46,958
MISCEITANEOUS........oeieee ettt st s s eaee s e ate s sbesssrnesenes — — 5,567
Total Other — — 84,166
TOtal AQAItIONS .....vecviceiceeeeecre e s anns 4,200,499 10,659,761 2,318,665
DEDUCTIONS
PENSION BENEFITS ...ttt st e e et s e s srneeenns 1,497,989 — —
Retiree Hedthcare Benefits 30,661 — —
Refunds/Plan Distributions...... 325,430 — —
Earnings Distribution................... — 101,324 —
Pool Participant Withdrawals — 8,883,586 —
Transfers To Affiliated SyStEMS......covvveireiieee s 9,912 — —
Trust Operating Expenses................... — — 33,593
Distributions and Benefit Payments — — 449,153
Administrative and General EXPENSES...........coovueiiereeriseiesereeesesessesseesveneenes 19,263 — 20,161
Total DEAUCTIONS.......ccvieereireire ittt sre e sae e sresresresreeaeennens 1,883,255 8,984,910 502,907
Change in Net Position Restricted for:
PENSION BENEFITS ...ttt et s beeeeans 1,857,476 — —
Other Postemployment Benefits 19,496 — —
Other EMployee BENEFItS......cciiiiiceceeceseesee et 5,777 — —
Defined CONtIiDULIONS .......c.eecviiiicieceie ettt sttt 434,495 — —
Pool Participants — 1,674,851 —
Individuals, Organizations, and Other GOVErnmMents.............ccceeeeerererereenees — — 1,815,758
Net POSItiON —BEJINNING .....cciviieiiiiieieiee e 31,540,266 7,502,840 9,345,083
Adjustment to Beginning Net POSITION..........ccooeiierrineiereeese e (27,141) — (13,666)
Net Position — Beginning as Adjusted 31,513,125 7,502,840 9,331,417
NEt POSITION — ENCING -t $ 33,830,369 % 9177691 $ 11147175

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Public Employees Health Program

This program provides employee medical and other insurance services predominantly for agencies of the State. It
also provides claims processing and insurance services for local governments and other public entities within Utah.

University of Utah and Utah State University

These universities are funded through state appropriations, tuition, federal grants, and private donations and grants.
In addition to instruction, these universities provide research and other services. The operations of the University of
Utah also include its hospital and clinics.

Nonmajor Component Units
Nonmajor component units are presented within Supplementary Information — Combining Statements and Individual

Fund Statements and Schedul es.




State of Utah

Combining Statement of Net Position
Component Units
(expressed in thousands)

June 30, 2017

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash EQUIVAIENLS ..........cceerireernceeceeceee
Investments
Receivables:
ACCOUNES, NEL.....ovirieienieeiere et
Notes/L oans/Mortgages/Pledges, Net ..o
ACCIUE INTEFESE ...t
Due From Primary Government..
Prepaid ItEmMS.. ..o
INVENTOMTES....eiieee e

Noncurrent Assets:
Restricted INVESIMENES ........cccveviereieeerieeee et
Restricted Receivables, net...
Accounts Receivables, net....
INVESEMENTS.....eeiiiiieieeee s

Capital Assets (net of Accumulated Depreciation)...
Total NONCUIrent ASSELS ..........cucvveeeeererieerrereeree s

TOtAl ASSELS......ceeeieere et
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred Amount on Refundings of Bonded Debit..................

Deferred Outflows Relating to Pensions.............. "
Total Deferred Outflows of RESOUICES..........oevvvvevireieeireiisiiens
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities............ccccovreenene

Securities Lending Liability .........cc........

Due To Primary Government ..
Unearned Revenue ..........cccceeevvevrennee
Current Portion of Long-term Liabilities..
Total Current LiabilitieS.......cccevvvereeeiieveecesesec e
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Accrued LiabilitieS.......cocoeiveiiiciecece e
Unearned Revenue

Net Pension Liability........ocoeoneeiiinneieneereseesre e
Net Other Postemployment Benefit Liability
Long-term Liabilities................
Total Noncurrent Liabilities..
Total Liabilities.......ccveieerrrcceiceces s
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Amount on Refundings of Bonded Debit..................
Deferred Inflows Relating to Pensions............ccccceveennncene
Deferred Inflows Relating to Other Postemployment Benefit
Total Deferred Inflows of RESOUICES..........covvvvreveverericiriiecins
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital ASSELS........cccoeieeeureieeeieeeeieiees
Restricted for:
Nonexpendable:
Higher EQUCELION........c.ceuiiiciiiciieicireiceeie e
Expendable:
Higher EJUCELION.........ccoviierneereeee e
Insurance Plan .....

Unrestricted ....
Total Net POSITION........c.coveviiieicieeereeee et

Public .
Employees . . Nonmajor
Health University Utah State Component
Program of Utah University Units Total
92,158 404,419 42,509 273,048 812,134
9,000 806,933 75,861 110,215 1,002,009
40,126 406,092 56,722 37,253 540,193
— 35,852 2,073 13,892 51,817
2,002 4,587 — 208 6,797
— — — 89 89
23,608 — 4,484 9,250 37,342
— 73,278 4,076 12,980 90,334
— 28,443 — 421 28,864
166,894 1,759,604 185,725 457,356 2,569,579
— 769,685 212,108 69,117 1,050,910
— 64,503 20,400 — 84,903
— — 17,179 29,504 46,683
257,978 1,206,654 301,768 446,127 2,212,527
— — 10,355 30,773 41,128
1 27,247 121 6,001 33,370
96 2,959,044 857,393 1,581,795 5,398,328
258,075 5,027,133 1,419,324 2,163,317 8,867,849
424,969 6,786,737 1,605,049 2,620,673 11,437,428
— 7,159 3,012 1,213 11,384
5,349 69,753 20,520 53,801 149,423
5,349 76,912 23,532 55,014 160,807
6,793 304,291 59,793 56,036 426,913
2,993 — — — 2,993
— 119,991 7 38,643 158,711
— 25,557 4,954 16,043 46,554
3,274 68,619 20,836 56,157 148,886
75,829 166,914 29,274 30,642 302,659
88,889 685,372 114,934 197,521 1,086,716
8,926 — 1,843 — 10,769
— — 769 1,074 1,843
— 13,494 — — 13,494
13,012 168,015 49,249 122,954 353,230
— — — 1,107 1,107
72,440 1,027,224 223,990 213,255 1,536,909
94,378 1,208,733 275,851 338,390 1,917,352
183,267 1,894,105 390,785 535,911 3,004,068
— 158 1,703 — 1,861
1,384 28,832 6,653 16,187 53,056
— — — 43 43
1,384 28,990 8,356 16,230 54,960
96 2,037,151 670,335 1,397,545 4,105,127
— 564,117 136,971 181,516 882,604
— 576,933 232,444 203,037 1,012,414
245,571 — — — 245571
— — — 11,840 11,840
— 1,762,353 189,690 329,608 2,281,651
245,667 4,940,554 1,229,440 2,123,546 8,539,207

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.



State of Utah

Combining Statement of Activities
Component Units
(expressed in thousands)

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Program Revenues:
Chargesfor Services:
Tuition and Fees.

Scholarship Allowances

Sales, Services, and Other Revenues
(net of University of Utah patient
services allowance of $64,711)..........cccccevreneenene.

Operating Grants and Contributions...............cccee...
Capital Grants and Contributions............cccecvveeenens
Total Program Revenues............ccccoveeeeueeereerennnne.
Net (Expenses) Revenues..........ccccceeveveenene.

General Revenues:
State APPropriations............ccceeevviereeieseesesieseeeseneenens
DONLIONS......coierererererieeeeseseeeee s e e sees
Unrestricted Investment Income...........ccccceeveverennee.
MiSCElANEOUS.........ccveeeieiciceeee e

Permanent Endowments Contributions.
Total General Revenues and Contributions..........
Change in Net Position..........cccoceeevnreeccnennen

Net Position —Beginning........c.cceeerveeeennieencrenienenes

Adjustment to Beginning Net Position.......................
Net Position —Beginning asAdjusted..............cccueue.....
Net Position —ENding ..........ccceevevevieeseneceseeseseene

Public
Employees Nonmajor
Health University Utah State Component
Program of Utah University Units Total

$ 623,162 $ 4,404,100 $ 700,468 $ 1,269,687 $ 6,997,417
— 402,873 223,008 531,581 1,157,462
— (75,365) (80,342) (240,228) (295,935)

628,476 3,426,638 93,649 132,371 4,281,134
23,705 652,443 289,735 264,770 1,230,653

— 74,577 28,941 56,301 159,819

652,181 4,481,166 554,991 844,795 6,533,133
29,019 77,066 (145,477) (424,892) (464,284)

— 322,050 197,438 482,161 1,001,649

— — — 174 174

— — — 19 19

— — — 18 18

— 19,732 7,670 10,399 37,801

0 341,782 205,108 492,771 1,039,661

29,019 418,848 59,631 67,879 575,377
189,507 4,521,706 1,169,809 2,057,068 7,938,090
27,141 — — (1,401) 25,740
216,648 4,521,706 1,169,809 2,055,667 7,963,830

$ 245667 $ 4940554 $ 1229440 $ 2123546 $ 8,539,207

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement.
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State of Utah

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017
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NOTE 1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the State of Utah conformin all material
respects with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP)
as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB). Preparation of thefinancial statementsin conformity with
GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts and disclosures in the financia
statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

A. Reporting Entity

For financial reporting purposes, the State of Utah’sreporting entity
includes the “primary government” and its “discrete component
units.” The primary government includes all funds, organizations,
institutions, agencies, boards, and commissions that make up its
legal entity. The State’ sdiscretecomponent unitsarelegally separate
organizations for which the State's elected officials are financially
accountable.

The GASB has set forth criteria to be considered in determining
financial accountability. These criteriainclude appointing a voting
majority of an organization’s governing body and either: (1) the
ability of the State to impose itswill on that organization; or (2) the
potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits
to, or impose specific financia burdens on the State.

Where the State does not appoint a voting majority of an
organization’s governing body, GASB standards require inclusion
in the reporting entity if: (1) an organization is fiscally dependent
on the State because its resources are held for the direct benefit of
the State or can be accessed by the State; and (2) the potential for
the organization to provide specific financial benefitsto, or impose
specific financial burdens on the State. In addition, discrete
component units can be other organizations for which the nature
and significance of their relationship with the primary government
are such that exclusion would cause the financial statements to be
misleading.

Except where noted below, the State's discrete component units
issue their own separately audited financial statements as special-
purpose governments engaged only in business-type activities.
These financia statements can be obtained from their respective
administrative offices or from the Office of the State Auditor, Utah
State Capitol Complex, East Office Building, Suite E310, Salt Lake
City, UT 84114 or online at auditor.utah.gov.

Entities such asthelocal school districts, charter schools, and other
local authorities of various kinds that may only partially meet the
criteria for inclusion in this report have not been included. The
State's support of the public education system is reported in the
Education Fund (special revenue fund).

Blended Component Units

A component unit should be reported as part of the primary
government and blended into the appropriate fundsif : (1) services
are provided entirely or almost entirely to the primary government;
(2) the governing body is substantively the same as the governing
body of the primary government and thereis afinancial benefit or
burden relationship or the primary government has operational
responsibility; (3) the component unit’s total debt outstanding is
expected to be repaid entirely or amost entirely by the primary
government; or (4) if it is organized as a not-for-profit corporation
in which the primary government is the sole corporate member.
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Utah State Building Ownership Authority (blended with the primary
government’s debt service and capital projects funds) — The
Authority was created by the Legislature as a body politic and
corporate for the sole purpose of financing, owning, leasing, and
operating facilities to meet the needs of state government. In
addition, any debt is paid entirely with resources of the State. The
Board is comprised of three members: the Governor or designee,
the State Treasurer, and the Chair of the State Building Board.
Separate financial statements are not required or issued for the
Authority.

Discrete Component Units

Discretely presented component units are reported in a separate
column and/or rows in each of the government-wide statements to
emphasize that they are legally separate from the State.

Except for the Utah Communications Authority, Utah Schools for
the Deaf and Blind, and the Utah College of Applied Technology,
the Stateappointsat | east amajority of thegoverning board members
of each of the State’ sdiscrete component units, subject in most cases
with consent from the Senate. The Utah Communi cationsAuthority,
Utah Schools for the Deaf and Blind, and the Utah College of
Applied Technology are included in the reporting entity because
they meet both the fiscal dependency and financial benefit and
burden relationship. The State provides financia support and
approves theissuance of debt by Utah Communications Authority.
The State approves and modifiesthe budgets and providesfinancia
support for the Utah Schools for the Deaf and Blind and the Utah
College of Applied Technology.

The State has the ability to impose its will on the colleges and
universities and the Public Employees Health Program due to the
level of budget or day-to-day oversight. The State appointed board
membersof theMilitary Installation Devel opment A uthority, Heber
Valley Historic Railroad Authority, and Utah State Fair Corporation
can be replaced at will.

Thedetermination that adiscrete component unitis“major” isbased
on the nature and significance of its relationship to the primary
government. The State’s major discrete component units are:

Public Employees Health Program — This Program provides
employee medical and other insurance services predominantly for
agencies of the State. It aso provides claims processing and
insurance services for local governments and other public entities
within Utah. The Program is administered by the Utah State
Retirement Board.

University of Utah and Utah State University — These universities
are funded primarily through state appropriations, tuition, federal
grants, and private donations and grants. In addition to instruction,
these universities provide research and other services. The
operations of the University of Utah also include its hospital and
clinics.

The State's nonmajor discrete component units are:

Utah Communications Authority — This Authority was established
by the Utah State Legislature as a quasi-governmental entity. Its
purpose is to provide public safety communication services and
facilities on aregional or statewide basis for the benefit and use of
all state and local governmental agencies.

Utah Schools for the Deaf and the Blind — These Schools provide
practica education to individuals with hearing and/or vision
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impairments. Although not required, these Schools issue separate
but unaudited financial statements.

Utah State Fair Corporation—ThisCorporationisanonprofit public
corporation that operates the State Fair Park and conducts the Utah
State Fair and other various expositions and entertainment events.

Collegesand Universities — Weber State University, Southern Utah
University, Salt Lake Community College, Utah Valley University,
Dixie State University, Snow College, and the Utah College of
Applied Technology. Separately audited financial statements are
issued for the applied technology colleges within the Utah College
of Applied Technology.

Utah Charter School Finance Authority — This Authority was
created to provide an efficient and cost-effective method of issuing
conduit debt on behalf of charter schools to acquire or construct
charter school facilities. The debt isthe responsibility of the charter
schools, and neither the State nor any political subdivision of the
Stateis obligated for repayment of the debt. Accordingly, this debt
is not included as part of the State’s reporting entity. No financial
statements are required or issued.

Military Installation Development Authority — ThisAuthority isan
independent, nonprofit entity whose purpose is to provide for the
development and improvement of project areas near military
installations throughout the State.

Heber Valley Historic Railroad Authority — This Authority is an
independent state agency that maintains and operates a scenic and
historic railroad in and around the Heber Valley. The Authority
issues a separate publicly available compilation report.

Fiduciary Component Units

Utah Retirement Systems (URS) (pension trust and defined
contribution plans) — URS administers pension funds for various
public employee retirement systems and plans of the State and its
political subdivisions. URS is an independent state agency subject
to legidative and executive department budgetary examination and
comment. TheUtah State Retirement Board, aseven-member board,
is established by statute to administer the systems and plans, and to
serveasinvestment trusteesof thefunds. Six membersareappointed
by the State with the advice and consent of the Senate, while the
State Treasurer servesasthe seventh member. Because of the State’s
trustee responsibilities for these systems and plans, GAAPrequires
themto bereported aspensiontrust fundsof the primary government
rather than discrete component units.

Utah Educational Savings Plan Trust (Private Purpose Trust Fund)
— Thistrust is a non-profit, self-supporting entity that was created
asameansto encourageinvestment in apublictrust to pay for future
higher education costs. It is administered by the Utah State Board
of Regents acting in its capacity as the Utah Higher Education
Assistance Authority. Because of the State’strustee responsibilities
for this plan, GAAP requires it to be reported as a private purpose
trust fund of the primary government rather than a discrete
component unit.

Inaccordancewith GAAP, fiduciary fundsand component unitsthat
are fiduciary in nature are excluded from the government-wide
financial statements.

Related Organization (Excluded from Financial Statements)

Utah Housing Corporation (UHC) — UHC is a statutorily created
public corporation. UHCissuesbondsto provide capital for housing
and home mortgages, especiadly for low and moderate-income
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families. Although the Governor appointseight of theninemembers
of the governing board, there is no financial accountability. The
State does not have the ability to impose itswill on UHC and UHC
does not provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific
financial burdens on the State.

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements
Government-wide Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Position and Statement of Activities report
informationonall nonfiduciary activitiesof theprimary government
and its component units. Primary government activities are
distinguished between governmental and business-type activities.
Governmental activities generaly are financed through taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and other nonexchange revenues.
Business-type activities are financed in whole or in part by fees
charged to external parties for goods or services.

The Statement of Net Position presents the reporting entity’s
nonfiduciary assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and
deferred inflows of resources, with the difference reported as net
position. Net position isrestricted when there are constraints either
externally imposed or imposed by constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the
direct expenses of agiven activity or segment are offset by program
revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable
within a specific activity. The State does not alocate general
government (indirect) expenses to other activities. Program
revenues include: (1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
provided by a given activity; and (2) grants and contributions that
are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of
a particular activity. Taxes and other revenues not meeting the
definition of program revenues are reported as general revenues.

Fund Financial Statements

Separatefinancia statements are provided for governmental funds,
proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds, even though the latter are
excluded from the government-wide statements. For governmental
and proprietary fund financial statements, the emphasisison major
individual governmental and enterprise funds, with each displayed
in a separate column. All remaining governmental and enterprise
funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds. Internal
servicefunds are also aggregated and reported in a separate column
on the proprietary fund financial statements.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial
Statement Presentation

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financia statements are prepared using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are
recorded when the related liability is incurred, regardless of the
timing of the cash flows. Nonexchange transactions in which the
Statereceivesvaluewithout directly giving equal valuein exchange
include taxes, grants, and donations. Tax revenue is recognized in
the fiscal year in which the related sales, wages, or activity being
taxed occurred. Revenue from grants and donations is recognized
inthefiscal yearinwhichall eligibility requirementshave been met.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

The governmental fund financial statements are reported using the
current financial resources measurement focus and the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as
they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to
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be available when they are collected within the current period or
expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of
the current period. For this purpose, the State generally considers
taxesand other revenuesto beavailableif the revenuesare coll ected
within 45 days after yearend. An exception to this policy is federal
grant revenues, which generally are considered to be available if
collection is expected within 12 months after yearend.

Expenditures are generaly recorded when the related liability is
incurred, as under the accrual basis of accounting. However,
expenditures for principal and interest on long-term debt are
recorded when due or when amounts have been accumulated in the
debt service fund for payment of interest to be made early in the
following year. Also, expenditures and related liabilities for
compensated absences and claims and judgments are recorded only
to the extent they have matured (i.e., come due for payment).

Major Governmental Funds — The State reports the following
major governmental funds:

e General Fund. Thisfundisthe principal operating fund of the
State. It accounts for all financial resources not accounted for
and reported in another fund.

e Education Fund. This specia revenue fund accounts for all
corporate taxes, income taxes, and revenues from taxes on
intangible property that support public and higher education.
Specific revenues that support public elementary and
secondary schools in the State are also reported in the
Education Fund.

*  Transportation Fund. Thisspecial revenuefund accountsfor
dedicated highway user taxes, fees, and federal funds
associated with construction, maintenance, and repair of state
highways and local roads.

e Transportation Investment Fund. This capital projectsfund
accountsfor vehicleregistration fees, salesand usetaxes, bond
proceeds, and federal funds used in the construction and
reconstruction of specific highway projects. Projects
designated for the Transportation Investment Capacity
program are accounted for in this fund.

e Trust Lands Fund. Thisisapermanent fund that accountsfor
investment earnings, land grants, and the sale of landsreceived
from the federal Enabling Act. The principal in the fund is
perpetual, with the earnings used primarily to support public
education. The Utah School and Institutional Trust Lands
Administration (SITLA) and the School and Institutional Trust
Fund Office (SITFO) manage the assets of the Trust. SITFO
issued separate audited statements for the investments they
manage.

Nonmajor Governmental Funds — The State’'s nonmajor
governmental funds include special revenue funds, capital projects
funds, and debt service funds. The nonmajor special revenue funds
account for specific revenue sourcesthat arerestricted or committed
to expenditures for specific purposes. Examples include tobacco
settlement  monies, environmental activities, crime victim
reparations, debt collections, and rural development programs. The
capital projectsfundsaccount for resourcesused for capital outlays,
including the acquisition, construction, or improvement of capital
facilitiesother than thosefinanced by the Transportation | nvestment
Fund, proprietary fundsor assetsheldintrust. Thedebt servicefunds
account for resources used for the payment of principal and interest
on general long-term debt obligations.

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Thefinancia statementsof the proprietary funds are reported using
the economi ¢ resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of

Notes to the Financial Statements

61

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

accounting, similar to the government-wide financial statements
described previously. Proprietary fundsinclude both enterprise and
internal servicefund types. Enterprise fundsreport the activitiesfor
which fees are charged to external users for goods or services.
Internal service funds account for goods and services provided
primarily to other agencies or funds of the State, rather than to the
general public.

Proprietary fundsdistinguish operating revenuesand expensesfrom
non-operating. Operating revenues and expenses generally result
from providing services, and producing and delivering goods in
connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations.
Revenuesand expensesnot meeting thisdefinition, such assubsidies
and investment earnings, are reported as non-operating.

Major Enterprise Funds — The State reports the following major
enterprise fundsin its proprietary fund statements:

e Student Assistance Programs. These programsguaranteethe
repayment of student loans made by participating lenders to
eligible borrowers and service outstanding student loans.

¢ Unemployment Compensation Fund. Thisfund paysclaims
for unemployment to eligible recipients.

e Water Loan Programs. Theseprogramsprovideloanstolocal
governments, water districts, and other entitiesfor the purpose
of upgrading water storage facilities and other related
structures.

e Community Impact Loan Fund. Thisfund providesloansto
local governmentsto alleviate the social, economic, and public
financial impactsresulting from the development of the State's
natural resources. This fund also provides oversight of loans
and loan guarantees from federal funds to small businesses
under the Small Business Credit Initiative.

Nonmajor Enterprise Funds — The State’'s nonmajor enterprise
fundsinclude loan programs for low-income housing, agricultural,
energy efficiency, and loca government; Alcoholic Beverage
Control (state liquor stores); Utah Correctional Industries; State
Trust Lands Administration; and the Utah Dairy Commission.

Internal Service Funds — The State reports the internal service
fund type in the proprietary funds statements. The activities
accounted for ininternal service fundsincludetechnology services,
general services, fleet operations, risk management, property
management, and human resource management. | nthe government-
wide financial statements, internal service funds are included with
governmental activities.

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements

Thefiduciary funds account for assets held by the Statein atrustee
capacity or as an agent for other individuals or organizations. The
fiduciary fund financial statementsare reported using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.
The following fiduciary fund types are reported:

Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds — Thesefunds
account for the plan assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liahilities, deferred inflows of resources, net position, and changes
in net position of: (1) defined benefit pension plans and defined
contribution plans administered by Utah Retirement Systems;
(2) the Post-Retirement Benefits Trust Funds, defined benefit other
postemployment health care plansadministered by the Statefor state
employees and elected officials; and (3) Other Employee Benefits
Trust Fund, used to separately account and report assets dedicated
for employee benefits other than postemployment healthcare
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benefitsthat are administered through the Post-Retirement Benefits
Trust Funds.

Investment Trust Fund — This fund is used to account for the
investments related to external participantsin the Utah State Public
Treasurers' Investment Fund.

Private Purpose Trust Funds — These funds report resources of
all other trust arrangements in which principa and income benefit
individuals, private organizations, or other governments. Examples
include the Utah Navajo Trust Fund, Unclaimed Property Trust,
Employers' Reinsurance Trust, Petroleum Storage Tank Trust, and
the Utah Educational Savings Plan Trust.

Agency Funds — These funds account for assets held by the State
as an agent for other governmental units, other organizations, or
individuals. These funds include fines, forfeitures, tax collections,
and withholding taxes for employees.

Discrete Component Unit Financial Statements

The combining discrete component unit financial statements are
presented in order to provide information on each of the major
discrete component unitsincluded in the discrete component unit’'s
column of the government-wide statements. The discrete
component unit financial statements are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of
accounting. The information is presented in order to be consistent
with the government-wide statements, and is less detailed than the
presentation in each discrete component unit’'s separately issued
financial statements.

D. Fiscal Yearends

All funds and discretely presented component units are reported
using fiscal yearswhich end on June 30, except the defined benefit
pension plans and defined contribution plans (fiduciary funds),
administered by Utah Retirement Systems, Public Employees
Health Program (major discrete component unit), Utah State Fair
Corporation (nonmajor discrete component unit), and Utah Dairy
Commission, which have fiscal years ending December 31.

E. Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Liabilities,
Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position/Fund
Balances

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash equivalents are generally considered short-term, highly liquid
investments with a maturity of three months or less from the
purchase date. The Student Assistance Programs (major enterprise
fund) use a trustee for their long-term investing needs, and they
consider any cash and cash equivalents held by their trustee as
investments.

All cash deposited with the State Treasurer by state entities is
maintained by the Treasurer in various pooled investment funds.
The State Treasurer invests the deposited cash, including the cash
float, in short-term securities and other investments. All interest
revenue is alocated to the General Fund unless state law or trust
agreements require allocations of interest to other funds. Funds
authorized to receive interest earnings are segregated into separate
investment pools, and interest is allocated based on cash balances
in the pool.

Investments (including cash equivalents) are under the control of
the State Treasurer or other administrative bodies as determined by
law. In certain instances, investments may be restricted by law or
other legal instruments. Investments are presented at fair value.
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Accordingly, the change in fair value of investments s recognized
as an increase or decrease to investment assets and investment
income. The fair value measurements of investments is based on
the hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting
principles. Thefair value hierarchy, which hasthreelevels, isbased
onthevaluationinputsused to measurean asset’sfair value: Level 1
inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets;
Level 2inputsaresignificant other observableinputs; Level 3inputs
are significant unobservable inputs. Also certain investments that
are measured at fair value using the net asset value per share (or its
equivalent) asapractical expedient arenot classifiedinthefair value
hierarchy. The Trust Lands Fund (permanent fund) invests in both
open and closed end real estate funds that issue quarterly account
statements and the fair value of the investments is based upon the
Fund’'s ownership interest in partners’ capital.

The State’'s Unemployment Compensation Fund (major enterprise
fund) monies are required by the Social Security Act to beinvested
in the U.S. Department of Treasury, Bureau of Public Debt
Unemployment Trust Fund (BPDUTF), whichisnot registered with
the SEC. Thefair value of the position in the BPDUTF is the same
as the value of the BPDUTF shares.

Utah Retirement Systems (pension trust and defined contribution
plans) had five types of derivativefinancial instrumentsat yearend:
futures, currency forwards, options, swaps, and Synthetic
Guaranteed Investment Contracts. Futures contracts are traded on
organized exchangesto minimizecredit risk. Currency forwardsare
entered into in order to hedge the exposure to changes in foreign
currency exchangerates on foreign currency denominated portfolio
holdings. Optionsgivetheright, but not the obligation, to buy (call)
or sell (put) an asset at apreset price over aspecified period. Interest
rate swap agreements are entered into in an attempt to manage their
exposure to interest rate risk. Interest rate risk represents the
exposure to fair value losses arising from the future changes in
prevailing market interest rates. Synthetic Guaranteed Investment
Contractsare available to membersin the Utah Retirement Systems
Defined Contribution Plans. The Student Assistance Program
(major enterprisefund) enteredinto aninterest rate exchange (swap)
agreement relating to some of its student loan revenue bonds. The
Student Assistance Program accounts for the swap agreement as a
fair value hedging derivative instrument to create a variable rate
cost of fundsthat will belower than thevariablerate cost achievable
inthecash bond market. SeeNote 3 for additional information about
derivatives.

Receivables

Accounts receivables in the governmental and business-type
activities consist mainly of amounts due from the Federa
Government, customers, and others. Receivables from the Federal
Government are reasonably assured; accordingly, no allowancefor
uncollectible accounts has been established.

Notes/mortgagesreceivablesinthegovernmental and business-type
activities are primarily long-term loans for local governments and
agricultural development, home mortgages, and individual student
loans. The interest rates on the loans vary but are generally lower
than market rates and, in some cases, are noninterest bearing.
Student loans in the Student Assistance Programs (business-type
activities) arefixedand variableratefederally insuredloans. Student
loans are insured at 97 to 100 percent of their principal balance
depending on the date disbursed.

Receivables for capital lease payments, as reported in the
governmental activities, are direct financing capita lease
arrangements between State Building Ownership Authority
(blended component unit) and certain College and Universities
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(discrete component units). The capital |ease receivableis reported
net and represents the sum of the future minimum lease payments
to be received, less any executor costs and any unearned interest
revenue on the capital lease. Receivables from the discrete
component unit are reasonably assured; accordingly, no allowance
for uncollectible accounts has been established.

Accrued taxes include receivables for taxpayer-assessed taxes
where the underlying exchange has occurred in the period ending
June 300r prior, net of applicableestimated refundsand allowances.

Note 5 provides a disaggregation of governmental and business-
type receivables, including a breakout of current/noncurrent
balances and established allowances.

Inventories, Prepaid Items, and Other Assets

Proprietary funds and component units' inventories are valued at
the lower of cost or market. Cost evaluation methods include first-
in-first-out (FIFO), last-in-first-out (L1FO), average cost, weighted
average, weighted moving average, and retail inventory method.

Governmental fund consumableitems are recorded as expenditures
when purchased except for General Fund state park merchandise
inventoriesand Transportation Fund road material inventories. State
park inventories are valued at lower of cost or market and
Transportation Fund inventories are valued using a weighted
average cost.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future
accounting periods and are recorded as prepaid items in both the
government-wideand fund financial statements. The cost of prepaid
items is recorded as expenditures/expenses when consumed rather
than when purchased.

Other Assets, as reported on the Statement of Net Position,
governmental activities column, include assets of the Trust Lands
Fund (permanent fund) acquired under the 1894 Utah Enabling Act
that are not considered investments. The net pension asset and the
net other postemployment benefit (OPEB) asset are also reported
as Other Assets.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include land and related assets, buildings,
equipment, intangible assets (software), and infrastructure (roads,
bridges, drainage systems, lighting systems, and similar items), are
reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities
columns, or inthecomponent units column on the government-wide
Statement of Net Position. Capital assets of proprietary funds and
fiduciary fundsarealso recordedin their respectivefund statements.
Capital assets, with the exception of infrastructure and internally
generated software (funded with nonfederal resources), are defined
by the State asassets, which cost $5 thousand or morewhen acquired
and havean estimated useful lifegreater than oneyear. Infrastructure
assets are capitalized if the cost is over $1 million. Internaly
generated software, funded with nonfederal resources, iscapitalized
if the cost is over $500 thousand. Purchased or constructed capital
assets are recorded at cost or at estimated historical cost where
historical cost is not available. Donated capital assets are reported
at acquisition value as of their acquisition date.

Capital assets purchased by governmental funds are recorded as
expendituresinthegovernmental fundfinancial statements. Interest
expense for capital asset construction related to governmental
activities is not capitalized. Interest expense incurred during
construction of capital facilities related to business-type activities
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and discrete component unitsisimmaterial and isnot capitalized in
all cases.

Buildings, equipment, and other assets are depreciated or amortized
using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful
lives:

Asset Class Years
Equipment/Software..........c.ceceeenene 3-15
Aircraft and Heavy Equipment........ 5-30
Buildings and Improvements........... 30-40
Land Improvements..........c.cocevenne. 5-20
INfrastructure.........cooeeeeveveceninnnes 15-80

As provided by GASB standards, the State has elected to use the
“modified approach” to account for infrastructure assets (i.e., roads
and bridges) maintained by the State’'s Department of
Transportation. Thisincludes infrastructure acquired prior to fiscal
year 1981. Under this approach, depreciation expense is not
recorded and only improvements that increase the capacity or
efficiency of an infrastructure asset are capitalized. Using this
approachrequiresthe Stateto: (1) maintainaninventory of theassets
and perform periodic condition assessments; (2) estimate each year
the annual amount to maintain and preserve the assets at the
condition level set by the State; and (3) document that the assetsare
being preserved approximately at or above the condition level set
by the State. Other infrastructure, which is primarily maintained by
the Department of Natural Resources, iscapitalized and depreciated.

Mostworksof art and historical treasuresof theprimary government
are not capitalized or depreciated. These assets are held for public
exhibition, education, or research rather than financial gain. These
assets are also protected, unencumbered, preserved, and subject to
policies requiring the proceeds from sales of collection itemsto be
used to acquire other collection items. The State’s assets of this
nature include the State Fine Art Collection, photographs, prints,
paintings, historical documents and artifacts, monuments, statues,
and paleontological and archaeological collections. See Note 8 for
additional information about capital assets.

Deferred Outflows of Resources

Deferred outflow of resources represents a consumption of net
position by the government that applies to afuture period(s) and so
will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/
expenditure) until then. Deferred outflows of resourcesarereported
in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns,
or in the component units column on the government-wide
Statement of Net Position. See Note 11 for a disaggregation of
deferred outflows. Deferred outflows of resources of governmental
funds, proprietary funds, and discrete component units are reported
in detail in their respective fund statements.

Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities include the liability for employee payrolls and
liabilities accruing over time where demand for payment is due
shortly after fiscal yearend. See Note 6 for additional information
about accrued liabilities.

Unearned Revenue

In the government-wide statements, governmental fund statements,
proprietary fund statements, and fiduciary fund statements,
unearned revenueisrecorded when cash or other assetsarereceived
prior to being earned.
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Policy Claims Liabilities

Policy claims liabilities are for insurance claims incurred prior to
the reporting date and are based on actuarial estimates; however,
policy claimsliabilitiesfor Unemployment Insurance arefor claims
filed as of the reporting date. A substantial portion of policy claims
liabilities is long-term in nature. Therefore, claims liabilities are
reported as long-term liabilities on the Statement of Net Position.
See Note 10 for additional information about policy clams
lighilities.

Long-term Debt

Long-term debt, such as the net pension liability (NPL), net OPEB
liability (NOL), revenuebonds, claims, contractsand notespayable,
directly related to and intended to be paid from proprietary funds
or discretely presented component unitsisincluded in the accounts
of such funds. All other long-term debt, such as the compensated
absences, claim or settlement obligations, pollution remediation
obligations, general obligation bonds, and |ease revenue bonds (and
remaining NPL and NOL liabilities not allocated to proprietary
funds or discretely presented component units), is reported in the
government-wide financial statements. Bond premiums and
discounts are amortized over the life of the bonds using the bonds
outstanding method or straight-line method, which approximates
the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the
applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are
recognized during the current period.

In the governmental fund financial statements, long-term debt is
recognized when due or expected to be financed from current
expendable available financial resources. Amortization of bond
premiums and discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, are
recognized during thecurrent period. Thefaceamount of debt issued
is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt
issuances are reported as other financing sources, while discounts
on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance
costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds
received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

The Tax Reform Act of 1986 requires governmental entitiesissuing
tax-exempt bonds to refund to the U.S. Treasury interest earnings
on bond proceeds in excess of the yield on those bonds.
Governmental entities must comply with arbitrage rebate
requirementsin order for their bonds to maintain tax-exempt status.
Entities are required to remit arbitrage rebate payments for non-
purpose interest to the federal government at least once every five
yearsover thelife of the bonds. Federal regulations also requirethe
Student Assistance Programs (major enterprise fund) to keep the
yield on student loanswithin adesignated percentage of theinterest
cost of the related tax-exempt borrowing. One method of reducing
thisyield isto make yield reduction payments to the United States
Treasury. Estimated yield reduction payments may be made by the
end of the tenth year and every fifth year thereafter during the life
of the bonds. Some State of Utah bonds may be exempt from the
rebate requirementsif they meet certain statutory exceptionsper the
regulations. At June 30, 2017, there was no liability for yield
reduction payments or for non-purpose interest arbitrage rebate in
Student Assistance Programs’ or State of Utah bonds.

Arbitrage liability istreated as an expense in the government-wide
Statement of Net Position and the proprietary fund financia
statements when the liability is recognized. Arbitrage liability is
recorded as an expenditure in the governmental fund financial
statements when the liability is due. Other arbitrage liabilities are
immaterial.
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Compensated Absences

For most employeesvacation leaveisaccrued at arate of four hours
every two weeks for the first five years of employment, and grows
to a rate of seven hours every two weeks after 20 years of
employment. There is no requirement to use vacation leave, but a
maximum of 320 hours may be carried forward at the beginning of
each calendar year. The State established the State Employees
Annual LeaveTrust Fund (other employeebenefit trust funds) where
any unused vacation leave is paid to employees upon termination.
Theongoing termination paymentsfromthe Trust Fund areprovided
by chargesto agency budgets as benefits are earned. Vacation leave
taken as time off is paid from current budgets when used.

Most employeesearn sick leave at arate of four hoursfor each two-
week period, with no limit to the amount that can be accumul ated.
The State does not reimburse employeesfor unused sick leave upon
termination unless the leave was earned prior to January 4, 2014,
and employees had the option under certain circumstances to
“convert” sick leave. Employees may use converted sick leave in
place of vacation leave. Any unused converted sick is paid to
employees upon termination. Sick leave is expended when used.

At retirement, for participating agencies, an employee receives
25 percent of thevalue of all unused accumulated sick leave, earned
prior to January 4, 2014, asamandatory employer contribution into
a401(k) account. Each day of remaining sick leave earned prior to
January 1, 2006, may be used to participate in the State Employee
Other Postemployment Benefit Plan (State Employee OPEB Plan),
to purchase health and life insurance coverage or Medicare
supplemental insurance. See Note 19 for additional information
about the State Employee OPEB Plan.

Any remaining sick leave earned on or after January 1, 2006, but
before January 4, 2014, is converted to avalue (based on the higher
of the employee’srate of pay at retirement or the average pay rate
of retirees in the previous year) and placed in a Hedlth
Reimbursement Arrangement administered by Utah Retirement
Systems. Any payouts by the State of converted sick leave upon
termination, contributions into a 401(k) account, or Health
Reimbursement Arrangement upon retirement, are paid from the
Other Employee Benefits Trust Fund. The ongoing termination
payments from the Trust Fund are provided by charges to agency
budgets.

Proprietary funds, Utah Schools for the Deaf and the Blind, and
private purpose trust funds of the primary government also
participate in the compensated absences and have no liability for
leave benefits once their contributions have been made. The total
liability of the governmental activitiesfor compensated absencesis
recorded in the government-wide Statement of Net Position as part
of long-term liabilities. However, in accordance with GAAP, the
liability is not recorded in the governmental fund financia
statements. See Note 10 for additional information about the
liability.

Compensatory time for overtime worked may be earned up to a
maximum of 80 hours. Any overtime exceeding 80 hours is paid
when earned. In accordance with GAAP, compensatory time is
expended when the leave is taken in governmental funds, but is
expensed when earned for budgetary purposes.

Vacation earnings, sick leaveearnings, and termination policiesvary
among discretecomponent unitsand fromtheprimary government’s
policies, but usually vacation leave is expended when earned and
sick leave is expended when used.
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Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred
outflows/inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension
expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Utah
Retirement Systems Pension Plan (URS) and additions to/
deductionsfrom URS'sfiduciary net position have been determined
on the same basis as they are reported by URS. For this purpose,
benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit
terms. The primary government’s proportionate share of pension
amounts were further allocated to proprietary funds (business-type
activities) based on the amount of employer contributions paid by
each proprietary fund. Pension investments are reported at fair
value.

Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability and deferred
outflows/inflows of resourcesrelated to OPEB, and OPEB expense,
information about the fiduciary net positions of the State Employee
Other Postemployment Benefit Plan (State Employee OPEB Plan)
and the Elected Official OPEB Plan (Plans) and additions to/
deductions from the Plans' fiduciary net positions have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by the Plans. For
this purpose the Plans recognize benefit payments when due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. The Plans
proportionate share of OPEB amounts were further allocated to
proprietary funds (business-type activities) based on the amount of
employer contributions paid by each proprietary fund. OPEB
investments for both Plans are reported at fair value.

Deferred Inflows of Resources

Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net
position that appliesto afuture period, and sowill not be recognized
asaninflow of resources (revenue) until that time. Deferred inflows
of resourcesarereportedintheapplicablegovernmental or business-
type activities columns or in the component units column on the
government-wide Statement of Net Position. See Note 11 for a
disaggregation of deferred inflows. Deferred inflows of resources
of governmental funds, proprietary funds, and discrete component
units are reported in detail in their respective fund statements.

Net Position/Fund Balances

The difference between assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources is “Net Position” on
thegovernment-wide, proprietary fund, and fiduciary fund financial
statements and “ Fund Balance” on the governmental fund financial
Sstatements.

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balances are
classified as nonspendable, restricted, or unrestricted (committed,
assigned, or unassigned). Restricted balances represent those
portions of fund balance where constraints placed on the resources
are either externally imposed or imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Committed fund
balance represents amounts that can only be used for specific
purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the
Legislature, such as dedicated revenues or legislation. Assigned
fund balance is constrained by the Legidature’s intent to be used
for specific purposes, by directive of the Executive Appropriations
Committee of the Legislature or in some cases by legislation. See
Note 12 for additional information about fund balances.

The State maintains three stabilization accounts: (1) the General
Fund Budget Reserve Account inthe General Fund (the*Rainy Day
Fund”) reported as committed fund balance; (2) the Medicaid
Growth Reduction and Budget Stabilization Restricted Account in
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the General Fund (“the Medicaid Budget Stabilization Account”)
reported as committed fund balance; and (3) the Education Budget
Reserve Account in the Education Fund (the “ Education Reserve”)
reported asrestricted fund bal ance. The resources of these accounts
may only be expended when specific non-routine budget shortfalls
occur and upon appropriation by the Legislature.

Statutorily, the State established aminimum fund balance policy for
the Disaster Recovery Restricted Account and the Local
Government Emergency Response Loan Fund. Both these funds
may issueloansfor specific emergenciesaslong asaminimum fund
balance is maintained in the funds. See Note 12 for additional
information about the stabilization accounts and funds with a
statutory minimum fund balance requirement.

F. Restricted and Unrestricted Resources

When an expenditure/expense is incurred for purposes for which
both restricted and unrestricted resources are available, it is the
State's general policy to use restricted resources first. When
expenditures/expenses are incurred for purposes for which
unrestricted (committed, assigned, and unassigned) resources are
available, and amounts in any of these unrestricted classifications
could be used, it is the State’s general policy to spend committed
resources first. However, the State has some programs that are
funded by appropriations from both unrestricted resources and
resources required by law to be deposited in a specific subfund for
a specific purpose (which may include restricted resources and
unrestricted-committed resources). In those instances, it is the
State'spolicy to expend those resources proportional ly based onthe
amounts appropriated from each source.

Grants

Federal grants and assistance awards made on the basis of
entitlement periods are recorded as revenues when entitlement
occurs. All federal reimbursement-type grants are recorded as
revenues when the related allowable expenditures are incurred and
all applicable eligibility requirements are met.

Federal grants include nonmonetary transactions for food and
vaccine commodities. Commodity revenues and expenditures are
valued at their federally reported value. Commodity inventories at
yearend areimmaterial . For thefiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the
State reported revenues and expenditures of $27.277 million for
commoadities in the Genera Fund, and $18.352 million for
commodities in the Education Fund (special revenue fund).

Investment Income

Investment income includes interest, dividends and other earnings,
and the change in fair value of investments. Negative investment
income is reported where the decrease in the fair value of
investments due to market conditions exceeded the other
components of investment income.

In accordance with state law, interest and dividend incomefrom the
State Endowment Fund (nonmajor governmental fund) is assigned
to and reported directly in the General Fund. A portion of the
applicable income reported in the General Fund is then transferred
into the State Endowment Fund to increase the principal in thefund
as required by state law. The State Endowment Fund generated
$8.626 million of cashinvestment earnings, of which $5.146 million
was reported in the General Fund and $3.480 million was reported
in the State Endowment Fund.
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G. Interfund Transactions

Government-wide Financial Statements

Interfund Activity — In general, eliminations have been made to
minimizethedouble counting of internal activity, including internal
service fund type activity. However, interfund services, provided
and used between different functional categories, have not been
eliminated in order to avoid distorting the direct costs and program
revenues of the applicable functions. Transfers between
governmental and business-type activities are reported at the net
amount.

Interfund Balances —Interfund receivabl esand payableshavebeen
eliminated from the government-wide Statement of Net Position,
except for the residual amounts due between governmental and
business-type activities.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Interfund Activity — Interfund transactions for goods sold or
servicesrendered for aprice approximating their external exchange
value, and employee benefit contributions are accounted for as
revenues and expenditures/expenses in the funds involved.

Transfers are used to report flows of cash (or other assets) between
funds without equivalent flows of assetsin return or a requirement
for repayment. The State's transfers are based on legidative
appropriations or other legal authority. Transfers are presented in
Note 14.
NOTE 2. BEGINNING NET POSITION
ADJUSTMENTS AND OTHER CHANGES

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the State implemented the
following new accounting standards issued by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB):

GASB Statement 74, Financial Reporting for Postemployment
Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans.

GASB Statement 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for

Postemployment  Benefits Other Than Pensions (early
implemented).

GASB Statement 77, Tax Abatement Disclosures.

GASB Statement 80, Blending Requirements for Certain

Component Units.
GASB Statement 85, Omnibus 2017 (early implemented).

GASB Statement 74 — This Statement requires changes in the
presentation of the financial statements, notes to the financial
statements, and required supplementary information for Other
Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) plans. It aso requires more
comprehensivefootnotedisclosureregardingthenet OPEB liability,
the sengitivity of the net OPEB liability to the discount rate and
healthcare cost trend rates, and increased investment activity
disclosures. Thetotal OPEB liability, determinedin accordancewith
GASB Statement 74 (for the State’s two single-employer plans
administered through irrevocable trusts), is presented in Note 19.

GASB Statement 75 — This Statement establishes standards for
measuring and recognizing assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and expense/expenditures
for Other Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) plans provided to
employees of the primary government and its component units. It
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reguires the State to record the State’s net OPEB liability in the
government-wide financial statements and in the proprietary funds
and component unit financial statements.

Asaresult of implementing this Statement, beginning net position
of governmental activitieswasreduced by $146.876 million onthe
Statement of Activities, to reflect beginning net OPEB liability
under the measurement requirements of thisnew Statement. $8.569
million of this adjustment to beginning net position is for
Governmental Activities—Internal Service Fundsasreflectedinthe
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net
Position — Proprietary Funds. In addition, $7.941 million of this
adjustment reflects the elimination of $3.848 million in net OPEB
liability and $11.789 million in net OPEB asset previously reported
asrequired under GASB Statement 45.

Beginning net position for business-type activities on the Statement
of Activitieswas reduced by $2.191 million. Thisreduction is aso
reported on the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changesin
Fund Net Position — Proprietary Funds.

Beginning net position for the component unitswasreduced $1.401
milliononthe Statement of Activities. Thisreductionisalsoreported
on the Combining Statement of Activities— Component Units, for
the Utah Schools for the Deaf and Blind (nonmajor discrete
component unit). See Note 19 for further information on reporting
for other postemployment benefits.

GASB Statement 77 — This Statement defines atax abatement and
contains required disclosures about a reporting government’s own
tax abatement agreements and those agreements entered into by
other governments that reduce the reporting government’s tax
revenues. Infiscal year 2017, the State entered into agreementsfor
two tax abatement programs that reduced the State's tax revenues
by $25.628 million. Therewere no agreementsentered into by other
governments that reduced the State’s tax revenues. See Note 15 for
further information about the reduction of tax revenues realized
through tax abatement programs.

GASB Statement 80 — This Statement amends the blending
regquirementsfor thefinancial statement presentation of component
units. It requires the blending of a component unit incorporated as
anot-for-profit corporation in which the primary government isthe
sole corporate member. Implementing this Statement had minimal
impact on the primary government and itsdi screte component units.

GASB Statement 85 — This Statement addressesavariety of topics,
specifically topics related to Other Postemployment Benefit
(OPEB) plans. This Statement clarifies that OPEB liabilities and
expenditures, recognizedinfinancial statementsand prepared using
the current financial resources measurement focus, should be
measured as of the end of the reporting period. In addition, this
statement clarifies the presentation of payroll-related measures in
OPEB schedulesof Required Supplementary Information (RSI). As
aresult of implementing this Statement, changes were made to the
State’s RSI schedules.

Other Adjustments and Changes

During the2016 General Session, the L egislature passed Senate Bill
80, Infrastructure Funding Amendments, that modified the State's
salesand usetax earmarks. Beginning in fiscal year 2017, salesand
use tax revenues, previously recorded in the Transportation Fund
(major governmental fund), arenow recorded inthe Transportation
Investment Fund (major capital projectsfund). Thischange had no
impact on the beginning net position of governmental activitieson
the Statement of Activities. However, dueto salestaxes accrued in
the prior fiscal year, an adjustment was made on the Statement of
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Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Baances —
Governmental Funds to reduce beginning fund balance in the
Transportation Fund by $4.387 million and increase beginning fund
balance in the Transportation Investment Fund by $4.387 million.

In evaluating the income taxes and related accruals for the
Education Fund (major governmental fund) a discrepancy was
discoveredintherecording of tax accrual s, resultinginaprior period
adjustment of $14.440 million to increase beginning net position of
governmental activities on the Statement of Activities. This
adjustment was aso reported on the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances — Governmental
Funds to increase fund balance in the Education fund by $14.440
million.

Duringthe2016 General Session, the L egislature passed Senate Bill
212, Wildland Fire Suppression Fund, which in part reclassifiesthe
Wildland Fire Suppression Fund from a fiduciary fund to a
nonmajor special revenue fund. As a result of this change, an
adjustment of $13.666 million was made to increase beginning net
position of governmental activities on the Statement of Activities.
This increase is also reported on the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changesin Fund Balances—Nonmajor Govern-
mental Funds (miscellaneous special revenue). A reclassification of
$13.666 million was made to reduce beginning net position on the
Statement of Changesin Fiduciary Net Position — Private Purpose
Trust Funds.

Recently, the State passed legidation and a constitutional
amendment passed that changed the distribution policies for the
beneficiariesof the Trust Lands Fund (permanent fund). Asaresult,
the reporting and accounting was eval uated and changed to provide
a more complete presentation of activity within the Trust Lands
Fund; al investment earnings, administrative costs, and
disbursements to beneficiaries are now reported within the Fund.
In prior years, only the nonspendable earnings and principal were
reported in the Trust Lands Fund with all expendable activity
reported in other funds within the primary government. |n fiscal
year 2017, $56.032 million of investment earnings was reported in
the Fund and expended asfollows: $14.121 millioninadministrative
costs, $2.908 million distribution to beneficiaries outside the
primary government, and $39.003 million distribution (transfer out)
to the School Trust LAND Program within the Education Fund.
There was no impact on the beginning net position of governmental
activities on the Statement of Activities or on the the Statement of
Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Baances —
Governmental Funds.

In October 2016, the admini stration and plan reservesfor theHealth
Reimbursement Arrangement (HRA) were transferred from Utah
Retirement Systems (URS) (fiduciary funds) to Public Employees
Health Program (PEHP) (major discrete component unit). TheHRA
is atax-advantaged health savings plan for State employees to pay
for qualified healthcare expenses incurred after retirement. As a
result of this administration change and transfer of plan reserves, a
$27.141 million adjustment was made to increase beginning net
position of component unit activitieson the Statement of Activities.
A reclassification of $27.141 million was made to reduce beginning
net position on the Statement of Changesin Fiduciary Net Position
— Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds.

NOTE 3. DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits and investments for the primary government and its
discrete component units are governed by the Utah Money
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Management Act (Title 51, Chapter 7 of the Utah Code) and rules
of the State Money Management Council. However, the Act also
permits certain funds that have a long time horizon to make
investments of along-term nature, such as equitiesand bond mutual
funds. In the primary government these are the State Endowment
(special revenue fund), Trust Lands (permanent fund), Utah
Educational Savings Plan Trust (private purposetrust), Employers
Reinsurance Trust (private purpose trust), Navajo Trust (private
purpose trust), and Utah Retirement Systems and Other Benefits
Trust Funds (fiduciary funds). Thediscrete component unitsexempt
fromtheAct arePublic EmployeesHealth Program and the colleges
and universities' endowment funds.

A. Primary Government
Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits

The custodial credit risk for depositsistherisk that in the event of
abank failure, the State’ sdepositsmay not berecovered. TheMoney
Management Act requiresthat depositsbein aqualified depository.
The Act defines a qualified depository as any financia institution
whose deposits areinsured by an agency of the federal government
and that has been certified by the State Commissioner of Financial
Institutions as having met the requirements of the Act and adhering
to the rules of the State Money Management Council.

Deposits with qualified depository institutionsin excess of Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insurance limits are
uninsured and uncollateralized. Deposits are neither collateralized
nor are they required to be by State statute. The deposits for the
primary government at June 30, 2017, including those of the Utah
Retirement Systems (URS) (pension trust and defined contribution
plans) and Trust L ands(permanent fund), were$1.777 billion. These
deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk as follows:
e $437.263 million were exposed to custodia credit risk as
uninsured and uncollateralized.
¢ Exposure to custodia credit risk cannot be determined for
$1.321 billion of the primary government deposits, which are
in FDIC-insured accounts that are held in trust by Utah
Educational Savings Plan Trust (private purpose trust fund) at
two banks. Fundsin the FDIC-insured accounts areinsured on
apass-through basis to each account owner at each bank up to
$250,000. The amount of FDIC insurance provided to an
account owner isbased onthetotal of (1) theval ueof anaccount
owner’sinvestment in the FDI C-insured account at each bank
plus, (2) the value of other accounts held (if any) at each bank,
as determined by the banks and by FDIC regulations. It isthe
account owner’s responsibility to determine how investments
in the FDIC-insured accounts would be aggregated with other
investments at the banks for purposes of FDIC insurance
coverage.

Investments

The Money Management Act defines the types of securities
authorized asappropriateinvestmentsand the conditionsfor making
investment transactions. I nvestment transactions may be conducted
only through qualified depositories, certified dealers, or directly
with issuers of the investment securities.

The Act authorizes investments in negotiable or nonnegotiable
deposits of qualified depositories and permitted depositories;
repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements, commercial paper
that is classified as “first tier” by two nationally recognized
statistical rating organizations; bankers' acceptances; obligations of
the United States Treasury including bills, notes, and bonds;
obligations, other than mortgage derivative products, issued by U.S.
government-sponsored enterprises (U.S. Agencies), such as the
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Federal Home Loan Bank System, Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation (Freddie Mac), and Federa National Mortgage
Association (Fannie Mae); bonds, notes, and other evidence of
indebtedness of political subdivisions of the State; fixed-rate
corporateobligationsandvariableratesecuritiesrated“ A” or higher,
or the equivalent of “A” or higher, by two nationally recognized
Statistical rating organizations; shares or certificates in a money
market mutual fund as defined in the Money Management Act; the
Utah Public Treasurers' Investment Fund; and reciprocal deposits
subject to rules of the State Money Management Council.

The Utah Educational Savings Plan Trust is permitted to invest in
the Utah Public Treasurers' Investment Fund; mutual funds,
securities, or other investments registered with the United States
Securities and Exchange Commission; federally insured depository
institutions; stable value products, including guaranteed investment
contracts, guaranteed interest contracts, and guaranteed insurance
contracts; and any investments that are determined by the board of
directors of the Utah Educational Savings Plan to be appropriate
and that would be authorized under the provisions of the Money
Management Act or Rule 2 of the State Money Management
Council.

The Utah Retirement Systemsisgoverned by aseven-member Utah
State Retirement Board (Board). The Board has statutory authority
to pool pension assets in the Utah Retirement Investment Fund
(Fund). Statutes also establish that this Fund will be invested in
accordance with the “ prudent person rule.”

Trust Landsis governed by afive-member School and I nstitutional
Trust Fund Board of Trustees (Board). The Board has statutory
authority to establish policies and investment philosophy for the
management of the permanent fund assets consistent with the
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enabling act, the Utah Constitution, and other applicable state law.
Theseareto optimizereturnsandincreasetheval ueof thepermanent
fund following the “prudent person rule.”

The primary government’'s investments at June 30, 2017, are
presented below except those of the Utah Retirement Systems
(URS) (pension trust and defined contribution plans) and Trust
Lands (permanent fund). Theinvestmentsare presented at fair value
and by investment type with debt securities presented by maturity.

Note 3.B. presentsthe investments of the Utah Retirement Systems
(URS) (pension trust and defined contribution plans). URS
investments are presented consistent with their separately issued
financial statements by investment type.

Note 3.C. presents the investments of the Trust Lands (permanent
fund). Trust Lands investments are presented consistent with their
separately issued financial statements by investment type.

Fair Value Measurements

The State categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair

value hierarchy established by generally accepted accounting

principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to

measure the fair value of the asset. These guidelines recognize a

three-tiered fair value hierarchy asfollows:

¢ Level 1: Inputs are quoted prices for identical investmentsin
active markets.

¢ Level 2: Observable inputs other than quoted market prices.

¢ Level 3: Unobservable inputs.

The following table presentsthe recurring fair value measurements
at June 30, 2017, for the primary government, with the exception
of URS and Trust Lands.

Primary Government
Investments and Derivative Instruments Measured at Fair Value
(except Utah Retirement Systems and Trust Lands)
At June 30, 2017

(expressed in thousands)

Fair Value Measurements Using

Investment Type Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Investments by Fair Value Level
Debt Securities
U.S. AQENCIES......coerererreresissae s $ 894 % 894 % — —
Corporate Debt.......c.ccceeeeniciieceenes 10,374,308 — 10,374,308 —
Money Market Mutual Funds.. . 1,399,989 1,399,989 — —
Commercial Paper.........ccccccoveenerineeene 1,244,848 — 1,244,848 —
Bond Mutual Funds...........cccovvrerernenene 3,231,255 3,231,255 — —
AP gere US AR - oo amoce = -
Total Debt Securities.........ocevreernne. 16,551,294 4,932,138 11,619,156 0
Equity Securities
DOMESIC EQUILY...eevereereeereeeeeeereeeeienes 5,650,945 5,650,945 — —
International Equity .. 1,409,958 1,409,958 — —
Equity Securities........... . 158 158 — —
Total Equity Securities...........cccvrrenne 7,061,061 7,061,061 0 0
Igtv% Investmentsby FaurVaI ue ....... $ 23,612,355 $ 11,993,199 $ 11,619,156 $ 0
Investment Derivative Instruments
Interest Rate Exchange (Swap)............... $ 13137 % 0 $ 0 $ 13,137

Debt and equity securities classified in Level 1 are valued using
prices quoted in active markets for those securities. Other debt
securities classified in Level 2 are valued using the following
approaches:
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¢ Corporate Bonds and Notes are valued using quoted pricesfor
identical securitiesin markets that are not active;

¢ Commercia Paper isvalued using quoted prices for identical
or similar securities in markets that are not active.
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Mutual fundsclassified in Level 1 are valued using prices provided
by the fund company.

The Student Loan Purchase Program (major enterprise fund —
student assistance programs) has an interest rate exchange (swap)
investment derivative instrument. This investment fair value
classification is Level 3. The fair value was calculated using
information obtained from generally recognized sources with
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respect to quotations, reporting of specific transactions and market
conditions and based on accepted industry standards and
methodologies.

Interest Rate Risk

The following table presents the debt investments and maturities at
June 30, 2017, for the primary government, with the exception of
URS and Trust Lands.

Primary Government
(except Utah Retirement Systems and Trust Lands)

Debt Investments at Fair Value
At June 30, 2017
(expressed in thousands)

Investment Maturities (in years)

Less More
Investment Type Fair Value Than 1 1-5 6-10 Than 10
Debt Securities

U.S. AQENCIES......coereeerererereie e $ 894 $ — 8 894 $ — % —
Corporate Debt.........coeovrneiiirccircen 10,374,308 4,875,210 5,499,098 — —
Money Market Mutual Funds.................... 1,399,989 1,399,989 — — —
Commercial Paper.......ccooeeevnveenenennenens 1,244,848 1,244,848 — — —
Bond Mutual Funds ...........ccoveerenicrnenn. 3,231,255 — 243,430 2,978,609 9,216
A Ao reement 0.8 Ao .. 300000 300000 — -~ -~

TOtA .o 16,551,294 $ 7,820,047 $ 5743422 $ 2978609 $ 9,216
Discrete Component Units Investment in
Primary Government’s Investment Poal ... (742,554)

Total Debt INVeStMeNts..........c.ceureeeenes $ 15,808,740

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will
adversely affect the fair value of an investment.

The primary government’s policy for managing interest rate risk,
with the exception of URS and Trust Lands, isto comply with the
Money Management Act. Section 51-7-11 of the Act requires that
the remaining term to maturity of investments may not exceed the
period of availability of the funds to be invested. The Act further
limits the remaining term to maturity on al investments in
commercial paper, bankers acceptances, fixed-rate negotiable
deposits, and fixed-rate corporate obligations to 270 days — 15
monthsor less. TheAct further limitstheremaining termto maturity
on dl investments in obligations of the United States Treasury;
obligations issued by U.S. government-sponsored enterprises; and
bonds, notes, and other evidence of indebtedness of political
subdivisions of the State to five years. In addition, variable rate
negotiable deposits and variable rate securities may not have a
remaining term to final maturity exceeding three years.

Themajority of the primary government’s corporate debt securities
are variable-rate securities, which adjust periodically to the
prevailing market interest rates. Because these securitiesfrequently
reprice, interest rate risk is substantially reduced at each periodic
reset date. In the table above, variable-rate securities are presented
according to the length of time until the next reset date rather than
the stated maturity.

In addition, significant funds with a long-term investment
perspective have thefollowing mix of investments (percentagesare
of the fund’s total investments):

» Utah Educational Savings Plan Trust (private purpose
trust) — $5.436 hillion, 56.30 percent, in domestic equity
mutual fund securities; $2.746 billion, 28.40 percent, in bond
mutual funds; $1.397 billion, 14.50 percent, in international
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equity mutual fund securities; and $77.941 million, 0.80
percent, in the Utah Public Treasurers’ Investment Fund.

e  State Post-Retirement Benefits Trusts for State Employee
and Elected Official (pension and other employee benefit
trust funds)—$252.020 million, 92.50 percent, in bond mutual
funds; $3.191 million, 1.20 percent, in domestic equity mutual
fund securities; $2.973 million, 1.10 percent, in international
equity mutual fund securities; and $14.324 million, 5.20
percent, in the Utah Public Treasurers' Investment Fund.

e State Endowment Fund (special revenue fund) — $108.312
million, 56.20 percent, in domestic equity mutua fund
securities; $71.462 million, 37.10 percent, in bond mutual
funds; $6.516 million, 3.40 percent, in international equity
mutual fund securities; and $6.431 million, 3.30 percent, inthe
Utah Public Treasurers' Investment Fund.

e Student Assistance Programs (major enterprise fund) —
$97.852 million, 43.60 percent, in domestic equity mutual fund
securities; $125.657 million, 56 percent, in the Utah Public
Treasurers' | nvestment Fund; and $894 thousand, 0.40 percent,
in the U.S. Government agency securities.

«  Employers’ Reinsurance Trust (private purpose trust) —
$154.405 million, 83.80 percent, in bond mutual funds; $5.255
million, 2.80 percent, in domestic equity mutual fund
securities; $3.666 million, 2 percent, in internationa equity
mutual fund securities; and $20.978 million, 11.40 percent, in
the Utah Public Treasurers’ Investment Fund.

Credit Risk of Debt Securities

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an
investment will not fulfill its obligations. The primary government,
with the exception of URS and Trust Lands, follows the Money
Management Act as previously discussed asits policy for reducing
exposure to investment credit risk.
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The primary government’s rated debt investments as of June 30,
2017, with the exception of URS and Trust Lands, were rated by
Standard and Poor’s and/or an equivalent nationally recognized

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

statistical rating organization and the ratings are presented below
using the Standard and Poor’ srating scale. Securitiesrated lessthan
“A” met the investment criteria at the time of purchase.

Primary Government
(except Utah Retirement Systems and Trust Lands)

Debt Investments Quality Ratings
At June 30, 2017
(expressed in thousands)

Quiality Ratings

Debt Investments Fair Value AAA AA A BBB
U.S. AQENCIES.....oveeerreerrrieeneeeseseessssssesnes $ 894 $ 894 $ —  $ — 3 —
Corporate Debt.......ccovvevrecinneiireecne $ 10,374,308 $ 38021 $ 1185928 $ 7,353507 $ 1,796,852
Money Market Mutual Funds................... $ 1,399,989 $ — 3 —  $ — 3 —
Commercial Paper.......cceeveeereeninensenieens $ 1244848 $ — 8 —  $ — 3 —
Bond Mutual FUNds ..........cccceevereerenvennenns $ 3231255 % — 3 — 3 — 8 —

Continues Below
Quality Ratings

Debt Investments Al* A2* Not Rated
U.S. AQENCIES......oovreireriiiricisseeseres $ — % — % —
Corporate Debt.........covvevevreeriereieieiennnns $ — % — 3 —
Money Market Mutual Funds................... $ — % — $ 1,399,989
Commercia Paper........ccoocvveenene. $ 1194853 $ 49995 $ —
Bond Mutual Funds $ — — $ 323125

*Aland A2 are Commercial Paper ratings
Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for investmentsistherisk that, in the event of
afailure of the counter party, the State will not be able to recover
the value of the investment or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. The primary government does not
have aformal policy for custodial credit risk.

The primary government’s investments at June 30, 2017, with the
exception of URS and Trust Lands, were held by the State or in the
State's name by the State’s custodial banks.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the
magnitude of agovernment’sinvestment in asingle issuer.

Except for URS and Trust Lands, the primary government’s policy
for reducing thisrisk of lossisto comply with the Rules of the State
Money Management Council. Rule 17 of the State Money
Management Council limits investments in a single issuer of
commercial paper and corporate obligations to between 5 and 10
percent depending upon thetotal dollar amount heldintheportfolio.

Such limitations do not apply to securities issued by the U.S.
government and its agencies.

The primary government had no debt securities investments at
June 30, 2017, with more than 5 percent of the total investmentsin
asingleissuer.

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk istherisk that changesin exchange rates will
adversely affect the fair value of an investment or a deposit. The
primary government, with the exception of URS and Trust Lands,
does not have aformal policy to limit foreign currency risk.

Thefollowing fundshaveinvestmentsininternational equity funds,
and assuch, noforeign currency risk is presented: Utah Educational
SavingsPlan Trust (private purposetrust) $1.397 billion, State Post-
Retirement Benefits Trustsfor State Employee and Elected Official
(pension and other employee benefit trust funds) $2.973 million,
State Endowment Fund (specia revenue fund) $6.516 million, and
Employers Reinsurance Trust (private purpose trust) $3.666
million.

(Notes continue on next page.)
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B. Primary Government — Utah Retirement Systems

Investments

Notes to the Financial Statements

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

The Utah Retirement Systems' and Plans' (URS) (pension trust and defined contribution plans) investments by type are presented below.

Utah Retirement Systems
(pension trust and defined contribution plans)
Investments at Fair Value
At December 31, 2016
(expressed in thousands)

Total
Defined Defined All Systems
Investment Type Benefit Contribution and Plans
Short-term Securities Poals..........c.cccceueene. $ 2392184 $ — $ 2,392,184
Debt Securities.........couoevennnee 4,341,261 1,739,680 6,080,941
Equity Securities.. 9,556,366 3,000,446 12,556,812
Absolute Return... 4,508,784 — 4,508,784
Private Equity ...... 3,290,800 — 3,290,800
RE8l ASSELS ...t 4,269,045 168,370 4,437,415
Investments Held by Broker-dealers under
Securities Lending Program:
Equity SECUrties.......ccoevirureenirieceiriene 643,503 — 643,503
Debt SECUNtiES ... 15,157 — 15,157
TOtaA .o 29,017,100 4,908,496 33,925,596
Securities Lending Collateral Pool. . 699,487 — 699,487
Total Investments.........coceevveierenieene 4,908,496

The Systems and Plans value these investmentsin good faith at the
Systems and Plans pro-rata interest in the net assets of these
investments based upon audited financial statements or other
information provided to the Systems and Plans by the underlying
investment managers. The estimated fair value of theseinvestments
may differ significantly from valuesthat would have been used had
aready market existed.

Fair Value Measurements

The Systems and Plans categorize the fair value measurements
within the fair value hierarchy established by generally accepted
accounting principles. Thehierarchy isbased onthevaluationinputs
used to measure the fair value of the asset and give the highest
priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority
to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements).

»  Level 1: Unadjusted quoted pricesfor identical instrumentsin
active markets.

* Level 2: Quoted prices for similar instruments in active
markets; quoted prices for identical or similar instrumentsin
markets that are not active; and model-derived valuations in
which all significant inputs are observable.

e Level 3: Valuations derived from valuation techniques in
which significant inputs are unobservable.

Investmentsthat are measured at fair value using the net asset value
per share(or itsequival ent) asapractical expedient arenot classified
in the fair value hierarchy.

In instances where inputs used to measure fair value fal into
different levelsin thefair value hierarchy, fair value measurements
intheir entirety are categorized based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the valuation. The Systems and Plans assessment
of the significance of particular inputs to these fair value

$ 29716587 $
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5 34625083

measurements requires judgment and considers factors specific to
each asset or liability. The following table shows the fair value
leveling of the investments for the Systems and Plans.

Debt, equity, and derivative securities classified in Level 1 are
valued using prices quoted in active markets for those securities.
Debt and debt derivative securitiesclassifiedin Level 2and Level 3
arevalued using either abid eval uation or amatrix pricing technique.
Bid evaluations may include market quotations, yields, maturities,
call features and ratings. Matrix pricing is used to value securities
based on the securities relationship to benchmark quoted prices.
Index-linked debt securities are valued by multiplying the external
market price feed by the applicable day’s Index Ratio. Level 2 debt
securities have non-proprietary information that was readily
availableto market participants, from multipleindependent sources
which areknown to be actively involved inthe market. Level 3 debt
securities use proprietary information or single source pricing.
Equity and equity derivative securities classified in Level 2 are
securities whose values are derived daily from associated traded
securities. Equity securitiesclassifiedin Level 3arevaued with last
trade data having limited trading volume.

Real assets classified in Level 1 are valued using prices quoted in
active marketsfor those securities. Real assetsclassifiedin Level 3
are rea estate investment generally valued using the income
approach by internal manager reviews or independent external
appraisers. The Systems and Plans palicy is to obtain an external
appraisal aminimum of every threeyearsfor propertiesor portfolios
that the Systemsand Planshave somedegreeof control or discretion.
In practice, someinvestmentsare appraised annually. Appraisalsare
performed by anindependent appraiser with preferencefor Member
Appraisal Institute (MALI) designated appraisers. The appraisalsare
performed using generally accepted valuation approaches
applicable to the property type.
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Utah Retirement Systems
(pension trust and defined contribution plans)
Investments and Derivative Instruments Measured at Fair Value

At December 31, 2016
(expressed in thousands)

Defined Benefit Defined Contribution
Fair Value Measures Using Fair Value Measures Using
Quoted Quoted
Prices Prices
inActive Significant inActive Significant
Markets for Other Significant Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable  Unobservable Identical Observable  Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs Assets Inputs Inputs
Investment Type Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Investments by Fair Value Level
Short-term Securities.... $ 2290674 $ — $2290674 $ —  $ — 3 — $ — $ —
Debt SECUTNITIES ...
Asset-backed Securities. 294,369 — 275,264 19,105 5,014 — 3,352 1,662
Commercial Mortgage-backed... 121,421 — 113,867 7,554 2,698 — 2,428 270
Corporate Bonds..........c.cereeeeniiecrnenieeninicnens 811,079 — 808,037 3,042 266,683 — 263,859 2,824
Funds — Other Fixed INCOME.........ccccverieennnns 80 — 80 — 54,207 — 54,207 —
Government Agencies. 82,377 — 82,361 16 14,725 — 14,725 —
Government Bonds. 1,094,668 — 1,094,476 192 177,053 — 176,307 746
Government Mortgage-backed Securities......... 808,911 — 755,500 53,411 194,951 — 190,958 3,993
Index-linked Government Bonds...................... 1,113,522 — 1,098,928 14,594 90,443 — 90,443 —
Non-government Backed C.M.Oss.................... 28,996 — 21,888 7,108 340 — 75 265
Total Debt Securities..........c.oocvvererrerierennns 4,355,423 0 4,250,401 105,022 806,114 0 796,354 9,760
Equity Investments
Consumer Goods 1,992,666 1,991,773 500 393 300,268 299,802 458 8
700,926 698,961 1,739 226 89,721 89,721 — —
2,919 128 463 2,328 209,070 96,743 112,327 —
1,669,735 1,665,171 4,444 120 167,806 167,432 374 —
Health Care. 951,013 950,816 155 42 176,978 176,978 — —
Industrials 1,201,310 1,200,476 507 327 119,615 119,615 — —
Information Technology ..........cccveevereeceninecens 1,396,080 1,395,997 48 35 372,049 372,049 — —
Materials 533,178 532,286 99 793 34,489 34,472 17 —
Real Estate Investment Trusts 349,829 349,518 262 49 67,122 67,122 — —
Telecommunication Services. 217,859 216,482 1,377 — 22,964 22,964 — —
UtHHEIES .o 243,221 242,999 213 9 27,202 27,202 — —
Total Equity Investments...............cccceveeueunne 9,258,736 9,244,607 9,807 4,322 1,587,284 1,474,100 113,176 8
Real Assets
AGIHCUITUIE . 102,187 — — 102,187 — — — —
COMMOITIES ...ttt 33,899 33,899 — — — — — —
Real Estate 1,693,336 — — 1,693,336 — — — —
Total Real Assets " 1,829,422 33,899 0 1,795,523 0 0 0 0
Total Investments by Fair Value Leve ....... $ 17,734,255 $97278506 $ 6,550,882 $ 1,904,867 $2,393,398 $ 1,474,100 $ 909,530 $ 9,768

(Table continues on next page.)
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Investments and Derivative Instruments Measured at Fair Value

(Continued)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2017

Defined Benefit Defined Contribution
Fair Value Measures Using Fair Value Measures Using
Quoted Quoted
Pricesin Pricesin
Active Significant Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable  Unobservable Identical Observable  Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs Assets Inputs Inputs
Investment Type Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Investments Measured at the Net Asset Value (NAV)
Short-Term SECUNties ........cccoueveeveevrverererererenns $ 101,686 $ —
Equity INVESTMENTS .......ooverereciereeiereee e
Co-mingled International Equity Fund ................ 637,039 484,041
Co-mingled U.S. Small Cap Equity Fund.... 303,491 409,732
Co-mingled Large Cap Equity Fund — 511,712
Co-mingled Russell 1000 Growth Equity Fund... — 7,677
Total Equity Investments Measured at the -
NAV Lot 940,530 1,413,162
Absolute Return
Directional........ccceeveeeeeneiecececeeeeeee e 1,061,173 —
Equity LONG/ShOMt......cccoiieerriiecrricieieeecreenciens 283,317 —
Event Driven 1,030,425 —
Multistrategy 1,095,671 —
Relative Value........ccccceeieiecieeececeeeens 1,038,198 —
Total Absolute Return Measured at the NAV ... m 0
Private Equity — Private Equity Partnerships..... 3,290,800 0
Real Assets
Co-mingled Commodities Fund. . — 55,180
Co-mingled Real Estate Fund — 113,190
968,120 —
253,777 —
1,004,604 —
3,674 —
225,652 —
Total Real Assets Measured at the NAV ........... 2,455,827 168,370
Total Investments Measured at the NAV .......... 11,297,627 1,581,532
Total Investments Measured at Fair Value........ $ 29,031,882 $ 3,974,930
Synthetic Guaranteed Investments Contracts - -
Measured at Contract ValUe...........ccucveerieniennes $—— %
Investment Derivative Instruments
Short-term Securities— Options ..........cocoveeneereeenne $ (176) $ — 3 (176) $ $ — 3 — 3 — —
Debt Securities
OPONS ..oorvveeeerveeeressrssessesss s 386 — 386 (25) — (25) —
Swaptions (429) — (429) 64 — 64 —
Swap Liabilities. (2,484) — (2,484) (107) — (207) —
3,522 — 3,522 119 — 119 —
995 — 995 51 — 51 —
Equity Investments — Options.... 603 603 — — — — —
Real Assets — Swap Liabilities... (16,204) — (16,204) — — — —
Total Investment Derivative Investments...... $ (14,782) $ 603 $ (15385 $ $ 51 $ 0 $ 51 $ 0
Invested Securities Lending Collateral
Short-Term SECUNtIES.......coveeveerirciereeeesieiene $ 195742 $ — $ 195742 $ $ — $ —  $ — % —
DEBL SECUNMIES ....veveeeieeiereee s 178,865 — 178,865 — — — —
Equity INVESIMENES........ccvuemieeciricieieieieieeieeienens 324,880 324,880 — — — — —
$ 3248380 $ 374607 $ $ 0 3 0 $ 0o $ 0

Total Invested Securities Lending Collateral.... $ 699,487
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Utah Retirement Systems
(pension trust and defined contribution plans)
Investments Measured at the NAV — Defined Benefit

At December 31, 2016
(expressed in thousands)

. Redemption
Fair Unfunded Notice
Investment Type Value Commitments Redemption Frequency (if currently eligible) Period
Short-term Securities — Beta Overlays............. $ 101686 $ — Dally None
Equity Investments
Co-mingled International Equity Fund............. 637,039 27,916 Daily None
Co-mingled U.S. Small Cap Equity Fund......... 303,491 — Daily None
Total Equity Investments.........c.ccceveeeceeecnnee 940,530 27,916
Absolute Return
Directional........cccoveeinneieneereeeeeeeea 1,061,173 15,177 Monthly, quarterly 3-60 days
Equity LoNg/Short........c.coeovieveerneceseceene 283,317 — Monthly, quarterly, annually 30-90 days
. Monthly, quarterly, semi-annually, annually, bi-
EVENE DIIVEN ..o 1,030,425 86899 anually Y Y 60-120 day
MUIISETAEEQY ...c.cevveveeerec e 1,095,671 — Monthly, quarterly, semi-annually, annually 45-90 days
Relative Value.............. 1,038,198 —  Weekly, monthly, quarterly 5-90 days
Total Absolute Return............cccceevcieieecnnne 4,508,784 102,076
Private Equity — Partnerships..........ccccocecvevnenee 3,290,800 1,570,779 Not eligible N/A
Real Assets
968,120 420,371 Not eligible N/A
253,777 120,992 Not eligible N/A
1,004,604 188,341 Not eligible N/A
3,674 87,123 Not eligible N/A
225,652 33,562 Not eligible N/A
Total Real ASSELS........cvvvereerccrrereerereenns 2,455,827 850,389
Total Investments Measured at the NAV ...

$11,297,627 $

2,551,160

* See redemption descriptions for these investments under Real Estate and Timber Funds.

The valuation method for investments measured at the net asset
value (NAV) per share (or its equivalent) is presented on the table
above and on the following page. Synthetic guaranteed investment
contracts that are fully benefit-responsive are measured at contract
value and do not participate in fair value changes.

Defined Benefit

Short-term Beta/Overlays — Thistype consists of one pooled
investment fund that invests in exchange traded short-term
options and futures referencing equity indexes used for
portfolio rebalancing. The fair values have been determined
using the NAV per share of the investments.

Co-mingled International Equity Fund and Co-mingled
Small Cap Fund — This type consists of three institutional
investment funds that invest in internationa equities
diversified across all sectors and one fund that investsin U.S.
small cap equities. The fair values of the investmentsin these
types have been determined using the NAV per share of the
investments.

Absolute Return Funds — The fair values of the investments
in this type have been determined using the NAV per share of
the investments. Directional funds include investments in
seven funds whose investments are more directional in nature
although they can shift opportunistically between having a
directional bias and a non-directional bias. Equity long/short
funds includes investments in four funds in which the equity
securities maintain some level of market exposure (either net
long or net short); however the level of market exposure may
vary through time. Event driven funds include investmentsin
fourteen funds whose investments focus on identifying and
analyzing securities that can benefit from the occurrence of an
extraordinary corporate transaction or event (eg.,
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restructurings, takeovers, mergers, spin-offs, bankruptcy, etc).
One fund is in the process of redemption totaling $10.700
million over thenext 2 to 10 years. Two new fundswith avalue
of $42.600 million have redemption restrictions of 3-4 years.
Multi-strategy funds include investments in ten funds.
Investmentsin thesefundsrepresent amix of the other absolute
return strategies. Five funds are in the process of redemption
totaling $7.800 million over the next 1-5 years. Relative value
funds include investments in twelve funds. These funds seek
returns by capitalizing on the mispricing of related securities
or financial instruments. It is anticipated that five of these
funds, representing $83.700 million or 8 percent, will be
redeemed over the next 1 to 10 years. One fund, which
represents 2 percent of the valuein thistype, isrestricted from
redemption for 18 monthsasof December 31, 2016. All other
funds currently have no redemption restrictions other than the
restrictions noted above.

Private Equity Partnerships—Thistypeincludesinvestments
in limited partnerships. Generally speaking, the types of
partnership strategies included in this portfolio are venture
capital, growth equity, buyouts, special situations, mezzanine,
and distressed debt. These investments have an approximate
life of 10 years and are considered illiquid. Redemptions are
restricted over thelife of the partnership. During thelife of the
partnerships distributions are received as underlying
partnership investments are realized. The majority of the
private equity partnership investments are managed by two
gatekeepers. Both gatekeepers manage discretionary accounts
for URS. The gatekeepers are required to manage the private
equity portfolio in accordance with guidelines established by
the URS. The Systems and Plans have no plansto liquidate the
total portfolio. Asof December 31, 2016, it is probable that all
theinvestmentsin thistypewill be sold at an amount different
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from the NAV per share (or its equivalent) of the Systems and
Plans ownership interest in partners’ capital.

e Energy, Mineral, and Royalty Funds — Investments in
Energy consist of nineteen private equity partnerships, which
invest primarily in oil and gas related investments. Mineral
funds include five private equity partnerships, which investin
mineral mining equity securities, commodities and other
mining investments. Royalty funds include one private equity
partnership, which invests primarily in drug royalties. These
investments have an approximate life of 10 years and are
considered illiquid. Redemption restrictions are in place over
the life of the partnership. During the life of the partnerships,
distributions are received as underlying partnership
investments are realized. As of December 31, 2016, it is
probable that all the investmentsin thistype will be sold at an
amount different from the NAV per share (or its equivalent) of
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the Systems and Plans ownership interest in partners' capital.
The fair values of these investments have been determined
using estimates provided by the underlying partnerships using
recent observable transactions information for similar
investments.

¢ Real Estate and Timber Funds — This type includes 19
investments, which are invested primarily in apartments and
retail space in the United States. Timber includes two funds,
which invest in timber related resources. Investmentsin these
typescan never beredeemed with thefunds. Instead, the nature
of theseinvestmentsisthat distributionsfrom each investment
will be received as the underlying investments are liquidated.
Because it is probable that any individual investment will be
sold, the fair value of each individua investment has been
determined using the NAV per share (or its equivalent) of the
Systems and Plans ownership interest in partners’ capital.

Utah Retirement Systems
(pension trust and defined contribution plans)
Investments Measured at the NAV — Defined Contribution

At December 31, 2016
(expressed in thousands)

Fair Unfunded Redemption Frequency Redemption
Investment Type Value Commitments (if currently eligible) Notice Period
Equity Securities
Co-mingled Large Cap Equity Fund...........cccevn.... $ 511,712 $ — Daily None
Co-mingled International Equity Fund.................. 484,041 — Daily None
Co-mingled U.S. Small Cap Equity Fund.............. 409,732 — Daily None
Co-mingled Russell 1000 Growth Equity Fund..... 7,677 — Daily None
Total Equity SECUMtIES.......covvveeeririeieirieecsenieie 1,413,162 0
Real Assets
Co-mingled Real Estate Equity Fund .................... 113,190 — Quarterly 90 days
Co-mingled Commodities Fund . 55,180 — Daily None
Total REAl ASSEL ..o 168,370 0
Total Investments Measured at the NAV ......... $ 1,581,532 $ 0

Defined Contribution

*  Co-Mingled Funds—Thefair valuesof theinvestmentsof this
type have been determined using the NAV per share of the
investments. The co-mingled real estate equity fund is
comprised of institutional quality commercial real estateacross
a broad range of real estate asset types. The co-mingled
commodities fund invests mainly in bulk goods and raw
materials. Theother fundsinvestin securitiesindicativeof their
name.

Interest Rate Risk

Utah Retirement Systems (URS) (pension trust and defined
contribution plans) manages its exposure to fair value loss arising
from increasing interest rates by complying with the following
policy:

. For domestic debt securities managers, an individual debt
securities investment manager’s portfolio will have an
effective duration between 75 and 125 percent of the effective
duration of the appropriate index.

* The international debt securities investment managers 